= = Washington State o
= Conservation Commission

Special Meeting Packet

June 18, 2025

*This meeting will be held virtually via Zoom.
Options to participate in-person are available*

Lacey, Washington

Our Mission:
“To conserve natural resources on all lands in Washington,
in collaboration with conservation districts and partners.”

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 1 of 263



=== Washington State Meeting Agenda
Conservation Commission
June 18, 2025

*Special Meeting*

Time
Please note that the times listed below are estimated and may vary, however, we will do our best to
adhere to them. Please visit the SCC website for the most up-to-date meeting information.

Meeting Logistics

This meeting will be held online via Zoom and in person. Space is limited at the State Conservation
Commission, if you plan on attending in person, please contact Lori Gonzalez at
Igonzalez@scc.wa.gov by Monday, June 16, 2025.

If you plan on attending online, you will need to register in advance to receive a link:
https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/vHINW1tTS2KoCw9OGEcZHg. After registering, you will
receive a confirmation email with the link to join on June 18, 2025.

Public Comment

Public Comment will be allowed prior to final commissioner discussion. Comments will be limited to
three (3) minutes per comment.

Agenda
TIME TAB ITEM LEAD
9:00 a.m. Call to order/Welcome/Introductions Chair Cochran

¢ Roll Call

e Pledge of Allegiance
9:05 a.m. Public Comment will occur prior to adopting each action item.

Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per comment.

a) Riparian Grant Program Guidelines — Action item Amy Martin

10:30 a.m. Public Comment will occur prior to adopting each action item.

Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per comment.

b) Grant and Contract Policy and Procedure Manual - Sarah Groth
Action item

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 2 of 263


http://www.scc.wa.gov/
https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/vHInW1tTS2KoCw9OGEcZHg

TIME TAB ITEM LEAD
11:00 a.m. Public Comment will occur prior to adopting each action item.
Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per comment.
c) Professional Engineering Grants Funding Allocation Shana Joy
— Action item
11:45 a.m. Public Comment will occur prior to adopting each action item.
Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per comment.
d) Out of State Travel — Action item
o National Association of Conservation Districts Director
Summer Meeting: Thompson
» Milwaukee, WI July 20-25, 2025
12:00 p.m. Adjourn Chair Cochran

Please note times are estimate and may vary.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 3 of 263



=

S ———— ——
-—
——
“—
T

= = Washington State

—_———

= Conservation Commission
June 18, 2025

TO: Conservation Commissioners
James Thompson, SCC Executive Director
FROM: Amy Martin, Riparian Grant Program (RGP) Manager
SUBJECT:  Overview of Edits to the RGP 2025-2027 Guidelines and Approval Request to
Adopt the Guidelines
Action ltem X
Informational Item
Executive Summary

The Riparian Grant Program (RGP) Manager, Amy Martin, will present an overview of the
proposed 2025-2027 RGP Guidelines and revisions made in response to the comments received.

Requested Action

SCC received comments from 21 individuals/organizations on several areas of the guidelines.
This memo captures the primary updates to the guidelines since the draft was circulated for
review during public comment.

Staff request approval from the Commissioners to adopt the 2025-2027 Riparian Grant Program
Guidelines.

Background: Guidelines Comments

Comments were submitted from 21 individuals or organizations, each including references to

various sections of the guidelines. Comments span a range of topics. The highest volume relates

to tiered incentives, permanent protection, buffer standards, and clarity around specific project
eligibility. Staff met regularly to review comments and their integration into the guidelines.

Additional meetings were held between SCC and staff at the Recreation and Conservation Office
(RCO) and with the Northwest Indian Fisheries Commission staff and Tribal representatives for
further input and to contemplate next steps for the Riparian Grant Program in areas like

permanent protection and Best Management Practice effectiveness monitoring. SCC also

appreciates the ongoing collaboration with conservation district staff to improve the program.
in the update to the guidelines.

Included with this Memo is a table of all written comments received and how they were addressed

Special Commission Meeting

June 18, 2025

4 of 263



Guidelines Updates

The updates to the guidelines intend to clarify frequently asked administrative and eligibility
questions, strengthen references to salmon recovery as included in the proviso, and provide
additional technical and planning references related to riparian function.

We appreciate the thoughtful engagement from many partners in this work. The following is a
summary of the primary comment areas and edits to the guidelines:

Best Management Practices (BMP) & Buffer Width
¢ Refined the eligible application of Riparian Herbaceous Cover, Aquatic Organism
Passage, and buffer width.
¢ Included reference to WDFW’s Riparian Ecosystems publications and site-potential tree
height (SPTH) as important planning considerations to optimize Riparian Management
Zone (RMZ) restoration.

Permanent Protection

¢ Clarified that SCC RGP funding for acquisition will only contribute towards the value of the
RMZ.

e Added a review and approval process for additional Lead Funders. The review process
will ensure a Lead Funder is meeting eligible expense and administrative standards for
state-funded projects.

e SCC will continue to explore important issues related to Tribal sovereignty in the
administration of permanent protection.

Reporting & Metrics
e Added clarifying references about the data collected with each BMP, and standardized
summary reporting metrics to align with the presentation agreed upon in coordination with
other agencies.

Tiered Incentives
e SCC is drafting the engagement strategy for the update to the Tiered Incentives category
of funding. This effort is coordinated with an active contract for an economic assessment
of incentives framework. SCC will include Tribes, agencies, and conservation district
partners in this work.

Included with this Memo is the updated draft of the 2025-2027 Riparian Grant Program
Guidelines. Edits made since the March 20, 2025 draft are highlighted in yellow.

Conclusion
Following the June 18, 2025 presentation and discussion of the information captured herein, SCC
staff will request approval to adopt the 2025-2027 Riparian Grant Program Guidelines.

For additional information, please contact:
o Amy Martin, RGP Manager, 564.669.0049, AMartin@scc.wa.qov

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 5 of 263


mailto:AMartin@scc.wa.gov

Riparian Grant Program Public Comments
Prepared for the June 18" Special Meeting of the Washington State Conservation Commission

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA
4.3 page 18- the 50 ft buffer minimum is very limiting for some of our properties where Buffer minimums for RGP are based on this
Alex Harwell - the creek is wedged be.tw.een a house and the existing road. Man.y of these site§ a b0 ft program's focus to improve salmon habitat and
Cascadia buffer would severely limit acc_ess for the landowner to do anything else on their water quality for sglmon and align with NR(?S Best
Conservation property. RGP was the one main state fu_nded grant where_the? buffer at35ftor stan.dards. E>_<cept|0'ns are granted for tangible Manage.ment
District hedgerow practice we were able to provide a bit more flexibility with landowners where : barriers to this requirement. Practice
a 35 ft buffer is pushing it a bit but more reasonable for them to opt into a restoration
project.
Ryan Williams - We support increasing the eligible maintenance window to 10 years. Thank you for your comment. Best
Cascadia
. Management
Conservation Practice
District
Zorah Oppenheimer | Page 8 - Have the Salmon recovery regions identified with links on the grant webpage. Thank you for your comment. We have added links Best
- Clark Conservation to salmon recovery regions to the webpage. Management
District Practice
Zorah Oppenheimer : Page 18 - Even the Department of Ecology allows livestock grazing in the two zones of Thank you for your comment, no portion of the RMZ Best
- Clark Conservation : the RMZ furthest from the stream/creek. Would suggest defining what portion of the restored areais eligible for grazing. Management
District RMZ is not allowed to have grazing. Practice
"Instream activities with no connection to riparian management zone restoration Instream activities with no connection to critical
included in the same application will not be funded." This reads to me that i could not riparian management zone restoration included in
Drew Schuldt - do instrgam activi_ties on a project that has already had e_l buffer installed unless we're the.same applicatior\_will not be fur'lded.
Palouse also act|yely working on thg buffer on this grant as Well{ is that the case? We'll probably Maintenance or addlt.lonal restorat_|on \{vork would Best
Conservation have projects where a funding source has had a buffer installed and we would like to do pe expected for a project that required instream Manage.ment
District instream work now. Hopefully that makes sense? improvements. Practice
Also, if we were to do a DIP that included a riparian buffer and instream work, it would
be nice to be able to do some of the instream work first, and then the buffer
implementation. Is that possible?
4.6 - Suggest a broader interpretation of exceptions. It is not reasonable for exampleto = Thank you for your comment. To avoid duplicative
expect a land manager with established perennial crops, access lanes, irrigation etc to | acres reported across the program, new riparian
remove this infrastructure but they very likely would agree to a buffer in whatever space | restoration projects must use the Riparian Forest
Frank Corey - is available. Suggest not referring to a buffer planting that is less than 50' as a RFB by Buffer (RFB), Hedgerow, or Riparian Herbaceous
exception but to use the Tree & Shrub Establishment practice to document areas Buffer (RHB) practices. Tree/shrub establishment Best
Whatcom . P . . -
Conservation planted with less than 50' of riparian for whatever reason. has been designated for malnfcenar.\ce activities Manage.ment
District only. We look forward to working with partners on Practice
This is a very narrow interpretation of the Tree and Shrub practice standard. The tiered incentive payment strategies that are
standard is to establish trees and shrubs in many locations for many situations. adequate to address the management decisions on
Limiting the use of this practice to replanting/maintenance is not meeting the intent of working lands.
the practice. Yes, use the practice to documents replants but also allow use for difficult
Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 1 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 6 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA
situations where full RFB is not practical.

The Tree and Shrub Establishment practice allows for use in many locations and
situations, not just maintenance. The practice should be available for difficult
situations where a RFB is not practical.

Linda Lyshall - Maintenance, section 3.17, page 12: Snohomish CD strongly supports the 10-year Thank you for your comment. Best

Snohomish eligible maintenance period. A 15-year maintenance period follows CREP contract Management

Conservation options and would provide additional RMZ benefits, but 10 years is a substantial Practice

District improvement in stewarding public dollar investments in riparian implementation.

Linda Lyshall - Eligible Best Management Practices, Section 4, Page 18. SCD supports the changes to Thank you for your comment. Best

Snohomish the eligible BMPs. The updates are aligned to NRCS practice standards and guidelines Management

Conservation from other agencies. We value the input of the Tribes and want to prioritize aligning to Practice

District their recommendations.

. Sections 4.9 and 4.10, including Table 1, Pages 19-21: Snohomish CD supports the Thank you for your comment.

Linda Lyshall - - . . . .

Snohomish addition ?f Aq.u.at|c Organ{sm Passage (Practice 396) and Stream Habitat Imprpvgment Best

Conservation (395) as “additional practlce§ [tha_t] may be c_onsu_jere_d on a case-by-case basis if they Manage.ment

District can be d_emonstrated to provide direct benefit to riparian management zone Practice
restoration.”

Thankyou for including language that recognizes the eligibility of projects upstream of Thank you for your comment.
current salmon presence where downstream benefits can be shown. In the

Similkameen, Okanogan, and Methow subbasins, many riparian areas critical to water

quality and hydrologic function lie outside of current salmonid-bearing reaches. In the

Similkameen, upstream habitat is blocked by an impassable dam, but the water flowing

Chevelle Yeckel - downstream still carries the influence of riparian conditions upstream. In the
Okanogan, steep tributary topography limits salmon access, but upstream restoration Best

Okanogan . . .

Conservation reduces sediment, cools flows, and |mproves downstream habitat. The Oka'noga.n Manage.ment

District Watershed Plan notes that elevated mainstem temperatures and low flows impair Practice
salmon recovery, and identifies riparian vegetation as a key mitigation tool. Redd
surveys have also shown increased spawning success near tributary confluences,
reinforcing the ecological importance of upstream systems.

Okanogan Conservation District works extensively with agricultural landowners in these
areas, where salmon may not be present, but riparian restoration is urgently needed.
Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 2 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 7 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name

Comment

For many of these landowners, the RGP, and a few other WSCC programs, are among
the only funding sources that align with both their land use needs and conservation
goals. Department of Ecology’s water quality grants require adherence to the Voluntary
Clean Water Guidance for Agriculture, a document that is both restrictive and poorly
understood, resulting in land use limitations that many farms and ranches cannot
accommodate. SRFB funding is limited to salmon-bearing streams, leaving much of our
landscape without access to critical restoration resources.

Without the flexibility built into the RGP to support upstream and non-salmonid
reaches, conservation districts are left with few tools to help landowners voluntarily
improve riparian health while continuing to manage productive lands. If the goal is
watershed-scale function and meaningful salmon recovery, this program must remain a
bridge between science-based restoration and the realities of rural land stewardship.

Benefits like temperature buffering, flow regulation, and sediment reduction may be
considered “indirect,” but they are anything but secondary. In much of Eastern
Washington, these functions are foundational to salmon recovery. We strongly support
the inclusion of upstream eligibility language and urge that it remain broad and
adaptable to local ecological and community contexts. By keeping upstream eligibility
broad, the program supports the kind of upstream investments that make downstream
salmon habitat possible.

Response

Category A-
YA

Chevelle Yeckel -
Okanogan
Conservation
District

We appreciate the WSCC and Riparian Grant Program Manager for keeping this
program accessible, practical, and grounded in the realities of on-the-ground
conservation, and we strongly urge that this context remain central as funding
structures and policy priorities evolve around riparian restoration. Future versions of
this program must continue to reflect the real-world conditions under which restoration
happens or risk losing the very participation and impact it was created to achieve.

Thank you for your comment.

Best
Management
Practice

Chevelle Yeckel -
Okanogan
Conservation
District

Section 3.17

We want to express strong support for the inclusion of a 10-year maintenance window
for riparian projects. This is a critical improvement that reflects the ecological realities
of restoration in Eastern Washington. Native plants often require extended
establishment periods due to drought conditions, and low soil moisture. Furthermore,
disturbances like wildfire, flood events, and invasive species outbreaks can occur years
after initial installation, threatening otherwise successful projects.

When challenges arise, it’s often landowners who first notice and report changes on
their project sites and they turn to Conservation Districts for help. The 10-year
maintenance window recognizes that plant establishment is not always linear,
especially in Eastern Washington’s dynamic landscapes. It gives districts the ability to

Thank you for your comment.

Best
Management
Practice

Riparian Grant Program Comments

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025

Page 3 of 32

8 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name

Comment

respond when setbacks occur, support landowners in addressing issues, and protect
public investments by ensuring riparian buffers are given the time and care they need to
succeed in providing water quality, habitat, and climate resilience benefits.

We encourage WSCC to continue prioritizing flexible, long-term maintenance support
for riparian projects, especially for those initially funded through other programs that
may not have included sufficient follow-up care. Allowing support for older projects
when there’s clear need and a thoughtful plan, helps ensure past investments aren’t
lost and that established sites continue moving toward full ecological function.

Response

Category A-
YA

Chevelle Yeckel -
Okanogan
Conservation
District

We urge WSCC to reconsider the blanket prohibition of all livestock access and grazing
within riparian management zones. While the intent to protect riparian function is vital
and supported, this inflexible stance limits the range of practical, ecologically sound
tools that Conservation Districts can use to engage landowners, especially in working
landscapes like those across Eastern Washington.

Grazing, when done strategically, is a powerful tool. Flash grazing, rotational systems,
and timing-specific access are rooted in sound range management and ecosystem
health. In Eastern Washington’s dryland systems, well-timed grazing can suppress
invasive annuals and reduce wildfire risk through fine fuel management, tasks that
would otherwise require extensive manual labor. These outcomes support riparian
function and water quality, particularly when integrated with planting protection, off-
stream water access, and responsible grazing plans.

Refusing to acknowledge grazing as a valid ecological tool risks alienating the very
landowners we need at the table. In many cases, strategic grazing is a doorway, a
familiar, functional practice that builds trust, encourages stewardship, and creates
momentum for broader restoration efforts.

Thank you for your comment. Riparian vegetation
takes a long time to establish and this draft of the
Riparian Grant Program focuses on the first ten
years of establishment. To achieve the purpose and
intent of RGP and protect the public investment
made in riparian restoration, riparian grazing will
not be permitted within a restored RMZ.

Best
Management
Practice

Chevelle Yeckel -
Okanogan
Conservation
District

Section 4.8, Native Vegetation

We appreciate the inclusion of climate-adapted species as allowable plantings under
the Riparian Grant Program. While native vegetation remains the preferred standard,
this flexibility acknowledges the real challenges we face in Eastern Washington with
increasing drought stress, shifting precipitation patterns, and the need to adapt
restoration efforts to future conditions. Allowing well-chosen, non-invasive species
where appropriate gives districts the ability to design plant communities that can be
practical, site-appropriate and that maintain ecological function and long-term
resilience.

Thank you for your comment.

Best
Management
Practice

Riparian Grant Program Comments

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025

Page 4 of 32

9 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA
Section 7, paragraph 2 The structure of the annual site monitoring may be
The current language places full responsibility for identifying emergent issues on defined by the CD in the associated cost-share or
district staff, but in practice, monitoring is often a shared effort between districts and District Implemented Project (DIP) agreements
landowners. While many cost-share agreements include expectations for landowners within RGP parameters.
to report site changes or problems, not all do, yet this kind of cooperation is essential to
Chevelle Yeckel - protecting restoration investments. Best
Okanogan Landowners are frequently the first to observe damage from wildlife, weather, or other Management
Conservation disturbances. Their timely communication allows districts to respond quickly and Practice
District effectively. Since district staff cannot be on site regularly, strong working relationships
with engaged landowners are critical to a project’s long-term success.
We recommend updating the language to reflect this collaborative stewardship model.
Acknowledging the role landowners play, formally or informally, not only reflects on-
the-ground reality, but supports the trust-based approach that enables voluntary
conservation to succeed.
The guidelines provide a definition for “Critical Riparian Management Zone,” but refer Thank you for your comment. References to
separately to “Riparian Management Zone” in multiple locations without defining it. "riparian management zone" have been replaced
Chevelle Yeckel - Since the program distinguishes between critical and non-critical RMZs, for example, in : with "critical riparian management zone." More Best
Okanogan maintenance eligibility and BMP implementation, this can create ambiguity. information on definitions related to riparian
. . . . Management
Conservation management zones is provided in the WDFW Practice
District We recommend adding a formal definition of “Riparian Management Zone” to Section Riparian Ecosystems Volume 1 & 2 and in the
8. This would help clarify project eligibility, especially in cases where work occurs definition of riparian ecosystem.
outside of a designated “critical” zone but still within the broader riparian corridor.
Nicholas Norton - I think RCO would also fund stand thinning or conversion, but might be less relevant Thank you for your comment. The present Best
Recreation and here since you don't fund out past 10 years. maintenance timeline for the program should not Management
Conservation Office require a thinning practice. Practice
The RMZ doesn't appear to have a full separate definition in line with WDFW, though itis | Thank you for your comment. Our primary reference
. shown in the diagram. Frankly, this Critical RMZ definition is a bit confusing. Wish itwas : to 'critical riparian management zone' as provided
Nicholas Norton - . . . . . . L . Best
. just "RMZ that has been locally or regionally..." and RMZ was given it's full definition in the budget proviso is complemented with
Recreation and . . o Management
Conservation Office separately. |mpr9ved references to WPFW S def|'n|t|ons for Practice
riparian ecosystems and site-potential tree height
RMZ.
Informing landowners of regulatory risks (section 3.2, page 8). Ecology supports the Thank you for your comment. The language in this
David Giglio - Commission promoting transparent conversations between CD staff and section has been updated to: "Potential program Best
landowners/operators regarding regulatory risk. Ecology recommends that, in addition participants (landowners/managers/lessees)
Department of . . . o . Management
Ecology to informing program participants of.the pote.ntlal impacts of.local land use codes., that : should be informed t.hat state, federal (?r local lgnd Practice
CDs should be encouraged to share information about Washington’s Water Pollution use codes or regulations may apply which restrict
Control Act, and the potential regulatory risk of contributing pollution to state waters, the conversion of riparian buffer to other land uses
Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 5 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 10 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA
as well as the recommended actions that will help to address and alleviate that risk (i.e. | after the expiration of a project agreement or
recommended actions provided in the Voluntary Clean Water Guidance for Agriculture). i contract."
Riparian restoration practices and minimums (section 4, pages 14-15). Ecology Herbaceous cover may be appropriate for some
recommends that the program should not fund projects that only plant herbaceous riparian management zones. This section has been
vegetation in riparian areas. Ecology doesn’t believe that funding herbaceous cover in clarified to: "4.5 - Riparian Herbaceous Cover
the riparian area will achieve the goals of the budget proviso and support the Climate practice, NRCS practice number 390, or Filter Strip,
Commitment Act’s goal of reducing our state’s overall carbon footprint and creating a practice 393, may be used where easements
healthier climate. The current draft language suggests that herbaceous cover would be | prevent the establishment of woody vegetation or in
s allowable throughout “dryland ecosystems,” which are later (diagram on page 22) areas where site conditions are not suitable for
David Giglio - . . - . . . . . Best
suggested to include areas in which the upland is characterized by sagebrush and trees and shrubs to achieve the desired buffer width
Department of I . « ) - - Management
Ecology bunchgrass. Ecology asks for clarlflca.tlon.on \{vhat areas would be conS|dgred dryland | in the critical riparian mgnagement zone, such as Practice
ecosystems” for the purpose of allowing riparian herbaceous cover to be implemented, | native herbaceous dominated ecosystems. The
as Ecology believes that many areas of the state that support sagebrush and/or minimum planning width for is 35 feet."
bunchgrass uplands are areas where trees and shrubs are native riparian vegetation.
Should riparian herbaceous be an allowable practice within the riparian zone, Ecology
asks for a narrowing of that definition and making clear that if trees and/or woody
vegetation (which capture and store carbon) can grow in the riparian area, it must be
planted to be eligible for grant funds.
We support the proposed change to extend maintenance eligibility to 10 years. Thank you for your comment.
Maintenance is critical to long-term project success but has historically been
underfunded. Shorter windows often leave restoration sites vulnerable before full
Rebecca Hunt, . L . e . .
Confederated Tribes ec_o.logfcalfunctlon is achieved, risking mvesﬁr_nent apd h_abltat recoyery. Expar?dmg Best
of the Colville eligibility to 10 years better matches the realities of riparian restoration, especially in Manage.ment
Reservation Eastern Washington, where establishing native vegetation and controlling invasive Practice
species often takes longer than five years. A 10-year window more accurately reflects
the ecological timelines required for riparian restoration, allowing projects to achieve
lasting outcomes and better steward the public investment.
We suggest adding biochar application as an eligible Best Management Practice (BMP) : Thank you for your comment. Additional eligible
Rebecca Hunt, in Table 1. Biochar is already an NRCS-approved conservation practice that improves practices may be proposed by conservation Best
Confederated Tribes : soil moisture retention, supports healthy root growth, and boosts plant survival, districts to meet their implementation goals. Management
of the Colville especially in drier areas where riparian restoration is more challenging. Including Practice
Reservation biochar would give landowners and districts another tool to help restoration projects
succeed under tough conditions.
Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 6 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 11 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA
Riparian Protection Standard Thank you for your comment and engagement on
this topic. The WDFW Riparian Ecosystem’s Volume
In our January 2024 letter, we requested the Washington State Conservation | communicates relevant science for incorporating
Commission (WSCC) follow language in the proviso (ESSB 5200) calling for the Riparian : biophysical, riparian function, and salmon habitat
Grant Program to adopt program criteria that will achieve “optimal restoration of considerations into the work of riparian restoration.
functioning riparian ecosystems.” Specifically, we requested WSCC recognize the 1 SCC has added the following language to the 4.3
site potential tree height buffer as a scientifically supported approach to achieving that : Riparian Buffer Standards section:
goal. The new guidelines make no reference to site potential tree height.
"Applicants are encouraged to consider the
Instead, the guidelines continue to refer to the Natural Resources Conservation Service | functions of the riparian management zone and
(NRCS) best management practices, such as 50-foot buffers along fish bearing plan projects to the width that will achieve the
streams, as the basis for the Riparian Buffer Standard. The science presented in the greatest riparian functional benefit possible.
Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife’s Riparian Ecosystems Volume |: Science Consider the 200-year site-potential tree height
Synthesis and Management Implications (2020) clearly indicates this standard, along (SPTH) for the location during project planning."
with several other NRCS practices cited in the draft guidelines, are inadequate to We've also strengthened references to WDFW's
meeting both the goal of “optimal restoration of functioning riparian ecosystems in definition of a riparian ecosystem and Washington
priority critical riparian management zones” and the proviso’s language that the WSCC | Department of Fish and Wildlife’s Riparian
“consider the best available, locally applicable science that is specific to each region of | Ecosystems Volume I: Science Synthesis and
Northwest Indian the state where the program criteria will be applied.” Management Implications (2020) in section 3.3 Best
Fisheries Project Types. Management
Commission (119) - The proviso calls for grant funding to be informed by, consistent with, and Practice
aligned with at least one of a list of watershed and salmon recovery planning processes. : The NRCS planning process is a useful training
The proposed guidelines recognize these recovery plans as the basis for prioritizing standard for conservation district staff, integrating
funding of projects yet include NRCS management practices as the basis for upland and riparian resource concerns into
establishing a riparian protection standard. Along with being inconsistent with the conservation plans. The planning standards
intent and language of the proviso, inclusion of the NRCS management practices is provide a useful framework to plan projects on
inconsistent with this prioritization language. The NWIFC requests WSCC to remove diverse managed lands such as agricultural
specific reference to these management practices in the guidelines and instead referto | properties and emphasize a 'systems' approach to
guidance provided in the proviso, WDFW’s 2020 Riparian Ecosystems volume |, and natural resource improvements. NRCS planning
where available, local watershed and salmon recovery plans to determine appropriate guidance instructs planners to conduct thorough
riparian protection standards that can be used to guide the funding of individual natural resource assessments to inform their buffer
projects. widths and RMZ management. Conservation plans
developed by CDs/NRCS address multiple
ecosystem functions that affect salmon and
riparian habitat - both in the riparian zone and in the
uplands outside of the riparian zone. We encourage
the use of biophysically based science (such as
WDFW's Riparian Synthesis Vol. I) in our work as a
critical element of the conservation approaches we
Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 7 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 12 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA
employ. We are also tasked with integrating social
and economic sciences into our approach to
enhance the effectiveness of our work and to
cultivate resilience within and across watersheds.
We find that on-the-ground application of NRCS
planning standards results in riparian buffers that
exceed the NRCS minimum, resulting in
improvements to the riparian zone and upland 'zone
of influence' within WDFW's recommendation of
site-potential tree height.
As the riparian grant program is maturing, we see
opportunities to clarify the upland riparian
management zone considerations and BMPs more
clearly in the RGP. Presently, CDs may propose
additional eligible BMPs that are needed to
maximize RMZ management, particularly where a
practice other than riparian planting will achieve a
restoration goal. We can also explore opportunities
to demonstrate the application of NRCS planning
process through the research conducted by SCC’s
Science Hub.
. 4.6 page 19 - Will SCC provide specific criteria or additional guidance for consistently Yes, the SCC will provide technical training and
Zorah Oppenheimer . . . ) . L . L . . .
- Clark Conservation evaluatlr?g vyhen buffer-width exceptions should apply, ensuring uniform application gwdgnce to fauhttate con3|§tent pI:OJeCt plannlng Buffer Width
District across districts? and implementation statewide while accounting for
specific site conditions.
Frank Corey - 4.3 - 50' of riparian forest along a stream results in huge positive improvements in the Thank you for your comment.
Whatcom ' riparian zone. Larger minimum widths would adversely affect program participation. Buffer Width
Conservation
District
4.4 - The hedgerow practice has been very effective in establishing some buffer and Thank you for your comment. The NRCS standard
shade along smaller watercourses where adjacent land use prevents larger buffers. for riparian practices that will address an aquatic
Frank Corey - . et . . - . .
Whatcom Requiring 35'/50" minimum widths blurs the difference between hedgerow and riparian habitat resource concern is 50 feet.
. forest buffer. WDSA research demonstrates the amazing effectiveness of even a 15' Buffer Width
Conservation o . . .
District hedgerow in intercepting pesticides and other contaminants before they reach the
water. Itis an important tool that is appealing to land managers in commercial
agricultural settings where a buffer is most critical.
Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 8 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 13 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA
Additionally, Ecology continues to request that minimum buffer widths are aligned with : Hedgerow is an effective option on working lands
the minimums of the Clean Water Guidance. The buffer minimums of the CWG are managing small waterways.
designed to provide cool water, support healthy ecological function, promote resiliency
from climate change and rising temperatures, and ensure clean water for Washington’s
David Giglio - residents today and into the future. Additionally, Ecology believes that the CWG
Department of provides more flexibility for landowners, as minimum widths are tailored to the stream Buffer Width
Ecology size, and the various alternatives allow for different land uses, to provide landowners
and operators with the ability to tailor their buffer implementation to match their needs
for their land; supporting both clean water and agriculture. In support of promoting
effective buffer minimumes, Ecology also recommends removing the Hedgerow Planting
Practice from the list of eligible practices.
Eligible Best Management Practices: Section 4.3 describes the riparian buffer The following was added to section 4.3 Riparian
standards that applicants must meet. We appreciate that these standards strive to Buffers:
plant tall trees wherever feasible and legal. We recommend adding language to "Applicants are encouraged to consider the
Chris Conklin - encourage applicants to go above and beyond the minimum buffer widths set by the functions of the riparian management zone and
WDEW Natural Resource Conservation Service. This language will strengthen the guidelines’ plan projects to the width that will achieve the Buffer Width
support for restoring fully functioning RMZs. WDFW’s online Site Potential Tree Height greatest riparian functional benefit possible.
(SPTH) mapping tool and field protocol allows users to determine the recommended Consider the 200-year site-potential tree height for
buffer width for achieving a fully functioning RMZ and would be a useful tool to assist the location during project planning."
applicants.
We acknowledge and support WSCC's flexibility regarding minimum buffer widths. This = Thank you for your comment.
flexibility—allowing exceptions where property lines, topography, hydrology, or cultural
Rebecca Hunt, resource protections constrain full buffer application—reflects a thoughtful approach
Confederated Tribes @ to the diverse conditions present across Reservation lands, traditional territories, and Buffer Width
of the Colville Okanogan County as a whole. This approach acknowledges the complex realities of
Reservation Washington's landscapes and the need to adapt conservation practices to site-specific
conditions. Maintaining this flexibility supports the health of critical riparian areas,
which are essential to cultural continuity and ecosystem resilience.
The Snoqualmie Indian Tribe considers cultural resources to extend beyond the scope Thank you for your comment. SCC's Cultural
of archaeology, and include the natural resources located within our ancestral territory. | Resource policy was developed in collaboration
Therefore, activities that are non-soil disturbing may still have an impact on Tribal with the WA Dept of Historic and Archeological
cultural resources. We kindly request Tribal consultation to still occur even for non-soil | Preservation, which is the State’s implementing
Jillian Hendrix - disturbing activities. agency for Executive Order 21-02 and is designed to Cultural
Snoqualmie Tribe ensure our compliance with that order. The policy Resources
focuses on activities that are soil-disturbing and
those that are not. SCC appreciates the
relationships built between Tribes and their local
conservation districts to understand the
Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 9 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 14 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA
importance of cultural resources to expand beyond
this compliance-level policy.
It is recommended that the granting program cautioned applicants in advance that Thank you for your comment. SCC encourages and
restoration projects may cause adverse impact to archaeological sites and places used | supports the relationships between Tribes and
for religious or cultural practices. To disturb these places is against the law. conservation districts implementing this work.
Rebecca Hunt, N o . ) ) . \ . .
. Organizations and individuals may be required to have historic property surveys in SCC's Cultural Resource policy was developed in
Confederated Tribes . ) o Cultural
. advance. collaboration with the WA Dept of Historic and
of the Colville . . S , Resources
Reservation Archeological Preservation, which is the State’s
implementing agency for Executive Order 21-02 and
is designed to ensure our compliance with that
order.
In the riparian grant program it says work must begin within 120 days of awarded Updated the language in Timelines 2.2 to: "Progress
funding, work can include planning, outreach, designs, etc. That may not always be the = must begin on all funded proposals within 120 days
Joe Holtcamp - . L ) . ) . ) Grant
. . case. To submit an application you basically have to have the planning and design of the award of funding, or provide a reason(s) or L .
Skagit Conservation . L ) o . Administrati
District complete. What if | am awarded funding in August 2025 for a project and | am not justification for delay. on
planting it until March 2026? This aligns with the language in the SCC Grant and
Contract Policy and Procedure Manual.
Ryan Williams - The inclusion of federal lands in this list runs counter to the grant manual's assertion SCC agency policy allows up to 50% cost-share on
Cascadia that Cost Share is not eligible on federal lands. Cost share is just one way to do projects | federal lands according to the SCC Grants and Grant
Conservation with this program but it wouldn't be eligible according to the grants manual. Contracts Policy and Procedure Manual. Administrati
District on
Will this section need to be updated once the final budget comes out? Can it be Thank you for your comment. Added clarification to
Rvan Williams reworded to make it general enough and dependent on the budget itself? What if there this section: "The SCC may award capital funds for
Ciscadia is capital funding that allows for outreach work, would that need a full manual update? | outreach activities in accordance with the RGP Grant
. roviso for capital funding." (3.8 Administrati
Conservation P b g (38) on
District
Ryan Williams - Repeating my comment from above. The grants manual provides guidance that cost Cost-share assistance is eligible on Federal lands, Grant
Cascadia share is not eligible on federal lands. in accordance with policies and maximums Administrati
Conservation outlined in the SCC Grants and Contracts Policy on
District and Procedure Manual.
Zorah Oppenheimer Page 12 - Can maintenance funds be applied for in the same biennium that a project Yes, implementation and maintenance for the new Grant
-Clark Conservation = thatwas implemented? For example, if a planting is done say Spring 26, can restoration site can be applied for in the same Administrati
District maintenance funds be requested for watering for the summer of 26? application. on
Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 10 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 15 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA
Page 18 - Can we request funding for scoping to prepare designs? One of the benefits of | Yes, designs are eligible in the TA/Planning category
Zorah Oppenheimer : WSCC funds is that we can actually fund the initial work before full scale plans are of funding. Instream Activities section is updated to Grant
- Clark Conservation | drawn up. Hopefully that isn’t shifting. “If the project involves engineered rock or large clarify that designs are required with cost-share or Administrati
District wood placement, engineered design plans must be submitted with the application and DIP projects. on
will be used to evaluate the project’s readiness to proceed with funding.”
Ryan Williams - We recommend that there be some manner of cap with instream activities. They can be : Thank you for your comment. At this time, there is Grant
Cascadia very expensive to implement relative to the buffer benefit. | support a case by case no funding cap on instream activities. This policy Administrati
Conservation consideration of projects because it may be the final piece to move a project forward. may be reviewed over the course of the biennium if on
District funds become limited.
Linda Lyshall - General Requirements - Timelines, section 2.3, Page 4. Snohomish Conservation Thank you for your comment. Grant
Snohomish District (SCD) strongly supports this addition as it provides certainty to Districts and Administrati
Conservation landowners interested in participating in the program about continued maintenance on
District and technical assistance forimplemented projects.
Section 3.10.1 The guidelines have been updated with the
The phrase “project development equipment” may inadvertently exclude essential following clarification on monitoring equipment:
Chevelle Yeckel - equipment u§eq fgr monitoring post-installation site.conditio.ns. .Clarification is needed "Monitgring equipmeﬁt is limited to tools nece§sary
Okanogan ground the el.|g|b|l|ty of equipment that support§ pro.Ject monitoring after . to mgmtor and adaptively manage the restoration G.ra.nt .
Conservation implementation. For example, tools such as soil m0|sture sensor§, water q.uallty activities." Administrati
District meters, or GPS-enabled data collectors are often integral to ongoing adaptive on
management and program accountability. These tools may not directly contribute to
initial “project development,” but they are essential for tracking project effectiveness
and informing future site management.
Section 7, paragraph 4 SCC coordinates all on-site project reviews/visits
We recommend clarifying that SCC staff will coordinate directly with conservation with CD staff ahead of time.
Chevelle Yeckel - districts when conducting five-year technical reviews. These reviews do not need to Grant
Okanogan duplicate monitoring or outreach activities that districts may already be performing. Administrati
Conservation Without coordination, these visits risk not only straining limited staff capacity but also on
District misusing taxpayer dollars on redundant work. To ensure efficiency and accountability,
we encourage SCC staff to group site visits when possible and align them with
scheduled tours, maintenance checks, or other field activities already on the calendar.
. Are you changing who is going to be reviewing projects given project prioritization and We appreciate RCO's interest in supporting our
Nicholas Norton - " : . o . . Grant
Recreation and add|t|onal.gU|dan.ce re.. salmon rlecovery benefits? Are there ways we can help support program anq the partnership aswe haye adgptl\{ely Administrati
Conservation Office that technical review given RCQO's experience? managed thls work. At pre§ent, SCC will maintain on
internal review of RGP projects.
Nicholas Norton - RCO also asks people to demonstrate why conditions/constraints don't allow for a The guidelines have been updated with language Grant
. planting-only proposal. Would encourage mirroring that language more if possible similar to RCO's manual. This will aid . .
Recreation and ) . Administrati
Conservation Office (RCO Manual 18 Page 136-137). docgmentanon of on-the-ground planning on
decisions.
Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 11 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 16 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA
Nicholas Norton - Just a note that RCO will not fund this with riparian dollars, and our board probably Improving fish passage, when paired with riparian Grant
Recreation and wouldn't support due to costs and intent of the funding. I'd be curious to hear the restoration, contributes to restoring riparian Administrati
Conservation Office | conversation behind adding this in. function. on
Nicholas Norton - I'd think you'd also want to have engineering designs in hand for some of these, so you We have clarified which practices require Grant
Recreation and can assess readiness to proceed? engineering in the guidelines and the application Administrati
Conservation Office requirements. on
Require match for work on federal property. The state's funds should not be used to Thank you for your comment. Cost-share policy for
Alice Rubin - support the necessary upkeep of federal lands that should be the responsibility to be publicly owned land is setin SCC's Grants and Grant
Recreation and funded by the federal government. Federal agencies should have to clear a higher barto | Contracts Policy and Procedure Manual at 50% with | Administrati
Conservation Office | pe eligible for the program. the option of requesting exceptions. on
Reduce the eligible cost share incentive for federal lands. Federal land-owning Thank you for your comment. Cost-share policy for
Alice Rubin - agencies have their own resources to maintain their properties and state resources publicly owned land is setin SCC's Grants and Grant
Recreation and should be limited for what should be their own maintenance obligations. Contracts Policy and Procedure Manual at 50% with | Administrati
Conservation Office the option of requesting exceptions. on
Commenting as a private citizen, but due to experience as a grant manager at RCO. The SCC is pursuing the option of grant awards that
Feedback | get from CDs is that it is really difficult to get plants established in the 2 year | span multiple biennium. CDs may apply for Grant
Sasha Medlen - WSCC grant cycle. Projects need at least 4-5 years to establish plants by coming back, maintenance funds for up to ten years in Administrati
Individual treating for invasives, and replanting trees that may have died. subsequent biennium. -
Zorah Oppenheimer Page 23 - Could SCC provide standardized monitoring metrics or a reporting template The reporting form is available on the Riparian Grant )
_Clark Conservation | districts can use annually to streamline and align reporting efforts? Program webpage. SCC is drafting tools to support Metr|c§ &
District annual monitoring of projects. Reporting
Section 7, paragraph 3 Annual site monitoring is essential to establishing
Mandating a single SCC-developed worksheet for annual monitoring undermines the successful riparian restoration projects. SCC needs
flexibility Conservation Districts need to collect relevant, actionable data. One-size-fits- : to collect consistent data across projects statewide
all monitoring does not work across Washington’s diverse riparian systems. Data points : to evaluate program effectiveness and for this
that are meaningful in saturated, western lowland systems may not apply or may miss purpose, a form will be provided. CDs are not
Chevelle Yeckel - o . . ; , . . . .
Okanogan kgy |r.1d|cators entirely in Eastern Washington’s intermittent streams and drought-prone preven'Fed from garrylng out further.data collection Metrics &
Conservation riparian areas. or monitoring to inform local adaptive Reporting
. District staff shouldn’t be forced to spend time collecting data that doesn’t inform management.
District . . i, L
adaptive management or reflect site conditions. Worse, a rigid approach could obscure
real restoration outcomes by failing to capture what actually matters on the ground.
We recommend SCC reframe the worksheet as an optional tool or template, not a
required format. Districts must retain authority to develop site-specific monitoring
protocols that reflect their landscape, project design, and local capacity. If the goal is
Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 12 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 17 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA
program accountability, then let the data reflect what’s real, not just what fits neatly in
aform.

Any way we can get closer to a common suite of foundational metrics? RCO has, and We have added a reference on the webpage that
Riparian roundtable recommends, "miles of streambank planted" and "average riparian : lists the metrics collected with each practice
width" in addition to what is shown here. installed. In section 2.11 Reporting we have

Nicholas Norton - clarified that t.hose mgtrics will be used to r.eport in _

Recreation and aformat cc_)n5|§tent with the recommendations Metrlc:?‘.&

Conservation Office from the Riparian Roundtable and our partners. Reporting

Nicholas Norton - Yes, would be good to know what other sources of funding, including SRFB, are going Thank you for your comment. .

Recreation and towards the scope of work. Met”°§ &

. . Reporting

Conservation Office
Reporting metrics (section 2.11, page 5). Ecology appreciates that the draft updated SCC collects multiple metrics associated with each
guidelines include language that describes more specific reporting requirements, as best management practice installed, including
transparent reporting of implementation information has utility beyond the evaluation buffer width. We have linked to a sheet that lists the
of a single program’s success. Implementation information, especially when publicly metrics associated with each BMP for clarity.

David Giglio - available, provides other entities working in an area the ability to track progress and .

. ) L Metrics &

Department of identify where additional effort and resources would best be allocated. Ecology Reporting

Ecology recommends reporting metrics to include the width of new riparian buffers planted, to
increase the ability to assess the successes of the riparian grant program. Additionally,

Ecology looks forward to future collaboration as, per the proviso language, the
Commission works to establish “...a data management system that allows for
coordination between the commission and other state agencies.”

Ryan Williams - Paragraph 3.7 has an awkward sentence: ".... alignment with local planning priorities. This sentence has been corrected.

Cascadia The primary content of the materials must relate to riparian management or program." Other

Conservation Is it supposed to be "or riparian grant program"?

District

Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 13 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 18 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA
Note, the guidelines in the March Commission packet online and those in the Thank you for your comment. Permanent protection
Zorah Oppenheimer : Formstack are different. Largely, the inclusion of permanent protection in the updated guidelines were shared with Commissioners after
- Clark Conservation | guidelines. distributing the original meeting packet, however, Other
District links used to distribute the guidelines were updated
on March 20, 2025.
- I think the numbering scheme got messed up here with “Application” (or else just Thank you for your comment.
Zorah Oppenheimer i above in Timeline).
- Clark Conservation | - Not necessary to be included in the guidelines, but regular (monthly or every two Other
District months) email notifications through GovDelivery or the WSCC roundtables on available
funds would be appreciated.
Zorah Oppenheimer : Page 24 - Putin alphabetical order. Also see comment under 4.2 re: livestock grazing Thank you for your comment. The list has been
- Clark Conservation | being excluded from full RMZ. alphabetized. Other
District
2. Strong opposition to RGP state funds allocated to RCO Thank you for your comment. Funds allocated to
-All RGP fund allocations should be placed solely with the SCC. CD's statewide SCC by the legislature remain wholly within the
specialize in RGP projects. RCO does not specialize in RGP activities nor are equipped Riparian Grant Program. Conservation districts may
for allocating properly processed projects. RCO is recreating the wheel, so to speak, use funds to match acquisition programs funded by
Mike Nordin - Pacific : and is not doing a very good job, at least in PCD's opinion. In addition, RCO salmon RCO.
Conservation activities do not cover all of Washington state and its watersheds, but SCC does. The Other
District cooling and nutrient needs of the stream should be addressed in even none salmon
bearing streams statewide. RCO/SRFB do not cover the whole state via WRIA salmon
recovery areas. RCO/SRFB's proposalis to allocate via lump sums to WRIA groups at
percentages already deemed by salmon recovery area allocations. Keep the funding
where the correct apparatus already exists and functions at a high level.
Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 14 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 19 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments
Category A-
Comment Response YA
(10f2) - Through Climate Commitment Act funding and this program, the state has an We appreciate the support from our partner
extraordinary opportunity to significantly increase the pace of riparian restoration in agencies and are committed to developing a
Washington. Restoration of riparian habitat is needed for salmon survival and program that is complementary to grant programs
population recovery, as well as for our federal obligation to meet water quality managed by other state agencies.
standards. The WSCC Riparian Grant Program is an excellent opportunity for our
agencies to collaborate in meaningful ways that lead to durable solutions to
challenging ecosystem recovery goals for the people of Washington. Itis important to
be innovative and collaborative in providing consistent financial assistance programs to
the agriculture community and other landowners that incentivize the riparian buffers
that are supported by best-available science and designed to be climate resilient. This
is especially true given the current budget climate.

Commenter Name

As Ecology communicated last year in our comment letter on the interim Riparian Grant
Program Guidelines, we value the State Conservation Commission’s (SCC) role to
implement voluntary, incentive-based programs. We also appreciate the huge
undertaking it took to stand up a new riparian restoration grant program. As one of the
state agencies the proviso requires the SCC to coordinate with when adopting program
criteria, Ecology continues to be dedicated to providing feedback to the SCC on how we
David Giglio - can better align our grant programs and ensure our grant guidelines make sound
Department of environmental investments. This is a significant opportunity for our agencies to Other
Ecology demonstrate that collaborative leadership will result in more durable approaches to
riparian restoration for the state. As the SCC moves forward with adopting additional
criteria related to tiered incentives, Ecology is prepared to participate in any processes
or groups that the SCC forms.

The new updates included several changes that Ecology supports:

* Added language recognizing improving water quality is one of the purposes of the
program.

¢ Reporting metrics: Ecology supports the inclusion of more specific reporting
requirements.

¢ Maintaining eligibility for projects that result in permanent protection. In a preview
draft of the grant guidelines update the section on permeant protection was removed.
Ecology is happy to see that you reinserted that section and encourage you to keep it in
the funding guidelines.

¢ Updates to the Maintenance Section: Ecology recognizes the importance of
maintenance projects and support its inclusion as an eligible project under this
program. The additions of reporting metrics and reference to cultural resources review
process are good improvements to this section.

e Instream Activities: Ecology supports the new requirement for engineered design

Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 15 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 20 of 263



Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA

plans for projects that involve engineered rock or large wood placement.

e Livestock BMPs: Ecology supports eligibility for exclusion fence and other supporting
BMPs. Ecology supports the clear statement that “For all projects funded under this
program, livestock access and/or grazing of the riparian management zone (RMZ) is not
allowed.”

* Native Vegetation: Ecology supports the reference to the Washington Native Plant
Society Native Plant Directory.

Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 16 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 21 of 263



Riparian Grant Program Public Comments
Category A-
Comment Response YA
(20f2) - The SCC is a leader in voluntary conservation and critical to achieving our long- | We appreciate the support from our partner
term goals for riparian restoration in Washington State. The SCC and conservation agencies and are committed to developing a
districts are vital to achieving riparian restoration at the scale which is necessary to program that is complementary to grant programs
meet our state and federal commitments. Meaningful collaboration across state managed by other state agencies.
natural resource agencies will establish riparian restoration programs that provide a
consistent message to landowners and reduce confusion around regulatory
expectations. Additionally, better alignment of funding requirements should lead to
efficiencies for agencies and project sponsors, allowing us to more easily combine
grant funds, speed up the review of projects already deemed eligible under one
program, and to leverage all available state dollars. There is a real opportunity here for
the state to converge around grant program requirements, learn from successful
approaches, and adapt our funding programs to achieve what we all want, functional
David Giglio - riparian areas that support our recovery goals.
Department of Other
Ecology The aim of our feedback continues to be underscoring the importance of incentivizing
buffers that will truly protect water quality, be climate resilient and address salmon
habitat needs. Ecology is also advocating for all natural resource agencies within
Washington to promote similar, science-based practices that will sufficiently address
these resource concerns. It’s important that all state voluntary and grant programs
support protective minimums and align with the state’s nonpoint program to provide
more significant incentives for wider buffers.

Commenter Name

Attached are additional comments on the updates. Ecology hopes the SCC will
consider them as well as our original comments and adjust the program to ensure we
use this historic funding to meet our salmon, water quality and climate resiliency goals.
This is an excellent opportunity for our two agencies to collaborate and come together.
Thank you in advance for your consideration.

Dear Mr. Thompson: Thank you for your comment.
I'm glad you could join our coalition last month for our Puget Sound Day on the Hill
event. We have many challenges ahead of us in our salmon recovery effort, but it was
good to collaborate with you on this trip. While this letter is on a more specific subject
Northwest Indian ma.tter, I Wanteq to acknowledge the partnership that we have with so many from
Fisheries various sectors in our state. . . _ o N Other
Commission On behalf of the Northwest Indian Fisheries Commission (NWIFC), I’'m writing to
highlight some of the comments we previously provided on the proposed Riparian Grant
Program guidelines. We provided those first set of comments on the interim guidelines
in a letter dated January 17, 2024 (attached). While the NWIFC see these updated
guidelines as a clear improvement over the interim guidelines, there are still several
important issues of concern that have not been addressed and are being reiterated

Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 17 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 22 of 263



Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA
through this letter.

Stopping and reversing riparian habitat degradation remains a priority to the 20 treaty

tribes in western Washington. We continue to look for ways to apply science to protect

and restore treaty-protected salmon populations while increasing ecosystem health

and climate resiliency in our watersheds. The NWIFC views the Riparian Grant Program

as an opportunity to further these goals across the region. We fully support the intent of

the program to “achieve riparian management zone (RMZ) restoration and protectionin

Washington state at a pace and scale not previously possible.” Our comments are

presented with that goal in mind and focus specifically on three areas - the Riparian

Protection Standard, guidance on Permanent Protection, and Tribal Engagement in this

process.

To conclude, we propose scheduling a meeting between tribal and WSCC Thank you for coordinating a meeting with SCC on
leadership before the guidelines are finalized to discuss tribal input and June 3rd. We appreciate the continued engagement
suggestions. The NWIFC believes there is an opportunity after the guidelines are | from NWIFC and Tribes in this work. The SCC sees

Northwest Indian fir.1alized for thg WSCC ar.1d c.onservation c!istricts to begin working with lpcal there are opportun.ities inthe g.rowth ofth.is .

Fisheries tribes to coordinate Monitoring and Adaptive Management efforts associated program to work with partners in the monitoring and Other

. with Riparian Grant Program projects, especially in the context of ensuring that adaptive management of this program and its

Commission . .
watershed and salmon recovery plans are implemented effectively and are outcomes towards watershed and salmon recovery
achieving their intended outcomes. plans. We look forward to collaborating with Tribes

as we explore BMP effectiveness and regional

impacts of SCC programs.
Section 3.7 Thank you for your comment. The exclusion of
Excluding youth-focused outreach is short-sighted and counterproductive. Youth are youth-focused education reflects the direction from
the next generation of land stewards, and early exposure to riparian systems is the legislature to use funds for geographically
essential to ensuring these habitats remain functional, resilient, and respected as they : targeted outreach activities that will generate
become landowners themselves. Whether identifying plants, testing water quality, or projects that benefit salmon recovery. SCC believes
using a stream table in the classroom, these activities give youth a clear, physical that youth education is very important; however,
understanding of how riparian systems work. Movement and hands-on learning make it | the intent of this funding is to accomplish more

Chevelle Yeckel - easier to retain information and see its relevance on the ground. When young people riparian restoration and protection projects and any

Okanogan understand how a system functions, they’re more likely to recognize their role in it and outreach activities must be geared directly to that Outreach

Conservation to take responsibility for its care later on. end.

District
While Conservation Districts aren’t the only providers of outdoor education, many,
including ours, bridge critical gaps where schools lack capacity. In 2024, Okanogan
Conservation District reached 3,336 students across nine school districts with
conservation education. As the largest county in Washington by land area, our region
faces unique challenges: long travel distances, limited school budgets, and a shortage
of environmental education programs. Despite those hurdles, demand from teachers
and enthusiasm from students continues to grow, a sign that youth are eager to engage

Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 18 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 23 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA
directly with the land and learn how to care for it.

The current guidelines also conflict with the Climate Commitment Act’s intent to deliver

meaningful, equitable benefits, especially in rural and overburdened communities,

where school budgets are stretched, and federal Environmental Education funding is

limited and highly competitive. By restricting youth-focused outreach, the program

excludes a proven, community-rooted method of fostering environmental literacy and

long-term participation in conservation.

Itis also inconsistent to allow youth volunteers under District Implemented Projects Thank you for your comment. Volunteer

while disallowing the outreach and coordination necessary to involve them. This coordination, including youth volunteers, for project

Chevelle Yeckel - creates a structural barrier to community engagement and undermines efforts to build implementation is an eligible activity.
future capacity for riparian restoration.

Okanogan

Conservation ) . Outreach

District If youth outreach cannot be supported through this program, the Washington State
Conservation Commission is strongly urged to create or identify a complementary
funding path. Conservation Districts are already growing the next generation of
stewards and our funding systems should recognize and support that contribution.

We suggest expanding the prioritization criteria to better recognize the role of outreach | Thankyou for your comment. Qutreachis an

and capacity-building projects. As currently written, the guidelines state: "All projects important component of the Riparian Grant

must lead to improved functions within a critical riparian management zone (RMZ)." We : Program framework. The direction from our budget
recommend a slight revision to also value outreach efforts that build the long-term proviso language is to "support the outreach,

Rebecca Hunt, capacity of landowners and community members to improve RMZ functions, even if identification, and implementation of salmon

Confederated Tribes : direct support for outreach activities is limited under current funding structures. It is riparian habitat restoration projects that are Outreach

of the Colville imperative that all projects lead to improved functions within a critical riparian appropriated through the capital budget”.

Reservation management zone (RMZ) or aim to increase capacity for landowners and community Conservation districts may submit outreach
members to improve RMZ functions. projects that engage landowners to understand
Recognizing outreach and education alongside direct on-the-groundwork could support ;| RMZ functions.
long-term stewardship goals, build conservation readiness among communities, and
ultimately strengthen the impact of future implementation projects.

An opportunity has been added for applicants to
In our region of the Upper Columbia, our lead public agencies funding protection and propose additional Lead Funder programs for SCC
acquisition are the Public Utility Districts, in particular, Chelan, Douglas, and Grant review and approval.

Mark Ingram - PUD Commissions for habitat recovery. We are in active stages of acquisition of an

Cascadia entire mile of stream that has an average of over 30 adult returning steelhead per year, Permanent

Conservation that needs protection and restoration (currently privately held and the family are willing Protection

District landowners to sell for conservation), yet our lead funding agency is the Grant County
PUD, Priest Rapids Coordinating Committee (PRCC). The County PUD agencies are not
listed as eligible "Lead Funders." The other lead funder of protection/acquisition
projects is the Chelan County PUD Tributary Committee (TRIB Committee). Please

Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 19 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 24 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA
ensure the Public Utility District of the Columbia Basin are included as lead funding
agencies for protection projects so that we can move these projects forward!

Page 14, Paragraph 3. Bulleted with number 2. The list of lead funders is too narrow. An opportunity has been added for applicants to
There are several entities that might fund acquisitions that are not listed. They include propose additional Lead Funder programs for SCC

Ryan Williams - funding provided by entities such as the Priest Rapids Coordinating Committee, BPA, review and approval.

Cascadia Wells Dam Habitat Conservation Plan Tributary Committee and many others. Please Permanent

Conservation consider increasing the number of eligible primary funders, or allow for a case-by-case Protection

District consideration rather than prescribed funding sources.

Method of payment is lacking any information, please strike it out or add information
Page 13 - Remove the specific list of lead funder programs entirely. Even with the An opportunity has been added for applicants to
sentence, “Projects may include funding from a source not included in the list of Lead propose additional Lead Funder programs for SCC

Zorah Oppenheimer | Funders, as long as an approved Lead Funder is funding a portion of the acquisition and : review and approval. SCC will review and accept Permanent

- Clark Conservation @ will retain an interest (hold, co-hold, or third-party beneficiary) in the final recorded Lead Funders that demonstrate administrative and .

District instrument.” This is still too restrictive. Keep it to the definition in RCW 64.04.130. What . due diligence requirements described in the PEEEEE
if we have matching funds from an unlisted agency, land trust, or even a non-profit or guidelines.
private donor?

We support the need for flexibility in how permanent protection mechanisms are Tribes and other entities are eligible to work with
implemented across diverse land ownerships and stewardship frameworks. While we CDs to apply for a project that is matched by an
defer to Tribes to speak directly to the intersection of conservation easements and approved Lead Funder. SCC has added a pathway

Chevelle Yeckel - Tribal sovereignty, we encourage WSCC to ensure the program does not unintentionally : to approve additional Lead Funders that meet

Okanogan exclude Tribal or community-led projects due to overly rigid structures around co- criteria determined by SCC to be necessary for Permanent

Conservation holding or easement terms. administrative obligations of state funding. Protection

District There is value in providing options that can work with different models of land care and
protection, including Tribal stewardship, land trust partnerships, and locally driven
agreements. The program should remain adaptable enough to support meaningful,
durable conservation without requiring a single legal pathway for all project types.

Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 20 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 25 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name

Chevelle Yeckel -
Okanogan
Conservation
District

Comment

Section 3.22, Property Acquisition

We encourage WSCC to consider expanding the definition of eligible Lead Funders to
include Tribes and other public or community-based entities who can demonstrate
conservation authority and accountability. This would open the door for more Tribally-
led and community-rooted projects that may not fit the current list of eligible partners
but are critical to riparian recovery.

Response

SCC has added a pathway to approve additional
Lead Funders that meet criteria determined by SCC
to be necessary for administrative obligations of
state funding.

Category A-
zZ

Permanent
Protection

Chevelle Yeckel -
Okanogan
Conservation
District

Section 3.22, Reimbursable Costs

The current requirement that a Lead Funder must hold, co-hold, or serve as a third-
party beneficiary of the conservation instrument in perpetuity may unintentionally
conflict with Tribal land governance. While we defer to Tribes to speak to matters of
sovereignty, it's important to acknowledge that perpetual co-holding by a non-Tribal
entity may not align with Tribal stewardship approaches.

We recommend WSCC consider flexible alternatives for long-term protection
structures when the standard model does not fit Tribal governance frameworks. Doing
so would allow Tribes to determine the stewardship approaches that work best for their
lands.

SCC appreciates the importance of this topic and
we're exploring this further as the permanent
protection category of funding is refined.

Permanent
Protection

Chevelle Yeckel -
Okanogan
Conservation
District

Section 3.22, Payment to Escrow

We recommend WSCC reconsider the restriction on funding delinquent taxes at the
time of property closing.

Other major state funding programs have recognized this challenge and addressed it
with flexibility. The Washington State Recreation and Conservation Office (RCO), for
example, allows delinquent taxes owed on a property prior to acquisition to be eligible
on a case-by-case basis with pre-approval. This is clearly outlined in RCO Manual 3,
Section 2: Eligible Projects and Costs, which states:

"Taxes due at closing (compensating, excise, and pro rata taxes). Delinquent taxes
owed on a property before the date acquired are eligible costs on a case-by-case basis
with pre-approval from RCO."

We encourage WSCC to consider adopting a similar policy. Aligning with RCO would
provide much-needed consistency across state funding programs and allow
Conservation Districts and land trusts to pursue strong acquisitions that may otherwise
be blocked by a technicality.

SCC has updated the guidelines to allow
reimbursement for costs that are allowable by a
Lead Funder and aligned with state laws.

Permanent
Protection

Riparian Grant Program Comments
Special Commission Meeting

June 18, 2025

Page 21 of 32

26 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA
1. Full opposition to SCC RGP funds allocated for any land acquisition Thank you for your comment. We are preserving a
-Land acquisition alone does not help or solve salmon riparian needs, or solve carbon permanent protection project type to align with
capture and sequestration goals. Wisdom would say that both planting of the riparian original legislative intent for our Riparian Grant
area along with acquisition of land would be ideal, and that may be true, however the Program and also honor the expressed desire of
Washington State Legislature already allocates funding for acquisitions while funding Tribal partners to enable permanent protection
for RGP is specific in function and is limited. Competition for funding is fierce and SCC through easement/acquisition for riparian areas.
should not mire the program with acquisition funding proposals.
Mike Nordin - Pacific | 3. Full opposition to RCO RGP state funds allocated for acquisition
. . - . o . Permanent
Conservation -Once again, acquisition does not solve RGP needs, in addition some might use these Protection
District funds for acquisition solely just to use up all the RGP funds in lue of lack of capacity or
process to appropriately prioritize actual RGP projects.
4. Strong opposition for any state funds allocated or used for any acquisition during the
25-27 biennium
-Washington State is having budget shortfalls in all areas of Natural Resource arenas,
therefor allocating funds to acquire more land during this biennium is not prudent.
Instead a two year break on these activities is needed. Fund work on the ground instead
of acquiring more land.
. We say “environmental audits, chain of title reports, and site investigations such as test | Thank you for your comment. The guidelines have
Nicholas Norton - . - . ) > . .
Recreation and pits, test wells, and sample analysis”. Consider using that language in case current been updated to include this language. Permanent
. . language would leave Protection
Conservation Office .
something out.
Nicholas Norton - Maybe include “title reports” under deed and title search bullet? Thank you for your comment. The guidelines have
Recreation and been updated to include this language. Permangnt
Conservation Office Protection
Nicholas Norton - Might be worth clarifying that the funding cannot be used to actually complete Thank you for your comment. The guidelines have
Recreation and applications and do grant presentations to get funding. That is RCO boilerplate when been updated to include this language. Permangnt
Conservation Office | USing capital dollars. Protection
Nicholas Norton - What about engagement with local jurisdictions (i.e. consultation and local hearings)? Thank you for your comment. The guidelines have
Recreation and We require that as a condition of moving forward in our WWRP programs, so that might | been updated to include "local jurisdictions™ as Permangnt
Conservation Office | be good to include here. Or maybe that’s included under partners. recommended. Protection
Does the CD have to actually hold or co-hold title on the recorded instrument? Or can We have added language to clarify conservation
Nicholas Norton - they essentially sponsor an application on behalf of another entity that would ultimately : districts are not required to hold title on the
. . « . . L e . . . - Permanent
Recreation and hold title? Phrase “partner with another entity to hold the conservation interest” isn’t recorded instrument if another eligible entity is .
. . . . Protection
Conservation Office : totally clearinthat proposed to be the primary holder.
regard?
Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 22 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 27 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-

Comment Response YA
Nicholas Norton - - RCO doesn’t hold or co-hold per se as we don’t own land. We’d have a third party Thank you for your comment.
Recreation and interest held through a deed of right. | think the language is fine as written, just Perman.ent
Conservation Office ~ confirming Protection
Nicholas Norton - - If you haven’t already, would be good to cross-check this list with our acquisition Thank you for your comment. We have cross-
Recreation and toolkit. Maybe that’s what this is based on. checked with RCO's materials and aligned language Permangnt
Conservation Office to be complementary. Protection
Nicholas Norton - - FYI, I think that we allow people to complete the Stewardship Plan within a certain We have clarified the stewardship plan be provided
Recreation and time after closing. That may not be something you’re comfortable with, butif RCO is a when available. Permangnt
Conservation Office | Lead Funder that may not always yet be available. Protection

- Would recommend essentially using RCO’s list of incidental costs here (Manual 3, Thank you for your comment. We have updated the
Nicholas Norton - page 23-24), unless there is a specific reason that you’ve chosen to exclude certain list of example reimbursable costs to match RCO,

Permanent
Recreation and ones. I think our list of costs is also aligned well with DOE and we manage WDFW and clarified that other costs acceptable to a Lead Protection
Conservation Office @ programs. Funder are reimbursable from SCC if they are state
allowable activities.
Nicholas Norton - - RCO actually has a full list of what would constitute administrative costs (Manual 3, We have listed eligible expenses. SCC's Grant and
Recreation and page 20); consider whether that level of detail is helpful or whether it makes more Contract Policy and Procedure Manual provides Permangnt
Conservation Office | Sense to keep it vague. additional guidance. Protection
Nicholas Norton - - We cap administrative costs as a percentage of the total property and incidental costs | Thank you for your comment.
- combined. Just an FYI Permanent
Recreation and : : Protectio
Conservation Office rotection
- Would also be good to clarify whether these costs are eligible for reimbursement as SCC will not reimburse pre-agreement costs. All

Nicholas Norton - pre-agreement costs. That would align with RCO policy and the vast majority of projects : costs associated with a project are eligible as a

Recreation and expend some of these prior to going under agreement in order to secure the property. "Planning" application. Permanent

. ) Protection

Conservation Office
"Under the circumstances outlined below, RGP funds can support permanent We have updated the Permanent Protection
protection by paying for planning costs to develop a permanent protection project category to clarify that the Riparian Grant Program

Lauren Templeton - and/or as match funding for an acquisition project funded through another public will contribute funds only towards the portion of the Permanent
funding program.” acquisition that relates to the riparian management .

Whatcom County Jone. Protection
If there was an agricultural and riparian component of the easement, would RGP only
cover the riparian area?

Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 23 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 28 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA
In the Upper Columbia region, our lead public agencies funding protection and Thank you for your comment. An opportunity has
acquisition are the Chelan, Douglas, and Grant PUD Public Utility Districts. Each hasa | been added for applicants to propose additional
habitat conservation plan and funds that are set aside to fund projects on a competitive | Lead Funder programs for SCC review and
application basis. The potential lead funding agencies that should be listed as eligible : approval.
Mickey Fleming - "Lead Funders" are the Grant County PUD, Priest Rapids Coordinating Committee
Chelan-Douglas (PRCC), and the Chelan County PUD Tributary Committees (TRIB Committees). Please Permangnt
Land Trust ensure the Public Utility Districts of the Columbia Basin are included as lead funding Protection
agencies for protection projects to enable local sponsors to move forward with these
excellent opportunities.
We recommend that any program requirements related to land protection mechanisms : Thank you for highlighting the importance of this
do not compromise or infringe upon Tribal sovereignty. Participation in permanent topic. SCC is committed to learning more about the
protection activities should not imply any relinquishment of sovereign rights nor place concerns brought forward and are exploring this
unnecessary conditions on Tribal stewardship practices. The Colville Tribes consists of  topic further with guidance from the Attorney
twelve tribes whose homelands cover much of Eastern Washington. The Colville Tribes General.
have federally recognized and protected rights throughout eastern Washington. These
rights are protected by statute, agreement, and executive order. Pursuant to federal
law, these types of rights are exactly the same and to be treated in the same manner as
Rebecca Hunt, . . .
Confederated Tribes rights protected by a treaty. This has been affirmed by the federal courts. Permanent
of the Colville L . ) . . Protection
Reservation We fgel that s.pecmc language shgu}d b.e |n'cluded that aff|r_ms thgt Tribal sovereignty
remains fully intact, and that participation in the program, including permanent
protection activities, does not imply any relinquishment of sovereign rights.
Additionally, we suggest that flexibility or exceptions be provided where conservation
easements or co-holding requirements could conflict with Tribal sovereignty.
We also recommend that WSCC provide flexibility or exemptions for conservation
easement structures where perpetual co-holding by a non-Tribal Lead Funder would
conflict with Tribal sovereignty or stewardship practices.
We wish to comment on how the current eligibility requirements for Lead Funders under | Thank you for your comment. Tribes are eligible to
the Permanent Protection section could inadvertently exclude tribally led conservation | apply in partnership with a conservation district for
Rebecca Hunt, projects. The current guidelines list a limited set of Lead Funder programs whose projects that are funded also through an
Confederated Tribes @ secured or pending match funding is necessary for eligibility under Permanent established Lead Funder. SCC has added a Permanent
of the Colville Protection activities. However, we question why Tribes were not considered or included | pathway for approving additional Lead Funders, Protection
Reservation as Lead Funders, given that Tribes are recognized as partners to hold conservation including Tribes, and we appreciate patience from
interestvia RCW 64.04.130. our partners in conservation while we refine this
program area. SCC will review the prospective Lead
Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 24 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 29 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-

Comment Response YA

We recommend that the guidelines be updated to recognize Tribes as eligible Lead Funders program for compliance with SCC's

Funders or partners, so that tribally led conservation projects are not inadvertently obligation to administer a state-funded program.

excluded from accessing Permanent Protection support.
Rebecca Hunt, Since Conservation Districts (CDs) are currently the only entities eligible to apply for Thank you for your comment. Conservation districts
Confederated Tribes | RGP funds, but often lack the capacity to manage land, it is imperative that CDs identify | may partner with an eligible entity when applying for | Permanent
of the Colville an entity to manage the property and hold conservation interest in the RGP application. | acquisition project funding. Protection
Reservation
Rebecca Hunt, We also seek clarification on whether the property management or stewardship plan The guidelines were updated to clarify that RGP
Confederated Tribes : will only pertain to the riparian zone funded through the RGP. funding is eligible for the RMZ portion of the Permanent
of the Colville property. As such, stewardship plans relevant to Protection
Reservation this program pertain to management of the RMZ.

We also wish to comment on how the current requirement that a Lead Funder must SCC willrely on the policies of the pre-approved

hold, co-hold, or serve as a third-party beneficiary of the conservation instrument in Lead Funder in this area. SCC will explore this
Rebecca Hunt, . . . . . . . . . . .

) perpetuity could conflict with Tribal sovereignty over land management decisions. Itis important topic further with guidance from the
Confederated Tribes . ) . , . Permanent
. recommended that flexibility be allowed or an exemption for properties where Attorney General's Office. .

of the Colville . . . ) . ) Protection
Reservation perpetual co-holding by a non-Tribal Lead Funder would conflict with Tribal sovereignty,

ensuring that tribally acquired lands can be permanently protected without conditions

that conflict with sovereign stewardship practices.

We have determined that a fair market value appraisal of the riparian management zone ;| Thank you for your comment. "Appraisal" has been

is crucial for purchase and should be included in the planning cost list. Moreover, the added as an eligible planning cost. We
Rebecca Hunt, acquisition or conservation easement process can be lengthy, often taking several acknowledge that Lead Funders will have various
Confederated Tribes | months or years. To sustain interest and commitment from landowners, it would be policies on earnest money, and for SCC, earnest Permanent
of the Colville advantageous to include earnest money as a planning cost, thereby compensating money is not reimbursable when independent of a Protection
Reservation them for their patience. Regarding the cost share, we require clarification on whetherit = completed acquisition. Awards for acquisition

needs to be secured or encumbered before submitting a proposal to RGP, or if RGP projects will not made prior to demonstrating that

funds will only be released once the cost share is secured. Lead Funder match is secured.

We seek clarification on the timing requirements for match funding—specifically, The Riparian Grant Program funds eligible projects

whether the match must be fully secured at the time of application or only prior to the on arolling basis. Funds should be secured orin an
Rebecca Hunt, . . . . . . .

) acquisition closing. Is it necessary for match funding to be fully secured at the time of award commitment from a Lead Funder at the time
Confederated Tribes application submission, or are pending match commitments acceptable until closing? of application RIS
ofthe Colville PP ’ P P ; PP ' Protection
Reservation
Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 25 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 30 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA
We question the current guideline language stating that "SCC will not pay for delinquent : Thank you for your comment. We have clarified the
taxes due on the property at the time of closing." This policy could potentially resultin guidelines to allow for this expense ifitis eligible
missed opportunities for protecting high-priority riparian areas, particularly if back with the Lead Funders policies.
taxes present a barrier to otherwise strong conservation acquisitions. We request that
Rebecca Hunt, SCC reconsider the restriction on funding delinquent taxes at closing, particularly were
Confederated Tribes : doing so would enable high priority riparian protection projects. For example, RCO Permanent
of the Colville allows delinquent taxes owed prior to acquisition to be eligible costs on a case-by-case Protection
Reservation basis with pre-approval. The RCO policy in Manual 3, Section 2: Eligible Projects and
Costs is as follows:
"Taxes due at closing (compensating, excise, and pro rata taxes). Delinquent taxes
owed on a property before the date acquired are eligible costs on a case-by-case basis
with pre-approval from RCO.”
Permanent Protection Thank you for your comment. We intend to
We appreciate adding guidance on permanent protection in the updated guidelines. Its : maintain flexible eligibility criteria that provides
. inclusion represents a clear improvement to the guidelines, aligning them closer with opportunities for high priority protection
Northwest Indian . . . . . . .
Fisheries thfe proylso language than what Was.mcluded |n'the interim g.uildance. Howeyer, we projects. Permangnt
. think this language could be further improved with a few additions and revisions. Protection
Commission
Specifically, we request WSCC add language emphasizing flexibility in the kinds of
properties and situations that qualify for permanent protection.
(121) - We also request WSCC expand the list of eligible Lead Funders to include local
tribes and accredited private and public land trusts that can apply for permanent In the draft guidelines presented on March 20™,
protection funds through the Riparian Grant Program. Tribes and land trusts are eligible to work with
their conservation district to propose a project
Northwest Indian thatis supported in part by an approved Lead
. . R Permanent
Fisheries Funder’s program. We have also added a Protection
Commission pathway to accept additional Lead Funders
with developed acquisition programs, including
Tribes. This is an area we will continue to refine
as opportunities present themselves and the
program matures.
Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 26 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 31 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA
(122) - Additionally, language in the proviso clearly indicates the Riparian Grant Applications are accepted on a rolling basis, and
Program must give preference to permanent protection of riparian areas. We don’tsee | right now, preference is not established for any type
that preference reflected in the project prioritization section of the guidelines. We of project. The 25-27 budget proviso for the
request WSCC add language to the Project Prioritization section to indicate that voluntary riparian grant program removed
Northwest Indian projects resulting in permanent protection will be prioritized. permanent protection as a necessary category for
Fisheries funding, however SCC sees opportunity in this area Permangnt
Commission of work and is maintaining this as a program Protection
category. SCC understands that permanent
protection is an important area of work for salmon
recovery and to Tribes.
Include the Clean Water Guidance for Agriculture in the description of project planning | SCC leans on WDFW's Riparian Ecosystem
best practices (section 3.10, pages 10-11). The addition of language directing CDs to Volumes | and Il and the NRCS conservation
reference and utilize best available science is valuable. Ecology requests the addition planning framework as primary sources of guidance
of the Voluntary Clean Water Guidance for Agriculture (CWG) as a recommended for the Riparian Grant Program. Other sources of
resource. The CWG provides strong scientific basis for setting minimum buffer widths information pertaining to the approach and
and provides information about what actions, when implemented and maintained as requirements in place for other state programs may
the necessary suites of practices, will restore water quality, improve habitat function, also be referenced by conservation districts as site
support climate resiliency goals, and provide landowners regulatory assurances. specific planning occurs for riparian projects.
Ecology recommends the following edit (additional sentence inserted after the first
sentence):
"3.10 - Every reasonable effort must be made to reference and utilize best available
David Giglio - science and NRCS’ 9-step conservation planning process, with riparian considerations, Reference
Department of as projects are planned and implemented. Plant selection, buffer widths, and other Material-
Ecology site-specific considerations are part of the conservation and project planning Planning
processes.
If the projectis intended to address a water quality resource concern, CD’s should
utilize Ecology’s Voluntary Clean Water Guidance for Agriculture: Chapter 12 Riparian
Areas & Surface Water Protection.
Project planning should consider restoring riparian functions to the best extent
possible, considering the land use on the property and the functions of the riparian
area. Conservation districts should work with local Tribes and other regional partners to
identify high priority resource concerns, regional priorities and plan locally significant
projects. Riparian functions are described in the USDA’s Conservation Buffers: Design
Considerations for Buffers, Corridors and Greenways (2008) and the Washington
Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 27 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 32 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA
Department of Fish and Wildlife’s Riparian Ecosystems Volume |: Science Synthesis
and Management Implications (2020). See additional technical resources document for
applicable compiled references."
Eligible Project Types and Activities: Section 3.6 provides funding to support riparian We moved the reference to planning materials in
outreach and engagement. This section discusses but does not direct applicants to 3.10 from TA/Planning to 3.3 so the materialis a
. . . . . . . . . Reference
Chris Conklin - sources of best available science. We recommend adding language to encourage preface to the entire section on project categories. Material-
WDFW applicants to consider best available science when developing outreach materials. This Plannin
change will help ensure applicants consider WDFW’s riparian science, tools, and g
recommendations for protecting fully functioning RMZ’s.
We also recommend adding WDFW’s 2023 Riparian Pollinator publication to the list of Management Recommendations for Washington's
technical resources and directing applicants to WDFW’s Areas of Responsibilities Map Priority Habitats and Species: Riparian Pollinators Reference
Chris Conklin - when referencing WDFW as a point of contact. (2023) has been added to the Technical References .
S S Material-
WDFW document which is posted on the Riparian Grant .
. Planning
Program webpage and referenced in the program
guidelines.
Project Prioritization: Section 5.5 lists additional criteria that may be considered when The Washington Habitat Connectivity Plan is in draft
Chris Conklin - evaluating project proposals. We recommend adding the Washington Habitat form at the time the RGP guidelines are being Reference
WDEW Connectivity Action Plan (WAHCAP) to this list, as it represents a new statewide effort developed. When finalized, it will be added to Material-
to identify, protect, and restore areas with habitat connectivity. This addition may assist | Technical References. Planning
in prioritizing projects with the highest ecological potential.
Riparian Data Engine: WDFW is developing a Riparian Data Engine to support decision Thank you for your comment.
Chris Conklin - making and facilitate the mapping, monitoring, and prioritization of riparian efforts Reference
WDEW statewide. The tool is expected to be available in 2025. We would like to brief the SCC Material-
on this resource and discuss options for how this tool can inform the Riparian Grant Planning
Program and other SCC efforts.
Ryan Williams - Why was tiered incentives removed from the eligible project types? Tiered incentives was removed in order to refine the
Cascadia payment and incentive structure, and to clarify Tiered
Conservation administrative and eligibility requirements to Incentives
District participate in the program.
Can SCC provide a specific timeline or interim guidance for districts actively planning The guidelines for the Tiered Incentive project
tiered incentive-related projects? - we need clear timelines and communications to category will be refined throughout summer 2025
. effectively manage landowner expectations and plan for applications. and are anticipated to be presented to the
Zorah Oppenheimer L . .
. Commissioners towards the end of 2025. SCC is Tiered
- Clark Conservation ) .
I currently drafting the engagement plan for the Incentives
District ) .
Tiered Incentives update.
Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 28 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 33 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name

David Giglio -
Department of
Ecology

Comment

Key areas from our previous letter where Ecology continues to hope we can achieve
greater alignment include:

¢ Aligning incentive payment rates. To the extent possible, all the agencies working to
implement buffers should try to align incentive/payment rates. Ecology recommends
the SCC align payment levels with other state agencies funding this work to avoid one
state program offering larger payments for similar sized or smaller buffers. Ecology
looks forward to actively participating in the process of updating the tiered incentive
part of the funding guidance. Ecology supports your reconsideration of the tiered
incentive approach for this grant program. Having properly sized financial incentive
payments are critical to getting effective buffers implemented on agricultural and forest
lands.

* Provide more significant payments for implementing the 1 SPTH width buffer. The
previous tier structure does not provide a higher incentive for reaching the full SPTH
width. Ecology supports taking the prior tiered incentives out of the guidelines. As you
revisit developing tiered incentives, Ecology recommends providing a bonus payment or
structuring the tiered approach in a way that provides a significantly larger incentive for
projects that achieve the full SPTH width. Wider buffers with native trees are critical to
supporting our climate commitment funding goals.

¢ Aligning minimum eligibility requirements for incentive payments. When you revisit
the tiered incentives, Ecology recommends that incentive payments be reserved for
projects that will achieve compliance with water quality standards. The buffer widths in
our Voluntary Clean Water Guidance for Agriculture guidance are scientifically based
and will assist landowners in achieving compliance with state water quality law. It is
critical that we do not tell landowners two different requirements, and that we do not
use state public funds to incentivize buffers that will not help landowners meet state
laws.

Response

SCC has committed to evaluating the tiered
incentive framework to maximize participation and
the restoration of ecological function. This effort
willinclude coordinating with partner agencies.

Category A-
zZ

Tiered
Incentives

David Giglio -
Department of
Ecology

Increased alignment of state funding for riparian restoration will reduce the
complexities of the funding landscape for project applicants, and, if aligned with the
CWG, will support the state in meeting WQ standards, reducing our climate footprint
and meeting salmon recovery goals. Ecology’s uses the Riparian Areas and Surface
Water Protection chapter of the CWG as the basis for eligibility minimums for the Water
Quality Combined Funding Program. Additionally, the Climate Resilient Riparian
Systems Lead (C2RSL) grant program for Puget Sound, developed in partnership
between Ecology, the Conservation Commission, and Bonneville Environmental
Foundation, has adopted the minimums of the CWG in their new funding guidelines.
Having harmonized eligibility requirements between these two programs (C2RSL and
the Water Quality Combined Grant program) increases opportunities for project
proponents to bring together different funding sources to implement projects and
creates a more cohesive state funding program based upon a foundation of the best

The SCC will work with partners, landowners, Tribes
and stakeholders to develop an appropriate
framework for the tiered incentives portion of the
program.

Tiered
Incentives

Riparian Grant Program Comments

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025

Page 29 of 32

34 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name

Comment

available science to create results which will support riparian restoration and salmon
recovery. Ecology believes there is great potential to align buffer minimums and
incentives for meeting full SPTH as the buffer incentives aspect of this program
continues to develop, and Ecology looks forward to increased opportunities to
collaborate through the new tiered incentives development process.

Response

Category A-
YA

David Giglio -
Department of
Ecology

Funding awards that span across state fiscal biennia (Section 2.3, page 4). Ecology’s
buffer incentives project in the Hangman watershed has successfully allocated
payments for long-term contracts, similar to the CREP model. Ecology has coordinated
with Spokane CD to develop and administer a riparian incentives program that offers
15-year contracts to landowners to restore their riparian areas. Ecology highlights this
as an example and potential framework for allocating funding across biennia, and
support coordinating with the Commission to broaden this framework in support of
longer-term contracts for riparian restoration.

SCC is pursuing the option of grant awards that
span multiple biennium. Presently, CDs may apply
for maintenance funds for up to ten years in
subsequent biennium.

Tiered
Incentives

David Giglio -
Department of
Ecology

Tiered Incentives (Section 1.2, page 3). Ecology supports the concept of tiered
incentives. Per the requirement in the proviso to coordinate with certain state agencies
and CDs, please include Ecology in the list of entities the SCC will coordinate with in
developing the tiered incentives. Ecology requests the following edit (in red):

The SCC will continue to coordinate with conservation districts, Tribes, the Department
of Ecology, the Department of Fish and Wildlife, the Department of Agriculture, and
private landowners and other stakeholders to refine the tiered incentives strategy and
guidelines for the tiered incentives project type.

Hopefully, through the upcoming process to revise the tiered incentive guidance we can
find areas of common ground and alignment that could lead to changes in both of our
funding programs. For example, Ecology would like to explore creating a tier that
matches the minimum buffer width in our funding programs (which would make
combining/leveraging our funding at the project or watershed level possible), explore
combining efforts to support permeant protection, and come up with incentive
amounts that Ecology could then incorporate into our program so that we have aligned
incentive payment rates and avoid competing with each other.

Thank you for your comment. The section has been
updated to the proposed language, which is aligned
with the language in the budget proviso.

Tiered
Incentives

Chris Conklin -
WDFW

Tiered Incentive Payments: We understand the tiered incentives payment section of the
grant guidelines has been removed until it can be further refined. WDFW would like to
continue to be involved in future working groups on this topic. Tiered incentives offer a
unique opportunity to motivate landowners to implement wider buffers to achieve
optimal functioning RMZ’s. At a minimum, we recommend 100-footwide buffers to

SCC has committed to evaluating the tiered
incentive framework to maximize participation and
the restoration of ecological function. This effort
willinclude coordinating with partner agencies.

Tiered
Incentives

Riparian Grant Program Comments

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025

Page 30 of 32

35 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name

Comment

achieve full pollutant removal. To achieve full ecological function, buffers should
extend out to site potential tree height at 200 years (in the forested ecoregion) or to the
full extent of riparian vegetation that would otherwise occur (in the dryland ecoregion).
Working collaboratively with state partners on this effort will help ensure alignment and
consistency across our agencies and programs.

Response

Category A-
YA

Lauren Templeton -
Whatcom County

Would love to still see options for incentive lease payments. Incentive lease payments
can be more digestible for landowners than a permanent easement as it has a deadline.
Also, Whatcom County sees very high land prices and being able to provide multiple
incentive options can help with landowner engagement. Additionally, with the CREP
situation, it would be helpful for landowner engagement to provide a different lease
option.

SCC is committed to refining the tiered incentive
portion of the program throughout 2025.

Tiered
Incentives

Chevelle Yeckel -
Okanogan
Conservation
District

We encourage WSCC to actively engage directly with all Tribes in both Eastern and
Western Washington to better understand how programs like the Riparian Grant
Program can support Tribal priorities and strengthen collaborative conservation. While
WSCC provides program oversight, Conservation Districts are often the ones
maintaining close working relationships with Tribes and implementing on-the-ground
restoration and outreach.

To sustain and grow these partnerships, it’s essential that program guidelines are
aligned with Tribal perspectives and do not create unintended barriers that complicate
or limit relationship-building between Tribes and CDs. WSCC’s flexibility in this space is
critical to ensuring Conservation Districts can continue delivering meaningful, trust-
based work in shared landscapes.

SCC appreciates the strong relationships between
conservation districts and Tribes. SCC is working to
improve the Tribal engagement strategy for
updating program guidelines and developing strong
information pathways in our work.

Tribal
Engagement

Stephanie Martin -
Makah Tribe

However, one thing that | think would be beneficial for SCC to consider is for tribal
participation in the conservation district boards.

Thank you for your comment.

Tribal
Engagement

Riparian Grant Program Comments

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025

Page 31 of 32

36 of 263




Riparian Grant Program Public Comments

Commenter Name Category A-
Comment Response YA
Tribal Engagement We appreciate the significant efforts by Tribes to
We continue to have concerns about how WSCC has engaged with tribes in developing : protect natural resources and in support of the
the guidelines and funding criteria for the Riparian Grant Program. In our January 2024 conservation districts to implement this work. Our
letter we requested WSCC reach out to individual tribes to discuss and improve the efforts to build relationships with Tribes are
Riparian Grant Program’s criteria, including the development and implementation of ongoing, and we appreciate the engagement from
riparian area permanent protection measures. That outreach was inadequate. We the Northwest Indian Fisheries Commission to
appreciate the inclusion of multiple references in the current draft guidelines to engage : improve this effort. We recognize we received a low
and work with tribes when prioritizing projects, but we are concerned that the response rate to our engagement efforts and are
piecemeal effort to engage with individual tribes during the development phase of the building out strategies to improve our processes to
program will carry over to its implementation. consult with Tribes. SCC is funded in 2025-2027 to
hire a Tribal Liaison to help with this work.
The Riparian Grant Program and its sister program in the RCO exist because of tribal
Northwest Indian efforts with Governor Inslee and legislators to support landowners in accomplishing the Tribal
Fisheries changes necessary to improve protection and restoration of riparian habitats. The Engagement
Commission Riparian Roundtable process is a testament to the continued importance to tribes and
others in seeking to improve riparian protection and restoration. Meaningful tribal
engagement is critical to these programs and processes, and to their continued
existence and ultimate success.
(124) - State law requires state agencies allocating Climate Commitment Act funds
offer “early, meaningful, and individual consultation with any affected federally
recognized tribe on all funding decisions and funding programs that may impact tribal
resources.” We request and expect WSCC to prioritize working effectively with tribes
both before and after the guidelines are finalized, to ensure the Riparian Grant Program
meets the intent of the proviso and is successful at achieving riparian management
zone restoration and protection in Washington state “at a pace and scale not previously
possible.”
Riparian Grant Program Comments Page 32 of 32
Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 37 of 263




Northwest Indian Fisheries Commission

6730 Martin Way E., Olympia, Washington 98516-5540
Phone (360) 438-1180 www.nwifc.org FAX # 753-8659

May 23, 2025

James Thompson

Washington State Conservation Commission
Department of Ecology Building

300 Desmond Drive SE

Lacey, WA 98503

Re: Comments on the March 2025 Draft Guidelines for the Riparian Grant Program
Dear Mr. Thompson:

I'm glad you could join our coalition last month for our Puget Sound Day on the Hill event. We have
many challenges ahead of us in our salmon recovery effort, but it was good to collaborate with you
on this trip. While this letter is on a more specific subject matter, | wanted to acknowledge the
partnership that we have with so many from various sectors in our state.

On behalf of the Northwest Indian Fisheries Commission (NWIFC), I’'m writing to highlight some of
the comments we previously provided on the proposed Riparian Grant Program guidelines. We
provided those first set of comments on the interim guidelines in a letter dated January 17, 2024
(attached). While the NWIFC see these updated guidelines as a clear improvement over the interim
guidelines, there are still several important issues of concern that have not been addressed and are
being reiterated through this letter.

Stopping and reversing riparian habitat degradation remains a priority to the 20 treaty tribes in
western Washington. We continue to look for ways to apply science to protect and restore treaty-
protected salmon populations while increasing ecosystem health and climate resiliency in our
watersheds. The NWIFC views the Riparian Grant Program as an opportunity to further these goals
across the region. We fully support the intent of the program to “achieve riparian management
zone (RMZ) restoration and protection in Washington state at a pace and scale not previously
possible.” Our comments are presented with that goal in mind and focus specifically on three areas
—the Riparian Protection Standard, guidance on Permanent Protection, and Tribal Engagement in
this process.

Riparian Protection Standard

In our January 2024 letter, we requested the Washington State Conservation Commission (WSCC)
follow language in the proviso (ESSB 5200) calling for the Riparian Grant Program to adopt program
criteria that will achieve “optimal restoration of functioning riparian ecosystems.” Specifically, we
requested WSCC recognize the 1 site potential tree height buffer as a scientifically supported
approach to achieving that goal. The new guidelines make no reference to site potential tree height.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 38 of 263



Instead, the guidelines continue to refer to the Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) best
management practices, such as 50-foot buffers along fish bearing streams, as the basis for the
Riparian Buffer Standard. The science presented in the Washington Department of Fish and
Wildlife’s Riparian Ecosystems Volume I: Science Synthesis and Management Implications (2020)
clearly indicates this standard, along with several other NRCS practices cited in the draft guidelines,
are inadequate to meeting both the goal of “optimal restoration of functioning riparian ecosystems
in priority critical riparian management zones” and the proviso’s language that the WSCC “consider
the best available, locally applicable science that is specific to each region of the state where the
program criteria will be applied.”

The proviso calls for grant funding to be informed by, consistent with, and aligned with at least one
of a list of watershed and salmon recovery planning processes. The proposed guidelines recognize
these recovery plans as the basis for prioritizing funding of projects yet include NRCS management
practices as the basis for establishing a riparian protection standard. Along with being inconsistent
with the intent and language of the proviso, inclusion of the NRCS management practices is
inconsistent with this prioritization language. The NWIFC requests WSCC to remove specific
reference to these management practices in the guidelines and instead refer to guidance provided
in the proviso, WDFW’s 2020 Riparian Ecosystems volume |, and where available, local watershed
and salmon recovery plans to determine appropriate riparian protection standards that can be used
to guide the funding of individual projects.

Permanent Protection

We appreciate adding guidance on permanent protection in the updated guidelines. Its inclusion
represents a clear improvement to the guidelines, aligning them closer with the proviso language
than what was included in the interim guidance. However, we think this language could be further
improved with a few additions and revisions.

Specifically, we request WSCC add language emphasizing flexibility in the kinds of properties and
situations that qualify for permanent protection. We also request WSCC expand the list of eligible
Lead Funders to include local tribes and accredited private and public land trusts that can apply for
permanent protection funds through the Riparian Grant Program. Additionally, language in the
proviso clearly indicates the Riparian Grant Program must give preference to permanent protection
of riparian areas. We don’t see that preference reflected in the project prioritization section of the
guidelines. We request WSCC add language to the Project Prioritization section to indicate that
projects resulting in permanent protection will be prioritized.

Tribal Engagement

We continue to have concerns about how WSCC has engaged with tribes in developing the
guidelines and funding criteria for the Riparian Grant Program. In our January 2024 letter we
requested WSCC reach out to individual tribes to discuss and improve the Riparian Grant Program’s
criteria, including the development and implementation of riparian area permanent protection
measures. That outreach was inadequate. We appreciate the inclusion of multiple references in the

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 39 of 263



current draft guidelines to engage and work with tribes when prioritizing projects, but we are
concerned that the piecemeal effort to engage with individual tribes during the development phase
of the program will carry over to its implementation.

The Riparian Grant Program and its sister program in the RCO exist because of tribal efforts with
Governor Inslee and legislators to support landowners in accomplishing the changes necessary to
improve protection and restoration of riparian habitats. The Riparian Roundtable process is a
testament to the continued importance to tribes and others in seeking to improve riparian
protection and restoration. Meaningful tribal engagement is critical to these programs and
processes, and to their continued existence and ultimate success.

State law requires state agencies allocating Climate Commitment Act funds offer “early, meaningful,
and individual consultation with any affected federally recognized tribe on all funding decisions and
funding programs that may impact tribal resources.” We request and expect WSCC to prioritize
working effectively with tribes both before and after the guidelines are finalized, to ensure the
Riparian Grant Program meets the intent of the proviso and is successful at achieving riparian
management zone restoration and protection in Washington state “at a pace and scale not
previously possible.”

To conclude, we propose scheduling a meeting between tribal and WSCC leadership before the
guidelines are finalized to discuss tribal input and suggestions. The NWIFC believes there is an
opportunity after the guidelines are finalized for the WSCC and conservation districts to begin
working with local tribes to coordinate Monitoring and Adaptive Management efforts associated
with Riparian Grant Program projects, especially in the context of ensuring that watershed and
salmon recovery plans are implemented effectively and are achieving their intended outcomes.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide input on the draft guidelines. We look forward to hearing
back from you on our comments. If you have any questions, please contact Jim Peters, Habitat
Policy Coordinator at (360) 485-2352 or jpeters@nwifc.org.

Sincerely,
(o I}l

L
Justin R. Parker
Executive Director

Attachment

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 40 of 263


mailto:jpeters@nwifc.org

Northwest Indian Fisheries Commission

6730 Martin Way E., Olympia, Washington 98516-5540
Phone (360) 438-1180 www.nwifc.org FAX # 753-8659

January 17, 2024
Attachment 1

Shana Joy, District Operations Director/Southeast Regional Manager
Washington State Conservation Commission

Department of Ecology Building

300 Desmond Drive SE

Lacey, WA 98503

Re: Comments on the Draft Guidelines for the Riparian Grant Program
Dear Washington State Conservation Commission:

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments on the draft Riparian Grant Program Guidelines.
We think this program represents an important opportunity for the Washington State Conservation
Commission (WSCC) to provide strong leadership in helping protect and restore riparian lands in
Washington State. We do however have substantive concerns in how the guidelines propose spending
the allocated funds. We are primarily concerned the draft language in the program guidelines, as
currently written, is not consistent with the direction provided in the budget proviso authorizing and
enabling the Riparian Grant Program.

Our concerns can by grouped into three general areas.

Tribal Participation. In adopting criteria for the Riparian Grant Program, the proviso emphasizes the
WSCC must invite federally recognized tribes to be full participants. The current draft guidelines state
that funding for the program comes with additional reporting, assessment, and tribal consultation
requirements, and that the Governor’s Office and state agencies “plan to engage tribes on how best to
meet these requirements.” It is not clear how the WSCC will meet this requirement. More importantly,
there has been very limited outreach to the tribes to include them as participants in the adoption of
criteria for the program. The tribes have been notably absent from the process to date. We respectfully
request WSCC reach out to individual tribes over a set period of time to discuss and improve the
program’s criteria before adopting these criteria as final.

Optimal Restoration. The proviso states the WSCC is responsible for developing program criteria that
will achieve “optimal restoration of functioning riparian ecosystems.” We request WSCC recognize 1
Site Potential Tree Height (SPTH) in forested ecoregions as a scientifically supported approach to
protecting and maintaining the full functions of riparian ecosystems (Riparian Ecosystems, Volume 1:
Science Synthesis and Management Implications, Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife). Under
the current draft guidelines, program participants may protect 50’ of the riparian area from the stream
bank to qualify for base payments. Fifty-foot buffers will not achieve optimal restoration of functioning
riparian ecosystems and should be considered an interim step. Program criteria should reference and
support locally approved and published salmon and watershed recovery plans, which may be used as a
guide for project implementation.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 41 of 263



Permanent Protection. The budget proviso states the WSCC “must give preference and compensation
for permanent protection of riparian areas or removal of riparian land from agricultural production or
other development by purchase at fair market value.” The guidance by the legislature to pursue
permanent protection represents a real opportunity to long-lasting protection and recovery of riparian
ecosystems. The draft guidelines indicate this project type is currently under development. Given how
permanent protection is highlighted and emphasized in the budget proviso, fully articulating and
implementing this program element should be prioritized. Implementing permanent protection may
require creative and collaborative work and partnerships with other state agencies, tribes, land trusts or
other entities willing to hold easement responsibilities for riparian areas, including monitoring. We
respectfully request that WSCC work with tribes to help develop and implement permanent protection
measure for riparian areas.

The funds provided to the WSCC as part of the budget proviso represent an important opportunity for
Washington state to move forward in protecting and recovering riparian and aquatic ecosystems. We
think however the current guidelines the WSCC has developed are inadequate at meeting the goal of
protecting and restoring critical riparian management zones. We respectfully request the WSCC
proactively reach out to the tribes and invite them to be full participants in the development of program
criteria. We further request the WSCC direct the spending of program funds to support and incentivize
landowners to establish adequate riparian buffers that support collaboratively developed watershed
and salmon recovery plans, and in these efforts support, prioritize and incentivize the permanent
protection of riparian management zones.

Finally, we respectfully request a meeting between the WSCC, key tribal and NWIFC staff, and
representatives from the governor’s office to discuss and review the history and intended outcomes of
the budget proviso and the Riparian Grant Program. This meeting will also be an opportunity for us to
discuss how tribes and the WSCC can effectively work together in the development of the Riparian Grant
Program, and ultimately support landowners to successfully utilize voluntary programs that
comprehensively protect riparian areas necessary for salmon recovery and climate resiliency.

Thank you and we look forward to hearing back from you on our comments. If you have any questions,
please contact Jim Peters (jpeters@nwifc.org), Habitat Policy Coordinator, or Fran Wilshusen
(fwilshusen@nwifc.org), Director of Environmental Protection at (360) 438-1180.

Sincerely,

I LvL, Sy

Ed Johnstone
Chairman

Attachment

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 42 of 263


mailto:jpeters@nwifc.org
mailto:fwilshusen@nwifc.org

The Confederated Tribes of the Colville Reservation

P.0. Box 150, Nespelem, WA 99155 (509) 634-2200
FAX: (509) 634-4116

Wednesday, April 30, 2025

Washington State
Conservation Commission
PO Box 47721

Olympia, WA 98504-7721
Phone (360) 407-6200
Fax (360) 407-6215

Dear Washington State Conservation Commission,

We, the Confederated Tribes of the Colville Reservation (“Colville Tribes”), are writing
to provide our comments on the proposed changes outlined in your recent guidelines. It is in the
interest of the Tribes that consultation be established early in any decision-making process and
should be conducted regularly. We appreciate the opportunity to contribute to this important
discussion and offer the following observations:

Permanent Protection Language (Section 3.22)

We recommend that any program requirements related to land protection mechanisms do
not compromise or infringe upon Tribal sovereignty. Participation in permanent protection
activities should not imply any relinquishment of sovereign rights nor place unnecessary
conditions on Tribal stewardship practices. The Colville Tribes consists of twelve tribes whose
homelands cover much of Eastern Washington. The Colville Tribes have federally recognized
and protected rights throughout eastern Washington. These rights are protected by statute,
agreement, and executive order. Pursuant to federal law, these types of rights are exactly the
same and to be treated in the same manner as rights protected by a treaty. This has been affirmed
by the federal courts.

We feel that specific language should be included that affirms that Tribal sovereignty
remains fully intact, and that participation in the program, including permanent protection
activities, does not imply any relinquishment of sovereign rights. Additionally, we suggest that
flexibility or exceptions be provided where conservation easements or co-holding requirements
could conflict with Tribal sovereignty.

We also recommend that WSCC provide flexibility or exemptions for conservation
easement structures where perpetual co-holding by a non-Tribal Lead Funder would conflict with
Tribal sovereignty or stewardship practices.

It is recommended that the granting program cautioned applicants in advance that
restoration projects may cause adverse impact to archaeological sites and places used for
religious or cultural practices. To disturb these places is against the law. Organizations and
individuals may be required to have historic property surveys in advance. -

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 43 of 263



Lead Funder Requirements and Tribal Match Considerations (Section 3.22)

We wish to comment on how the current eligibility requirements for Lead Funders under
the Permanent Protection section could inadvertently exclude tribally led conservation projects.
The current guidelines list a limited set of Lead Funder programs whose secured or pending
match funding is necessary for eligibility under Permanent Protection activities. However, we
question why Tribes were not considered or included as Lead Funders, given that Tribes are
recognized as partners to hold conservation interest via RCW 64.04.130.

We recommend that the guidelines be updated to recognize Tribes as eligible Lead
Funders or partners, so that tribally led conservation projects are not inadvertently excluded from
accessing Permanent Protection support.

Since Conservation Districts (CDs) are currently the only entities eligible to apply for
RGP funds, but often lack the capacity to manage land, it is imperative that CDs identify an
entity to manage the property and hold conservation interest in the RGP application. We also
seek clarification on whether the property management or stewardship plan will only pertain to
the riparian zone funded through the RGP.

We also wish to comment on how the current requirement that a Lead Funder must hold,
co-hold, or serve as a third-party beneficiary of the conservation instrument in perpetuity could
conflict with Tribal sovereignty over land management decisions. It is recommended that
flexibility be allowed or an exemption for properties where perpetual co-holding by a non-Tribal
Lead Funder would conflict with Tribal sovereignty, ensuring that tribally acquired lands can be
permanently protected without conditions that conflict with sovereign stewardship practices.

We have determined that a fair market value appraisal of the riparian management zone is
crucial for purchase and should be included in the planning cost list. Moreover, the acquisition or
conservation easement process can be lengthy, often taking several months or years. To sustain
interest and commitment from landowners, it would be advantageous to include earnest money
as a planning cost, thereby compensating them for their patience. Regarding the cost share, we
require clarification on whether it needs to be secured or encumbered before submitting a
proposal to RGP, or if RGP funds will only be released once the cost share is secured.

We seek clarification on the timing requirements for match funding—specifically,
whether the match must be fully secured at the time of application or only prior to the acquisition
closing. Is it necessary for match funding to be fully secured at the time of application
submission, or are pending match commitments acceptable until closing?

Delinquent Taxes and Property Acquisition Costs (Section 3.22)
We question the current guideline language stating that “SCC will not pay for delinquent
taxes due on the property at the time of closing.” This policy could potentially result in missed

opportunities for protecting high-priority riparian areas, particularly if back taxes present a
barrier to otherwise strong conservation acquisitions. We request that SCC reconsider the

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 44 of 263



restriction on funding delinquent taxes at closing, particularly were doing so would enable high-
priority riparian protection projects. For example, RCO allows delinquent taxes owed prior to
acquisition to be eligible costs on a case-by-case basis with pre-approval. The RCO policy in
Manual 3, Section 2: Eligible Projects and Costs is as follows:
“Taxes due at closing (compensating, excise, and pro rata taxes). Delinquent taxes owed
on a property before the date acquired are eligible costs on a case-by-case basis with
pre-approval from RCO.”

Buffer Width Flexibility (Sections 4.5 and 4.6)

We acknowledge and support WSCC’s flexibility regarding minimum buffer widths. This
flexibility—allowing exceptions where property lines, topography, hydrology, or cultural
resource protections constrain full buffer application—reflects a thoughtful approach to the
diverse conditions present across Reservation lands, traditional territories, and Okanogan County
as a whole. This approach acknowledges the complex realities of Washington’s landscapes and
the need to adapt conservation practices to site-specific conditions. Maintaining this flexibility
supports the health of critical riparian areas, which are essential to cultural continuity and
ecosystem resilience.

Project Prioritization (Section 5)

We suggest expanding the prioritization criteria to better recognize the role of outreach
and capacity-building projects. As currently written, the guidelines state: “All projects must lead
to improved functions within a critical riparian management zone (RMZ).” We recommend a
slight revision to also value outreach efforts that build the long-term capacity of landowners and
community members to improve RMZ functions, even if direct support for outreach activities is
limited under current funding structures. It is imperative that all projects lead to improved
functions within a critical riparian management zone (RMZ) or aim to increase capacity for
landowners and community members to improve RMZ functions.

Recognizing outreach and education alongside direct on-the-groundwork could support
Jong-term stewardship goals, build conservation readiness among communities, and ultimately
strengthen the impact of future implementation projects.

Maintenance Timeline (Section 3.17)

We support the proposed change to extend maintenance eligibility to 10 years.
Maintenance is critical to long-term project success but has historically been underfunded.
Shorter windows often leave restoration sites vulnerable before full ecological function is
achieved, risking investment and habitat recovery. Expanding eligibility to 10 years better
matches the realities of riparian restoration, especially in Eastern Washington, where establishing
native vegetation and controlling invasive species often takes longer than five years. A 10-year
window more accurately reflects the ecological timelines required for riparian restoration,
allowing projects to achieve lasting outcomes and better steward the public investment.

Biochar BMP Addition (Section 4.10, Table 1)

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 45 of 263



We suggest adding biochar application as an eligible Best Management Practice (BMP)
in Table 1. Biochar is already an NRCS-approved conservation practice that improves soil
moisture retention, supports healthy root growth, and boosts plant survival, especially in drier
areas where riparian restoration is more challenging. Including biochar would give landowners
and districts another tool to help restoration projects succeed under tough conditions.

We appreciate your consideration of our comments and look forward to working together
to enhance conservation efforts across Washington State.
Sincerely,

iy M-l

Jarred-Michael Erickson, Chairman
Confederated Tribes of the Colville Reservation

cch Colville Business Council
Executive Director
Natural Resource Director
Fish & Wildlife Director
Colville Reservation Conservation District

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 46 of 263



May 7, 2025

To the Washington State Conservation Commission and the Washington Association of
Conservation Districts

Washington State Conservation Commission (SCC) Riparian Grant Program

{(RGP) Position Statement

1. Fuli opposition to SCC RGP funds allocated for any land acquisition
-l.and acquisition alone does not help or solve salmon riparian needs, or solve carbon capture

and sequestration goals. Wisdom would say that both planting of the riparian area along with
acquisition of land would be ideal, and that may be true, however the Washington State
Legislature already allocates funding for acquisitions while funding for RGP is specific in function
and is limited. Competition for funding is fierce and SCC should not mire the program with
acquisition funding proposals.

2. Strong opposition to RGP state funds allocated to RCO
-All RGP fund allocations should be placed solely with the SCC. CD's statewide specialize in

RGP projects. RCQ does not specialize in RGP activities nor are equipped for allocating properly
processed projects. RCO is recreating the wheel, so to speak, and is not deoing a very good job,
at least in PCD’s opinion. In addition, RCO salmon activities do not cover all of Washington state
and its watersheds, but SCC does. The cooling and nutrient needs of the stream should be
addressed in even none salmon bearing streams statewide. RCO/SRFB do not cover the whole
state via WRIA salmon recovery areas. RCO/SRFB's proposal is to allocate via lump sums to
WRIA groups at percentages already deemed by salmon recovery area allocations.

Keep the funding where the correct apparatus aiready exists and functions at a high level.

3. Full opposition to RCO RGP state funds allocated for acquisition

-Once again, acquisition does not solve RGP needs, in addition some might use these funds for
acquisition solely just to use up all the RGP funds in lue of lack of capacity or process to
appropriately prioritize actual RGP projects.

4. Strong opposition for any state funds allocated or used for any acquisition during the 25-27
bienni
-Washington State is having budget shortfalls in all areas of Natural Resource arenas, therefor
allocating funds to acquire more land during this biennium is not prudent. instead a two year
break on these activities is needed. Fund work on the ground instead of acquiring more land.

Sincerely,

Mike Nordin
Pacific Conservation District Manager

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 47 of 263



STATE OF WASHINGTON

DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY
PO Box 47600, Olympia, WA 98504-7600 » 360-407-6000

May 9, 2025

James Thompson, Executive Director
Washington State Conservation Commission
PO Box 47721

Olympia, WA 98594-7721

Re:  Riparian Grant Program Guidelines Update
Dear Director Thompson:

Through Climate Commitment Act funding and this program, the state has an extraordinary
opportunity to significantly increase the pace of riparian restoration in Washington. Restoration
of riparian habitat is neaeded for salmon survival and population recovery, as well as, for our
federal obligation to meet water quality standards. The WSCC Riparian Grant Program is an
excellent opportunity for our agencies to collaborate in meaningful ways that lead to durable
solutions to challenging ecosystem recovery goals for the people of Washington.

It is important to be innovative and collaborative in providing consistent financial assistance
programs to the agriculture community and other landowners that incentivize the riparian
buffers that are supported by best-available science and dasigned to be climate resilient. This is
especially true given the current budget climate.

As Ecology communicated last year in our comment laetter on the interim Riparian Grant
Program Guidelines, we value the State Conservation Commission’s (SCC) role to implement
voluntary, incentive-based programs. We also appreciate the huge undartaking it took to stand
up a new riparian restoration grant program. As one of the state agencies the proviso requires
the SCC to coordinate with when adopting program criteria, Ecology continues to be dedicated
to providing feedback to the SCC on how we can better align our grant programs and ensure our
grant guidelines make sound environmental investments. This is a significant opportunity for
our agencies to demonstrate that collaborative leadership will result in more durable
approaches to riparian restoration for the state. As the 5CC moves forward with adopting
additional criteria related to tiered incentives, Ecology is prepared to participate in any
procasses or groups that the SCC forms.



Director James Thompson
May 3, 2025
Page 2

The new updates included several changes that Ecology supports:

* Added language recognizing improving water guality is one of the purposeas of the
program.

* Reporting metrics: Ecology supports the inclusion of more specific reporting
requirements.

s Maintaining eligibility for projects that result in permanent protection. In a preview draft
of the grant guidelines update the section on parmeant protection was removed.
Ecology is happy to see that you reinserted that section and encourage you to keep it in
the funding guidelines.

* Updates to the Maintenance Section: Ecology recognizes the importance of maintenance
projects and supports its inclusion as an eligible project under this program. The
additions of reporting metrics and reference to the cultural resourcas review process are
good improvements to this section.

s Instream Activities: Ecology supports the new requirement for engineered design plans
for projects that involve engineered rock or large wood placement.

* Livestock BMPs: Ecology supports eligibility for exclusion fence and other supporting
BMPs. Ecology supports the clear statement that “For all projects funded under this
program, livestock access andfor grazing of the riparian management zone (RMZ} is not
allowed.”

* Native Vegetation: Ecology supports the reference to the Washington Native Plant
Society Mative Plant Directory.

Of the concerns outlined in our original comment letter, the minimum parcel size requirement
of 1-acre has been removed by this update. Ecology supports this change. However, it does not
appear as though the new updates to the guidelinas make any additional changes to address
the key concerns Ecology highlighted. As a reminder, the previous comment letter encouraged
increases to incentivizes for riparian buffers that achieve the one site potential tree height
{SPTH) width and including minimums for incentive payment eligibility that support meeting
water quality standards. As that comment letter stated, our grant programs do not need to be
identical, however, aligning our respective grant guidance will make the state-funded programs
maore effective at meeting multiple habitat, climate and water quality functions and values we
are trying to address statewide. Key areas where Ecology continues to hope we can achieve
greater alignment include:

+ Aligning incantive payment rates.
* Provide more significant payments for implementing the 1 SPTH width buffer.
+ Aligning minimum eligibility requirements for incenfive payments.



Director James Thompson
May 9, 2025
Page 3

The SCC is a leader in voluntary conservation and critical to achieving our long-term goals for
riparian restoration in Washington State. The SCC and conservation districts are vital to
achieving riparian restoration at the scale which is necessary to meet our state and federal
commitments. Meaningful collaboration across state natural resource agencies will establish
riparian restoration programs that provide a consistent message to landowners and reduce
confusion around regulatory expectations. Additionally, better alignment of funding
requirements should lead to efficiencies for agencies and project sponsors, allowing us to more
easily combine grant funds, speed up the review of projects already deemed eligible under ocne
program, and to leverage all available state dollars. There is a real opportunity here for the state
to converge around grant program requirements, learn from successful approaches, and adapt
our funding programs to achieve what we all want, functional riparian areas that support our
recovery goals.

The aim of our feedback continues to be underscoring the importance of incentivizing buffers
that will truly protect water quality, be climate resilient and address salmon habitat needs.
Ecology is also advocating for all natural resource agencies within Washington to promote
similar, science-based practices that will sufficiently addrass these resource concerns. It's
important that all state voluntary and grant programs support protective minimums and align
with the state’s nonpoint program to provide more significant incentives for wider buffers.

Attached are additional comments on the updates. Ecology hopeas the SCC will consider them as
well as our original comments and adjust the program to ensure we use this historic funding to
meet our salmon, water quality and climate resiliency goals. This is an excellent opportunity for
our two agencies to collaborate and come together. Thank you in advance for your
consideration.

Sincerely,

= Al ./"- %
= F (__./-r’ £ /} i

David Giglio
Acting Water Quality Program Manager

Enclosure

cc: Brooka Beeler, Department of Ecology Eastern Regional Offica Director



Enclosure

Key areas from our previous letter where Ecology continues to hope we can achieve greater
alignment include:

* Aligning incentive payment rates. To the extant possible, all the agencies working to
implement buffers should try to align incentive/payment rates. Ecology recommends the
SCC align payment levels with other state agencies funding this work to avoid one state
program offering larger payments for similar sized or smaller buffers. Ecology loocks
forward to actively participating in the procass of updating the tiered incentive part of
the funding guidance. Ecology supports your reconsideration of the tizred incentive
approach for this grant program. Having properly sized financial incentive payments are
critical to getting effective buffers implemented on agricultural and forest lands.

* Provide more significant payments for implementing the 1 SPTH width buffer. The
previous tier structure does not provide a higher incentive for reaching the full SPTH
width. Ecology supports taking the prior tiered incentives out of the puidelines. As you
revisit developing tiered incentives, Ecology recommends providing a bonus payment ar
structuring the tiered approach in a way that provides a significantly larger incentive for
projects that achieve the full SPTH width. Wider buffers with native trees are critical to
supporting our climate commitment funding goals.

* Aligning minimum eligibility requirements for incentive payments. When you ravisit the
tizred incentives, Ecology recommends that incentive payments be reserved for projects
that will achieve compliance with water quality standards. The buffer widths in our
Voluntary Clean Water Guidance for Agricultura guidance are scientifically based and will
assist landowners in achieving compliance with state water quality law. It is critical that
we do not tell landowners two different requirements, and that we do not use state
public funds to incentivize buffers that will not help landowners meet state laws.

In addition to the comments previously made on the grant guidelines, Ecology offers the
following additional feedback on the updates:

Reporting metrics (section 2.11, page 5). Ecology appreciates that the draft updated guidelines
include language that describes more specific reporting requirements, as transparent reporting
of implementation information has utility beyond the evaluation of a single program’s success.
Implementation information, especially whan publicly available, provides other entities working
in an area the ability to track progress and identify where additional effort and resources would

best be allocated. Ecology recommends reporting metrics to include the width of new riparian
buffers planted, to increase the ability to assess the successes of the riparian grant program.
Additionally, Ecology looks forward to future collaboration as, per the proviso language, the
Commission works to establish “...a data management system that allows for coordination
between the commissicn and other state agencies.”



Enclosure
Page 2

Informing landowners of regulatory risks {section 3.2, page 8). Ecology supports the Commission
promoting transparent conversations between CD staff and landowners/operators regarding
regulatory risk. Ecology recommends that, in addition to informing program participants of the
potential impacts of local land use codes, that CDs should be encouraged to share information

about Washington's Water Pollution Control Act, and the potential regulatory risk of
contributing pollution to state waters, as well as the recommended actions that will help to
address and alleviate that risk {i.e. recommended actions provided in the Voluntary Clean Water
Guidance for Agriculture).

Include the Clean Water Guidance for Agriculture in the description of project planning best
practices (section 3.10, pages 10-11). The addition of language directing CDs to reference and

utilize best available science is valuable. Ecology requests the addition of the Voluntary Clean
Water Guidance for Agriculture (CWG) as a recommended resource. The CWG provides strong
scientific basis for setting minimum buffer widths and providas information about what actions,
when implemented and maintained as the necassary suites of practices, will restore water
quality, improve habitat function, support climate resiliency goals, and provide landowners
regulatory assurances. Ecology recommends the following edit {in red):

3.10 - Every reasonable effort must be made to reference and utilize best available
science and NRCS' 9-step conservation planning process, with riparian considerations, as
projects are planned and implemented. Plant selection, buffer widths, and other site-
spacific considerations are part of the conservation and project planning processes.

If the project is intended to addrass a water quality resource concern, CD's should utilize
Ecology's Voluntary Clean Water Guidance for Agriculture: Chapter 12 Riparian Areas &
Surface Water Protacton.

Project planning should consider restoring riparian functions to the best extent possible,
considering the land use on the property and the functions of the riparian area.
Conservation districts should work with local Tribes and other regional partners to
identify high priority resource concerns, regional priorities and plan locally significant
projects. Riparian functions are described in the USDA's Conservation Buffers: Design
Considerations for Buffers, Corridors and Greenways (2008) and the Washington
Department of Fish and Wildlife's Riparian Ecosystems Volume |: Science Synthesis and
Management Implications {2020). See additional technical resources document for
applicable compiled references.

Riparian restoration practices and minimums (section 4, pages 14-15). Ecology recommends

that the program should not fund projects that only plant herbaceous vegetation in riparian
areas. Ecology doesn't believe that funding herbaceous cover in the riparian area will achieve



Enclosure
Page 3

the goals of the budget proviso and support the Climate Commitment Act’s goal of reducing our
state's overall carbon footprint and creating a healthier climate. The current draft language
suggests that herbaceous cover would be allowable throughout “dryland ecosystems,” which
are later (diagram on page 22) suggested to include areas in which the upland is characterized
by sagebrush and bunchgrass. Ecology asks for clarification on what areas would be considered
“dryland ecosystems” for the purpose of allowing riparian herbaceous cover to be
implemented, as Ecology believes that many areas of the state that support sagebrush and/for
bunchgrass uplands are areas where trees and shrubs are native riparian vegetation. Should
riparian herbaceous be an allowable practice within the riparian zone, Ecology asks for a
narrowing of that definition and making clear that if trees and/or woody vegetation (which
capture and store carbon) can grow in the riparian area, it must be planted to be eligible for
grant funds.

Additionally, Ecology continues to request that minimum buffer widths are aligned with the
minimums of the Clean Water Guidance. The buffer minimums of the CWG are dasigned to
provide cool water, support healthy ecological function, promote resiliency from climate change
and rising temperatures, and ensure clean water for Washington's residents today and into the
future. Additionally, Ecology believes that the CWG provides more flexibility for landowners, as
minimum widths are tailored to the stream size, and the various alternatives allow for different
land uses, to provide landownears and operators with the ability to tailor their buffer
implementation to match their needs for their land; supporting both clean water and
agriculture. In support of promoting effective buffer minimums, Ecology also recommends
removing the Hedgerow Planting Practice from the list of eligible practices.

Increased alignment of state funding for riparian restoration will reduce the complexities of the
funding landscape for project applicants, and, if aligned with the CWG, will support the state in
meeting WQ standards, reducing our climate footprint and meeting salmon recovery goals.
Ecology’s uses the Riparian Areas and Surface Water Protection chapter? of the CWG as the
basis for eligibility minimums for the Water Quality Combined Funding Program. Additionally,
the Climate Resilient Riparian Systems Lead (C2RSL) grant program for Puget Sound, developed
in partnership between Ecology, the Conservation Commission, and Bonneville Environmental
Foundation, has adopted the minimums of the CWG in their new funding guidelines. Having
harmonized eligibility requirements between these two programs (C2RSL and the Water Quality
Combined Grant program) increases opportunities for project proponents to bring together
different funding sources to implement projects and creates a more cohesive state funding
program based upon a foundation of the best available science to create results which will

L https-/fapps.ecology. wa. gov/publications/parts/2010008part6_pdf



Enclosure
Page 4

support riparian restoration and salmon recovery. Ecology believes there is great potential to
align buffer minimums and incentives for meeting full SPTH as the buffer incentives aspect of
this program continues to develop, and Ecology looks forward to increased opportunities to
collaborate through the new tierad incentives development process.

Funding awards that span across state fiscal biennia (Section 2.3, page 4). Ecology's buffer
incentives project in the Hangman watershed has successfully allocated payments for long-term
contracts, similar to the CREP model. Ecology has coordinated with Spokane CD to develop and
administer a riparian incentives program that offers 15-year contracts to landowners to restore

their riparian areas. Ecology highlights this as an example and potential framework for allocating
funding across biennia, and support coordinating with the Commission to broaden this
framework in support of longer-term contracts for riparian restoration.

Tiered Incentives {Section 1.2, page 3). Ecology supports the concept of tiered incentives. Per
the requirement in the proviso to coordinate with certain state agencies and CDs, please include

Ecology in the list of entities the SCC will coordinate with in developing the tierad incentives.
Ecology requests the following edit (in red):

The SCC will continue to coordinate with conservation districts, Tribes, the Department
of Ecology, the Department of Fish and Wildlife, the Department of Agriculiure, and
private landowners and other stakeholders to refine the tiered incentives strategy and
guidelines for the tiered incentives project type.

Hopefully, through the upcoming process to revise the tiered incentive guidance we can find
areas of common ground and alignment that could lead to changes in both of our funding
programs. For example, Ecology would like to explore creating a tier that matches the minimum
buffer width in our funding programs (which would make combining/leveraging our funding at
the project or watershed level possible), explore combining efforts to support permeant
protection, and come up with incentive amounts that Ecology could then incorporate into our
program so that we have aligned incentive payment rates and avoid competing with each other.



State of Washington

DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 43200, Olympia, WA 98504-3200 ¢ (360) 902-2200 » TDD (360) 902-2207
Main Office Location: Natural Resources Building, 1111 Washington Street SE, Olympia, WA

April 15, 2025

Mr. James Thompson, Executive Director
Washington State Conservation Commission
P.O. Box 47721

Olympia, WA 98504-7721

Dear Mr. Thompson,
SUBJECT: SCC RIPARIAN GRANT PROGRAM DRAFT GUIDELINES

Thank you for the opportunity to provide feedback on the 2025 Riparian Grant Program draft guidelines.
The Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife (WDFW) values our partnership with the Washington
State Conservation Commission (SCC) and is strongly supportive of your agency’s commitment to
advancing voluntary and incentive-based conservation. Advancing the restoration of functioning riparian
ecosystems represents a historic and urgent opportunity to work alongside your organization, partners,
and stakeholders to preserve and recover salmon populations for future generations. It’s a privilege to
work with you and others on this historic effort. Please consider the following comments regarding the
draft program guidelines.

Alignment with WDFW Riparian Guidance: We appreciate the SCC’s efforts to align the Riparian
Grant Program draft guidelines with WDFW’s riparian science and resources, which includes designating
the riparian area as the Riparian Management Zone (RMZ), considering all stream types for funding, and
encouraging and incentivizing applicants to restore riparian functions to the greatest extent possible. Your
agency’s thoughtful inclusion of our riparian science is appreciated. And we have identified elements of
your riparian guidance that could be further strengthened to ensure applicants strive to restore fully
functioning RMZ’s.

= Eligible Project Types and Activities: Section 3.6 provides funding to support riparian outreach
and engagement. This section discusses but does not direct applicants to sources of best available
science. We recommend adding language to encourage applicants to consider best available
science when developing outreach materials. This change will help ensure applicants consider
WDFW’s riparian science, tools, and recommendations for protecting fully functioning RMZ’s.

We also recommend adding WDFW’s 2023 Riparian Pollinator publication to the list of technical
resources and directing applicants to WDFW’s Areas of Responsibilities Map when referencing
WDFW as a point of contact.

= Eligible Best Management Practices: Section 4.3 describes the riparian buffer standards that
applicants must meet. We appreciate that these standards strive to plant tall trees wherever
feasible and legal. We recommend adding language to encourage applicants to go above and
beyond the minimum buffer widths set by the Natural Resource Conservation Service. This

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 48 of 263


https://wdfw.wa.gov/species-habitats/ecosystems/riparian#resources
https://wdfw.wa.gov/publications/02451
https://wdfw.maps.arcgis.com/apps/MapJournal/index.html?appid=48699252565749d1b7e16b3e34422271

Mr. James Thompson

SCC Riparian Grant Program Draft Guidelines
April 15, 2025

Page 2

language will strengthen the guidelines’ support for restoring fully functioning RMZs. WDFW’s
online Site Potential Tree Height (SPTH) mapping tool and field protocol allows users to
determine the recommended buffer width for achieving a fully functioning RMZ and would be a
useful tool to assist applicants.

= Project Prioritization: Section 5.5 lists additional criteria that may be considered when evaluating
project proposals. We recommend adding the Washington Habitat Connectivity Action Plan
(WAHCAP) to this list, as it represents a new statewide effort to identify, protect, and restore
areas with habitat connectivity. This addition may assist in prioritizing projects with the highest
ecological potential.

Tiered Incentive Payments: We understand the tiered incentives payment section of the grant guidelines
has been removed until it can be further refined. WDFW would like to continue to be involved in future
working groups on this topic. Tiered incentives offer a unique opportunity to motivate landowners to
implement wider buffers to achieve optimal functioning RMZ’s. At a minimum, we recommend 100-foot-
wide buffers to achieve full pollutant removal. To achieve full ecological function, buffers should extend
out to site potential tree height at 200 years (in the forested ecoregion) or to the full extent of riparian
vegetation that would otherwise occur (in the dryland ecoregion). Working collaboratively with state
partners on this effort will help ensure alignment and consistency across our agencies and programs.

Riparian Data Engine: WDFW is developing a Riparian Data Engine to support decision making and
facilitate the mapping, monitoring, and prioritization of riparian efforts statewide. The tool is expected to
be available in 2025. We would like to brief the SCC on this resource and discuss options for how this
tool can inform the Riparian Grant Program and other SCC efforts.

We appreciate your agency’s work on the draft Riparian Grant Program Guidelines and for including
WDFW in your stakeholder review. We value the collaborative approach that went into developing the
original guidelines and for your agency’s intent to hold up our riparian science.

Sincerely,

Chris Conklin, Program Director
WDFW Habitat Program

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 49 of 263


https://wdfw.maps.arcgis.com/apps/MapJournal/index.html?appid=35b39e40a2af447b9556ef1314a5622d
https://wdfw.wa.gov/publications/02564
https://wdfw.wa.gov/species-habitats/habitat-recovery/connectivity/action-plan
https://wdfw.wa.gov/sites/default/files/2024-06/habitat-committee-riparian-mapping-june2024.pdf

== Washington State

=-;' Conservatlon

VN
=i Commission
o U
DRAFT Mareh-June 20254
Contents
Riparian Grant Program GUIAE NG S ... ...i.. it i i ittt ete et ettt see teeasesenseateaeessetetententeateeaeeeeares 1
P OO AN OV O VW ...ttt te ittt ettt tee et eeee e eeaeeeeseaseeaseeseenseeateeteenseeaseeteen seenaeeeseenseeeeenaseensennsee 2
1 - Program BaCKOrOUNG .. ...iii.ii.iie et eseseee s ee s eeessee s seeseesseeseeesteestesseeteeteesseeateenseenreensrenseens 2
A CT=Ya = = I = [To 11 oY1 11 AV 2T O PO T PO OO PP PP OO T O TP TP PO T TP TP 3
GEN I Al RO QUIT O BN S it iit ittt ittt ettt eee et ee et eeeeee s eeeee e ee s tes eeaeeeeeseeateasensestentenssesseaseneenreees 4
I M S i uiitiitiittt ittt ettt teeeeete s eeeseasee s eeseeses e seaeeseeseeaseaeseee teseeseeneeateaee teeaseasenseasenaeenes 4
2.8 — A DD AT ON ittt it ittt ettt ettt et ettt et teaeaeeeees e eea et eaeeeeatenten e et tetenrenteeaees 4
2.0 = SCOPE NN S ..ttt ittt ettt ettt e te e eeeee e te e en teaeeseneeaeeatesseeaeaasestesteatenteteensensensensees 5
2.1 = RO NG L.ttt ittt e ittt ettt eee et teeeseeeeeseeaseeaseeateeneeeaeeteesteenateaentententeeatenntenarenss 5
CUUNA] RO S OUI C S .. .. itutiittei s et ettt e et ee et eeteeeeeeseesseeaseesee s seenseeseen tennaeeateen teenaeeneesteenssenaseeses 6
2.12 - ClimMate CoOmM MGt A G ...ttt ittt ittt ettt tee ettt et eee e eeeetesenseeseesseneenseatenseeteesennsenes 6
2. 1D = SUD CONEI A I NG ettt iiti it ittt et ettt et ettt et et e ee eeee e e eeeeeeseneeeteatenaeeteeenatensensenares 7
3 — Eligible Project Types @nd ACHVitiesS ...ttt ittt tte st seesteeseesseesaeeaseeeaeenaeraarenareaseeaaeenss 8
3.0 = Bl E LaNAS & ittt ittt ettt ettt et et ettt ettt et e ee e eeseeeeaeee e eeeeteneenteatenrentesentenrenaennns 8
3.3 = PrO Ot Ty DS . .ttt ittt ittt ettt ettt et ettt ee e e ee e ee e ee e ee e e ees ee s eeeseesteasenes tee tenasanseasensenneenne 9
3.6 - Riparian Restoration Program OUtrEach .........oooe.oiieiii ittt iesieeireaseeseeseeaseenaeenaeeans 9
Technical Assistance/Planning/Design/MonitOrinNg ... ... e i iee i eieeeeeaeeeareeneeeareenaeenaeeans 11
3.11 - Landowner Implemented COSt Share .......oii.ii.ii. i iiesie it ittt seeteeseeasensearenaeeseearearenses 12
3.13 - District Implemented ProjectS (DIP) .......ii.iieiie e i st teeeteereeseeeeeeareeareeaereareenreens 12
307 = M AN AN O .ttt sttt ettt ettt tee e eee e eee s eeeereteeseeasteeaseenteesteeateenteantreateentanarenraens 13
P M AN E N P rOtE C i ON ...t iit ittt it ettt ettt ettt te et et e e eeseeaseaeeeeeeeseneesteetenaeensenteneenaenns 14
4 - Eligible Best ManagemMeEnt PraCtiCes ... it iie ittt it et et eee ettt ee st seeaeeseeaseneeneearearenaeeaeearenss 20
4.1 - INSIrEAM A C VIt S ... iiiiit ittt ittt e ettt et ettt eee e eeeseeeseeseeteenseenseeaseenseenseeateenteenseenssensec 20
4.2 = LIVEStOCK BIMIP S .. ..t iiit ittt e ittt et ettt ettt teeteeeeeeseeseenseeateeteenseeaeen teenteeneretaenneenasenae 20
4.3 - Riparian BUffer Standards ... i ie i iie e ettt ettt et teeseetesseseaseeseeareatententetenaeeasearenss 21
D - PrOJECt PriOritiZatiON .. ie. i it it it ee ettt ettt eteeseeeseeteeseeeaseeateeteenteeateenteanteeateentennrenseenaens 25

FUNDED BY WASHINGTON'S

CLIMATE W The Riparian Grant Program is supported with funding from Washington’s Climate Commitment
COMMITMENT Act. The CCA puts cap-and-invest dollars to work reducing climate pollution, creating jobs, and
ACT=———— improving public health. Information about the CCA is available at www.climate.wa.gov.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 50 of 263



5.5 - Additional Proposal EValuation Critria ... ... .ttt ie ittt ettt eeeteeeeessensenreareeseeeeearensensens 26

6 - Monitoring and Adaptive ManagemME Nt . ...t ii ettt it sttt tetse s tessesseaseessesresentenreereeseensenes 27
7 = DMt O S . ettt ittt ittt i ittt et ettt eestesteeteesersersteesessseeesesssesseessseessesscesssesscesstecatessteenceearees 27

Program Overview

1 - Program Background

The Riparian Grant Program was established in 2023 through a $28 million state legislative
appropriation in Senate Bill 5200 to protect and restore riparian areas in Washington state. The
purpose of the grant program is to improve habitat and water quality through riparian
improvements that benefit salmon recovery priorities throughout the state. This program intends
to achieve riparian management zone (RMZ) restoration and protection in Washington state at a
pace and scale not previously possible.

The funds came with proviso language specifying how the funds were to be used:

(1) The appropriations in this section are provided solely for the state conservation
commission to provide grants for riparian restoration projects with landowners.

(2)(a) Within funds appropriated in this section, the commission shall develop and
implement the voluntary riparian grant program to fund protection and restoration of
critical riparian management zones. The commission is responsible for developing the
voluntary grant program criteria to achieve optimal restoration of functioning riparian
ecosystems in priority critical riparian management zones.

The full proviso language may be referenced here for further details.

been funded whellry—ln part by the Cllmate Commltment Act asseerated—fun&ng The Climate

Commitment Act (RCW 70A.65) created a market-based program to help reduce greenhouse
gas emissions in the next few decades. A portion of the revenues are directed into the Natural
Climate Solutions Account and were distributed into several standing grant programs, including
this riparian specific program.

1.1 - Funding comes with additional reporting, assessment, and tribal consultation
notification requirements. Climate Commitment Act pre-application tribal notification
instructions are available on the SCC CCA webpage. The SCC will provide guidance to

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 2

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 51 of 263



appllcants as CCA notification and reportlnq reqwrements are revised. Ihe@evemeF&Q#m

1.2 —This document provides guidance for activities funded through the Riparian Grant
Program with specific detail for planning, restoration, maintenance and associated activities.
The tiered incentives project type has been removed from this version of the quidelines and will
be drafted as a supplement to these guidelines. The SCC will continue to coordinate with
conservation districts, Tribes, the Department of Ecology, the Department of Fish and Wildlife,
the Department of Agriculture, landowners and other stakeholders to refine the tiered incentives
strategy and guidelines for the tiered incentives project type.

2 - General Eligibility

Conservation districts are the only entities eligible to apply to the SCC for this program.
Conservation districts must meet all Standard 1 Accountability requirements in the Conservation
Accountability and Performance Program in order to be eligible. All other organizations,
agencies, and entities are encouraged to work with their local conservation district to identify,
support, and partner on riparian project implementation. Find your local conservation district
here.

All land ownerships are eligible under this program including private, tribal, federal, state, non-

profit organization, or local government ownerships. However-only-lands-rot-owned-by
I : lLaible for t ¥ : .

2.1 — Projects must demonstrate an improvement to a critical riparian management zone.
“Critical riparian management zone” is defined in the proviso as:

(12)...the area adjacent to freshwaters, wetlands, and marine waters that has been
locally or regionally identified as an area where salmon recovery efforts would
significantly benefit from enhanced protection or restoration.

All stream types regardless of the presence of salmonids are eligible for riparian restoration and

protection projects under this program. However-tiered-incentive-payments-have-additional
rochistones

2.1.1 - Projects are eligible if they are designed to benefit the native salmon, steelhead, trout
and char prioritized in plans within the salmon recovery regions identified by the Governor’s
Salmon Recovery Office. Projects may be eligible outside of a salmon recovery region if multi-
stakeholder planning efforts have identified riparian resource concerns and the project will
benefit salmon recovery, including areas where coordinated reintroduction efforts are planned.
The term “salmon” throughout this document refers to native salmon, steelhead, trout and char.

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 3

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 52 of 263



General Requirements

Timelines
2.2. - Work-Progress must begin on all funded proposals within 120 days of the award of

fundlng or prowde a reason(s) or justification for delavs —appheable—werk—ee&ld—b&ea%reaebr

#ame—threug#&une%@—Z@Qé—To be ellglble for relmbursement all work |nclud|ng aII prOJect
types (see below) must be completed by Jure-30,2025 2027the end of the fiscal biennium and

vouchered for in July following the end of the biennium-20257. Any remaining unspent awarded
grant funds may be extended into future fiscal years if those unspent funds are reappropriated
to the SCC by the legislature. There is no guarantee of continued legislative appropriations or
reappropriations for this program beyond a bienniumdJune-36,-20252027; however, SCC does
anticipate continuing to seek funds for this program as well as reappropriation of any remaining
unspent funds.

Projects, such as outreach, funded by operating funds cannot be extended beyond the biennium
and should be returned as soon as possible after identifying they will not be needed for the

2.3 - SCC is pursuing changes to the grant award system which will allow funding awards that
span across the state fiscal biennium. In the event this system is developed, award dates which
extend beyond June-30.2027the state’s fiscal biennium, may be allowed. It should not be
assumed that a funding award date is extended. If this opportunity becomes available, fiscal
awards and contracts may need to be amended. The steps for implementing this change will be
communicated to conservation districts.

2.3.1 - All general requirements and policies of the SCC must be followed as set out in the
Grant and Contract Policy and Procedure Manual |nclud|ng but not limited to monthly grant
voucherlng and cuIturaI resources pollcy compllance

2.4 — Application and Reporting

All applications for funding must utilize the application form provided on the Riparian Grant

Program Webpage. isform-Riparian-Grant Program-Application Form-Applicants may

apply for one or more eligible project types in the same application.

2.5 - Rlparlan Grant Program fundlng will be accepted and reviewed monthlv R

gu@e#%&ar&pubhshed—andw#een&nu&Funqu awards WI|| be aIIocated for as Iong as funds

remain available. Application deadlines will be announced on the Riparian Grant Program
Webpage. Applications will be initially reviewed by an internal team of SCC staff for
completeness, adherence to program guidelines, and the extent to which the proposal

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 4

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 53 of 263



addresses identified priorities. Additional review of proposals may occur including, but not
limited to, consultation with Tribes.

2.6 - If proposed work partially funds a BMP, a detailed explanation must be included in the
application as to which components are proposed for RGP funding and which other funding
sources are sought or already secured to complete the entire proposed project or BMP.

2.7 - Applications must include enough detail to determine the eligibility of all activities.
Incomplete or vague applications may result in an extended review period or a request to
resubmit an application.

2.8 - An application may be partially funded if the application includes ineligible activities or
activities for which funding is not currently available. Additionally, if funds are limited,
applications will be reviewed and ranked according to adopted and published prioritization
criteria; a portion of an application may rank a higher priority than other proposed projects or
project types. For example, in a situation of limited funding, some project types ofr activities may
be prioritized over other project types. Prioritization is generally described in Project
Prioritization section.

2.9 - A conservation district may submit more than one application over the course of a granting
period. There is no quarantee or assurance that funding will remain available.

2.10 - Scope Changes

Any scope of work changes to an approved and funded project may only be made upon review
and approval by SCC staff. Contact the program manager to discuss any scope of work change
requests. Expenditures related to a changed scope are eligible only after the change is
approved by SCC staff. Proposals for new project sites must be submitted in a new application.
Changes between project types (landowner implemented cost share to District Implemented
Project or vice versa) may not be made once work has been done or expenditures have
occurred.

Reporting on all activities utilizing Riparian Grant Program funding is required. Reporting
requirements are intended to collect information that will be used by SCC to:

e quantify metrics of best management practices installed, including, but not limited to
o __acres efnewrestorationplanted in riparian areas,
acres-maintainedmiles of streambanks planted,
number-oftrees/shrubs-installedaverage restored riparian width,
acres of restored land maintained,
miles of streambank protected by land or easement acquisition,
other units as applicable to the practices installed through the program.
e summarize regional impacts of the program, such as funding allocated, quantity of BMP
installation, and leveraged funding and partnerships, and
o meet Climate Commitment Act requirements.

O |0 |0 |O |Oo

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 5

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 54 of 263



A list of all metrics collected for each installed eligible practice is available for reference on the
Riparian Grant Program webpage.

Reporting is required for all activities utilizing Riparian Grant Program funding. The following is
required:

e Grant activities will be reported utilizing the form provided on the Riparian Grant
Program w'/ebpage. thisform:- Riparian-Grant Program Reporting Form-

e Cost-share and district implemented projects must be entered into SCC’s Conservation
Practice Data System (CPDS) as the primary repository for BMP metrics.

e Climate Commitment Act reporting is required. A report form will be provided by SCC for
that purpose.

Additional reporting requirements may be added as additional guidance becomes available

pertalnlng to Cllmate Commltment Act funds reportlng Gest—sbraFe—pFejeets—\MH-be—FepeFteé

Cultural Resources

All projects must comply with SCC’s Cultural Resources Policy and Procedures. Costs for
cultural resources reviews or surveys will be vouchered for as a separate outcome and
reimbursed separately from individual grant awards.

2.12 - Climate Commitment Act

In accordance with the Climate Commitment Act, conservation districts must track all direct and
meaningful benefits provided to vulnerable populations within overburdened communities. The
following definitions are provided:

Direct and meaningful benefits are:

e The direct reduction of environmental burdens in overburdened communities.

e The reduction of disproportionate, cumulative risk from environmental burdens, including
those associated with climate change.

o The support of community led project development, planning, and participation costs.

o Meeting a community need identified by the community that is consistent with the intent
of the CCA or HEAL Act.

Overburdened communities are defined for the purposes of CCA as geographic regions
identified as overburdened communities in the map prepared by Washington Office of Financial
Management (Overburdened Communities).

Vulnerable populations (Per the HEAL Act and Climate Commitment Act) -

"Vulnerable populations" means population groups that are more likely to be at higher risk for
poor health outcomes in response to environmental harms, due to: (i) Adverse socioeconomic

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 6

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 55 of 263



factors, such as unemployment, high housing and transportation costs relative to income,
limited access to nutritious food and adequate health care, linguistic isolation, and other factors
that negatively affect health outcomes and increase vulnerability to the effects of environmental
harms; and (ii) sensitivity factors, such as low birth weight and higher rates of hospitalization.

"Vulnerable populations" includes, but is not limited to:

e (i) Racial or ethnic minorities;

e (i) Low-income populations;

o (iii) Populations disproportionately impacted by environmental harms; and
e (iv) Populations of workers experiencing environmental harms

2.13 - Climate Commitment Act pre-application tribal notification instructions are available on the
SCC CCA webpage. Pre-application notification for CCA is distinct from cultural resource
compliance and the two processes must be completed separately.

2.14 - Any printed materials, digital materials, or signage funded by the Climate Commitment Act
require specific branding and logos. An FAQ and instructions are available here.

2.15 - Subcontracting

Conservation districts may partner with other organizations or agencies to implement RGP work
through subcontracts or agreements. The arrangement must be formalized in accordance with
the SCC Grants and Contracts Policy Manual guidance for interagency agreements,
subcontracting, or work crews, as applicable. BMPs installed by another organization via a
subcontract or agreement must comply with SCC requirements and the conservation district
must be party to the agreement between the subcontractor and the landowner or a district
landowner agreement must be in place. Requirements for BMP installation, including practice
design life maintenance and retention, must be included in accordance with the program
requirements for DIP projects. Subcontracts may also be used to facilitate participation by
partners, such as Tribes, in prioritization or planning efforts. The intention to subcontract must
be included in the conservation district’'s application.

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 7

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 56 of 263



3 — Eligible Project Types and Activities

All projects and activities must be designed to improve “critical riparian management zones”.
"Critical riparian management zone" means:

(12)... the area adjacent to freshwaters, wetlands, and marine waters that has been
locally or regionally identified as an area where salmon recovery efforts would
significantly benefit from enhanced protection or restoration.

Critical riparian management zones may be located upstream of salmon presence if improving
the riparian management zone is anticipated to provide downstream benefits. Further
justification of the anticipated downstream and/or salmon benefits will be required for any
proposed project not within a salmon recovery region as identified by the Governor’s Salmon
Recovery Office.

Justification for projects located outside of a salmon recovery region must reference a local or
regional plan and describe how the project relates to the content of the plan and provides a
benefit of salon recovery. Projects in watersheds where coordinated salmon reintroduction
efforts are planned are eligible. See the Project Prioritization section for a list of relevant plans.

If the location of the project is not referenced in an existing plan, conservation districts must
submit a letter of support from a regional WDFW biologist affirming the site or region and activity
will provide a benefit to salmon recovery.

3.1 - Eligible Lands

All land ownerships are eligible for riparian restoration and maintenance under this program
|nclud|ng private, tribal, federal, state, non- proflt organization, or local government ownershlps

am—nete#&b%@%ﬁeﬁre;ed—meenwe—pwmems—Conservatmn dlstncts may |mplement

projects within another district’'s boundaries with permission from that district. Conservation
districts may complete projects outside of their district boundaries and with municipalities that
are not part of the conservation district at the district’'s discretion.

3.2 — ltis the intent of this program to provide technical and financial assistance to
landowners/managers/lessees to protect and enhance ecological functions of riparian
management zones. Potential program participants (landowners/managers/lessees) should be
informed that state, federal or local land use codes or regulations may apply which restrict the
conversion of riparian buffer to other land uses after the expiration of a project agreement or

contract.

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 8

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 57 of 263



3.3 - Project Types

Riparian Grant Program funds may be used for the following eligible project types:

e riparian restoration program outreach,
e technical assistance/planning/design/monitoring,
¢ landowner implemented cost share,
o District Implemented Projects,
ored | . ’
¢ maintenance, and
e permanent protection.

3.10 - Every reasonable effort must be made to reference and utilize best available science and
the Natural Resource Conservation Services (NRCS) 9-step conservation planning process,
with riparian considerations, as projects are planned and implemented. Plant selection, buffer
widths, and other site-specific considerations are part of the conservation and project planning

processes.

PreojectOutreach, planning, and implementation should consider restoring riparian functions to
the best extent possible, considering the land use on the property and the functions of the
riparian areamanagement zone. Conservation districts should work with local Tribes and other
regional partners to identify high priority resource concerns, regional priorities and plan locally
significant projects. Riparian functions are described in the USDA’'s Conservation Buffers:
Design Considerations for Buffers, Corridors and Greenways (2008) and the Washington
Department of Fish and Wildlife’s Riparian Ecosystems Volume |: Science Synthesis and
Management Implications (2020). See additional technical resources document for applicable
compiled references. Refer also to the definition of riparian ecosystems when considering the
width of the riparian management zone to include riparian and upland zone of influence
considerations.

The following are the eligible project types and associated parameters of each type. There is no
set limit or cap on amount of funds that may be requested under any given project type. The
availability of funds will be provided on an ongoing basis as funding awards are made. Instream
projects/practices are only eligible if connected with a riparian management zone restoration
component.

3.6 - Riparian Restoration Program Outreach

Program outreach is supported through Fhis-projecttype-incorporates-additionaHimited

operating funding appropriated separately to “support the outreach, identification, and

| DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 9

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 58 of 263



implementation of salmon riparian habitat restoration projects that are appropriated through the
capital budget.” This project type will be eI|g|bIe under this program based upon fundlng
avallablllty for these actrvrtles A d

e Outreach and Promotion: Advertising (print, digital, TV, and radio), production of

mailers, brochures, and newsletters, translation services, and social media outreach,
including targeted ads and video production.

e Workshops and Community Engagement: In-person and virtual workshops, webinars,
podcasts, tours, peer-to-peer networking, and door-to-door or phone outreach to
landowners.

e Interactive and Visual Storytelling: Story mapping, GIS tools, project signage,
demonstration sites, and success stories.

e Data Collection and Partnerships: Stakeholder and community surveys, partnership
development with Tribes and conservation groups, and exhibits at local events.

Eligible expenditures under this project type include: salaries, benefits and overhead, goods and
services, light refreshments, in-state travel, event reqgistration, reasonable sponsorships with
pre-approval, and booth rentals. General administrative office equipment, such as computers, is

not eligible.

3.7 — PrejeetsOutreach activities must aim to identify and support future riparian habitat
restoration projects, clustered or grouped in targeted priority locations{s), inalignmentand be
aligned with local planning priorities. The primary content of the materials must relate to riparian
management or program. General district outreach is not eligible. Outreach activities should be
designed to target specific areas, such as workshop locations, mail recipients, and activity
participants. Applicants must provide specific details, including watershed(s) targeted, and
include metrics for tracking these outreach activities. Metrics should capture the number of
individuals engaged, the geographic areas reached, and any projects identified or initiated.

Youth-focused activities are not eligible. Planting activities using youth volunteers may be
funded as district implemented projects.

3.8 - For outreach focused planting events, planning and volunteer coordination should be
applied for as outreach, while the costs for implementing the project must be applied for as DIP,
Cost-share or Maintenance.

The SCC may award capital funds for outreach activities in accordance with the RGP proviso for
capital funding.

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 10

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 59 of 263



Technical Assistance/Planning/Design/Monitoring

3.9 - ThisprojecttypeTechnical assistance, planning, design, and monitoring includes all
activities to plan and fully design projects with landowners/managers/lessees including, but not
limited to, GIS data analysis_(such as to inform targeted outreach to shoreline adjacent
properties, local project prioritization efforts, or to support monitoring), local planning and project

prioritization efforts, site visits, project development, meetings with landowners or partners,
conservation or best management practice specific planning, project designs, engineering if
needed on a case-by-case basis, preliminary permitting, and follow-up project monitoring
activities.

3.10.1 Eligible expenditures under this project type include: salaries and benefits, overhead,
pre-approved program/project related training or project development equipment, in-state
travel, and professional services contracts. Training must be related to improving the technical
knowledge of staff to plan and implement successful RMZ projects. General administrative office
equipment, such as computers, is not eligible. Pre-approval occurs through submitting details of
the training request or proposed equipment purchase in the application or by requesting
approval in written communication with-SGG-staff the program manager. The applicant must
describe how the purchase is necessary to implement the Riparian Grant Program activities.

Monitoring equipment is limited to tools necessary to monitor and adaptively manage the
restoration activities.

Staff costs to implement a project, such as planting installation and on-the-ground site

management should be applied for in the DIP category. This information is used to distinquish
between the costs of providing technical assistance and installing a BMP or project.

3.10.2 Technical assistance, planning projects and training may be awarded from either
operating or capital budgets and will be identified on the grant contract.

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 11

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 60 of 263



3.11 - Landowner Implemented Cost Share

Landowner implemented cost-share is Fhis-project-type-utitizes-the SCC’s traditional cost-share
project type where a landowner implements best management practices first and seeks
reimbursement for eligible costs from the administering conservation district. The project type
requires the use of SCC’s Conservation Practice Data System (CPDS) and the cost-share
contract generated from that system. Conservation districts are encouraged to fund riparian
restoration work at a 100% cost-share rate to incentivize these projects, however, a district’s
board may approve aIternatlve cost-share rates for this proqram Atl—prejeet&ef—th454ypewu

PrejeeL Refer to the SCC Grants and Contracts Policy and Procedure Manual for eI|Q|bIe

expenditures and the— policies related to cost-share assistance on public lands.

3.12 - Practices must be retained and maintained for the practice design life. The design
life of practices is determined by SCC or USDA — Natural Resources Conservation Service
(NRCS) and the information can be found on the SCC Conservation Practice Data System
(CPDS) webpage.

3.13 - District Implemented Projects (DIP)

Fhisprojecttype-isaDistrict implemented projects are projects in which the conservation district
is the lead planner and implementer. An example of a DIP could be implementing an identified
practice with multiple landowners at the same time — i-efor example, installing riparian buffers
on several consecutive properties along a creek. In this project type, the district is taking full
responsibility for installation/construction of the project. WWhen a district implements a project,
the district is responsible for activities including—which-may-include, but-is not limited to,
acquiring permits, bidding; and purchasing processes, and prevailing wage requirements.

3.14 - A District Implemented Project must not include cost-sharing or cash reimbursement, to
a landowner(s) with Riparian Grant Program or other SCC funds. The district is assuming all
responsibility for project planning and construction directly. Refer to the SCC Grants and
Contracts Policy and Procedure Manual for eligible expenditures.

3.15 - A Landowner Agreement is required for any District Implemented Projects completed on
property not owned by a district and a fully S|gned copy must be provided to SCC at the t|me of

3.16 - Practices must be retained and maintained for the practice design life. Conservation
Districts must address this requirement in their agreements with land owners/managers-. The

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 12

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 61 of 263



design life of practices is determined by SCC or USDA — NRCS and the information can be
found on the SCC Conservation Practice Data System (CPDS) webpage.

3.17 - Maintenance

FhisprejecttypeMaintenance projects include performing maintenance in critical riparian
management zones, regardless of funding source or program responsible for initial installation
for up to 105 years. Maintenance of the RMZ after ten years is the responsibility of the
landowner/manager/lessee.

3.18 - Eligible activities include, but are not limited to;
e re-planting to address mortality or improve species diversity,

e watering/irrigation,

¢ manual invasive weeds control (pulling, mowing),

e chemical invasive weeds control (following all rules and regulations pertaining to

herbicide application),
e biological control (where appropriate and approved), placement,

o replacement-or placement, or removal of herbivorous animal control (tree tubes, beaver

fencing etc.), removal of unnecessary weed control measures (plastic muich),
e _repairs to low-tech instream projects.;and

herbivorous-control-methods-

3.19 - Maintenance may be performed on any eligible land ownership_with documented
landowner permission. The maintenance responsibilities by a conservation district and/or land
manager should be clearly stated in cost-share agreements or landowner agreements to
preserve the investment in the property. Landowner permission documentation is to be kept on
file at the district office for review upon request. There is no set limit on maintenance costs per
acre as the needs and related costs for this work will vary across the state.

3.20 - Maintenance project reporting will include the number of participants and acreage
maintained. Site locations, funding source for the original installation (i.e.: other agencies, SCC
programs) and frequency of maintenance must be kept by the district and available upon

request.
3.21 - Maintenance activities require cultural resource compliance. if-theactivitiesare likely-to

3.21.1 Eligible expenditures under this project type include: salaries and benefits, overhead,
goods (materials) and services (contracted labor, for example), pre-approved equipment
required to conduct maintenance activities, and in-state travel.

3.22 -Permanent-Protection

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 13

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 62 of 263



Permanent Protection

Permanent protection projects include both fee simple and conservation easement acquisitions
for critical riparian management zones on properties that align with the criteria of the Riparian
Grant Program and address a riparian protection or restoration priority identified in a locally
applicable watershed or salmon recovery plan.

Under the circumstances outlined below, RGP funds can support permanent protection by
paying for planning costs to develop a permanent protection project and/or as match funding for
an acquisition project funded through another public funding program.

Planning

Costs associated with planning a permanent protection project for a critical riparian
management zone is eligible. Eligible activities include:

e resource mapping to document streams, wetland, riparian and upland resources on the
property,

e _mapping and assessing the land use impacts on the property,

e environmental audits, chain of title reports, and site investigations such as test pits, test
wells, and sample analysisPhase-1-environmental-assessment,

e preliminary review of water rights,

o title reports, deed and title search,

o broker opinion of value,

e appraisal and

e engagement with the property owner, partners, local jurisdictions, and potential
funders.

The products of permanent protection planning activities may be used to apply for funding from
a Lead Funder program listed below. Funds may not be used to write grant applications or for
presentations associated with grant application processes.

Eligible costs include salaries, benefits and overhead, mileage, legal fees, and other direct costs
related to project planning. Equipment is not eligible. Training and conferences are not eligible.

Property Acquisition

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 14

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 63 of 263



Conservation districts may apply for match funding for eligible property interest acquisitions
which result in permanent protection of critical Rriparian Mmanagement Zzones. Eligible
acquisitions include both fee simple and conservation easement acquisitions en-propertiesof
critical Riparian Management Zones that align with the criteria of the Riparian Grant Program
(RGP), and which have been evaluated and selected for funding by a relevant riparian
protection funder (“Lead Funder”). RGP Property Acquisition funding may be used for riparian
fee simple or conservation easement capital expenses, and to cover the related acquisition
costs.

The intent of the RGP Permanent Protection funding is to provide match for acquisition of critical
Riparian Management Zones (RMZ). As such, RGP will fund up to 50% of the appraised value
of the defined RMZ area proposed for protection. In the scenario where protection of the defined
RMZ is unable to proceed without acquisition of upland areas outside the RMZ on the same
parcel, RGP will fund up to 100% of the appraised value of the defined RMZ area, or an amount
not to exceed 50% of the total property's appraised value, whichever is less.

In no circumstance will RGP reimburse capital costs in excess of 50% of the total subject
property’s appraised property-value.

SCC will determine this eligibility with the following criteria:

1) Riparian protection or restoration at the project location is identified in a watershed or
salmon recovery plan as an activity that is beneficial to salmon recovery. The project
location may be identified specifically or regionally in the plan, such as within a watershed or
reach identified for riparian improvement.

2) Demonstration of secured or pending funding agreement from ene-ofthe followingan
approved Lead Funder programs, for which the RPG Permanent Protection funds will be
matched. Lead Funder programs can be established riparian conservation acquisition
programs at federal, state, Tribal, or local government agencies that align with the intent and
criteria of the RGP _and which meet the due diligence requirements for SCC Release of
Funds Requirements (pg 3). Approved Washington State Lead Funders at the time of
issuing the RGP guidelines include: :

a) Washington Recreation and Conservation Office’s Salmon Recovery Grant Programs
b) Washington Department of Natural Resources

c) Washington Department of Ecology

d) Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife

—USDA—NRGS -

—GCounty Conservation Futures-

1) Lead Funders at the state, federal, Tribal, or local level can be approved upon request and
at SCC's discretion. Examples include USDA-NRCS, EPA, County Conservation Futures,
Bonneville Power Administration, and local Public Utility Districts. Applicants will be asked to
confirm the proposed Lead Funder's policies and procedures regarding the following
criteria:

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 15

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 64 of 263



1. The program funds permanent protection of riparian zones as an eligible program
activity and aligned purpose of the program;

2. The program requires completion of all minimum due diligence requirements outlined
under the "Release of Funds Requirements" of these RGP Guidelines;

3. The program includes a requirement for sponsors to conduct compliance monitoring on
a frequency no less than once every five years (a copy of monitoring reports will be
provided to SCC for all funded projects);

4. The program includes a policy on addressing conversions of land acquired with the Lead
Funder program, such as identification of replacement lands at the same or higher
appraised and conservation values; and

5. The program can certify compliance with all relevant state requlations.

Applicants may be required to demonstrate how proposed non-state Lead Funders are able to
meet the acquisition policies and requirements outlined in RCO’s Manuals 3 (Acquisition) and 7
(Long Term Obligations).

Applicants proposing a Lead Funder other than a previously approved Lead Funder should
anticipate a Lead Funder or application review process that may take several months.

SCC will review and evaluate eligible applications for this match funding monthly, as described
in the Application section of the guidelines. Projects may include funding from a source not
included in the list of Lead Funders (i.e. additional match contributions), as long as an approved
Lead Funder is funding a portion of the acquisition and will retain an interest (hold, co-hold, or
third-party beneficiary) in the final recorded instrument. |If a CD applicant proposes to partner
with another entity to held be the primary holder of the conservation interest, the other entity
must be legally authorized to hold a conservation interest under RCW 64.04.130. When another
eligible entity is proposed to be the primary holder, the CD is not required to hold or co-hold title
on the recorded instrument.

SCC may require specific deed restriction or property encumbrance language which will be
reviewed prior to approving an award for acquisition.

Projects determined to meet the eligibility criteria will be awarded funding on a first-come first-
serve basis as long as funds remain available.

Method of Payment :

Payment to Escrow

The following costs are eligible for payment directly to escrow by SCC:

o Up to 50% of the fee simple or conservation easement purchase price, as established by
appraisal.

e Up to 50% of the following: taxes due at closing (compensating, excise and pro rata
taxes), title reports and insurance, and recording fees. SCC will not pay for delinquent
taxes due on the property at the time of closing.

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 16

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 65 of 263



Reimbursable Costs

RGP will reimburse up to 50% of total project costs determined to be eligible by the Lead
Funder’s program and funding guidelines. In no scenario will SCC reimburse for any costs
that are not allowed under Washington state law or are inconsistent with state law regarding
open space acquisitions including RCW 8.26.180. Costs eligible for reimbursement from SCC

may include:

e Appraisal and review appraisal of acquired property interest- one per property

e Property surveys

e Recording fees, closing fees,

+—Environmental assessment

o Environmental audits, chain of title reports, and site investigation such as test pits, test
wells, and sample analysis

e Baseline documentation- conservation easement only

e Boundary line adjustments, lot line adjustments, and subdivision exemptions

e Property management or stewardship plan, not to exceed $10,000

«—Project management costs, including staff time, travel and legal expenses directly
related to acquiring the property is eligible. Project management costs are Administrative
eosts—not to exceed $50,000 unless approved by the SCC Executive Director or their

designee.-Applicantlegal fees are considered an-administrative cost—
o Reimbursement shall not be approved for any donations, including donated land.

Release of Funds Requirements

Projects must demonstrate that all due diligence and evaluation requirements of the Lead
Funder are satisfactorily completed before funds will be released. Copies of all standard due
diligence materials required by the Lead Funder must be provided to SCC prior to release of
funds. At minimum, this will include:

a. Appraisal
b. Review Appraisal

Settlement Statement
Property Management and/or Stewardship Plan, if available-applicable

c. Baseline Documentation including site-specific map and general vicinity map (easement
acquisition only)

d. Title Commitment

e. Final Conservation Deed, Easement, or Covenant Language

f.  Purchase and Sale Agreement

g. Mortgage Subordination Agreement, if applicable (easement acquisition only)

h. Property Environmental/Hazardous Substances Review, if applicable

i.

I

In addition, projects must demonstrate that the Lead Funder will hold, co-hold, or be a third-
party beneficiary of the acquired property interest. These Lead Funder-held obligations must be

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 17

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 66 of 263



perpetual in nature, and/or match the duration of the recorded instrument (property deed,
covenant, and/or conservation easement). The documentation provided to SCC before funds
are released to escrow sheuldmust include:

a. ldentification of the Lead Funder’s contribution to escrow on the Settlement Statement;

b. Identification of the Lead Funder’s perpetual property interest in the Deed, Easement, or
Covenant document prepared for recording; and

c. Closing instructions that specify closing and recording is contingent on receipt by escrow
of the Deed, Easement, or Covenant document(s) signed and notarized by the
appropriate authority of the Lead Funder.

Requests for escrow closing funding must be made in writing and submitted directly to RGP
Manager and SCC Chief Financial Officer. The written request must allow 30 days BEFORE the
intended closing date to ensure SCC has the proper time allowance to work with the Office of
the State Treasurer (OST) to prepare wire(s). Information needed in the request must include:

Exact funding amount needed

Date needed

Name of the entity needing to be paid directly,

bank name,

ABA or routing number,

name of the account owner,

account number,

effective settlement date (and any other wire instructions pertinent such as property

address).

After closing, the grant applicant is required to:

PP ERPE®

a. Provide notice via email to RGP Manager and SCC Grants Manager within 5 business
days of closing.

b. Provide an electronic copy of the recorded conservation instrument (Conservation Deed,
Easement, or Covenant).

Record Keeping and Audits

The grant applicant must retain a complete set of all documents and records pertaining to the
purchase of a conservation interest using RGP funding pursuant to the applicable records
retention schedule. See the most recent version of the “State Government General Records
Retention Schedule here.”

All records relevant to projects funded by RGP must be on file with the grant applicants and are
subject to audit by the State and inspection by SCC. If the auditor's inspection of the records
discloses any charges incorrectly claimed and reimbursed, cash restitution of the incorrect
amount must be made to SCC.

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 18

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 67 of 263



DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 19

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 68 of 263



4 - Eligible Best Management Practices

All-project-propesals-mustinclude-eligible-activities—Eligible activities are those intended to

increase protection and/or restoration of riparian habitat. Riparian restoration projects above
barriers to anadromous fish passage are eligible_if they contribute to salmon recovery in the
region. Further justification of the anticipated downstream and/or salmon benefits will be
required for any proposed project not within a salmon recovery region. See Table 1. Eligible
Best Management Practices below for list of eligible best management practices (BMPs).

4 .1 - Instream Activities

Instream activities with no connection to critical riparian management zone restoration included
in the same application will not be funded. If a cost-share or DIPthe project involves practices
that require engineering, such as engineered rock or large wood placement, engineered design
plans must be submitted with the application and will be used to evaluate the project’s readiness
to proceed with funding. A ject ing-i i iparian

Additional criteria that will be considered for any instream proposed work:

¢ |s the instream work critical/essential to successful riparian restoration?

¢ |s the proposed funding needed to complete the instream work reasonable as compared
to the riparian restoration component of the proposal? For example, instream work is not
a majority of the proposed work and funding requested.

All instream BMPs must be done in conjunction with a riparian restoration activity.

RGP funding for Aquatic Organism Passage is limited to projects on private land that removes a
passage impairment. The funding may be used to match a project which includes a crossing re-
installation but RGP funds must contribute only to the removal and restoration aspects of the
work.

4.2 - Livestock BMPs

Practices related to livestock exclusion from the riparian area are eligible for funding. Livestock
water wells may be funded if the practice is accompanied by livestock exclusion from the
riparian area. For all projects funded under this program, livestock access and/or grazing of the
critical riparian management zone (RMZ) is not allowed. Restricted livestock watering access,
such as water gaps, in the RMZ may be considered on a case-by-case basis. Include in the
application the rationale for planning a water gap and a detailed plan and map demonstrating
controlled access. Applications must demonstrate why livestock exclusion is not possible at the
site.

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 20

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 69 of 263



4.3 - Riparian Buffer Standards

The minimum-width-forplanning-andimplementing-the-Riparian Forest Buffer practice, NRCS
practice number 391, must be planned to the NRCS standard of a minimum of 50 feet for at
least 70% of the stream length in the planning unit. is-50-feetto-improve-habitat-where-salmon
arepresent-Applicants are encouraged to consider the functions of the riparian management
zone and plan projects to the width that will achieve the greatest riparian functional benefit
possible. Consider the 200-year site-potential tree height (SPTH) for the location during project

planning.

4.4 - The Hedgerow practice, NRCS practice number 422, is eligible on streams with a bankfull
width less than 5 feet or on ditches and conveyances modified for agricultural use and less than
15 feet wide. The minimum planting width eligible for the hedgerow practice is 35 feet to treat a
water quality resource concern where no salmon are present. Where salmon are present, the
hedgerow must be installed to 50'.

4.5 - Riparian Herbaceous Cover practice, NRCS practice number 390, or Filter Strip,
practice 393, may be used where easements prevent the establishment of woody vegetation or
in areas where trees-and-shrubssite conditions are not nativeriparian-vegetationsuitable for
trees and shrubs to achieve the desired buffer width in the critical riparian management zone,
such as native herbaceous dominated ecosystems. —such-as-dryland-ecosystems- The
minimum planning width for Riparian-Herbaceous-Coveris 35 feet.

4.6 - WDFW’s Statewide Integrated Fish Distribution map will be used to determine salmon
presence. Salmon are present if the map indicates species as “Documented” or “Presumed”.

4.6 - Exceptions to the minimum buffer width will be considered if physical or legal barriers limit
the full application of the Riparian Forest Buffer, Hedgerow or Riparian Herbaceous Cover
practice. Examples include:

e property lines,
e easements,
e structures,

o utilities,

o topography,

e hydrology, such as natural steep slopes that create narrow riparian corridors,
e cultural resource protection requirements that restrict ground disturbance.

Exceptions to this minimum must be clearly explained in the project application, including how
the planting project still achieves the goal of restoring riparian function (i.e., continuity, shade,

pollution removal, contributions of detrital nutrients, recruitment of large woody materials, and

bank stability, etc.).

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 21

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 70 of 263



4.7 - The Tree/Shrub Establishment practice is to be applied as a maintenance practice related
to supplemental planting of an on-going riparian restoration project.

4.8 - Native vegetation is preferred however, climate adapted species (not invasive/noxious
weeds) are allowable. The Washington Native Plant Society Native Plant Directory is a good
resource for native plant determination.

4.9 - Additional practices may be considered on a case-by-case basis if they can be
demonstrated to provide direct benefit to critical riparian management zone restoration. Specific
questions about eligible best management practice standards and specifications should be
directed to the program manager after USDA - NRCS technical guidance materials have been
thoroughly reviewed.

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 22

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 71 of 263



4.10 - Table 1. Eligible Best Management Practices

BMP Name

NRCS Practice Code

Access Control 472
Access Road (access to RMZ and/or stream crossing)? 560
Agquatic Organism Passage’® 396
Bank Barb?! SCC53
Bank Reshaping/Channel Modification? SCC48
Beaver Dam Analogue (BDA) SCC3
Brush Management 314
Brush Mattress SCC57
Conservation Cover 327
Critical Area Planting 342
Dead Stake Revetments SCC55
Dynamic Revetments SCC46
Fence (including livestock exclusion and old fence removal) 382
Filter Strip 393
Grade Stabilization Structure! 410
Hedgerow Planting 422
Herbaceous Weed Control 315
Herbivory Control SCC12
Live Stake Revetments SCC54
Livestock Pipeline 516
LWD Structure! SCC26
Micro-irrigation 441
Mulching 484
Multi-story Cropping 379
Obstruction Removal 500
Post Assisted Log Structures (PALS) SCC3
*Pumping Plant? 533
**Riparian Herbaceous Cover? 390
Riparian Forest Buffer 391
Road/Trail/Landing Closure and Treatment 654
Rock Toe Protection’ SCC56
Root Wads! SCC45
Spring Development 442
Stream Crossing 578
Stream Habitat Improvement 395
Structures for Wildlife 649
Tree/Shrub Establishment (maintenance activity only) 612
Tree/Shrub Site Prep 490
“\\ater Welld 642

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025

Page 23

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025

72 of 263



Watering Facility 614
Wetland Enhancement 859
Wetland Restoration 657

Table 1. Notes
1. Engineering is required for these practices.

4.11 - 2. Pumping plant practice is eligible for livestock watering facilities and riparian irrigation.

4.12 - =*3. The riparian herbaceous cover practice is conditionally eligible in the event that establishment
of a Riparian Forest Buffer is impractical or in violation of easement terms in certain geographic areas.

4.13 ¥* 4. The water well practice does not include domestic or drinking water wells. New wells for
riparian planting irrigation are not eligible, but improvements to existing wells may be funded. See the
NRCS practice specification for more detail.

5. Only passage barrier removal and restoration is eligible for the Aquatic Organism Passage practice for
the riparian grant program.

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 24

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 73 of 263



9 - Project Prioritization

All projects must_lead to belecated-withinimproved functions withinefthe a critical riparian
management zones (RMZ). Instream projects must be conducted in direct support of a riparian
restoration project. See Definitions section for definitions of the terms critical riparian

management zone, rlparlan ecosystem and instream projects. Fhe-funding-proviso-included

5.2 - SCC reviews project applications monthly and prepares awards for qualifying projects.
Qualifying projects are those that meet the eligibility requirements in these guidelines.

In the case that funding becomes limited, SCC will develop a scoring system to fund the highest
priority of competing project applications. SCC may prioritize best management practices that
directly result in critical riparian management zone restoration.

5.3 - Projects meeting one or more of the following criteria will be prioritized for funding:

o PreferenceforpProjects that are included or referenced in, in no particular order or
priority as the existence of these references vary across the state:

o Watershed plan developed pursuant to RCW 90.82 (Watershed or Water
Resource Inventory Area (WRIA) Planning). See more information here.

o Regional salmon recovery plans created under RCW 77.85.090. See more
information here.

o The Puget Sound Action Agenda developed under RCW 90.71.260. See more
information here.

o The habitat project lists developed pursuant to RCW 77.85.050: Salmon
Recovery and Puget Sound Acquisition and Restoration. More information here.

o The prioritization process developed under RCW 27 77.95.160: the Fish Passage
Barrier Removal Board. More information here.

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 25

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 74 of 263



o Priority projects identified for salmon recovery through agency grant programs
such as Recreation and Conservation Office (RCO) or Department of Ecology
grant programs.

o Other local salmon habitat or riparian restoration strategies.

o 5.4 - PreferenceforpProjects that are locally prioritized through coordination with local
federally recognized Tribes, private landowners, conservation districts, the local county,
WDFW, and ECY, e.g., a Local Integrating Organization (LIO).

5.5 - Additional Proposal Evaluation Criteria

e Proposals that include written support from one or more Tribes will be prioritized.

o Projects that address environmental justice or emphasize benefit to, support by and/or
participation by under-served, vulnerable, or over-burdened populations will be
prioritized. See SCC’s Community Engagement Plan for term definitions. The Office of
Financial Management provides guidance and a mapping tool to identify overburdened
communities in relation to Climate Commitment Act requirements.

e Located adjacent to or within the same watershed as other project(s) funded by SCC or
through other conservation programs/funding.

e Projects that group work on multiple adjoining parcels or with multiple landowners
together into a larger contiguous project.

e Located in areas with identified pollution inputs with particular focus on areas with 303(d)
listing for temperature or dissolved oxygen, or projects implementing an Ecology TMDL
implementation plan.

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 26

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 75 of 263



#6 - Monitoring and Adaptive Management

Annual project site monitoring, at a minimum, must be conducted by conservation districts on all
riparian-managementzone-restoration projects installed with this program, for the life of the
cost-share contract or; District Implemented Landowner Agreement, erFiered-lncentives

Agreement-whichever is longest.

This annual site monitoring ensures accountability for the public funds invested, serves to
identify emergent issues quickly so action may be taken (e.g., human or herbivory activity,
invasive weeds etc.), and may help inform the SCC of any programmatic barriers or challenges
that arise especially pertaining to maintenance. Conservation districts are encouraged to seek
out opportunities for co-existence with beaver, where possible and practical, for the ecosystem
benefits they provide.

Annual project monitoring will also inform any future program modifications made as part of
adaptive management. Ongoing monitoring activity beyond initial biennium funding is
dependent on funding availability. SCC will provide a worksheet for use on annual monitoring
site visits to gather pertinent information across projects statewide to evaluate critical riparian
management zone restoration progress.

Additionally, SCC staff will conduct a technical on-site project review with conservation districts
every five years from the date of project installation, or earlier if conditions warrant, on a cross-
selection of completed projects, to further evaluate riparian restoration and maintenance
technique effectiveness and identify any technical challenges to be addressed.

Prior to the start of each new biennium, program guidelines will be reviewed to address
appropriate questions, concerns, or issues that have arisen in the prior biennium’s
implementation. Additionally, conservation district program practitioners, state agency partners,
and the SCC will convene a meeting at least once per biennium to discuss topics and
challenges of mutual interest pertaining to riparian restoration. This meeting may occur as a
portion of another scheduled event or symposium for efficiencies in time and costs.

87 - Definitions

Artificial conveyance®: Human-made pathways constructed to convey water such as for
irrigation or drainage.

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 27

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 76 of 263



Critical riparian management zone': The area adjacent to freshwaters, wetlands, and marine
waters that has been locally or regionally identified as an area where salmon recovery efforts
would significantly benefit from enhanced protection or restoration.

District Implemented Project (DIP): A project where the conservation district is the lead
planner and implementer. In this project type, the district is taking full responsibility for the
installation/construction of the project which may include, but is not limited to acquiring permits,
bidding, and purchasing processes, and prevailing wage requirements. A District Implemented
Project must not include cost-sharing or cash reimbursement, to a landowner(s) with SCC
funds. The dlstrlct is assuming all responsibility for project planning and construction directly.

Ephemeral (rain-dependent) stream?: Flow only after precipitation. Runoff from rainfall is the
primary source of water for these streams. Like seasonal streams, they can be found anywhere
but are most prevalent in arid areas.

Instream habitat improvement?: Projects which include the placement of natural structures
such as large wood (LW:; single or multiple logs), engineered log jams, and artificial structures
(e.q., weirs, deflectors, boulders) into the active stream channel, or similar structures®.

Intermittent (seasonal) stream?: Flow during certain times of the year when smaller upstream
waters are flowing and when groundwater provides enough water for stream flow. Runoff from
rainfall or other precipitation supplements the flow of seasonal stream. During dry periods,
seasonal streams may not have flowing surface water. Larger seasonal streams are more
common in dry areas.

Landowner implemented cost-share project: Funding used to reimburse participants for a
percentage of the costs associated with the implementation of best management practices.
Examples of costs include, but are not limited to labor, materials, and permits. These projects
are implemented/constructed by the landowner who then seeks reimbursement from a
conservation district for a portion of the project costs.

! See Riparian Grant Program Budget Proviso

2 SeeRiparian-Grant Program-Budget Proviso

3 Krall, M., C. Clark, P. Roni, K. Ross. 2019. Lessons Learned from Long-Term Effectiveness Monitoring of Instream
Habitat Projects. North American Journal of Fisheries Management 39:1395-1411, 2019

4 Cramer, Michelle L. (managing editor). 2012. Stream Habitat Restoration Guidelines. Co-published by the
Washington Departments of Fish and Wildlife, Natural Resources, Transportation and Ecology, Washington State
Recreation and Conservation Office, Puget Sound Partnership, and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. Olympia,

Washington.

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 28

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 77 of 263



Perennial stream®: Typically have water flowing in them year-round. Most of the water comes
from smaller upstream waters or groundwater while runoff from rainfall or other precipitation is
supplemental.

Practice: Approved practice per current Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)
practices available in Washington, or Washington State Conservation Commission (SCC)
approved practices or Licensed Engineer approved practices.

Riparian ecosystem®: Riparian ecosystems are transitional between terrestrial and aquatic
ecosystems and are distinguished by gradients in biophysical conditions, ecological processes,
and biota. They are areas through which surface and subsurface hydrology connect
waterbodies with their adjacent uplands. They include those portions of terrestrial ecosystems

5 https://www.epa.qov/cwa-404/streams-under-cwa-section-404

6 Kya Vi 3 D Raoni K Ra 0419 accon earned-from

\leshinsiens
8 Quinn, T., G.F. Wilhere, and K.L. Krueger, technical editors. 2020. Riparian Ecosystems, Volume 1: Science
Synthesis and Management Implications. Habitat Program, Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife, Olympia.

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 29

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 78 of 263



that significantly influence exchanges of energy and matter with aquatic ecosystems (i.e., a
zone of influence). Our definition of riparian ecosystem does not include adjacent waters (i.e.,
river or streams, but does include riverine wetlands) and recognizes the riparian zone as a
distinctive area within riparian ecosystems.

Allowable critical riparian management zone projects are those in the area described above and
pictured below and are intended to address ecosystem attributes particularly important to
salmonid needs. Also, re-vegetating floodplain areas adjacent or in proximity to riparian zones is
conditionally eligible if sufficient justification for salmon habitat is included in a proposal.

Dryland ecoregion

Sagebrush-
bunchgrass

-

Zone of Riparian @ Active : Riparian Zone of
influence zone ' channel ; zone influence
= | L 2

Uplands Uplands

k / I i
Forested riparian ecosystem Dryland riparian ecosystem

L ] L 1
"Riparian management zone' " Riparian management zone

] . .
Riparian area

9This diagram depicts the riparian management zone (RMZ) for both forested (left) and dryland (right)
ecoregions. The RMZ is coincident with the riparian ecosystem, which consists of the riparian
zone (riparian vegetative community) and the zone of influence. The riparian zone extends from
the edge of the active channel towards the uplands and includes areas where vegetation is
influenced at least periodically by flowing waters. The zone of influence includes areas where
ecological processes significantly influence the stream, at least periodically.

9 Windrope, A., Rentz, T., Folkerts, K. and Azerrad, J. 2020. Riparian Ecosystems, Volume 2: Management
Recommendations. Habitat Program, Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife, Olympia. p.21

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 30

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 79 of 263



Riparian Restoration: Riparian restoration activities are management practices which focus on
reinstating the ecological processes that naturally create and maintain stream habitat over the
long term and return the stream to a dynamic, self-sustaining condition. Restoration strategies
may include site- or reach-scale projects intended to increase or improve habitat or the
processes that create and maintain habitat. Restoration actions also commonly include
enhancement - habitat creation or stabilization - where the full restoration of processes is not
possible within acceptable timeframes.

98 - 2025-2027 Budaget Proviso

Insertwhenfinal Riparian Grant Program proviso language in SSB 5105

NEW SECTION. Sec. 3081. FOR THE CONSERVATION COMMISSION
2025-2027 Voluntary Riparian Grant Program (40000049)

The appropriations in this section are subject to the following conditions and limitations:

(1) The appropriations in this section are provided solely for the state conservation commission
to provide grants for riparian restoration projects with landowners.

(2)(a) Within funds appropriated in this section, the commission shall develop and implement
the voluntary riparian grant program to fund protection and restoration of critical riparian
management zones. The commission is responsible for developing the voluntary grant program
criteria to achieve optimal restoration of functioning riparian ecosystems in priority critical
riparian management zones.

(b) In adopting the program criteria under this section, the commission must:

(i) Invite federally recognized tribes to be full participants;

(ii) Coordinate with private landowners and other interested stakeholders;

(iii) Coordinate with the department of ecology, the department of fish and wildlife,
conservation districts, and the department of agriculture; and

(iv) Consider the best available, locally applicable science that is specific to each region
of the state where the program criteria will be applied.

(3) The commission shall prioritize critical riparian management zones at the watershed or
subbasin scale where grant funding under the program created in this section would be primarily
targeted. The prioritization must be informed by, consistent with, and aligned with one or more of
the following: Watershed plans developed pursuant to chapter 90.82 RCW; the action agenda
developed under RCW 90.71.260; regional recovery plans created under RCW 77.85.090; the
habitat project lists developed pursuant to RCW 77.85.050; the prioritization process developed

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 31

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 80 of 263



under RCW 77.95.160; and priority projects identified for salmon recovery through agency grant
programs.

(4) Conditions for awarding funding for projects under this program include, but are not limited
to:

(a) Consistency with the program criteria established under subsection (2) of this
section;

(b) Tiered incentive rates tied to improving functionality for riparian areas; and

(c) Other requirements as determined by the commission.

(5) The commission must distribute riparian grant program funding equitably throughout the
state, consistent with received grant applications and benefit to salmon habitat. Funding is
intended primarily for projects located in salmon recovery regions, as defined in RCW
77.85.010, but funding may also be distributed to a project not located in a salmon recovery
region upon a determination by the commission that the project will provide a unigue benefit to
salmon habitat.

(6) Allowable expenses to a grantee receiving funds under this section include, but are not
limited to, labor, equipment, fencing, mulch, seed, seedling trees, manual weed control, and
yearly maintenance costs for up to 10 years.

(7) Any native woody trees and shrubs planted with funding provided under this section must be
maintained for a minimum of five years or as otherwise set by the commission for each grantee.
Vegetation must be chosen to prevent invasive weed populations and ensure survival and
successful establishment of plantings.

(8) The commission shall determine appropriate recordkeeping and data collections procedures
required for program implementation and shall establish a data management system that allows
for coordination between the commission and other state agencies. Any data collected or
shared under this section may be used only to assess the successes of the riparian grant
program in improving the functions of critical riparian habitat.

(9) The commission shall develop and implement a framework that includes monitoring,
adaptive management, and metrics in order to ensure consistency with the requirements of the
riparian grant program. The monitoring and adaptive management framework may include, but
is not limited to, consideration of:

(a) Acres identified as eligible for restoration within a watershed;

(b) Acres planned to be restored;

(c) Acres actually planted and maintained;

(d) Success in targeting and achieving aggregated project implementation resulting in
increase in linear miles restored;

(e) Plan review criteria; and

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 32

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 81 of 263



(f) Other similar factors as identified by the commission.

(10) The commission may use up to two percent of any amounts appropriated in this section for
targeted outreach activities that focus on critically identified geographic locations for listed
salmon species.

(11) The commission may use up to four percent of amounts appropriated in this section for
administrative expenses.

(12) For the purposes of this section, "critical riparian management zone" means the area
adjacent to freshwaters, wetlands, and marine waters that has been locally or regionally
identified as an area where salmon recovery efforts would significantly benefit from enhanced
protection or restoration.

(13) The state building construction account—state appropriation in this section is subject to the
provisions of section 8018 of this act.

DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidelines_June 2025
Page 33

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 82 of 263



Pr——e————
—

= Washington State
=\ CONservation Commission
June 18, 2025
TO: Conservation Commission Members
James Thompson, SCC Executive Director
FROM: Sarah Groth, Chief Financial Officer
SUBJECT:

Shana Joy, Deputy Director of Operations and Programs

Approve Grant and Contract Policy & Procedure Manual

Action ltem

Summary:

Informational Item

Over the last year SCC staff shared updates to Commissioners about the process to update our
Grant and Contract Policy and Procedure Manual (“manual”). SCC deployed a dual approach to
conservation districts.

solicit comprehensive feedback on the manual. This approach included an internal review team
with a representative from each agency function and an external process to engage with

Over the course of seven meetings in 2024/2025, regional managers, fiscal staff, program

managers, and policy staff reviewed each section of the manual and discussed proposed changes.
Additionally, deep dive conversations were held with staff across agency functions on more
agency-wide effort.

complex questions. As this document touches on all aspects of SCC’s work, updating it is an

SCC surveyed conservation districts to gather feedback directly from manual users. SCC received
20 responses to that survey. SCC staff used the survey results to guide the work of the ombuds
group made up of 10 district representatives, WACD, and SCC staff (Regional Managers, Policy
Director, Executive Director, Grants Manager and Chief Financial Officer), and a third-party
facilitator. SCC held one ombuds meeting and has incorporated several recommendations that
came from that meeting into this proposed update.

At the March 2025 the Commission Meeting the Commission approved the Grants and Contracts
Policy and Procedures Manual to go out for the 45-day review and public comment.

However at the May 8, 2025, Conservation District Roundtable meeting several more conservation
submitted.

SCC received one comment from SCC staff and seven comments from conservation districts.
districts expressed broad support of the seven comments we received, stating that while we

The packet contains the following:

received seven comments, the larger district community supported the comments that were
page aﬁgq(@l Commission Meeting

June 18, 2025

83 of 263



Roll up of all comments and replies to each comment can be found at this link are,

Original Formstack comment submissions

Report from ombuds group facilitator, including notes from the meeting.

Redline version and final cleaned version of the manual (changes made based on comments
are identified in the attached redline version with yellow highlight, we are still working on
formatting the final document, but no additional changes will be made beyond formatting from
the attached redline and highlighted document)

SCC recognizes there are still opportunities to improve the manual. Areas for future work include:

Reorganizing and reformatting the content

Separating agency policy from procedure from best practice

Reviewing and aligning different terms used throughout the manual
Reviewing advance payment policies and potentially expanding eligibility
Aligning programmatic guidelines with the manual when/where applicable

Once this is approved and the biennium is closed out, SCC will reconvene the ombuds group to
reassess and prioritize the outstanding issues and will start working on the next round of updates to
take effect in the future.

Requested Action:

Approve the updated Grant and Contract Policy & Procedure Manual with an effective date of July
1, 2025.

Staff Contact:

Sarah Groth, sgroth@scc.wa.gov
Shana Joy, sjoy@scc.wa.gov

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 84 of 263


mailto:sgroth@scc.wa.gov
mailto:sjoy@scc.wa.gov
https://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/WASCC/WASCC_6/2025/06/10/file_attachments/3288534/b_Grant%20and%20Contract%20Policy%20and%20Procedure%20Manual_CompiledComments%206.4.25__3288534.pdf
LGON461
Highlight

https://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/WASCC/WASCC_6/2025/06/10/file_attachments/3288543/b%20Grant%20and%20Contract%20Policy%20and%20Procedure%20Manual_CompiledComments%206.4.25__3288543.pdf

Form Name: Grant and Contract Procedure Manual Comments

Submission Time: April 8, 2025 3:58 pm
First Name

Email

Who are you affiliated with?
Employment Type

Section 5: Special Grant Program
Comments

Section 9: District Implemented
Projects

Overall Comments and Feedback

Special Commission Meeting

Karen Hills
khills@scc.wa.gov
SCC

SCC Staff

There's some opportunity to align the program descriptions.

1. Some cite the applicable RCW while most don't.

2. Some give dates of program establishment while most don't.

3. Irrigation Efficiencies guidelines (should this say "programmatic
guidelines") to be consistent with how others are listed?

4. The heading for "Livestock" seems like it should say "Livestock
Technical Assistance" to be consistent with how the programmatic
guideline link is labeled.

Under the heading "eligible practice types", the link for
SCC-approved program specific practices needs to be updated to
the latest version of the CPDS cheat sheet.

Thank you for all the work on this!

June 18, 2025 85 of 263



Form Name: Grant and Contract Procedure Manual Comments

Submission Time: April 25, 2025 3:44 pm
First Name

Email

Who are you affiliated with?
Employment Type

Section 1: General Information
Comments

Special Commission Meeting

Ryan Williams
ryanw@cascadiacd.org
Cascadia Conservation District
District Manager

Is this manual used for contractors too? If so, suggest making
sure the "Districts and Counties Must Pay First" title is generalized
to something like "entities" to make it neutral to type.

In this manual there are a mixture of terms: Costs, Expenditures
and Expenses. The definition for expenses appears to be focused
on accrual-based accounting. Expenses, as defined in the
glossary, would also never be reported to SCC and would only
appear in a District's accounts payable. Expenditures, as defined
in the glossary, are the primary item that would appear in any
payment request. A specific example is on Page 13, "Prior
Authorization for Grants" under the 2nd bullet in the second
paragraph the sentence says: "Expenses claimed under the prior
authorization must be supported by documentation of staff time
and proof of expenses incurred and submitted to SCC with the
first reimbursement request under the grant." In the case of the
glossary definition of expenses we would not be submitting any
expenses until they became an expenditure. | recommend
updating expenses to expenditures. This would be consistent with
how CDs operate and what SCC would see.

Program Codes: Can we work on reclassifying them so they are
more unique? Need to update list too. RPP, RP, RGP are too close.
Suggest a linked document with the program code list with
descriptions of each program.

June 18, 2025 86 of 263



Section 2: Grants and Contracts
Comments

Special Commission Meeting

Thank you for accepting electronic signatures on the master
contract. Will SCC accept electronic signatures on the authorized
signature form?

Grants and Contracts: Update the first sentence in section to
remove "both". There are three items in that sentence.

Debarment and Suspension: "Must PRINT" please update to
"maintain an electronic record". We do not print but we do PDF
the results and save them in the electronic file. Print implies a
paper copy.

June 18, 2025 87 of 263



Section 3: Compliance Comments Vouchering: Paragraph 2. Language is a little confusing still.
Recommend separating it into 2 paragraphs. The first about when
a voucher is due, something like "Vouchers each month are due
on the 20th day of the following month" Then a second
paragraph "Expenditures reported in any month must be
vouchered within 60 days and could be reported on any month
that falls within that period" With them together they almost
contradict each other.

Vouchering: it is unclear how the July 10 deadline is applied for
biennium programs. As far as the manual says, July 10 is the due
date for all vouchers regardless of it being operating or capital.

With biennium funded projects, would the 60 day expenditure
window apply?

Would an action that occured in June, and became an expenditure
in July be eligible for reimbursement with a biennium project?

Sentence that starts with Exceptions.... (capitalize exceptions).
Update to say, "Any expenditures that fall outside of this criteria
may be approved on a case-by-case basis." Please add language
either here or in it's own section about the process to request an
exception.

Timing of Expenditures: Basis of accounting section is confusing.
Open periods only apply in a 13 month scenario which for a
county is January. It wouldn't impact state fiscal year funding. This
is also an extremely rare or non-existent scenario for conservation
districts. Suggest you remove the section about open periods and
just reference that there may be special conditions for entities
who use counties are their treasurer.

Travel vouchers: travel-related expenditures vouchers after it has
commenced (started) or after it has been completed? What about
travel that crosses months (leave on the 31st and continue
traveling in the next month)? Can we combine 2 months of travel
onto one reimbursement form?

Thank you for removing the no activity requirement

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 88 of 263



Section 4: Reimbursable
Expenses Comments

Special Commission Meeting

Staff or Expenditures shared between two conservation districts:
would this apply to services provided between districts, i.e.
cultural resources? Does Cascadia CD need to provide all 36
interagency services agreements to SCC at the beginning of the
biennium?

Must the agreements be one-way? What if two districts share staff
and sometimes District A pays for Staff A from District B, but then
District B pays for Staff B from District A. In this case neither are
primary. Wouldn't the invoices cover the documentation of which
way the money is flowing?

Out of State/Country Travel: Will SCC fiscal staff be responsible for
communicating the appropriate Breakfast/Lunch/Dinner rates for
the travel destination? Federal Per Diem includes a $5 incidentals
element that Washington State splits between the three meals.
This is where most of the errors occur and could use either a
general rule of thumb (i.e. $1 to breakfast, $2 to Lunch and
Dinner) or direct guidance from SCC Finance staff before travel
ocCcurs.

Meal Per Diem Reimbursement: What about Americorps? They act
as staff but are contracted staff. What about 1099 contract
employees? Also serving as staff but may not be on a W2 payroll.

Not allowing contractors to collect per diem for travel is a burden
to communities that do not have robust contracting firms. We
bring in experts for design purposes and they may need to travel
in for a few days to collect field data, why are they not allowed to
be reimbursed for travel costs? This would severely limit our
ability to implement projects if we have to limit contractor's ability
to recover their costs.

Same comment on expenditures vs expenses. Both show up
throughout the manual, please update to make it consistently the
same thing.

Ineligible Expenditures:

Foreign transaction fees: in cases where the only high quality
option for a small tool is located in Canada, we cannot bill that
cost to the grant? Prime example is that Forestry Suppliers
Archaeologist Screens fall apart almost immediately. There is a
company in BC that sells high quality ones, no other real suppliers
in the US, but there is a foreign transaction fee when purchasing
from them.

Meals with Meetings: Are specifically allowed in the SAAM manual,
which is referenced in the Goods and services section of this

June 18, 2025 89 of 263



Special Commission Meeting

document. Section 70.15 sets conditions where meals with
meetings can be reimbursed. There are no legal restrictions on
CDs to have meals with meetings with regards to training, and
meetings that are integral to a business purpose meeting. MRSC
has a link to a 1987 Attorney General's office memo on it, and it
does not limit us.
https://mrsc.org/getmedia/7c69510c-5971-4f29-ab0e-9056793a33
90/w3ag051487.pdf It must be justified, in a similar manner as
our light refreshments form, which does include meals on it. |
would like the justification for this limitation within our grants
manual. | understand that capital grants might be more limited in
this regard, but operating does not have the same restrictions.

Mortgage Payments: Why is this not eligible but leases are?
Mortgage payments for buildings owned by Districts apply equally
to all programs like leases.

Speaker Fees: Why are speaker fees specifically excluded?
Speakers can be sources of producer education around program
topics. They can also be a draw to get more attendance and more
reach. At the minimum this expense should be conditionally
allowed. The definition of speaker in the glossary talks about
them as a very positive thing, but are specifically excluded here.

Tuition: Where is the line determining tuition vs training and
education? Would a fee for a class put on by WSU Extension be
considered tuition? Is it more than one class in a series?
Dictionary definition is: a sum of money charged for teaching or
instruction by a school, college, or university. The are several
really good certificate programs that provide excellent training on
riparian, forestry, and others that would greatly benefit WSCC
programs that would be excluded. Would you consider the
AgForestry Leadership program tuition?

Allowable expenses: Suggest putting the meaning of the asterisk
at the top of the section, not the bottom. OR creating a
table/section that is CD only so that other entities can ignore the
section.

Fuel Consumed: Does this definition include the cost of small
engine fuel such as brushcutters, chainsaws, etc.?

Rental of office space: Please refer to my mortgage payment
question. Why is rental OK but not mortgage. Also, the stipulation
on not exceeding the cost of similar facilities would be impossible
to enforce or check. It is almost impossible to compare two rental
locations and the cost at the beginning of the lease might be
comparable but the terms might cause it to exceed another
location. Will the Commission force a CD to move their office by

June 18, 2025 90 of 263



Special Commission Meeting

disallowing rental costs that are deemed "too expensive"
compared to a building down the street?

Utilities: Do we need to call out all specific utilities or can it be a
more general definition with a "such as" using the examples in
here. There may be a specific utility that may not fit these exact
criteria.

Conditionally eligible expenditures

Construction costs: This is a very confusing expenditure
description. There are no construction costs listed as "allowable"
or "ineligible". Stating "Construction costs not otherwise
allowable" doesn't make sense. Are you referring to cost share?
DIP funding? Building a building? Hard to provide a clear
suggestion to improve this language when it isn't clear what this
applies to.

Sponsorships: Can likely remove the last sentence. An additional
funding source would not relate back to the capital funded grant
and would follow that specific funding source's rules. i.e. We have
a riparian grant program that includes the potential for
sponsorship but bring in Ecology to fund the sponsorship, SCC
would not be involved in the decision whether the sponsorship
was eligible. Or is this saying that if you can get a second sponsor
that the expense would then be eligible under the program?

Clothing/apparel: Can this be moved up to an allowable expense
with a more comprehensive definition of "promotion purposes".
My guess is that apparel cannot be purchased if we are giving it
away at events. But if we purchase clothes for staff that will not
be given away we should be able to make the purchase without
additional approvals. What criteria would SCC staff utilize to deny
this purchase? If the criteria is whether the grant program itself
would allow it, there are many operation/IM only items that are in
the allowable section that do not require pre-approval.

Direct Costs: This definition should be at the start of this section,
not the end. Ideally there would be a big heading called "Direct
Costs" which includes this definition and all of the content in this
section. Followed by a big heading that says "Indirect Costs"
which includes the overhead calculation content.

Employee Composite Rates: It should be near the top as this is
the number one expense for programs.

Handling Reimbursement for Employer-Paid Benefits: My

interpretation of this is that we will be required to hold a second
account to house leave balances. This is not required by the state

June 18, 2025 91 of 263



Special Commission Meeting

auditor and is not enforceable by the SCC. We are required to
track leave balances and report them as liabilities and are
expected to cover those liabilities when they are used but there
are no requirements as to how we are supposed to manage those
funds. Are SCC financial staff reviewing that all CDs, Counties and
contractors adhere to this method? how are you going to enforce
this on a contractor or a county?

June 18, 2025 92 of 263



Section 5: Special Grant Program
Comments

Section 6: Getting Paid
Comments

Section 7: Conservation District
Advance/Initial Payments
Comments

Special Commission Meeting

Task Order and Work Order: Suggest updating timelines to reflect
that each task order has it's own deadlines for work completed.

Composite Rate Forms: Update to remove the January
requirement to match language in Section 4. Also suggest
changing it to say "A new form is required under any of the
following:" and adding a "or other changes to benefit costs that
necessitate a rate change"

All reference to the changes to vouchering was removed in the
redlined version. Does the updated process need to be in this
chapter too?

Voucher Support Form - Detail and summary page: Posing this
question back to WSCC finance staff - are there any common
issues that could be addressed in this format to speed up
processing? Consistent naming conventions, formatting, etc.?
re-ordering columns?

Is it possible to add large equipment purchases to the advance
policy? If the CD uses program funding to purchase an expensive
piece of equipment, having an advance would help with cash flow
or eliminate the need for a line of credit.

June 18, 2025 93 of 263



Section 8: Cost Share Comments

Special Commission Meeting

A missing element in the manual is incentive payments. For some
specific types of projects the formal cost share process is a
burden. It is virtually the same administrative cost to provide cost
share on $800 and $80,000. Ideally we would be able to do some
verification of implementation and send a check without collecting
receipts, etc. We would have to follow rules around issuing 1099s
in that case. This is a longer term goal that | would like to fully
explore.

Approved Practice Types

[Is there a provision about non-engineering practices that may be
approved? Some elements do not require an engineer but could
be outside of the NRCS BMP list, either too young to be adopted
or something NRCS doesn't typically do.

Cultural Resources: Suggest rewording the "Cultural Resources
work must be done...." To "A review for cultural resources
requirements must be completed before implementation may
begin. For potentially ground disturbing activities (list can be
found here), an archaeologist must be consulted and a cultural
resource complied statement (and all of the required
consultation) must be completed before implementation can
begin." Not all work will require cultural resources "work" which |
take to mean survey. | think it makes sense to outline the process
required. Step 1 - review practice list to determine ground
disturbing potential. Step 2 - if not disturbing, complete CR
complied statement and move on. If it is ground disturbing,
consult with an archaeologist to see if full consultation is
necessary. Step 3 - start consultation process with first 30 days.
Step 4 - IF necessary, complete survey and finish second 30 day
consultation. Step 5 - completed CR complied statement.

Labor Rate: Is the labor rate not being updated for 2025-27? The
value of volunteer time determined by an independent
organization has determined that volunteer labor is currently
worth $34.79. Value of Volunteer Time - Independent Sector The
value of labor has gone up regardless and should increase.
Another suggestion is a CPI adjusted rate that is updated
annually. Is it possible for a district to exceed the $25 rate in
policy? If so, please add that option to the manual.

Same comment as an above section: Are we required to print the
SAM report? Can we save it as a PDF and put it in our electronic
files?

The restriction of cost share on federal lands only shows up in the
Q&A. The "publicly-owned property eligibility" section clearly lists
Federal as one possible ownership type but does not restrict it. Is
there a legal restriction of state funds being used to pay the feds

June 18, 2025 94 of 263



directly?
Methods of Payment states that CDs must pay participants

directly, please add language that an exception is made if
assignment of payment is utilized.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 95 of 263



Section 9: District Implemented
Projects

Section 10: Other Requirements
Comments

Special Commission Meeting

Cultural Resources: Suggest rewording the "Cultural Resources
work must be done...." To "A review for cultural resources
requirements must be completed before implementation may
begin. For potentially ground disturbing activities (list can be
found here), an archaeologist must be consulted and a cultural
resource complied statement (and all of the required
consultation) must be completed before implementation can
begin." Not all work will require cultural resources "work" which |
take to mean survey. | think it makes sense to outline the process
required. Step 1 - review practice list to determine ground
disturbing potential. Step 2 - if not disturbing, complete CR
complied statement and move on. If it is ground disturbing,
consult with an archaeologist to see if full consultation is
necessary. Step 3 - start consultation process with first 30 days.
Step 4 - IF necessary, complete survey and finish second 30 day
consultation. Step 5 - completed CR complied statement.

Audit Findings or Management Letter : | am not sure what this
section is trying to communicate except that audit findings must
be communicated with your regional manager. CDs are already
sending all of their monthly payment requests with full backup to
SCC, and according to record retention requirements they are
required to keep the documentation for 6 years after the grant
ends. By default SCC financial staff are always reviewing every
month's payment requests. Is there a scenario where they aren't?
Please clarify what SCC financial staff may do after an audit
finding.

Grant and Compliance Oversight: SCC always requests all backup
documentation for each billing. This paragraph is communicating
that we don't have to send everything? What documents are you
not requesting that this section would impact?

June 18, 2025 96 of 263



Section 11: Glossary Comments

Special Commission Meeting

BARS manual is in the glossary twice

Expenses and Expenditures are used throughout the document.
The definition for expenses appears to be focused on
accrual-based accounting. Expenses, under this definition, would
also never be reported to SCC and would only appear in a
District's accounts payable. Expenditures, as defined in the
glossary, are the primary item that would appear in any payment
request. A specific example is on Page 13, "Prior Authorization for
Grants" under the 2nd bullet in the second paragraph the
sentence says: "Expenses claimed under the prior authorization
must be supported by documentation of staff time and proof of
expenses incurred and submitted to SCC with the first
reimbursement request under the grant." In the case of the
glossary definition of expenses we would not be submitting any
expenses until they became an expenditure. | recommend
updating expenses to expenditures. This would be consistent with
how CDs operate and what SCC would receive in a payment
request.

Subscriptions in the glossary does not match the definition in the
"allowable expenses" section. The glossary refers to newspapers,
etc. and allowable expenses focuses on software. It should be
both.

The following items only exist within the glossary and are not
mentioned in the document:

GAAP, Governmental Funds, Packing Slip, Privately Owned
Vehicles, Purchase Card, Request for Proposals, Request for
Applications, Sales Receipt

You can remove the page that is meant for notes from the
manual. | dont think it is used.

June 18, 2025 97 of 263



Overall Comments and Feedback The changes identified in this update do not fully address the
ongoing concerns that Districts were encountering in the last
biennium. A few factors that are missing include:

Mention of multi-biennium contracts that were proposed at the
March 2025 commission meeting. | suggest adding a paragraph
about this in section 2.

AND Mechanisms to empower Districts to make informed
decisions about conditionally allowable expenses and reduce the
amount of approvals necessary by program and financial staff.
The goal of any administrative rule should be to maximize good
use of funds while minimizing administrative costs for both the
grantor and grantee. Many of the changes in this manual are to
tighten down requirements and push CDs to ask for permission
from SCC staff more often. The manual should be clear enough
that a District can make an appropriate decision without SCC staff
input.

There are also elements within this manual that are better fitin a
Conservation District Governance document such as a more
detailed CAPP 1. There are many sections in here that only apply
to CDs and would not apply to any of the other types of groups
that utilize commission funds. In a future update | suggest
reworking this manual to make it entity neutral. This should be
focused on how recipient of WSCC funding should manage their
contract, not their organization. For most CDs, WSCC is not the
only funding source and we are subject to many laws and are
consistently audited on them that make the guidance in this
document unnecessary.

Lastly, as was mentioned in the ombudsman meeting and the
March 2025 WSCC meeting, this manual needs to be pulled apart,
reorganized and put back together again. It should be updated
such that a newly hired finance person could read the manual and
successfully be able to document and request payment. Right
now, essential elements that need to be known up front end up at
the end of a section or too many chapters down the line.

I look forward to participating in future rounds of updates.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 98 of 263



Form Name: Grant and Contract Procedure Manual Comments

Submission Time: April 29, 2025 3:48 pm
First Name

Email

Who are you affiliated with?
Employment Type

Section 1: General Information
Comments

Special Commission Meeting

Josh giuntoli
jgiuntoli@scc.wa.gov
jefferson county CD
Other

1.[JAbout the Washington State Conservation Commission;
a.[JFirst paragraph; last sentence; ...entities, and cooperators and
landowners to solve address natural resource issues.
i.HIGRAMMATICAL - Change from solve to address NR issues
2.JAbout SCC

a.[JFirst paragraph; last sentence; ...ensure healthy natural
resources and agriculture for all.

i.[JCOMMENT - more than just agriculture

3.[Jimportant Things to Know - reimbursement help

a.[JLast sentence; and all other forms can be found here
i.[JCOMMENT - where is here

4.[IDistricts and Counties must pay first

a.[JFirst paragraph; second sentence.

i. JGRAMMATICAL - add contractors, cooperators, after paying
employees and before vendors

b.[Middle of paragraph - SCC will pay only for allowable costs. A
cost...under the grant program

i. JGRAMMATICAL - adds a period to break up sentence. Begins a
new sentence, changes in the grant program to under the grant
program

5.[]Payment of allowable costs

a.[[GRAMMATICAL -suggest change from allowable in the grant
program to under the grant program

b.JCOMMENT - review for repeated sentences in this sub-section.
6.[JReimbursement is limited to allowable expenditures
a.[J[COMMENT - Last sentence - add after reimbursement "by the
SCcc".

7.[0Grant or Contract Number and Type

a.[JCOMMENT - ...the next two, and a two or three letter... Add "or
three"

b.[J[COMMENT - The following is a list of potential program
identifiers. Suggest change from potential to current program
identifiers.

June 18, 2025 99 of 263



Section 2: Grants and Contracts  1.[JPrior authorization for grants

Comments a.[JFirst paragraph - SCC's executive director or designee would
may grant such an approval. Work can start once SCC gives
written prior authorization. However, prior Prior authorization
does not guarantee award of a grant. But it does make such
allowable costs reimbursable if the grant is awarded.
i.JGRAMMATICAL - suggest two grammatical edits
b.[JSecond paragraph - third bullet
i.JGRAMMATICAL - suggest striking allowable and replacing with
eligible; suggests striking Such with any.
c.[ISecond paragraph - fifth bullet
i.[JGRAMMATICAL - suggest striking under each separate and
replacing with depending on the
2.[JAmendments to all contracts
a.[JThird bullet - Whenever the expiration date is extended.
i.JGRAMMATICAL - Suggest changing to Extension of the grant of
contract expiration date.
3.[JBudget Revision
a.[JFirst paragraph - makes grammatical/structure changes
i. JGRAMMATICAL - Suggests striking submit and beginning a new
sentence to read A Budget Revision form must be submitted to
SCC.
ii. JGRAMMATICAL - last sentence - suggest modifying to read If a
budget revision is approved, the district or entity grant or contract
recipient will receive a copy of the amendment documenting the
change.
b.[JSecond paragraph
i.JGRAMMATICAL - suggest modifying sentence to ... allowable
depending on the conditions...
4.[JTermination and Suspension
a.[JFirst bullet - GRAMMATICAL suggest adding pending after
project funds
b.[0Top of page 15 - GRAMMITICAL - Change conservation district to
grant or contract recipient
C.[IGRAMMATICAL - change from master contract to master
agreement
d.JGRAMMATICAL - change from not allowable to eligible for
reimbursement

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 100 of 263



Section 3: Compliance Comments 1.[JVouchering

Special Commission Meeting

a.[JFourth paragraph

i.JGRAMMATICAL - change from contracts which to contracts
whereby

2.[Timing of Expenditures

a.[JRelated to full text from BARS manual 3.1.7.40

b.JCOMMENT - Does this apply to any districts? If not maybe
reconsider working to avoid confusion.

3.[]Credit Cards, Electronic Fund Transfers (EFT) and Purchase
Accounts

a.[JQUESTION - Is the account statement also required to be
submitted?

4.[JTravel vouchers

a.[[GRAMMATICAL - first sentences - is it commenced or concluded.
5.[JFiscal Year End

a.[JThird paragraph

b.JQUESTION - why is DIP struck?

6.[JFinal Report

a.[JCOMMENT - This sounds pretty onerous if it wasn't part of the
contract. Based on how | read this, a final report could be
requested at the end of the grant with only ten days after it ends
to prepare and submit it.

7.[0Close out process

a.[JFourth bullet

b.[JQUESTION - regarding final reports, final reports may include
final reports?

June 18, 2025 101 of 263



Section 4: Reimbursable
Expenses Comments

Special Commission Meeting

1.(Staff or expenditures shared between two CDs

a.[JFirst paragraph - Sentence beginning The
agreement...COMMENT - consider adding secondary before CD for
staff services.

b.ICOMMENT - for the bulleted list, consider putting this into a
table.

c.[JLast paragraph - GRAMMATICAL - modify to ... invoices or
timesheets and totaled by...

2.[JPayroll

a.[JQUESTION - related to the comp rate form required in January, |
thought this was changed to only if the rate changes.

3.[]Meal Per Diem

a.[JGRAMMATICAL - consider adding after associate board
members, VSP county staff

b.[JQUESTION - regarding the district may not pay for the per diem
directly...what does this mean? To whom would the district be
paying the per diem other than those that are eligible? A caterer?
4.[]Peer or Peer Rental

a.[JCOMMENT - after the bulleted list, the IRS language is already
stated above under the per diem section. Consider removing.
5.0Ineligible expenditures

a.[[The sentence at the start of the bulleted list - COMMENT -
consider modifying to Some examples of ineligible expenditures
include:

6.[]In the list of definitions:

a.[JCompensation for subcontracted personnel services
i.JCOMMENT - where it says including compensation for employees
of the conservation district, including this confuses things since it
sounds like this needs to be preapproved.

b.[JConference and meeting costs

i.LlQUESTION - Where it references that the next monthly voucher
is exempt, | thought the monthly vouchering requirement is
changing.

c.[JEquipment rental

i.[QUESTION - Second paragraph -the portion starting with
reimbursement, this is confusing. | read this to say that in order
for the district to get reimbursed by SCC, they have to first get
reimbursed by the participant. Not sure what a participant is.
d.[JLeases

i.[JQUESTION - what does this mean? Reimbursement for a lease is
only eligible if it is a lease for something covering all program
activities?

e.[JTraining and education

i.[JCOMMENT - Consider adding after the next monthly voucher and
is exempt from the monthly vouchering requirement.

ii. JGRAMMATICAL - Last bullet in conferences - consider adding
that in the last sentence to read the portion of the conference
that is

f.[JUtilities

June 18, 2025 102 of 263



Special Commission Meeting

i.JQUESTION - where do costs associated with website hosting and
data archiving ga and are they eligible?

g.[JConstruction costs

i.JCOMMENT - it would help to clarify what you mean by
construction costs. For example, is construction under a DIP
something different?

h.JEquipment purchase

i.[JCOMMENT - second paragraph - | don't understand what this
refers to. Also the last sentence is very confusing and should be
reworded.

i.[JClothing/apparel

i.JGRAMMATICAL - consider changing the first sentence to read -
...is reimbursable if purchase of apparel is necessary...
ii.]QUESTION - related to district logo clothing. So it is eligible for
identifying staff representing district but not for promotion of
district?

7.0Computing Conservation District Overhead Costs

a.[JCOMMENT - consider changing this section to include and
contract overheads costs. Why no combine these two sections
rather than essentially repeat them?

8.[JEmployee Composite Rate

a.[JQUESTION - If VSP counties are the only other "entities" that this
manual applies to, why not just say that throughout? If there are
other entities, such as maybe funded by SFF or RPPP, wouldn't
this apply to them too?

9.[JHandling Reimbursement for Employer-paid benefits
a.[JCOMMENT - second bullet - consider capitalizing the referred to
agencies.

b.[JQUESTION - fifth bullet - referring to "these funds", which funds?
Leave liability or everything listed above?

June 18, 2025 103 of 263



Section 5: Special Grant Program 1.[[Operating Grant Programs

Comments

Special Commission Meeting

a.[JCOMMENT - consider adding Conservation Technical Assistance
with Implementation to read Implementation - Conservation
Technical Assistance.

2.[JCapital Grant Programs

a.[JCOMMENT - Add Livestock to the list

3.Jimplementation - Conservation Technical Assistance
a.[JGRAMMATICAL - modify first sentence to read ...funding to
conservation districts from Conservation Technical...
b.[JCOMMENT - last paragraph - maybe say something like, "unlike
capital grant programs, which have funds set aside for cultural
resources compliance..."

4.[JRCPP Match

a.[JQUESTION - the first sentence references pass through state
capital legislative appropriations, if so, why isn't this in the capital
section?

5.[I1SFF

a.[JCOMMENT - consider striking GHG from the paragraph
6.[JCapital Grant programs

a.[JGRAMMATICAL - First paragraph - consider modifying second
sentence to remove length of time and adding in lifespan.
7.0CREP

a.[[GRAMMATICAL - start first sentence This funding instead of The
funding

b.[JQUESTION - end of first paragraph "and technical assistance" -
The SCC provides technical assistance? Or funds TA?

8.[Irrigation Efficiencies

a.[J[GRAMMATICAL - first bullet. Change last sentence to read ...as
needed a any time...instead of anytime.

b.[GRAMMATICAL - second bullet. Change sentence to read
...develop, design and implement a project.

C.[IGRAMMATICAL - third bullet. Change sentence to read ...of the
conservation practices...

9.[JNatural Resource Investments

a.[JQUESTION - regarding the sentence most pressing state and
local priorities...NRI funding...Which is it? State or local priorities.
b.JGRAMMATICAL - NRI enables districts to help...
C.[IGRAMMATICAL - It is flexible SCC project funding as it...
d.JGRAMMATICAL - ...wide range of land uses and ownerships
utilize...

10.00Shellfish

a.[[GRAMMATICAL - ...conservation districts to implement
conservation practices...

b.[JQUESTION - where it refers to reducing agricultural
non-point...Only agricultural pollution? Not contaminated
stormwater or failing septics?

11.[JLivestock

a.[JQUESTION - why is everything in alphabetical order except this?

June 18, 2025 104 of 263



Section 6: Getting Paid
Comments

Special Commission Meeting

1.[JReimbursement basics

a.[]IGRAMMATICAL - first paragraph, last sentence change
landowners to cooperators.

b.JGRAMMATICAL - and entities be registered. Strike out to
2.[JDistrict Authorized Signatures Form

a.[[COMMENT - If this applies to entities other than districts,
heading needs to be changed.

b.[JQUESTION - Is it possible for other entities, such as WSU or
others to receive grants from SCC?

C.[JQUESTION - regarding wet signature, does the form with wet
signatures get sent to the SCC or retained at the district (or other
entity) office? This sections needs clarification.

d.[JQUESTION - third paragraph - where it refers to district
office...should add county or other entity?

3.JComposite Rate Forms

a.[[COMMENT - This is the third time I've seen this same
information about composite rates.

b.[JQUESTION - first bullet - Isn't this being changed?

4.Voucher Payment Requests

a.[IGRAMMATICAL - first sentence should read Voucher payment
requests...

5.0Documents Required with Reimbursement Requests
a.[JGRAMMATICAL - 6th bullet - modify to read - Travel Expense
Vouchers and receipts, signed and dated by authorized signatory,
must be submitted whenever employee travel reimbursement is
requested.

b.JGRAMMATICAL - 6th bullet - first sub bullet - modify to read:
Employees must purchase their per diem meals and claim
reimbursement at the per diem rate using the A-20 Travel
Expense Voucher or similar form containing all the required
information. Reimbursement for lodging paid for with the district
credit card is submitted only on the grant voucher form, rather
than itemized on a A-20.

C.[JQUESTION - for bullet starting Copies of the... Why can't we
upload completed cost share agreements and cultural resources
forms as documents into CPDS instead of scanning and emailing
them? You already look at CPDS for photos and other stuff.
6.[JSubmittal of voucher and documentation

a.[[COMMENT - Last paragraph starting By naming the... Likewise, it
would be helpful for us if the budget spreadsheets and A19s were
named accordingly when sent to us, rather than simply named
"BudgetSpreadsheet" and "A19."

7.[JSupporting documentation of costs

a.[JQUESTION - second bullet - referring to the accompanying math
portion, What is this? Doesn't the composite rate form include
this?

b.[JQUESTION - fifth bullet - Do you need the credit card statement,
as well as the receipt when paying by credit card?
C.[JGRAMMATICAL - sixth bullet - add contributed labor forms after

June 18, 2025 105 of 263



Special Commission Meeting

copies of all receipts.

8.JJEmployee time sheets

a.[[COMMENT - last bullet - referring to sentence for overtime
eligibility, Everyone is eligible for overtime unless they qualify and
are designated as exempt.

9.[JCD Basic Allocation Payment

a.[JGRAMMATICAL - first paragraph, first sentence...change to
...grant programs are made.

b.JGRAMMATICAL - last paragraph - change to SCC may, with
notice,

10.[JFY end and final request payment

a.[JCOMMENT - first bullet - consider adding a sentence to the end
that reads - If a grant or contract is completed prior to the end of
the fiscal year, all final documents and supporting materials,
including the close out form, are requested to be submitted
promptly to allow for potential reallocation of unspent funds.

June 18, 2025 106 of 263



Section 8: Cost Share Comments

Special Commission Meeting

1.0Participant labor rate

a.[JQUESTION - what about participant equipment rates?
b.JQUESTION - How often do you intend to update this? Might be
better to say to check with SCC finance staff for the current
maximum rate.

2.[JApproved practice types

a.[JCOMMENT - consider modifying and add a sentence to read - If
NRCS or engineer standards and specifications are not followed,
the district or entity is responsible to get the contractor and/or
participant to remedy to the standard. No payment will be issued
by SCC until the practice(s) meets the appropriate standards and
specifications. For engineering practices, a licensed professional
engineer must sign off on the practice verifying that it meets
standards and specifications.

3.[0Programs not covered in this policy

a.[IGRAMMATICAL - modify sentence to read ...that are
explicit...such directives

4.[JPublicly-owned property eligibility

a.[JIGRAMMATICAL - first sentence ...property that is...
b.JCOMMENT - second paragraph - add SCC Chief Financial Officer
after RM.

Cc.[JGRAMMATICAL - last paragraph - ...guidelines, and is...
5.[1Cost sharing budget

a.[[IGRAMMATICAL - ...program, there is...

6.[]Cost share limits

a.[J[GRAMMATICAL - Second bullet - strike reach out and replace
with consult...correct the spelling of manager.

7.[JAdditional Policy

a.[JQUESTION - First sentence - What does this mean?
b.[GRAMMATICAL - first bullet - Receipts detailing...
Cc.JGRAMMATICAL - second bullet - replace pictures with photos
d.I[GRAMMATICAL - Third bullet - third sentence - In which case...
8.[[Debarment and Suspension

a.[JCOMMENT - in section starting A SAM... Seems like | read all this
somewhere else in this manual. Might want to think about
reorganizing for a future version to avoid duplicative language
and shorten the document.

9.[Cultural Resources

a.[[GRAMMATICAL - In the new language, modify to read Cultural
Resources investigative work...

b.[[COMMENT - regarding the complied statement form, | request
that we be able to upload it into CPDS instead of scanning and
emailing. If you're going to require us to use it, | think it's only fair
that you use it, too.

10.[JContract for Cost Share funds

a.[JCOMMENT - first paragraph - This is a repeat of what has
already been stated.

b.[[COMMENT - second bullet - referring to authorized signer, |
thought a planner or technician could initial sections.

June 18, 2025 107 of 263



Special Commission Meeting

C.[JCOMMENT - referring to submitting a voucher, all of this could
be uploaded to CPDS.

d.[JQUESTION - for the bullets following paragraph that begins If
multiple, why are these two items listed with bullets as if they are
details from the paragraph above?

e.[[GRAMMATICAL - last sentence - remove their.

11.[0CPDS

a.[JQUESTION - First paragraph where it refers to recipients, by
recipient, do you mean grant recipient or cost share recipient?
b.[J[COMMENT - referring to the following must be uploaded, As
noted previously, there is an option to uploaded project related
documents, so it makes sense to me to upload cultural resources
documents, completed cost-share agreements, and associated
backup, rather than scanning and emailing.

12.[]Individual Contributed Services Form

a.[JCOMMENT - consider modifying third paragraph to read - One
form is required for each individual contributing services and each
month the services are performed work on the project.
b.JCOMMENT - in paragraph starting sourcing materials, What
about the value of equipment time and operation? Our policy is to
use the local FSA rates for the various types of equipment. Also, if
a cooperator hires someone to perform services, we go by the
actual amount paid but require proof of payment. This needs to
be addressed somewhere here.

13.[]Cost share detail receipt form

a.[JCOMMENT - second and third bullets - This doesn't work if the
cooperator's contributions end up being more than estimated and
the total cost is higher but the district's share (not percentage)
remains the same.

14.[]JDonated Labor

a.[JCOMMENT - in all of the removed language, there is a sentence
beginning SCC Individual Contributed form seems out of context
here.

15.[[Methods of Payment

a.[JQUESTION - second bullet - What about assignment of payment?
And "participant" is ambiguous term.

b.JCOMMENT - third bullet - Need to provide some explanatory text
here, rather than just a link to the RCW.

C.[JQUESTION - fourth bullet - What if materials on hand are used?
16.[]Partial Payment of Cost Share Award

a.[JQUESTION - referring to first paragraph and partially completed,
What? Partially completed practices aren't eligible period. All
practices must be complete and meet NRCS or engineer specs to
be eligible for reimbursement.

17.[JAssignment of payment

a.[JCOMMENT - where it refers to participant, "Participant" is an
ambiguous term. Previously, "cooperator" is used. Maybe
"cost-share recipient.”

18.[]1099 - G Issuance

June 18, 2025 108 of 263



Special Commission Meeting

a.[JCOMMENT - referring to the work with MRSC - And what did you
conclude? Provide a summary instead of just a link to the brief.
19.[JRetroactive Payments Prohibited

a.[JQUESTION - How do participants and cooperators differ?
20.[JEquipment usage

a.[JCOMMENT - Reference to this should be made earlier in this
section.

b.JCOMMENT - Second paragraph - Again, documenting labor is
described earlier with no mention of equipment. Make note of it
earlier or move this up in the section.

21.[IBMP Installation

a.[[GRAMMATICAL - modify first sentence to read - The costs of
material on hand...

b.[IGRAMMATICAL - first bullet - modify bullet to read - The
participant must provide a signed and dated listing of materials
on hand. This backup needs to be included with the contract for
reimbursement.

22.[JParticipant as Contractor

a.[JCOMMENT - referring to participant, there are so many other
less ambiguous terms we could use.

b.IGRAMMATICAL - first sentence, add to after ...going
C.[JQUESTION - second bullet - referring to the two additional bids,
What is the rationale for this? If the cost-share amount is based
on NRCS practice costs, what difference should it make? Seems to
me that this would only be necessary if the cost-share recipient
contests the cost estimate, in which case they would need to get
bids to justify a different cost estimate.

d.[JQUESTION - last sentence in this section, But if they hire people
and pay them $20 or $30 per hour, don't we go by what they
actually pay and require proof?

23.[[Maintenance of BMPs

a.[JCOMMENT - referring to operators - another new term used.
b.JCOMMENT - referring to FSA - I'm not aware of FSA having
design life criteria for conservation practices. We go by NRCS.
C.[JQUESTION - second paragraph where referring to participant,
what about the operator?

24.[Jimplementation monitoring

a.JGRAMMATICAL - remove put on the ground. Remove consistent
and replace with consistency.

25.[]10ther grant programs and cost sharing

a.[[COMMENT - referring to CREP, if it's only CREP, it's either on the
website or it isn't. If this applies to more than one program, that
would make sense. Spell out CREP.

b.JGRAMMATICAL - consider changing language to - Other special
purpose grant programs may include their own unique cost
sharing policies. An example of this is the CREP Program, which
has policies spelled out in that program's programmatic
guidelines, the contract, and often on SCC website. Contact SCC
financial staff or the grant program manager for additional

June 18, 2025 109 of 263



Special Commission Meeting

information on special grant programs.

26.[JCost share appeals

a.[JQUESTION - Does this only apply to districts?

27.[]Cost Sharing Q/A

a.[[GRAMMATICAL - second question - consider modifying to - The
cooperator's share is typically made up of in-kind labor billed at a
max of $25/hour for time, cooperator equipment time, and/or
out-of-pocket cash.

b.[JCOMMENT - Third question - This is not how we do it and never
have. We come up with a cost estimate based off of NRCS
practice rates or engineer's estimates. If a cooperator wants to
contest the estimate, they have to get three bids, and we go with
the lowest bid amount if it is higher than our estimate. The
cost-share rate (percent) is set by policy or board action.
Cc.JCOMMENT - fifth question - In this case, | think you want to say
bids from contractors. Quotes from vendors would only apply to
materials.

d.JQUESTION - sixth question - Who is the audience for this? Some
of this makes it sound like it is intended for the cooperator. And
the SCC doesn't set cost-share rates or amounts, just the per
landowner/cooperator maximum per year.

e.[JQUESTION - eighth question - regarding when implementing a
plan, Who makes this determination? Do we have to provide a
copy of the conservation plan to SCC? What if someone signs up
for CREP and another unrelated practice but may or may not fully
implement a complete conservation plan?

June 18, 2025 110 of 263



Section 9: District Implemented
Projects

Section 10: Other Requirements
Comments

Special Commission Meeting

1.00"in this section you'll learn"

a.[JCOMMENT - Maybe for the next version of this manual we think
about reorganizing things so that there isn't so much duplication
and the document can be shortened substantially. Because most
of this appears to be a repeat of what I've already reviewed a
couple of times earlier in the manual, | won't do it again in this
section.

2.0DIP

a.[JCOMMENT - | wouldn't say landowners/cooperators are the lead
planners for their projects. This implies the previous type you just
mentioned, which is cost share.

b.JGRAMMATICAL -first paragraph - after prevailing wager
requirements, add and any other public works project compliance
requirements.

C.[JCOMMENT - Second half of second paragraph - Would another
example be purchasing plants (from the PMC) and hiring the
services of a WCC crew, but the cooperator installs the fence?
One downside of DIPs is the bidding and public works
requirements, but those wouldn't apply when purchasing through
WACD and an agreement with Ecology for WCC crew work.
3.[IDistrict Landowner Agreement

a.[JAt the end with bullet starting The DIP closeout form - what is
meant by "this form summarizes the landowners, CPDS
Participant ID.

4.[]0ther Grant programs and DIPS

a.[JCOMMENT - where it is referred that program guidelines "often
on SCC website", Is there another program besides CREP that has
the program specific policies on the website? If yes, say what it is
instead of saying they are often on the website.

1.[JFederal Audit Requirements

a.[JCOMMENT - second paragraph "The major audit policy" - This
wording is confusing. What major audit policy are you referring
to?

2.[JState auditor requirements

a.[JQUESTION - where it says expenses for an audit are grant
reimbursement allowable expenses, We can use any grant to pay
for an audit?

3.[JRecords Retention

a.[J[GRAMMATICAL - the sentence beginning Keep the
following...This needs rewording.

June 18, 2025 111 of 263



Section 11: Glossary Comments

Overall Comments and Feedback

Special Commission Meeting

1.[]Best Management Practice

a.[JCOMMENT - The NRCS refers to them simply as conservation
practices.

2.[JCooperator

a.[JQUESTION - where it refers to eligible participant, Eligible for
what? Are entities that receive RPPP or SFF funds from the SCC
considered cooperators? Do cooperators work directly with the
SCC? Don't some cooperators get funding SCC from counties?
3.[JCOMMENT - consider including the term Entities. You use this
term throughout. Either don't use it or include it in the glossary.
4.IGRANT

a.[JQUESTION - when referring to cooperative agreements, What is
a cooperative agreement? Maybe include it's definition above. It's
not included within the interagency agreement definition.
b.[[GRAMMATICAL - fix the first few words to read Grant is an award
of...

5.0Participant

a.[JCOMMENT - | prefer cost-share recipient, since participant can
mean so many different things.

6.[JRequest for Applications

a.[JCOMMENT - | don't recall seeing this in the manual. If it isn't in
here, why put it in the glossary?

General comment - the term entity is used throughout and seems
awkward. Maybe just something like "funding recipient" or
"grant/contract awardee".

General comment - consider replacing BMP with the term
practice, practices, or suite of practices as appropriate.

General Comment - consider not using contractions for words...i.e
aren't.

June 18, 2025 112 of 263



Form Name: Grant and Contract Proc
Submission Time: April 30, 2025 11:55 am

First Name

Email

Who are you affiliated with?
Employment Type

Section 1: General Information
Comments

Section 2: Grants and Contracts
Comments

Special Commission Meeting

edure Manual Comments

Zorah Oppenheimer
zoppenheimer@clarkcd.org
Clark CD

District Manager

NOTE: All comments made in the January WSCC Grants Manual
Survey that were not addressed are repeated here and start with
II1/25II.

- Districts and Counties Must Pay First and Payment of Allowable
Costs - there is some duplication between these two sections
which are sequential.

- "Expense" appears for the first time under "Districts and
Counties Must Pay First." The term expense is used throughout
the manual to imply a cost that has been paid by the entity, and
is used interchangeably with the term expenditure and cost.
However, in the glossary, the term "expense" is defined as
"Decreases in net total assets. Expenses represent the cost of
operation incurred during the current period regardless of the
timing of the related disbursements." The inclusion of "incurred
during the current period regardless of the timing of the related
disbursements" is the definition of an encumbrance, and does not
apply to Districts. While Expenditure is defined differently, as
"Decreases in net current financial resources. Expenditures
include disbursements and accruals of the current period.
Expenditures do not include encumbrances." The difference in
definition between expense and expenditure has major
implications for the timing of expenses. We believe it is
acceptable to use the two terms interchangeably, however they
must be defined the same way.

- 1/25 - Tax Related Information (1099-MISC) - Align 1099
information (page 10) with actual guidelines (not all payments
over $600 need a 1099) or else just put a notice that Districts
must follow federal regulations for issuing 1099 forms and note
the operations brief on 1099 issuance for cost share.

- In this section, you'll learn about..." doesn't match what's in the
sections below.

June 18, 2025 113 of 263



Section 3: Compliance Comments

Special Commission Meeting

- Overall, this section doesn't feel like it fits the term compliance
or its own section. It seems most of the content has to do with
either reimbursable expenses or getting paid, but really only
monitoring compliance, recovery of payments, and CAPP relate to
compliance.

- In this section, you'll learn about..." doesn't match what's in the
sections below.

- Timing of Expenditures --> Does any District use the county or
city as their treasurer? The italicized portion after "An exception
to expenditure recognition..." seems more confusing than
informative, particularly since their fiscal year would end
December 31st anyway.

- 1/25 (edited for clarity) - Scenarios - Credit Cards - Do we need
to include the credit card statement in our vouchers? Still doesn't
state that anywhere. More clearly state that the Credit Card
Statement AND the supporting receipt/document must
accompany the voucher.

- Scenarios - Travel Vouchers --> Must be vouchered after travel
has commenced? Likely intend to use the word concluded? What
happens if someone incurs mileage on June 30th? How do we
reimburse them on the day they are traveling?

- 1/25 - (clarified) Fiscal Year-End - There has been much
confusion about contracted work that is completed in FY1 of a
biennium and paid for in FY2 of the biennium for a two year grant.
Please explicitly state that for grants that span two fiscal years,
contracted work executed in one FY but not paid until the next IS
eligible for reimbursement.

June 18, 2025 114 of 263



Section 4: Reimbursable
Expenses Comments

Special Commission Meeting

- Staff or expenditures shared between two conservation districts:
New language states: "The Agreement must identify which CD is
the primary and receives payment from the second CD for staff
services." Many of us share staff or expenses, and there is no
primary or secondary. Please edit to remove or expand that
sentence.

- Payroll - Aren't we getting rid of the January 1 comp rate update
requirement?

- Travel and Transportation: "Out of country and out of state
travel must be approved in advance of the travel taking place."
Can you clarify in the manual that this is for flights or extended
travel, or put some qualifiers on it? We regularly travel to the
Portland metro area for training or if we go to Underwood CD, we
drive down to Portland and pay a toll to cross back over on the
Hood River bridge. This policy would make those costs require
approval. Perhaps there could be a threshold at which
out-of-state travel requires approval?

- Meal Per Diem Reimbursement: The restrictions on this exclude
AmeriCorps members. Can this be opened up to staff, interns, and
volunteers volunteering over some amount per week to the
District?

- Meal Per Diem Reimbursement: "Those eligible for per diem
reimbursement must pay for the costs and then be reimbursed by
the district or entity." This is the opposite of how we are told to
operate for Commission members on District-hosted tours,
because it's administratively burdensome to handle a bunch of
travel vouchers with a meal on it. Perhaps this line could be
removed?

- Peer or Peer Rental (I think this is supposed to say peer TO peer
not peer or peer): Edited this sentence to clarify that the
Commission won't reimburse more than per diem: Original: The
nightly rate plus associated fees must not exceed the per diem
rate for the area. --> edited: REIMBURSEMENT FOR the nightly
rate plus associated fees WILL not exceed the per diem rate for
the area."

- Peer or Peer Rental - The edits state: "When there are multiple
employees staying at the facility...The district must pay for the
cost of the rental with agency card and one employee cannot
incur the total cost of the rental and be reimbursed for the cost" a
What is the intent of this policy? What if multiple employees
choose to reserve accommodations together that are slightly
above per diem? Past policy would allow them to submit receipts
and be reimbursed up to per diem amounts by the District. This

June 18, 2025 115 of 263



Special Commission Meeting

addition seems unnecessary.
Cost Eligability - Ineligible Expenditures:

- 1/25: Meals with Meetings - This is an allowable expense in the
SAAM and should be allowed for Districts. If put on a training that
covers a meal time, or at least an all day training/meeting, we
should be allowed to provide lunch.

New additions include:

1. Mortgage payments - Why is this ineligible? What if the District
wants to purchase an office building and takes out a loan to do so,
how is this any different than rent?

2. Speaker fees and any travel costs associated with a speaker -
This is quite restrictive and means we can't pay for hosting our
own trainings. According to the definition in the glossary, a
"Speaker is a person who presents information, ideas, or stories
to an audience at an event. These can be any event, such as
conferences, seminars, workshops, or webinars. Speakers are
often experts in their fields and may include professionals,
academics, or motivational leaders. Moreover, their primary goal
is to educate, inspire, or entertain the audience, making the
content relatable and accessible." This seems like an important
eligible cost to improve the training and education of our district
employees. What is the thought process behind this?

3. Host stipends for producers holding workshops - We need a
way to pay for the labor provided to producers who host
workshops. If a stipend isn't eligible, would an hourly rate be?

4. Tuition - this is so broad and needs clarification. For example,
we have used SCC grant funds to pay for tuition at a local
community college for a drone course for our FH grant. That
would be ineligible under the new manual. Perhaps you could
clarify that tuition for a degree program isn't eligible? Or tuition
over $4,000(?) per year?

Allowable Reimbursable Expenditures:

- 1/25 - Compensation for subcontracted personnel services... it's
unclear if this is for any subcontract or just subcontracts for
administrative work relating to staff. Regardless, having the
contract be included in the addendum is a bit extra, and | don't
think is actually enforced. Project plans change, and it's not
feasible to have all subcontracting outlined in the addendum.

- Training and Education: Restating the request to add some base
authorization for out-of-state travel that doesn't require a flight

June 18, 2025 116 of 263



Special Commission Meeting

and to address the blanket ineligibility of tuition. Suggest allowing
costs up to a certain amount ($2,000/grant?) without SCC
approval.

Conditionally eligible reimbursable expenses:

- 1/25 (clarified) Clothing/apparel: Clothing for the purpose of
identification or safety should be allowed on all grants where staff
are paid to be in the field. The way it's written, it's unclear
whether clothing for safety is allowed on capital grants but
conditionally allowed on operating grants. Or if it is only
conditionally allowed on operating grants but not allowed on
capital.

- Computing Conservation District Overhead Costs - would be
worth putting in here that the rate is 25%.

- Handling Reimbursement for Employer-Paid Benefits - Addition
of the word "must" to the following sentence: "These funds
[should] must be set aside in a separate account." The way that
benefit accruals are handled is a District policy, not dictated by a
grantor. It is the District's responsibility to ensure that funds are
available to pay their liabilities. However, it is well within SAO
guidance to use a formula to set aside a percentage of liabilities,
and having them in a separate account is well beyond the scope
of a granting agency. Additionally, see the general comments
section for comment about including district governance
requirements in the grants manual.

June 18, 2025 117 of 263



Section 5: Special Grant Program
Comments

Section 6: Getting Paid
Comments

Section 7: Conservation District
Advance/Initial Payments
Comments

Special Commission Meeting

N/A

- Composite Rate Forms - states it's necessary every January, but
earlier in Section 4, the January requirement is crossed out.

- Voucher Payment Requests - No deadline given for voucher
submittal. There is a lot of duplication from section 3 here, would
suggest linking to Section 3 for voucher detail.

- Documents required w/Reimbursement-> DIPs mentioned here,
maybe say "monthly invoicing only required if project costs
incurred that month"

- 1/25: Documents Required with Reimbursement Requests for
Cost Share & DIPs: we've been told several times that the
landowner's name must be at the top of the Cultural Resources
statement but it's not in the manual or on the CR form. Can the
CR form be amended to have fields for the CPDS #, cooperator
name, and practices?

- Form for advance payment references "projects currently under
contract" but manual references the cost share or DIP allocation.
Are these describing the same thing? Does "under contract"
reference the contract between SCC and the CD or the CD and the
cooperator?

- Given our expanded projects, it would be helpful to allow for
cash advances on a case-by-case basis outside of the traditional
cost share/DIP process. For example, our septic reimbursements
under our RCPP don't follow the typical process but are
implemented on the ground.

June 18, 2025 118 of 263



Section 8: Cost Share Comments

Special Commission Meeting

- Cost Share Assistance Rate of Reimbursement

1/25 (clarified): Remove 50% cost share on public land. This
should be allowed to be up to 100%, as with all other District cost
share, based on local priorities. | see that later in the section is
says you can ask for an exception. | would suggest saying "Cost
share on publicly owned land is generally limited to 50%
reimbursement, see Publicly-Owned Property Eligibility [link
heading] for details."

- 1/25: Participant Labor Rate: Where does $25 come from? Could
we instead refer to the Washington or Federal volunteer labor
rate? $25 is pretty low.

- Approved Practice Types: Recommend adding examples of
urban-specific practices (e.g., street tree planting, rain gardens)
to better reflect urban/suburban conservation work.

- Additional Policy: The first sentence isn't clear: "SCC funds used
for cost share assistance shall
remain in effect."

- Contract for Cost Share Funds: Have a checklist linked here.
There was a sheet they provided with the top ten things, that
could be helpful to reference. Also, in general, the information
around cost share is very outdated and needs an update. Even
just a checklist would be helpful.

- Cost Share for Conservation District Associate Supervisors and
District Staff - the last paragraph is out of place ("SCC's Individual
Contributed Services Form must be submitted to document
donated labor time. If the

volunteer's...")

- Assignment of Payment: this form is quite confusing and could
be streamlined and made more intuitive. We use it regularly and
it's a great tool.

- Retroactive Payments Prohibited: | would suggest editing this
sentence "All cost share funding must be vouchered for and
completed by the end of the fiscal year if funded through
operating funds or the end of the biennium if funded through
capital funding." It should state that all cost share funding must
be completed and vouchered for by the end of the grant effective
date or end of the biennium, whichever comes first.

- Equipment Usage: Would suggest editing this sentence to add
the text in caps: If the local FSA rate is not available OR
REPRESENTATIVE OF AREA RATES, the district can use an average
of two local bids from an equipment rental company, the NRCS

June 18, 2025 119 of 263



Special Commission Meeting

rate, or the district can adopt their own equipment usage rates
based on local rates and board resolution.

- Cost sharing questions/answers we would recommend these be
removed from the manual so staff can edit/add to them - the first
question should reference the question later regarding appealing
the cost share policy. Likewise, the question about cost sharing
with another public entity should also reference the appeal
question. Also restating that all FAQ/Q&As should be linked in the
manual but housed elsewhere so they can be edited.

- Cost sharing with a public entity question, it says "except
federal." Are we not allowed to cost share with a federal agency?
It doesn't say that Federal agencies are not allowed above in the
Publicly-Owned Property Eligibility section.

June 18, 2025 120 of 263



Section 9: District Implemented - Further detail or clarify the decision-making criteria used to

Projects determine eligible practices, specifically addressing urban
conservation practices that are increasingly implemented by our
district.

- Conservation District Staff Installing/Constructing Projects: The
last bullet point, we don't understand this sentence: "All hours
must be charged to the grant monthly." Do you mean that all
hours worked under the grant must be vouchered on a monthly
basis?

- District Landowner Agreement-reimbursement requests to be
submitted on a monthly basis. Should it state this is when
expenditures have been incurred or do they want a monthly
voucher regardless?

- Reduce the requirements for inputting cooperators into CPDS for
DIPS. Particularly for grouped activities such as chipping. Perhaps
set a threshold of $2,000/property or less doesn't need to be in
CPDS. Inconsistencies in CPDS requirements between programs.

Section 10: Other Requirements N/A

Comments

Section 11: Glossary Comments - BARS Manual is listed twice.
- Cooperator - would add "producer" to the list of who they can
include.

- Envirothon - this is only mentioned in the glossary, no where
else in the manual. Should either include in the manual or
remove from glossary.

- GAAP - this is only mentioned in the glossary, no where else in
the manual. Should either include in the manual or remove from
glossary.

- Landowner - may also be referred to as producer.

- Open Contract - only mentioned in glossary, not the manual.

- Privately Owned Vehicle - only mentioned in glossary, not the
manual.

- Purchase Card - only mentioned in glossary, not the manual.

- RFP - only mentioned in glossary, not the manual.

- RFA - only mentioned in glossary, not the manual.

- Speaker - the tone of this definition feels odd given that the
manual is now making speaker fees ineligible for reimbursement.
- Supplemental Funding - only mentioned in glossary, not the
manual.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 121 of 263



Overall Comments and Feedback

Special Commission Meeting

- 1/25 - Navigation (clarified): Update the TOC. Simplify navigation
within the manual to make it easier to read and jump to various
sections. Add footer with section title and link it so it jumps back
up to the TOC.

- 1/25 - Make dates in manual consistent. Currently dates on the
website and in the document aren't consistent. For example, the
website says the manual was updated in July 2023
(https://www.scc.wa.gov/files/grant-and-policy-manual), the
effective date on the cover of the manual is July 2024, the
adopted date is May 2023, and the footer date is June 2023.

- Run a grammar check on the whole manual. There are many
spots with incorrect verb agreement, mixing tenses, etc.

- The way the manual is written, there is no way to implement a
trial for multi-biennium contracts (as suggested in the RGP
guidelines). Suggest adding something to allow for that when
indicated by program guidelines.

- Throughout, there are references to overall District governance.
Instead, reference the requirement to comply with CAPP
guidelines to be eligible WSCC grants. District governance is
outside of the scope of the Grant and Contract Policy and
Procedure Manual. Sections include: Section 2: Grants and
Contracts - Guidance from the Washington State Auditor's Office
Section 4: Reimbursable Expenses - Handling Reimbursement for
Employer-Paid Benefits, Section 10: Other Requirements - Federal
Audit Requirements, State Auditor Requirements, Audit Findings
or Management Letter, Records Retention.

- 1/25 - Frequently asked questions need to be removed from the
manual. They can be linked in the manual, but they aren't policy,
and having them in the manual means staff can't edit them
without going to the Commission and a 45-day comment period.

- From 1/25, but clarified and simplified - Overall, the biggest
point of confusion in the manual has been around the timing of
expenditures and how that interfaces with the fiscal year-end.
Timing and eligibility of expenses are referenced or addressed
throughout the manual. We understand no expenses can be
reimbursed from a prior fiscal year, however, there has been
significant confusion over the definition of an expense. For
example, say we, as a cash-basis entity, use funding from a
two-year SCC grant to hire a company to complete a survey. We
hire them in May of FY1 of the biennium, they complete work in
May and June, and bill us in July (FY2 of the biennium), and we
pay the invoice in July. Please clearly state in the manual that an
eligible expense with this timing would be acceptable.

June 18, 2025 122 of 263



Form Name: Grant and Contract Procedure Manual Comments

Submission Time: May 1, 2025 7:53 am
First Name

Email

Who are you affiliated with?
Employment Type

Section 1: General Information
Comments

Special Commission Meeting

Dave Hedric
dave.hedrick@ferrycd.org
Ferry Conservation District
District Manager

First of all, thank you for all the effort that has gone into this
project. Probably like many district managers, | never seem to
have the time to give you the feedback you deserve for doing this
work. I had my financial staff member go through this, and she
said the changes looked good and didn't have any comments.

I'm not sure if you've gotten a lot of comments or just a few.
There were definitely issues that needed to be resolved that were
discussed during manager/ED meetings, and our RM's got an
earful that they were bringing forward on our behalf. | feel that
the SCC heard us and formed a committee to help implement
changes. For me, once that was done, | had confidence that the
right people were having the right dialogue, and something better
was going to come out the other side.

It is easier for us to give feedback through the committee
members, and maybe more importantly, through our RMs. Those
conversations are a "one-stop shop" for many things that impact
our districts. SCC operations and guidelines being a popular topic.
We have confidence in those people, which gives us the
opportunity to focus on other things. And there are a lot of other
things.

This likely has been an unhelpful comment. Thank you again to
the SCC for giving us this process. | value the SCC fiscal staff for
their willingness to work through the guidelines. | appreciate my
fellow CD peers who are spending their valuable time on the
committee. | am thankful for our RMs, who we continually put in
difficult positions as our direct voices to the SCC.

June 18, 2025 123 of 263



Form Name: Grant and Contract Procedure Manual Comments

Submission Time: May 2, 2025 12:25 pm

First Name Linda Lyshall

Email [lyshall@snohomishcd.org
Who are you affiliated with? Snohomish CD
Employment Type District Manager

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025

124 of 263



Section 4: Reimbursable
Expenses Comments

Special Commission Meeting

Our comments are regarding the required preauthorization form
for Light Refreshments, mentioned on page 32. Completing this
form for preapproval creates undue burden.

The level of detail requested (quantities of specific refreshments,
name of the catering company) is not something that any other
agency requests.

The questions about the equipment rental cost and meeting room
rental seem extraneous - we are not aware of any requirement to
have such facilities costs pre-approved.

It is often difficult to ascertain the exact numbers of participants,
and therefore the specific quantities of refreshments, far enough
in advance to process for pre-approval. Typically we finalize the
expected attendance the day of or day prior to an event, then
purchase beverages and refreshments at that time. Requiring this
level of detail on the form hampers our ability to route it for
review and approval in timely fashion before the meeting, and
predisposes last minute and rushed submission.

We note that the SAAM guidance (Section 70.10.40,
https://ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/legacy/policy/70.10.pd
f) does not require this level of detail for pre-approval. The
required components are the attendees (organizations or
individuals) and the purpose of the meeting.

We propose that the form be revised to include only the following
fields, structured as short answer questions unless otherwise
specified:

a. Date of meeting

b. Purpose of meeting (check-boxes as currently structured)

c. Anticipated number of participants

d. Organizations, agencies, or affiliations represented amongst
participants

e. Describe how meals and/or light refreshments is an integral
part of the meeting

f. Types of Beverages to be served

g. Estimated total cost of beverages

h. Types of Refreshments to be served

i. Estimated total cost of refreshments

j. If meals (breakfast, lunch, dinner) will be provided, list
estimated number of each and dates on which they will be served
k. Estimated total cost of meals

|. Estimated total cost of meals and refreshments

Revising as proposed would reduce administrative burden on the

preparer and reviewer. We appreciate your consideration of these
proposed changes.

June 18, 2025 125 of 263



Overall Comments and Feedback We appreciate everyone's efforts to work through this manual and
update it.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 126 of 263



Form Name: Grant and Contract Procedure Manual Comments

Submission Time: May 2, 2025 6:51 pm
First Name Megan Stewart

Email megan@asotincd.org

Who are you affiliated with? Asotin County Conservation District
Employment Type District Manager

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 127 of 263



Overall Comments and Feedback At the WSCC meeting in September 2023, (3 months into the

Special Commission Meeting

biennium) I let Commission staff know that the Asotin County
Conservation District staff was willing to help with "overhauling”
the Grants Procedure Manual. Obviously, there were more
pressing issues at the time and it was down the priority list. Fast
forward one year and it was very disappointing to hear that
Commission staff was working on updates internally. There wasn't
a plan to engage Districts for input outside the formal comment
periods. The reality is the 45-day comment period does not allow
time to make changes and incorporate feedback. Many Districts
expressed concern, and | appreciate that the Executive Director
formed a group of managers and fiscal staff to "review the current
Grant and Contract Policy and Procedure Manual and work
together with us on improvements". This group met in February
and had a great meeting. There were several ideas and concerns
brought up which were already addressed in the updates that
Commission staff made internally. It validated that the
Commission and Districts are on the same page about many
things that haven't worked well. Unfortunately, the timing meant
the ability to incorporate recommendations for this biennium
wasn't feasible. | am still waiting to receive a copy of the report
from the consultant who facilitated the meeting as it should
capture all the items identified by the workgroup. Overall, the
Grant and Contract Policy and Procedure Manual provides the
outline and details needed to implement grants and contracts. At
the same time, the systems being used are outdated. Allowing
this group to continue the efforts that were started will be
important for the 2027-2029 biennium and beyond. That work will
be impacted by technology and data management changes. The
approach to delivering WSCC programs to Districts needs to
change. There has been significant growth in programs and
funding in the past 3 years. It is critical that WSCC and Districts
work together to find solutions and streamline processes where
possible. The amount of documentation provided IN a voucher is
crazy. There are better mechanisms that can be incorporated into
the system to provide the Commission the required information in
an efficient manner. Consistency is important and currently there
is little to none between programs when it comes to allocation of
funds and development of outcomes. This creates the potential
for problems. My biggest fear as a District Manager is if the
District was to incur the costs for a project and the expenses on a
voucher were rejected. When project caps are $100,000, this
could bankrupt a District. Most Districts don't have the funds to
cover expenses if denied which leaves us vulnerable. While | feel
there has been significant effort by Commission staff to address
concerns and issues that have been identified, there is still a lot of
work to be done. This update to the Grant and Contract Policy and
Procedure Manual is the first step of a complete overhaul to the
grant system.

June 18, 2025 128 of 263



Form Name: Grant and Contract Procedure Manual Comments

Submission Time: May 4, 2025 5:01 pm
First Name

Email

Who are you affiliated with?
Employment Type

Section 1: General Information
Comments

Special Commission Meeting

Craig Nelson
craig@okanogancd.org
Okanogan Conservation District
District Manager

-0"Expense" appears for the first time under "Districts and Counties
Must Pay First." The term expense is used throughout the manual
to imply a cost that has been paid by the entity, and is used
interchangeably with the term expenditure and cost. However, in
the glossary, the term "expense" is defined as "Decreases in net
total assets. Expenses represent the cost of operation incurred
during the current period regardless of the timing of the related
disbursements." The inclusion of "incurred during the current
period regardless of the timing of the related disbursements" is
the definition of an encumbrance, and does not apply to Districts.
While Expenditure is defined differently, as "Decreases in net
current financial resources. Expenditures include disbursements
and accruals of the current period. Expenditures do not include
encumbrances." The difference in definition between expense and
expenditure has major implications for the timing of expenses.
We believe it is acceptable to use the two terms interchangeably,
however they must be defined the same way.

-JPages 8 and 9 contain multiple redundant paragraphs

-0The terms 'reasonable and 'prudent person' are used. These are
subjective terms that continues the lack of clarity of what's
allowable that exists now. It means that someone is making a
judgement call based on feeling and opinion and those are rarely
consistent.

-[JSCC Pays Promptly-in most cases, vouchers are paid within 10
days of receiving a properly completed voucher??? Not even
close. Our last 2 RGP vouchers: Submitted 2/20, pd. 4/16;
submitted 3/16, pd. 4/23. Typically, it takes about a month to
receive reimbursement (when SCC asks for additional information,
even the most minor like questioning a date of pymt, it takes
longer).

-01099 info on pg. 10 - states that ALL nonemployees who are paid
over $600, but corporations (LLCs, C & S corporations) are
generally exempt, and there are other exceptions. The language
creates confusion (taxes are stressful enough).

June 18, 2025 129 of 263



Section 2: Grants and Contracts
Comments

Section 3: Compliance Comments

Special Commission Meeting

-0In this section, you'll learn about..." doesn't match what's in the
sections below.

-[JScenarios - Travel Vouchers --> Must be vouchered after travel
has commenced? Likely intend to use the word concluded? What
happens if someone incurs mileage on June 30th? How do we
reimburse them on the day they are traveling?

-[J]Vouchering --> states "contracts may bill monthly, quarterly, or
upon completion". Is this talking about contracts between districts
and contractors? If so, how does that work with their preference
for having everything in the voucher be from the voucher for that
month?

-0Vouchering --> states that expenditures must be vouchered for
within 60 days of the district paying. This insinuates it's actually is
okay for us to go outside the voucher month. If we pay for
something on April 16, we could still voucher for it 60 days later in
June for May expenditures.

-[JScenarios --> "must be vouchered when the invoice is paid by
the district". For contractors, we pay them at the board
meeting...? So should their May work, that gets a check written in
June, actually go in the June voucher that we make in July?
-[Fiscal Year - End -> must be paid and received by the district by
June 30 - how does that work with us writing all the checks at July
board meetings. Is board meeting the date when we "pay"
someone or is it a different, earlier date.

-[JFor travel, registration and airfare payment happens sometimes
months in advance of the training or meeting. Those expenses
are 'in hand' and should be allowed to be submitted for
reimbursement in the month they are paid for. The reason for the
travel is rarely canceled and those attending rarely change plans.
Allow CDs to include registration and airfare in the voucher the
month they are purchased. If necessary, a refund can be added to
the next voucher. This was an effective procedure years ago.
-0'Within 10 days of the expiration date of a closing grant, all
financial, performance, and other reports required under the
grant or contract are due to SCC.' Why create a stressful situation
by requiring all documentation submitted within 10 days? Ecology
allows 90 days. Federal grants allow at least 90 days.

Why is there no trust that we are paying first and asking for
reimbursement after? That's the rule, we follow it.

June 18, 2025 130 of 263



Section 4: Reimbursable
Expenses Comments

Special Commission Meeting

-[Speaker fees and any travel costs associated with a speaker -
This is quite restrictive and means we can't pay for hosting our
own trainings. According to the definition in the glossary, a
"Speaker is a person who presents information, ideas, or stories
to an audience at an event. These can be any event, such as
conferences, seminars, workshops, or webinars. Speakers are
often experts in their fields and may include professionals,
academics, or motivational leaders. Moreover, their primary goal
is to educate, inspire, or entertain the audience, making the
content relatable and accessible." This seems like an important
eligible cost to improve the training and education of our district
employees. This rule needs to be removed to allow CDs to remain
effective at community engagement.

-OWhy does the commission need a copy of an ILA between 2 CDs,
especially when we will include all documentation for contractual
expenses? We can manage our contracts.

-Out of country and state travel approved by program manager
and the fiscal staff. We already approve these within our district
via the district manager and board. It feels a little time exhaustive
to have to have so many people approve travel. What if it is
already in our addendum and applications? On page 35, it says
equipment does not need approval if already in the addendum,
could we add something similar here? If any item is included in
the addendum, it should be considered approved by the
Commission.

-OIneligible costs -> speaker fees ineligible, but on page 31,
contracts with faciliators is eligible. What is the difference?
Similarly, why can we not pay a producer a stipend for hosting
and holding a workshop. If they are providing expertise, it would
be great to reimburse them for their time, knowledge, and energy
-JEquipment rental rates - a lot of conflicting information. Clearly
state what a district is supposed to do with equipment that does
not have mileage rates - chippers, masticators, ATV/UTV. And why
is that different than what we ask of landowners? We've been told
we cannot have a set rate for our own district equipment (except
vehicles with the state reimbursement rate). However, previously
we were told they will not reimburse on gas and maintenance.
Examples:

o[lIneligible: depreciation of equipment (is this their way of nixing
set rates from the district end?)

o[JEligible: equipment rental (rental rates consistent with
conservation district rates or market) - so we can use a rental
rate, or we can only use a rental rate if we literally go and rent
something?

o[JEligible: fuel for ATV/UTV as no mileage rate available

[JOWhat about maintenance for these?

o[JLater on - cost share, landowners use rental rates provided by
FSA or average of 2 bids from local market.

-JEquipment purchase (pg 35) -> "allowable expense if included in

June 18, 2025 131 of 263



Special Commission Meeting

the scope of work OR have prior written authorization from the
financial staff OR program manager for all equipment purchases
totaling over $2000". I like it this way, provides flexibility and
shows trust for how we spend money. The commission sometimes
seems to overstep slightly in wanting to authorize our expenses.
o[JReads that if it is our addendum, we don't have to request
authorization.

o[JReads that if it is not in the addendum, we only need approval
from either the program manager or financial staff.

June 18, 2025 132 of 263



Section 5: Special Grant Program
Comments

Section 6: Getting Paid
Comments

Section 7: Conservation District
Advance/Initial Payments
Comments

Special Commission Meeting

N/A

-JComposite Rate Forms - states it's necessary every January, but
earlier in Section 4, the January requirement is crossed out.

-[JPg 53 - "subcontracts and interlocal agreements must be
included when vouchering for reimbursement for the first time"
Which subcontracts and interlocal agreements? Do you want
every agreement the CD is a party to or just the one's related to
this particular voucher? Please clarify.

-(Credit Card statements submitted only once/month instead of
duplicates with every voucher.

-JForm for advance payment references "projects currently under
contract" but manual references the cost share or DIP allocation.
Are these describing the same thing? Does "under contract"
reference the contract between SCC and the CD or the CD and the
cooperator?

June 18, 2025 133 of 263



Section 8: Cost Share Comments

Special Commission Meeting

-JAssignment of Payment: this form is quite confusing and could be
streamlined and made more intuitive. We use it regularly and it's
a great tool.

-[JConsider flexibility in combining BMPs on an appendix B when
the practices are so interwoven, it becomes difficult for a
contractor to distinguish between activities. Forest Health
practices (limb up, thin, and treat the material) are three separate
codes, but a contractor does all the work at once and bounces
between them. Or the pipeline, trough, heavy use area. Or work
with district staff to use something other than an NRCS standard
so that it covers all the work being accomplished, but doesn't split
it up so detailed. The separation of BMPs in these examples is also
difficult for budgeting. If the thinning goes "over budget" because
the contractor allocated more time to thinning that pruning trees
up, landowners miss opportunities for reimbursement because
one BMP "went over" while another "went under", but it really is
just the allocation of hours from the contractor.

-[(Fix the Appendix B form. The percentage box doesn't calculate
well and needs adjustments each time. The Materials section
should say 'Materials and Contracted Labor'. Instructions are not
correct.

-[Don't split a single labor contract into multiple BMPS.
-JPublicly-Owned Property Eligibility section states a maximum
50% cost-share rate for practices installed on property that is
defined as title to the property held by federal, state, local
government, etc. First, the federal and state government don't
have 'title' to property so that may be problematic in many
situations. Secondly, this policy conflicts with a later policy
regarding projects implemented by a cooperator who is leasing
property. We believe it should be clearly stated in this section
that if the project is being implemented by a leasee or permitee
the normal cost-share rates shall apply. This is frequently done in
our area with livestock producers who implement projects to
protect water quality from grazing activities and they must bear
the burden of cost for all aspects of the project and maintenance.
These private citizens should be eligible for the same cost-share
rates regardless of the project location.

-0"Location of BMPs" stipulates how cost-shar is handled in urban
areas vs. rural farms and ranches. The first bullet should be
reduced to, "Cost sharing may be used in urban areas the same
as all other areas in a conservation district service area. Projects
funded in urban areas must meet the same requirements as those
funded elsewhere." When you say urban and agricultural land
areas, you are leaving out many land use types we all do work on.

June 18, 2025 134 of 263



Section 9: District Implemented
Projects

Section 10: Other Requirements
Comments

Section 11: Glossary Comments

Special Commission Meeting

-ODistrict Landowner Agreement-reimbursement requests to be
submitted on a monthly basis. Should it state this is when
expenditures have been incurred or do they want a monthly
voucher regardless?

-J"Administrative hours, project oversight, and general staff time
must be charged to the TA portion of the award, not the DIP
allocation" pg 81. "for actual implementation of the BMP"

o[JHow does this work for DIPs that are purely contracted out? Or in
instances where the grant does not have an allocated TA bucket?
Fine for WFF and NRI, but RGP set up had an application process
where you applied for projects and each application became an
outcome. In those latter cases, we've been charging staff time to
implement the project by setting up the contractor, coordinating
the engineer, which is also "implementation" just not directly of
the BMP.

N/A

-[IBARS Manual is listed twice.

June 18, 2025 135 of 263



Overall Comments and Feedback

Special Commission Meeting

-0The way the manual is written, there is no way to implement a
trial for multi-biennium contracts (as suggested in the RGP
guidelines). Suggest adding something to allow for that when
indicated by program guidelines.

-JThese guidelines should be thoroughly rewritten through an
interactive process with your primary customer, conservation
districts, after Commission staff have had ample opportunity to
understand the ramifications of these rules and how they are
applied in a local CD office. Furthermore, CD staff and
supervisors should be afforded the opportunity to learn more
about the restrictions and rules being placed upon Commission
staff in an effort to better understand each other's needs

-0The guiding principles of these rules should be based in statute,
not what maybe feels better to an auditor or someone outside of
the world in which we work. The first rule of thumb in
determining if a new policy or clarification of the policy is to be
implemented is, "how will this change improve efficiency of
conservation district operations, preferably to make their work
less burdensome.". If it can't meet that standard clearly, the rule
should be rethought.

-[JStop making policies for the error or misuse of funds by one or
even just a couple of conservation distircts. The vast majority of
CDs operate very complex operations and do so with minimal to
no findings and management letters from the state auditor's
office. This should be strongly considered why training to
determine whether a policy is actually necessary. Punish those
who do wrong instead of burdening those of us who are doing
right.

June 18, 2025 136 of 263



Improving usability of
the State Conservation
Commission Grant
Contract and Procedure
Manual

Facilitation report-out from February 20,
2025

Prepared by: Jessica Wilson, Alchemical Strategy
March 8, 2025

Updated June 3, 2025

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 137 of 263



BaACKGIOUNA.....c.oiiiiiiii ettt et et e e b e e sbeebaesaaeenseessseensaennneas
Current state of the grants manual .............coocoviiiiiiiiieee e
Improvement action plan recoOmMmENdations...........c.cccuieiiieiiieiiierieeie et ereeiee e et eeae e e
Common ViSION & GOAIS .......couiiiiiiiiiiieeiieee et
ACtion Plan OVEIVIEW .......ccuieiiiieiieieeieiteie ettt ettt st e e aeeseesteenseesaanseesseennenseens
Phase I: Language Clarity & Terminology Standardization .............ccccceevevvienneennnennne.
Phase 2: Sustainability & Ease of Rebuilding (Including Matrix Creation) .................
Phase 3: Holistic Reordering of the Manual's Content ..........cccccceveveninenieienienenn
Phase 4: Ensure support for locally-led conservation..............cccceeevveviieciienciienneeenneenne.
Phase 5: User Friendliness & Training ..........ccccceeeiieriieiiieniiciiecieeiceeee et
Long-Term Sustainability and Update Process ..........cccoceveviniiieiieninenenencncecee
Appendix A: Unabridged facilitation NOLES .........ccceevuiiiiieiieiiieeeee e
WHhat WOTKS WEIL?......oi ettt et sttt nae e
What needs clarification or Updates?...........cccueeviieiiieiiiciiecieeceeee e
Group One: Sec. 3, COMPUANCE .......ocouiieiieiieeie ettt s eree e enne
Group Two: Sec. 4, Reimbursable eXpenses...........c.cocviieiiiiiciiieciieecie e
Group Three: Sec. 6, Getting Paid.........cceeoierieriiiierieieee e
Group Four: Sect. 8/9: Cost Share & DIP .......ccoociiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee e
Common VISION ANd GOAIS.......cccuiiiiieiiiiiieieeee ettt et nes
How to reach our goals- suggested action plan...........cccceecerieninienienieeeereee e
TIMNELITIE ...ttt ettt et s e st e bt et e sbe e bt et e saeenbeenee

Appendix B: Unabridged survey results..........coccooiiiiiiiieiieiieeeeeee e

Background

The State Conservation Commission (SCC) uses a guide called the “Grant Contract and
Procedure Manual ” to provide detailed instructions for conversation districts (CDs) to

.9
.9

2

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 138 of 263



comply with grant program requirements. The grant manual was developed over time and
was modeled after other natural resource-relevant state agency grant handbooks like those
from the Recreation Conservation Office, Department of Natural Resources, and
Department of Ecology. SCC’s manual had to adapt quickly to many programmatic
changes over the recent past, which lead to some duplication and fragmentation of
information throughout the manual. Despite SCC staff’s best efforts to gather and gauge
feedback from CDs to inform the content of the manual, minimal input into changes in the
manual from Conservation Districts as programs grew in number and scope created further
communication challenges.

Washington has strict government transparency rules and regulations compared to other
states. These compliance rules dictate what information governments need to retain and
report when they do business- including receiving grant funding. SCC strives to comply
with grant compliance best practices and ensure CDs have adequate reporting to meet all
federal and state requirements, and that SCC remains in compliance.

Both the growth of the size and scope of programs and the need for strict compliance
guidelines have led to challenges between SCC and CDs with the Grant Contract and
Procedure Manual. Further complicating the dynamic, CDs have received varying guidance
from SCC staff on how to interpret key elements of the Grant Contract and Procedure
Manual, with program staff sometimes deviating from finance staff in recommendations.
Because of these challenges, some CDs expressed deep frustration about the grant manual
and associated processes.

To better understand CDs' concerns and address potential improvements to the manual,
SCC created a survey and hosted a facilitated meeting. This report summarizes the findings
from both the survey and facilitated meeting and provides concrete recommendations for
SCC to improve the grant manual. These recommendations are based on an iterative
model of improvement, seeking to slowly move toward the goal of complete ease-of-use for
CDs while building buy-in from participating CDs along the way. The appendix also
includes some “parking lot” ideas from the facilitated meeting; these are ideas that
participants had to improve other areas of SCC operations apart from the grant manual and
could provide a framework for SCC to make further improvements directly based on
feedback and data from CDs.

3

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 139 of 263



Current state of the Grant Contract and Procedure

Manual

What Works Well:

1.

Fund Applications & Reimbursement: The process of applying for funds is
efficient, with quick reimbursements.

Information Accessibility: CD staff can easily find answers to questions, and the
Grant Contract and Procedure Manual is searchable, enhancing accessibility.
Staff Knowledge: Districts believe that SCC staff are well-equipped to provide
accurate answers regarding the Grant Contract and Procedure Manual.
Delegation of Policy Decisions: Some grant policies are delegated to Districts,
allowing for greater flexibility at the local level.

Cost Share Flexibility: Districts have control over setting cost share rates,
increasing adaptability to local needs.

Simplified Application Process: The application process is simple, making it easy
for CDs to engage.

Flexibility in Funding: There is flexibility in how salary versus cash funding is
allocated for CDs.

Accountability: The Grant Contract and Procedure Manual maintains a good
balance between the level of detail required for accountability and the flexibility it
offers.

Finance Language Use: The Grant Contract and Procedure Manual utilizes clear
financial terminology, which supports transparency and clarity.

What Needs Clarification or Updates:

1.

Grant Guidelines Integration: There is a lack of clear alignment between the
smaller grant guidelines and the "big manual," leading to potential confusion. The
manual, built over time, needs to be cleaned up and cross-referenced with program
guidelines

Consistency Across Grants: New programs have been rolled out inconsistently,
and there is a need for a consistent outline and content, where applicable, across all
grant programs to avoid disparities.

. Matrix Creation: A matrix is needed to tie all program elements together to ensure

coherence and clarity, as well as an easy visual reference.

4

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 140 of 263



4. Innovation & Long-Term Spending: There's a need to foster innovation beyond
the biennium in terms of spending for programs, while simultaneously increasing
accountability and transparency through enhanced reporting requirements for CDs.

5. Specific Information Requirements: The manual should clearly specify the
information that needs to be provided, improving consistency and clarity in
communication.

6. Clarity and Defined Terms: There is a need for clearer writing and a glossary to
define terms more precisely throughout the manual.

7. Policy vs Procedure Distinction: The manual should more clearly differentiate
between policy and procedure, with specific details on both. The SCC needs to
provide clear policy guidance and communicate effectively to CDs.

Improvement action plan recommendations

Common Vision & Goals

e Empower SCC/CDs to be effective and efficient as partners.

e Create a manual that provides clarity, eliminating confusion for CDs and minimizing
the need for SCC staff intervention.

e Ensure the manual is a one-stop resource with clear, well-defined rules and
accessible resources.

e Support locally led conservation efforts

e Develop a structure with a clear purpose for each step, ensuring the manual is
functional and adaptable over time.

Action Plan Overview
Phase I: Language Clarity & Terminology Standardization

Goal: Improve language clarity throughout the manual to ensure consistency and
understanding.

Actions:

¢ Conduct a review of the Manual’s language for clarity, removing ambiguity.
e Develop and incorporate a glossary to define key terms.
e Simplify financial and technical jargon for accessibility by a broad audience.

5

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 141 of 263



Timeline:

e Week 1-2: Review existing manual content for ambiguous language.

e Week 3-4: Develop glossary and standardize terminology.

e Week 5-6: Update manual with revised language and terminology, leaving time to
ensure Commission approval and CD feedback, if needed.

Outcome: A clearer, easier-to-understand manual with standardized terms.
Phase 2: Sustainability & Ease of Rebuilding (Including Matrix Creation)

Goal: Create a structure that can be easily updated and rebuilt with minimal effort.
Actions:

e Develop a modular structure for the manual, where sections can be easily updated
without overhauling the entire document. (Note: This matrix is already complete
and just needs added to the manual)

e Design the matrix to be easily customizable and accessible for regular updates.

e Establish a team or process for regular reviews and updates to ensure long-term
sustainability.

Timeline:

e Week 1-3: Develop modular structure and matrix for manual use.
e Week 4-5: Test for usability and ease of updating.
e Week 6: Finalize and implement update processes.

Outcome: A sustainable manual structure that can be easily updated with minimal effort.
Phase 3: Holistic Reordering of the Manual's Content

Goal: Restructure the manual for better flow and organization, aligning it with the logical
sequence of processes.

Actions:

e Analyze the current content structure to identify redundancies and gaps.

e Create a new outline, focusing on the user’s journey from start to finish.

e Reorganize sections by categories (e.g., application process, cost-share, reporting
requirements).

6

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 142 of 263



e Review with key stakeholders (CDs, regional managers, program managers) for
feedback.

Timeline:

e Week 1-3: Content analysis and outline development.

e Week 4-5: Reorganize sections and implement a new structure.

e Week 6: Stakeholder feedback and revisions.

e Commission meeting: Using established commission meeting process, workshop
changes with CDs and Commission, to be finalized through a Commission meeting.

Outcome: A more user-friendly manual with logical flow and easy navigation.
Phase 4: Ensure support for locally led conservation

Goal: Make the manual more adaptable to local needs and enhance the partnership
between SCC and CDs.

Actions:

e Incorporate feedback from CDs in the Grant Contract and Procedure Manual
working group and regional managers to understand local needs.

¢ Continue to allow flexibility in certain areas (e.g., cost-share rates, project
guidelines) to accommodate regional variation.

e Highlight examples of locally led successful projects in the manual to guide others.

Timeline:

e Week 1-2: Gather feedback from regional managers and CDs.

e Week 3-4: Update sections with locally adaptable guidelines, as appropriate.

e Week 5-6: Gather local success stories for the manual

e Week 7-8: Edit stories and incorporate them into appropriate sections within the
manual.

Outcome: A manual that supports locally driven initiatives and is flexible enough to allow
adaptation by individual districts.

Phase 5: User Friendliness & Training

Goal: Ensure the manual is easy to navigate and provides training for its users.

7

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 143 of 263



Actions:

e Conduct user testing to identify areas where users struggle to navigate or
understand.

e Develop training materials (e.g., video tutorials, workshops) to help users navigate
the manual.

e Offer periodic training sessions to staff and districts for ongoing learning.

Timeline:

e Week 1-2: Conduct user testing and gather feedback.

e Week 3-4: Develop training materials.

e Week 5-6: Finalize content.

e Ongoing: Conduct training sessions and finalize materials.

Outcome: An intuitive manual that is supported by training materials to ensure user
proficiency.

Long-Term Sustainability and Update Process

Goal: Ensure that the manual remains relevant and sustainable over time.
Actions:

o Establish a regular review cycle (e.g., annually) for manual updates and
improvements.

e Create a feedback loop for continuous improvements, with a focus on evolving
needs and regulations.

e Designate a team or individual responsible for managing updates and sustaining the
manual.

Timeline:
Establish review cycle and feedback process.
e Ongoing: Regular updates and team management.

Outcome: A sustainable, living document that evolves to meet ongoing needs.

8

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 144 of 263



Appendix A: Unabridged facilitation notes

What works well?

1) Applying for funds gets you money- speed of reimbursement
2) Looking for an answer, can find it

3) Staff can answer questions

4) Searchable document [Grant Contract and Procedure Manual ]
5) Delegating policy decisions to Districts for flexibility

6) Cost share rates are set by Districts

7) Simplicity in application

8) Flexibility in salary vs cash

9) Level of detail [needed] for accountability

10) Uses the language of finance

What needs clarification or updates?

1) Tie between smaller grant guidelines and the “big manual”

2) Manual has been built over time, needs cleaned up/crosswalked back to program
guidelines*

3) Consistency or outline of grants to ensure no inconsistencies- new programs have
been implemented inconsistently*

4) Creating a matrix that ties everything together

5) Championing innovation- look beyond the biennium in spending money, [at the
same time] step up accountability and transparency [reporting requirements for
CDs]

6) [Needs to be] specific [about] what information needs to be provided
7) Clarity in writing and defined terms- consistency

8) Glossary

9) What is policy vs procedure?

a. Break apart the policy vs the procedure [in more detail in the manual]
10) Policy clarification from the State Conservation Commission
a. Communicate that [to CDs] clearly

*Was mentioned more than once

Group One: Sec. 3, Compliance

1) Eliminate leeway in no activity report (group 3 said this as well)

9

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 145 of 263



2) July 10 even year grant cutoff timeline for when activity can be reported for
contracts in the middle

3) SAO wants exceptions tracking by policy and where allowable

4) Procedures to support paid invoice timeline for monthly vouchering

Group Two: Sec. 4, Reimbursable expenses

1) Visual chart for allowable vs not, better define goods and services
a. Clearly define travel and training

2) Like gray areas [in manual] for flexibility
3) Reorganize to start with allowable
4) Start with the purpose of the section, [write it] for the audience
5) Which things fall under overhead? [Need to know] ahead of time
6) Procedure for purchases, consistency
Group Three: Sec. 6, Getting paid
1) More options for advanced payments, RCO example
2) Pre-authorization for projects
3) Account for delegation of authority within the District
4) Activity vs expenses incurred
5) Support forms- what's needed and why?
Group Four: Sect. 8/9: Cost Share & DIP
1) Equipment and labor rates doesn’t match up, spell out the distinction
2) Matrix of grant programs, visual presentation
3) Clarify prioritization guidelines
4) Cost share appeal combined with general
5) More local control over prioritization through policy
6) Is it necessary to get 2™ bids?
7) Landowner accountability for multiple counties
8) Materials costs, ways to talk to OFM about previous purchases
Common vision and goals
1) Empower SCC/CDs to be effective and efficient as partners
2) [The manual] creates more answers than questions
3) One stop clarity
4) No more having to be “dug out” [for CDs to not have to be saved by SCC staff when

the manual creates confusion]

10

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 146 of 263



5) Clear rules

6) Stand-alone document with links to resources

7) Support locally-led conservation

8) Sustainable- can be rebuilt with a minimum of effort

a. The matrix, for example, should be able to be rebuilt with a minimum of
effort
9) Structure that has clear purpose for each step

How to reach our goals- suggested action plan

1) Language clarity- high impact
2) Organizational structure [of manual]- lower impact than clarity
a. Holistic reordering of contents
3) User friendliness and training- lower impact than clarity
a. Center for Technical Development
4) Software/technology- low feasibility (due to resource constraints)
5) Minimize barriers to local implementation
a. Ensure regional manager input

Timeline

e March & May commission meetings
o Special meeting is a possibility
¢ End of biennium
e What is feasible by July 1, 20257
e Commission needs to vote by Mar or May 2025
e Ensure policy changes apply in the biennium passed
e Phase I- stabilizing
e Phase II- future phases 2026 & beyond
e It’'s an ongoing commitment, communication with CDs is key
e No delays [for payment processing] on the July 1% deadline should result from this
work

11

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 147 of 263



Photos of notes

12

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 148 of 263



13

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 149 of 263



14

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 150 of 263



15

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 151 of 263



16

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 152 of 263



Ny — Washington State .
=( = Conservation
- COMmMmission

o

Grant and Contract Policy and
Procedure Manual

Effective July 1, 20242025

Adopted by the Washington State
Conservation Commission May-—18,-2023

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 153 of 263



Contents

SECTION 1: GENERAL INFORMATION ......coiiiiiiiicceeerssseressssseessssssessssssnesssssssesssssnsesssssnsesssssnsesssssnsessassnsessasans 7
ABOUT THE WASHINGTON STATE CONSERVATION COMMISSION ......vviieiiuiiieeiiiteeeesssreeeesssseeessnseesessnsseeessnsseesssnssseessnns 7
PURPOSE OF THIS IMANUAL ... ..eiiiiittiieeeittieeeeetteeeesetteeeesetteeeestaeaeesseeeessnsseeeesnsaeeesansaaeessnsaeeesanssaeesansaseesasseneesansenanans 7
L0701 g 7.Yo B 1N 2TV 7y 10 R 8
IMPORTANT THINGS TO KINOW...... ittt eitiete e ettt e ettt e e sttt e e e sttt e e e ettt e e e amb e e e e amte e e e e anbeeeeeambeeeeenbeeeeensbeeeeannneeeeannseeeeannes 9

REIMDBUISEIMENT HEIP ...ttt sttt sttt s sesnsnsnsnsesnsennsnnnnnnnnnnnnns 9
ENEEIES MUSTE PAY FFIFST........eeeeeeeeeeeieeeeeetettet ettt sttt st s s sesssnt st snsnsnsnsnansnnnsnnnnnnnnnnnnn 9
Payment Of AlIOWADIE COSLES .......cooeeeeeeeeeee ettt e e ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e s sttt aaeeesssssssnaaaaeneas 9
Reimbursement is Limited t0 OUE-Of-POCKET COSIS.........ooo e e 9
Use a Verifiable Payment MEINOU .................ooo ettt 9
TRE SCC PAYS PrOMPEY! ...ttt ettt et e et e e et eeennneaeenans 9
YOUr INFOrM@ALION IS PUDIIC .........cooeieeeeeee ettt e e e e et e e e e e e e eeaeeeaann 10
Grant or Contract NUMBEIr QNG TYPE .........uueee et ettt 10
StAtEWIAE VENAOT NUMDET ...ttt e e ettt e e et e e e ettt e e e st e e esnneaeeanes 10
Tax Related INnformation (1099-MISC)...........oooueeeeeiee ettt a e e et ettt e e e e e sssaseeaaaaeeaas 10
EIECHIONIC SIQNALUIES ...ttt e e et ettt e e e e et ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e e sssssenaaaaeaeas 11

SECTION 2: GRANTS AND CONTRAGCTS .....coicctiririmrrrirssre s ssssse s sssss s s ssssss s sssssss s s sssssesssssssssasssssssasssnsesassnsenans 12
CONSERVATION DISTRICT MASTER CONTRACT ...ttt ittiteeatteeeeaattteeeateeaesasteeessteeessanseeessanseeeeaanseeesaanseeeesanseeesanseees 12
GRANTS AND CONTRACTS ...eiieiutttteeiuteeeeeassaeeesasseeesasseeasasseeesassesesassseeesasssesesasssseesasssesesansseeesasseeesansseeesansseeesanses 12

Effective and EXPIration DATES............... ..ot e e e e e e e es 12
TEIrMS @NA CONAIEIONS ...ttt oottt e e e e et e e e e e e e s eeaaeeeaannnnneeaeeeaaan 13
(o Y0 1 gL g 74 11 (o o 13
Addenda and AMENAMENTES ......... ...ttt e oot e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eaaannns 13
BUCAGEE REVISION ...ttt e 14
Reporting Significant DEVEIOPIMENLS .............cc.uuueeeiie ettt e ettt a e e e e s st taa e e e e essssssaaaaaeeens 14
Termination @NA SUSPENSION ............c...ueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt ee e e e ettt e e e e e et at e e e e e st s taaaaeeessssssneaaaenaas 14
APPCAIS ..o 15
Subcontract

o I PP PR OPPPRIN Error! Bookmark not defined.
Debarment @NA SUSPENSION ..........oooe ettt e et e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e nnneees 16

SECTION 3: COMPLIANCGE .........oooiiiiciieisceresssssr e s sssss e s ssssss e s ssssss e s sssnsesssssssesassssesasssnnesasssnsenanssnnenanssnnensnsnnnnans 19
MONITORING PROGRAM COMPLIANCE .......eeteiiuteteesiureteesausseeesasseeeesassseessassaseesasssesesassseeesassssessassssessassssessnssseessnssenes 19
WOUGCHERING .....utteteeetteeeeeetteeeeeatteeeeeatteeeeasseeeeaasaeeeeaasseeeeamtseeeesateeeeeamsseeesanteeeeeanseeaeaansesaeaanseeeeasseneenansnneesnnnneenans 19
N [0 X 1 1 PR SUTSRSP 21
SUPPLEMENTAL ACTIVITY REPORTS.....cttiiuttitetiittteeaitteesattteesaasteeesansseeesansteaesansseeesannseeesansseeesansteeesansseeesansseeesannes 22
FINAL REPORT ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e ettt e e ettt ee e e b eeee e sttt e e e aa bt e e e e sass et e e aasseeeeaase e e e e amte e e e e amseeeeeannbeeaeanseeeesanseeeesanneeeas 22
L0701 =3 11 1 PSSR 22

ClOSE-OUE DOES INOE AFFECT ...ttt et e e et e e et e e e e aeae e e 22
(0 (o= O 0] 0T R 22
RECOVERY OF PAYMENTS ...ititieiittiteeeitteeeesssteeeesssseeeesausseeesassaeeesassseaeaassaseesssseeesnssseaesssaeeesnsseeaesnssenaeanssaeensnssnns 23
CONSERVATION ACCOUNTABILITY AND PERFORMANCE PROGRAM (FOR CONSERVATION DISTRICTS) ....vvvveeeireeeeneee. 23

SECTION 4: REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES.........coooiiciiirircrrrisssressssssesssssssesssssssesssssssesssssssesssssssesssssnsesssssssenans 24
STAFF OR EXPENDITURES SHARED BETWEEN TWO DISTRICTS ...uutiieeitiieeeeiieeeesteeeesesteeesssseeessssaeesssnsenesssssesesanssees 24
GOODS AND SERVICES .......etiiiittiteeiitttteaauttteeaauseeeesasaeeeesaneteeesansseeesasseeeeaansteeeaanseeeeaansteeeaansseeesansteeeeansaeeesanseeeesannes 25

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 154 of 263



PAYROLL .ttt ettt ettt oottt e oo oo bttt oo oo oo a b e e ettt e e+ e e AR A e e et e 4o e oo R b e £ e et e e e e e e e b b e e e et e e e e e e nbrere e e e e e e e nnnee s 25

QLI 15T T = = PSR 25
TRAVEL AND TRANSPORTATION. ...ttt ttttteeatteeeesattteeestaeaesasteaesanteeaesanseeaesanseeaeaanseeeeaanteeesaasseeeeaasteeesansseeesansseeessnnes 26
MEAL PER DIEM REIMBURSEMENT .....cetiitttttetitttteesssteteesassseeesasssseesassseessasssseesasssssssasssssssassssessnssssessnsssssssnssseessnsssnes 27
3107y T N OSSO 28
L0013l =l T 2SS 29
INEHGIDIE COSES........eeeeeee ettt ettt ettt ettt e et e ettt e e et eeennneeeean 29
Allowable ReIMBUISAbIE EXPEONSES ........coo.. et e e e e e et a e e e e e s eaeaeeeaannens 30
Conditionally eligible reimbursable @XPENSES............c...uueeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt e e e e sttt e e e e e s s aaaaeeesssans 34
DUPECTE COSIES ...ttt ettt e+ oottt e e et ettt e e e e e e bt eaa e e e 36

(@ = 1= - To SR 36
EMPIoyee COMPOSIIE RALE .......ccccceeeeeeeeee ettt e ettt e e e e et ettt e e e e e e sttt e e e e e sssssssaaaaaeeens 37
SECTION 5: SPECIAL GRANT PROGRANDMS.........cooccotiriintrr e ssssse s sssss s s sssss s s s s nn e s s ne e sasssnn e sasssnsesasssnsenans 39
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING GRANT PROGRAM........cctiiiiiiieeiiiieeeitteeeeasteeesassseeesasseeessasseeesansseeesanssesesssssesesanssees 39
“Programmatic Procedures” Specific to Professional Engineering GrantS:.........c.cccoocueuvcveeisceeeesciee e 40
INtEr-LOCAl AGIrEEIMENE (ILA) ...ttt ettt e et e et e et eeeaans 40
FFUNQING USES ..ottt ettt et e ettt e et e ettt e et eeaneee s 41
Moving the HOSt ENGINEEIING AFE&...........coooieiiee ettt ea e a e 41
CONSERVATION RESERVE ENHANCEMENT PROGRAM (CREP) .....coiiiiiiiiiii e 42
(001 BT £ I 1= SR 42
MEINTENEAINCE ...ttt ettt e ettt e e e e ettt e e e 42
Mid CONract MANAQGEIMENL ............ocoeeeeeeeee ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e e e sttt aaaeeeessssssanes 42
Advance Payments to Landowners Based on FSA Practice Incentive Payments (PIP)............ccccocuvvevvannn. 43
CAPITAL GRANT PROGRAMS.......ceiiiitiiteeititteeattetesaatteesasteeeaasteeasassseeeaasseeesassseeesassseeeaansseeeaansseeesansseeesansseeesanses 44
N ALY 1 o I RS UR 45
Natural ReSOUICE INVESIMENES ........... oot e e e e e e e e e eaaaeeean 46
= oo 46
OTHER GRANT PROGRAMS.........uutiiiitiiteeittteesstteeesaaseeesasseeesasseeesassseeesasseeesasseeesassseeesasseeesassesesansseessanssesesanses 47

THERE MAY BE INSTANCES WHERE THE SCC RECEIVES FUNDING TO IMPLEMENT SPECIAL

GRANT PROGRAMS. THESE GRANTS WILL HAVE SPECIFIC PROGRAMMATIC GUIDELINES AND
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS WHICH WILL BE PROVIDED UPON FUNDING. MORE INFORMATION
ON SPECIAL GRANT PROGRAMS THAT MAY BE AVAILABLE CAN BE FOUND UNDER PROGRAM

GUIDELINES. ........otiiteicetietictss e st s sse s s s e sss e s s e s e s e e s eass e s snesameseas s se e se e seee e e e s e e neaaneaeaneeaneeanenanesnnnanenenennnenannnnns 47
SECTION 6: GETTING PAID .........oiiiicreriscerersssssressssssresssssssesssssssesssssssesssssssesasssssesssssssesssssssesassssnesassnnensssnsnnnans 49
REIMBURSEMENT BASICS ...ciiutiiieiitiiieeeitieeeeeeiteee e s stteeeesstteeeesssteeaessseeeeassaeeesssaeeesnssseeesnssaeeeansseeaesnsseeeeanssaneesnsnneas 49
STANDARDS.......eiteiitteteeateeeesateeeeaasteeeesassaeeesassaeeesassseeeaassseeeassseee s ssseeeansseee e nsseee e nsseeeaansaeeeansaeeeeansaeeeeannaeeeeannes 49
DISTRICT AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES FORM ......uuiiiiiiiiieiiiiieeesteeeessiteeeesssteeeessssseeesassssaessssseeesansaeeessseeeeanssaeeesnssees 50
COMPOSITE RATE FORMS ...coiiiitiiiieiiiiieeiitiee e sttt e s aseeeeesaneteeeaansteeeaamseeeeaansteeeaanneeeeaansteeeeanseeeeaansteeeeansaeeeeannaeeeeannes 50

[N [0 3N e 1 1 SRS ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
VOUCHER PAYMENT REQUESTS ....eetieiittiieeiitieteeiitieeeeaatteeeesateeeessseeeasanseeeessabeeeesanteeeesanteeeesanseeeesanseeeesanseeessaseeeeans 51
STANDARDS FOR PAYMENT ....uittttetiuttteesauttteesausseeesasseeeesanseeeesansseeesassseeeaansseeesansseeesansseeesansseeesansseeesansseeesansseessnnnes 52
DOCUMENTS REQUIRED WITH REIMBURSEMENT REQUESTS ......uuiiiiiiiieeeiiieeeesitieeeenteeeeesieeeesnteeesenteeeeeneeeesaneeas 52
Forms Required with Reimbursement REQUESES .........oooo oo 53
Submittal of Voucher and DOCUMENTALION .................oooo e 53
VOUCHER OR CONTRACT REVIEW......cciiutiiieiitiiieeietieeeeeetteeeesetteeesstteeesassaeasssseeessnsseeessnsseeessnseseessnsenaesanseneesanseneesns 56
SECTION 7: CONSERVATION DISTRICT ADVANCE PAYMENT ... smsn e 57
AADVANCE PAYMENT ... etetteeitttte e eettt e e e ettt e e ettt eeesataeeeesteeeee s teeeaesaseeeeeansseeessnsaeeeesnseeeeesnseeeesansesaeaanseeeesansanesaansenaeans 57
FoRR=T ) o)1V o] (7 Lo KSR 58
RECONCIIING BN AQVAINCE ...ttt ettt sttt sesssnsesssssnsnsnsnsnnnnnnnnnnnnnnns 58
NoncomplianCce With AQVANCE PONICY ............uueeeeeeeeeeieieeeieeeteeeatetetetetettattetetetesetasasstesasnsssssasssssnsssnssnnsnnnnnnnnns 58

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 155 of 263



Ll 0ToT=To [V | = Error! Bookmark not defined.

SECTION 8: COST SHARE ......... ittt s s s s s e s sa s s e e e n e e e e sn e e ea s nn e e ea s nnnenasnnnnnns 60
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS ...ttt eiittete ettt ettt e ettt e e ettt e e e sttt e e s amet e e e e msb e e e s amsteeeeamnteeeeansteeeeansbeeeeansaeeeeanneeeeeannes 60
COST SHARE ASSISTANCE RATE OF REIMBURSEMENT ......uuviieeiitiieeeetieeesstteeeesseeeessnsaeaesansseeessssaeassassesesssssesesanssns 60
PARTICIPANT LABOR RATE ... itiiieiiitiie ettt ettt e e sttt e e sttt e e sttt e e s esse e e e sssaeeesassaeeesnsseeeesnssaeaeansseeaesnssaeeeanssaeeesnnnneas 61
APPROVED PRACTICE TYPES.....ciiiuttiieiittiteeistteeeeaatteeeesatteeesaasteeasssaeeasassaeasstaeeassnsseeesssseseessnseseesanseseesansesessaseneesns 61
PROGRAMS NOT COVERED IN THIS POLICY ......viiiiiitiiii e sttt e ettt e e sttt e e e setae e e sestteaesssaeaesssaeeesnsasaesssseeeanssaeeesnsnneas 61
PUBLICLY-OWNED PROPERTY ELIGIBILITY ..eieiiutitteiiteieesiiteeessstteeesssseeeessssaeeesassseeesnsssseesassseessnssesessnsssesssnssssessnssens 62
REIMBURSEMENTS NOT TO EXCEED 100 PERCENT ....ceiiiitiiteiiiiieeaiteeeesiiteeesitee e s esteeessnteeesenteeesenbeeeeeneeeesaneeas 62
COST SHARING BUDGET......cciiiiitiiie ettt ettt ettt e ettt e e sttt e e e n et e e e e e nnt e e e e nabe e e e ansbeeeeansbeeeeanseeeeeanneeeeeannes 62
L0701 IS T o = 1V T SRS 62
COST SHARE POLICY ..iiiiteiie ettt e ettt st et e sttt e s ettt e e s ae bt e e e aet e e e e a et e e e e nst e e e e nse e e e e nneeeeeanseeeeensteeeeansaeeeeannaeeeeannee 63
EXISTING POLICY ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt e ettt e ettt e e sttt e e e sttt e e sa et e e e e emteeeeeamseeeeeannteeeeanneeeeeanneeeeeanneeeas 63
DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION ....ccuutttteiiutiteessttreesssseteesasssseesasssseesasssesesassssessasssesssasssssssnssssessnssssessnssssessnssseessnsssees 63
CULTURAL RESOURGCES. ... .ceiiiiutitieiiteitesasttteesatseeesassseeesasssesesassseeesassseeesassseeeaassseeesasssesesansseeesanssesesansseesssnssesessnses 65
PROGRAM COST SHARE AWARDS ......ccciiuttttetittttesiteteesasseeeesasseseesassseesaasseseesasssssssassseessasssssssnssssessasssssssnssseessnssees 66
CONTRACT FOR COST SHARE FUNDS.......cutiiiiiiiiiieeiiiie e s sttt e e sttt e e e s tte e e s ssteeesesteeesansseeesansseeesansteeesansseeesansseeesannes 66
CONSERVATION PRACTICE DATA SYSTEM (CPDS).....eiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt s et e e stee e e e sntae e e e entae e e e nnteeesenneeas 67
INDIVIDUAL CONTRIBUTED SERVICES FORM.....ceiiiiuitiiiiitiiieeaitieieeeitieeeeatteeeesteeeeesteeeeesnteeeessmteeeesanteeeessnsaeeesanseeaesas 68
CosT SHARE APPLICATION BMP WORKSHEET — APPENDIX A (OPTIONAL) ...ceiiitiiieeiiiieeesteeeeestteeeesieeeeesveeeeenneeas 68
CoST SHARE DETAIL RECEIPT FORM — APPENDIX B (REQUIRED) ......utveieeiiiieeestiee e e eiiee e e sttt e e e site e e e snteee e e snneee e e 68
COST SHARE FOR CONSERVATION DISTRICT ASSOCIATE SUPERVISORS AND DISTRICT STAFF.......coiiiiieeeeiiieee e 69
RECEIVED DONATED REAL PROPERTY ... .ttiiiiitiieeeiitttesiutteeesatteeeesasseeeesasseeeesansseeesssseeesansseeesnseeeesnsseeeansseeeesnneens 69
D0 N = o Y= T | RS OTSRP 69

[DJoYg 11T [ IR=ToToT g BloTo10 41T g ] c- 11 (o o RN 69
ESTABLISHING THE RATE ... iiiiiiie ittt e sttt e ettt e e e sttt e e et e e e e s tte e e e s sseeeeassaeeesasseeeeanssaeaeanssaeeesnsseeaeansseeeeanssneensnssneas 70
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS LABOR .....ceeiiutiiieiiuriiiessitteeesasteeeesassseessasssseesassseeesnssseeesasssseesassesessassssessnssseessnssnees 70
DONATED EQUIPMENT OR TOOL USE ....uutiiiiiiiiiie e ettt e eseite e e e sttt e e esatee e e e sstaeeesssteeesssaeaesssaeeesnssaeeesnssseaesnssaeeesnnneeas 70
DONATED MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES .....uuttttetiuttteesitteteesautteeesasteeeesassseeesasseeeesassseeesassseeesassseeesanseeessassseessnsseeessnnseees 70
DONATED SERVICES ....uuttiteiiuteteetatttteeaauteeeesaseeeasaasseeaeaassseeeaasseeeesassseeeasseeeesasseeeeanssseeeansseeeeannseeaeanssseesansseeessnnseens 70
DONATED VEHICLE MILEAGE AND ANIMAL STOCK USE .......tiiieitiiieeiiiieeesiieeeesitee e s eitee e s s st e e s s nteeesenbeeeeenteeesaneeas 71
V1= o] m L@ Ll N7 1= N o RO P 71
PARTIAL PAYMENT OF COST SHARE AWARD.......cettitttteeiutteteaauteeeesansseeesanseeeesansseeesassseeesassseessansssessassseessnssseessnnseees 71
ASSIGNMENT OF PAYMENT ....tiiieiiutiieeiitteeeesstteeeesstteeeesaseeeeeaasseeesssaeeeeanssaeeesasseeessnsseeessnseeaeesnseseessnsesaesansenessansenenans 72
1099 — G ISSUANCE TO LANDOWNERS RECEIVING COST SHARE .......ccciitiiieiiiiieeeiiieeesasseeessseeeessssseeesassseessassseeens 72
RETROACTIVE PAYMENTS PROHIBITED. ......cceiitttteiiteteesiteeeesasseeeesassseeesasssseesasssesssasssseesassssessassssessnsssssssnssseessnsssees 72
MAINTENANCE OR OPERATION OF EXISTING BMPS ....coiiiiiiiiiiiis ettt ettt st ntee e 73
EQUIPMENT USAGE .....ciutiieeiietiieeeitttee e e ettt e e ettt e e s sttt e e e satse e e e e seeeee s seeeaeassaeeeaassaeeeanssaeaeansseeeeansseeaesnsseeasanssananannnneas 73
VVORK CREWS ....ceiieittiieeeittieeeetteee e e tteee e sttt e e e sttt e e e sabeeeeeamteeeeeambeeae e ambeeaeeanbeeeeenbeeeeenteeeeansteeeeansteeeeansaeeeeanseeeeennnes 73
CONSERVATION DISTRICT STAFF INSTALLING/CONSTRUCTING COST SHARE PROJECTS .....uuviieeiiieeeeiiieeeeeieee e 74
UNIQUE SITUATIONS. ... tttteetitteteeeauteteesauteeaesasseeeesasseeeesassseeeaasseeeessseeeeaasseeeeaasseeeeamsseeeeamsseeeeannseeaesnsseeeeansseeesannneens 74
COST SHARE APPEALS ... ettt iiuttteeeaittteeaauteteeaaaseeeesaseeeeesaneeeeeaansteee e ssseeeeanseeeeaansbeee e nseeeeaanseeeeensteeeeansaeaeeanseeeeeannes 74
LOCATION OF BIMIPS ......ceeiieiitiie ettt ettt ettt ettt e ekttt e e ekttt e e s ettt e e amtee e e e anseeeeeannteeaeanseeeeeanseeeeesnnneeas 75
COST OF BMPS ... eiiie ettt e ettt e e et e e s et e e e st e e e e ss e e e e sste e e e nsse e e e nsse e e e ssteeeaensseeeansteeeennsaeeeennsaeeeannnes 75
BMP INSTALLATION USING MATERIALS ALREADY OWNED BY PARTICIPANT ...ccciiutiieeittieeesateeeeessreeesennreeeesnsseeasannsens 75
PARTICIPANT AS CONTRACTOR ....ccuutttieiitteeeessuteeeesasseeeesassseeeaassaeaesassseeeaassaseesasssesesssseaesnssaeesanssaeeesnsseeessnssaeessnssnns 75
MAINTENANCE OF BIMIPS ...ttt ettt ettt e ettt e e sttt e e e st e e e e se e e e sass e e e e anssaeaesnsseeeeansseeaesnsseeeeanssaeenansnneas 76
IMPLEMENTATION IMONITORING ... .ueteeitteieeietteeeeestteeeesasteeessasseeesssseeesansseeessnsseeassnsseeesanssseesansseeesansaneesansaseessnsenansns 76
OTHER GRANT PROGRAMS AND COST SHARING .....cctttteeiitiiteeiitieeeeatteaesatteeessteeesesnbeeaseanbeeeesanteeeeaanseeeesaneeeesansees 76
COST SHARING QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS......uuttteeiuttteeeatteeeeaneeeesanseeesaasseeesanseeesanseeesansseeesansseeesansseeesannseeesanes 77

If one of our participants requested cost share on a practice that cost $150,000 to implement, how much

could the distriCt reimburSe RIM/REI?..............oe et e e e e e e e e e tneeeentneeeenaes 77

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 156 of 263



How can a participant make up their share of a cost shared practiCe?............cccccvvveeevieeeeessiiireeineeeeesiiirnnnn, 77

How is a participant’s in-kind contribution fIQUIEA? .................eeeeeeeeee ettt e e e s 77
Can a participant receive a partial payment Of COSt SNAI€? .............ooeeveeeeeeeeeiiiee et eeessiaaaa e eeesns 77
Who determines the cost of BMP implementation?.................oooo oo 78
When can my conservation district or entity appeal the cost share poliCy? ...........ccoeemmioeoioeeieieieceeee 78
Can my conservation district or entity cost share with another public entity? .............cccooeeeeiieiiciiiieieeees 78
Can my conservation district or entity cost share more than once with the same patrticipant in the same
o) (=T 0 0 1 78
Will there be an audit on cost share funding aCHVItIES? ................cccecevueeeeiieeiieciieeie e esescsaaaa e 78
What is the procedure for participants who default on the Contract for Cost Share Funds? ........................ 78
How do I determine when BMPs were installed retroactively (and are therefore ineligible for cost sharing)?
....................................................................................................................................................................... 78
Can | provide cost share for a demonStration ProJECE?.............cccvueeeeieeeeeeeciieeie e eeeseeeeaa e e e eseeteaaaaeeaesans 79
Can a Contract for Cost Share Funds be revised after it has been signed by the participant and district?..79
Who can answer other questions on the cost Sharing Program? .............c.ouceeeiioeeeeseieee s 79
DISTRICT IMPLEMENTED PROUJECT (DIP) ...eeieiiiiiiie ettt ettt ettt e st e e e s e e e s nsae e e snnaeeeanssaeeeannneeas 80
ELIGIBLE PRACTICE TYPES ... .utiiiiiititieeeitteeeeeetteeeesetteeeesassaeeesassaeeesasseeeeassaeeesssseeesnssaeaeanssaeeesnsseeaeansseeaeanssnnensnssenas 80
CULTURAL RESOURGCES. ... .ceiiiiutiiteiiiietesastteeesssteeesassseeesassseeeaasssesasassseeesassseeesassseeesassseeeaansseeesansseeesansseessanssneesanses 81
CONSERVATION DISTRICT STAFF INSTALLING/CONSTRUCTING PROJECTS.....ceiiiiiiieeiiiieeesieeeeesiteeeesteee e e sveee e 81
DISTRICT LANDOWNER AGREEMENT ...eciuuttttetiuttttesatteteesauteteesauseeeesassseeesasseeeesansseessassseessassseessassesessnssseessnssseessnnseees 82
CONSERVATION PRACTICE DATA SYSTEM (CPDS) ... .eiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt smtee e et e et e e e eneeas 82
PARTIAL PAYMENT OF DISTRICT IMPLEMENTED PROUJECT ....coviiiiiiieiiiee e ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
VVORK CREWS ....ceiieittiieeeittieeeetteee e e tteee e sttt e e e sttt e e e sabeeeeeamteeeeeambeeae e ambeeaeeanbeeeeenbeeeeenteeeeansteeeeansteeeeansaeeeeanseeeeennnes 83
MAINTENANCE OF BIMIPS ....c.iiiiiieiitiie ettt ettt e ettt e e sttt e e sttt e e e st e e e e sass e e e e anssaeaesnssaeaeansseeeesnsseeeeanssanenannnneas 83
IMPLEMENTATION IMONITORING ......teteeitttieeietteeeeeetteeeesesteeesssseeesssseeesansaseassnsaeeessnsseeesansssaesansseaesansaneesansasesssnsenansns 83
FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS.......eetiiutettesittreesasseeeesassseeesasseseesasssesssassssessasssesssasssesssasssssssnssssessnsssesssnssseessnsseees 84
Do the SCC cost share policies apply to a district implemented project? .............ccooeeeeeeeeiicoieeeeeee 84
Does the SCC have a landowner agreement template? ...............ccceooioeiiiiiiiiie et 84
Why do we need to enter into CPDS all of our completed practices regardless of whether or not it was a
cost share or district impPIEMENTEA PrOJECE? ...........eoeeee ettt e ettt e e e e e e sssseaaaaeees 84
We are using our district staff and work crew to implement the project. How do we voucher for
reIMBUIrSEMENT FOr tNE NOUIS? ...ttt et e ettt e et a e e aennnneaeas 84
Who can answer other questions on a district implemented Project? .............cccovveeeeeeeesccviveeiseeeiesiiiieenannn, 84
SECTION 10: OTHER REQUIREMENTS.........cocciieiicerrssssnresssssressssss e sssssss s sssssns e sssssssesssssssenssssssesasssnsensssnnnnnans 86
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS ....eeeiieiteiieeeitie e e sttt e s ettt e e sttt e e esssteeessssaeeeaassteeeaansseeesansseeeaansseeesansteeeeansaeeesansseeeeannes 86
FEDERAL AUDIT REQUIREMENTS ... .tttteiiuttttesstteteessseeeeesasssseesassesessassseesaasssseesasssssesassssessasssssssnsssssssnsssssssnssseessnsssees 86
STATE AUDITOR REQUIREMENTS .....uuttiiieiiiieeestteeesssseeessssteeesasssesasasssseesasssseesasssseesanssesesansseeesansseeesansseessanssesesanses 87
AUDIT FINDINGS OR MANAGEMENT LETTER ....tttieiiuteieeeiuteeeessuteeeesesseeeesssssseesasssseesasssseesasssseesassaeeesassssessnsssesssnssseensn 87
SCC GRANT AND CONTRACT COMPLIANCE OVERSIGHT ... .uiiieiittiteeitieeeeetieeeesteeeessteeeessnbeeeessnteeeesanbeeeeesnneeesaneeas 87
RECORDS RETENTION .....tttteiiuttteeeitttteesauteeeeaauteeeesaseeeeesauseeeeasseeeessseeeesasseeeeaasseeeeamseseeeamseeeeeannaeeeeansneeeeansseeeeannneens 87
CONSTRUCTION RECORDS .....uutitiieiuititesitieeesauteeeesaseeeeesansteeeaansteeesassseeaaansseeeaansseeesansseeesansseeesansseeesansseessansseeessnses 88
LENGTH OF RETENTION ....ctteiiuttteeeitttteesauteteesaueeeeesaseeeeesassseaeasseeeesasseeeeasseeeesasseeeeansseeaesasseeeeannseeaeansseeesansseeessnnees 88
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT MANAGEMENT — GENERAL PRINCIPLES ......cccuuttiiiiiiieeeiiiieeessieeeeesiieeesesnreeeesnneeeesenneeas 89
Lo 10 o) 1= 1 S 89
INtaNGible PErSONAI PrOPEITY ..........ooo ottt ettt et et e et e e esnneeeeaans 89
L oY =TI T o) o = VA 89
LT T o o = |V 90
Y0 o o =3 S 90
TaNGIDIE PEISONGI PIOPEITY ...ttt st e 90
DiSPOSIEION OF PIOPEITY ...ttt ettt e e e et ettt e e e e e e ettt e e e e e es sttt e e e e e ssssssnaaaaenans 90
Disposition of tangible PErsON@l PrOPEITY .............eeeeweeeeeeeeeeeee ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e e essssreaaaaeees 91
Disposal of ASSets t0 the GENEIral PUDIIC ................ccccoeeeeeeiiee ettt e ettt eesssreaaaae e 92

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 157 of 263



Disposal of Assets to Other GOVErnMENt ENLItIES ...............uveeeieeeeeeieeee ettt esssreaaaaa e
PREVAILING WAGE REQUIREMENTS ....cciiutttteeiuttteesauteeeesauteeeeaassseeesassseeesanseeeesasssesssassseessassseessassssessassseessnsseeessnnseees 92
COMPETITIVE BIDDING.....tetitteetteesuteeeatteesteeasteesaseeessteeaaseeaasseeaseeessseeasseesnseeeasseeanseesnsaeesnsesansseessseesnsessnsseesnsessnses 92

SECTION 11: GLOSSARY ....coiiiiciiirissnrerissssressssssresssssssesssssssesssssssesssssssesassassesasssssesasssssesssssssesassnssssasssnnensssnnnnsns 94
158 of 263

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025



Section 1: General Information

In this section, you’ll learn about:

v" The Washington State Conservation Commission
v" This manual’s purpose

v" Where to get information

v Important things to know

About the Washington State Conservation Commission

The Washington State Conservation Commission (SCC) is the coordinating state agency for all 45
conservation districts in the state. SCC provides funding for and manages multiple grant and contract
programs to support locally-led efforts by conservation districts, entities, and -cooperators and
landewners-to solve natural resource issues.

Grants and contracts administered by SCC originate from multiple sources, including but not limited to
state, federal, and non-governmental entities. As such, multiple-additional requirements may apply to
grant awards originating from the source of the funds as well as SCC requirements.

SCC was created in 1939 by the Washington State Legislature. The statutory authorities lie within
RCW 89.08 and WAC 135. It is governed by a 10-member board that consists of:

¢ Two governor-appointed members.

e The directors (or designees) of four state agencies (Department of Agriculture, Department of
Natural Resources, Department of Ecology, and Washington State University).

e Three conservation district representatives elected by members of the Washington State
Association of Conservation Districts (WACD).

e The president of WACD.

SCC activities are required to follow state and federal guidelines for nondiscrimination based on race,
creed, color, national origin, age, marital status, sex, sexual orientation, residence, veteran status, and
disability. If you believe the office or its programs discriminate, please inform SCC’s director.

Purpose of this Manual

This manual provides general information and requirements on program policy and procedures for
requesting payments-reimbursements from SCC. Please note that the rules may vary depending on
project types, programs, and are subject to change.

To determine what yeu-can-billis eligible for reimbursement, refer to the agreement, this manual, and
the programmatic guidelines applicable to your grant or contract. If you have questions about a grant

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 159 of 263



program or contract, please contact your regional manager, contract manager, program manager, or a
member of the financial staff.

Contact Information

Washington State Conservation Commission
Telephone: (360) 407-6200

FAX: (360) 407-6215

Web site: www.scc.wa.gov

E-mail: commission@scc.wa.gov

Mailing Address Physical Address
PO Box 47721 Department of Ecology Building
Olympia, WA 98504-7721 300 Desmond Drive SE

Lacey, WA 98503

Please contact our office (360-407-6200) or TTY Relay (800-833-6384) to request this content in
an alternate format.

About SCC

The State Conservation Commission (SCC) is a state agency that manages multiple grant programs
to works to conserve natural resources on all lands in Washington state, through voluntary and
incentive-based programs, in collaboration with conservation districts and other partners. SCC is the
coordinating state agency for all 45 conservation districts (CDs) in Washington State. Together, the
SCC and CDs provide voluntary, incentive-based programs that empower people to practice
conservation and ensure healthy natural resources and agriculture for all.

Grants administered by SCC come from state sources so all state requirements may apply. SCC’s
activities are intended to follow state and federal guidelines for nondiscrimination based on race,
creed, color, national origin, age, marital status, sex, sexual orientation, residence, veteran status,
and disability. If the reader believes SCC or its programs discriminate, please inform SCC’s director.

Purpose of this Manual

This manual offers general guidance on the reimbursement request process. Please be advised that
the requirements may vary depending on the type of project, program, or any approved amendments.
For specific details, refer to the programmatic guidelines and/or the grant agreement. Should you
have any questions, kindly contact our fiscal staff or reach out to the programmatic or regional
manager. Any items that are not specifically identified as eligible or ineligible are not eligible by
default. Please reach out to SCC fiscal staff prior to incurring a cost not identified in this manual to
ensure eligibility for reimbursement.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 160 of 263


http://www.scc.wa.gov/
mailto:commission@scc.wa.gov

Important Things to Know

Specific programmatic quidelines and training videos are available on the SCC website.

Reimbursement Help
Billing forms, rates, examples, and links are available on the Grants, Contracts, & Finance section of

the SCC website. Online trainings can be located on the Webinar section of the SCC website. For
contracts, an A-19 will be provided by SCC and all other forms can be found here.

Entities-Districts and Counties Must Pay First

SCC pays a grant recipient, through a reimbursement process. A district, county or other entity may
request reimbursement only after paying employees and vendors. SCC does not provide money
before vendors are paid, except as outlined in SCC’s cash advance policy and when paying funds
directly into escrow for land purchases. SCC will pay only for allowable costs, a cost is allowable if it is
reasonable, necessary to complete the approved scope of work, eligible in the grant program,
documented adequately, and incurred during the period of performance for the grant. A cost is
considered reasonable if the work or materials and the cost reflect what a prudent person would have
spent under the circumstances. Costs outside the period of performance are not reimbursable..SCC

Payment of Allowable Costs

SCC will pay only for allowable costs. A cost is allowable if it's reasonable, necessary to complete the
approved scope of work, allowable in the grant program, documented adequately, and incurred during
the period of performance outlined in the project agreement. Costs outside the period of performance
are not allowable. An expense must be vouchered for within the same fiscal year that the expense
was incurred as directed in the State Administrative and Accounting Manual (SAAM). A cost is
considered reasonable if the nature of the work or materials and the cost reflect what a prudent
person would pay under the circumstances.

Reimbursement is Limited to Out-ef-Pocket-CeostsAllowable Expenditures

Reimbursement will be made on allowable expenditureseosts not to exceed the limits in accordance
with the grant programmatic guidelines or terms of the contract. Cests-Expenditures in excess of
SCC'’s reimbursement may be allowable for another funding source from another entity. Any cests
expenditures that were reimbursed by another entity are not eligible for reimbursement.

Use a Verifiable Payment Method
All payments must be made using a verifiable payment method in accordance with the State Auditor’s
Office policies. Keep all purchase receipts to provide a verifiable audit trail.

SCC Pays Promptly!
The policy of SCC is to promptly pay a completed reimbursement voucher. In most cases, vouchers
are paid within 10 days of receiving a properly completed voucher.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 161 of 263


https://www.scc.wa.gov/cd/grants-contracts-and-finance
https://www.scc.wa.gov/cd/webinars
https://www.scc.wa.gov/working-with-scc
https://www.ofm.wa.gov/accounting/saam

Your Information is Public

All information and documentation submitted to SCC is subject to public review (Revised Code of
Washington 42.56). SCC recommends that social security numbers and any personally identifiable
information are removed from documents you submit.

Grant or Contract Number and Type

The grant or contract is assigned a unique identifying reference number. If the agreement is a grant,
the fiscal year or biennium will be the first two numbers, the conservation district number the next two,
and a two-letter designation indicating the program. If the agreement is a contract, the numbering will
start with K, followed by the biennium four-digit code.

For example, a grant number will look like this: biennium-conservation district number-program (24-
52-IM). A contract number will look like this: biennium-contract number (K2001).

The following is a list of potential program identifiers:
CE - CREP (Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program
DAP — Disaster Assistance Program
IE - Irrigation Efficiencies
IM - Implementation
FH — Forest Health and Community Wildfire Resiliency
FR - Fire Recovery
LT - Livestock TA
NR - Natural Resource Investments
PE - Professional Engineering
RGP — Riparian Grant Program
RP - RCPP (Regional Conservation Partnership Program)
RPP - Riparian Plant Propagation
SFF - Sustainable Farms and Fields
SH - Shellfish Investments.
SRE - Sal Rinarian Eundi
TO-10 - Task Order Program
VSP - Voluntary Stewardship Program
WFF — Wildlife Friendly Fencing

Statewide Vendor Number

All entities are required to have a statewide vendor number to receive payments. SCC limits payments
to electronic fund transfer (EFT). Visit the Office of Financial Management website to register, make
changes, and/or establish a statewide vendor number.

Tax Related Information (1099-MISC)

Federal tax regulations require that conservation districts issue 1099-MISC tax forms to all non-
employees to whom payments exceeding $600 per calendar year are made. This includes payments
for professional services engineering/design, cultural resources, attorneys, etc. and rent for office
space. For information on cost share payments made in reimbursement to participants, please see

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 162 of 263


https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.56
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.56
https://www.ofm.wa.gov/it-systems/accounting-systems/statewide-vendorpayee-services
https://www.irs.gov/forms-pubs/about-form-1099-misc

SCC District Operations Brief: IRS 1099 Reporting and Forms. For further information and assistance
on the issuance of 1099’s, please contact your local IRS Office.

Electronic Signatures

SCC has a policy to allow electronic signatures on grant and contract forms. SCC Electronic
Signature Forms List contained in the policy outlines which documents may be signed electronically
and which require a wet signature. Districts or entities who want to use electronic signatures, must
have a policy in place allowing electronic signatures.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 163 of 263


https://www.irs.gov/forms-pubs/about-form-1099-misc
https://www.irs.gov/help/contact-your-local-irs-office
https://uploads-ssl.webflow.com/5faf8a950cdaa224e61edad9/6377dc39fa8d4c2b840d4480_22-01%20Electronic%20Signatures%20Policy%20%26%20Appendix%20A_FINAL%20UPDATED%2011-07-22.pdf

Section 2: Grants and Contracts

In this section, you’ll learn about:

Conservation District Master Contract
General contracts

Effective dates

Terms and conditions
Addendum/scope of work

Prior authorization

Changes to grant and contract
Termination and suspension

Appeals

Debarment and suspension

AN NN NN YA N N

Conservation District Master Contract

SCC enters a funding relationship with conservation districts each biennium through the master
contract. The master contract contains the general terms and conditions under which funding occurs.
Specific prejests-awards are then added using a separate addendum for each funded programgrant.

SCC will provide the conservation district master contract. It includes all requirements authorizing
work, the terms and conditions, instructions on billing, and a section for approval signatures. The
originalwill be keptinthe district officeand-acopy-willbe-sent to SCCfiscal-staff—For conservation
districts, it is preferred that the chair of the board signs the contract. However, any individual
authorized on the district’s Authorized Signature form may sign. SCC will accept electronic signatures
on the conservation district master contract.

Failure by the conservation district to perform according to the scope of work, or to comply with state
or federal requirements, may result in the reduction of funds or the termination of the grant or contract.

Grants and Contracts
The following applies to-beth grants, contracts, and master contracts:
Effective and Expiration Dates

Effective date means the earliest date any allewable-eligible costs may be incurred. Costs incurred
before the effective date will not be reimbursed.

The expiration date is the last day when costs may be incurred and are allewable-eligible for

reimbursement. No costs incurred after the expiration date are allewableeligible. All supplies,
materials, or equipment must be in hand by close of business on the last date of the grant or contract.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 164 of 263



Terms and Conditions

The Terms and Conditions of the master contract or any other SCC-issued contract are attorney
general approved and are not a negotiable component of SCC contracts.

Prior Authorization for Grants

At the beginning of biennium or fiscal year, prior authorization to incur costs on specific grant
programs may be provided before the conservation district master contract approval. SCC’s executive
director or designee would grant such an approval. Work can start once SCC gives written prior
authorization. However, prior authorization does not guarantee award of a grant. But it does make
such allowable costs reimbursable if the grant is awarded.

Specific prior authorization conditions apply:

¢ Any work performed must be consistent with the grant program addendum included with the
master contract.

e Expenses claimed under the prior authorization must be supported by documentation of staff
time and proof of expenses incurred and submitted to SCC with the first reimbursement
request under the grant-centract.

e Costs incurred before the effective date of the prior authorization, and costs for work or
expenses not consistent with the terms of the authorization, are not allowable for
reimbursement. Such ineligible costs will be at the expense of the entity.

e The prior authorization letter must be included in the grant file.

e A prior authorization may be prohibited or further limited under each separate grant program.

Addenda and Amendments_to Master Contracts
The work agreed to under a grant addendum, or contract may change during the life of the contract.

¢ An addendum is a written document detailing the additions and supplements to the original
terms of the-grant master contract.

¢ An amendment to the addendum is how SCC formalizes these changes, and it becomes a part
of the contract.

¢ Any subsequent amendments to the addendum are numbered sequentially over the life of the
contract.

Amendments to all Contracts
An amendment is necessary whenever there is:

¢ Arevision in the intermediate outcomes or ebjectives-scope of work of the project.
e A decrease or increase in the grant or contract amount.
o Whenever the expiration date is extended.
An amendment is NOT required for administrative adjustments such as changes in address, phone

number, or the authorized signature form. Administrative changes must still be reported to SCC. If you
have any questions, please contact your regional manager or financial staff member.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 165 of 263



The SCC fiscal staff must sign the grant addendum. All amendments must be signed by both SCC
and the district. A copy will be sent-emailed to the district for their grant or contract files.

Budget Revision

If there’s a need to redistribute cests-funds among the intermediate outcomes of the-budget grant or
contract, submit a Budget Revision Form to SCC. This document must be submitted by a person
authorized to sign grant or contract documents per the authorized signature form on file._If a budget
revision is approved, the district or entity will receive a copy of the amendment documenting the

change.

A budget revision may not be allowable by the conditions of each specific grant program or contract.

Reporting Significant Developments

Events with significant impact on the project may occur at any time. SCC must be informed as soon
as there are any problems, delays, changes in staff, or adverse conditions that will materially affect
the ability to meet project objectives, intermediate outcomes, time schedules, cost share
implementation, or project tasks within established time periods.

This disclosure must be accompanied by a statement of the action taken or proposed, and any
assistance needed from SCC to resolve the situation. Please work with your regional manager or
program manager at SCC to provide this information in a timely manner.

Termination and Suspension

(Restated from SCC contract terms and conditions)

SCC may suspend all, or part of, the contract and withhold further payments or prohibit the incurring
of additional obligations of funds if we have reason to believe that fraud, abuse, or violation of the law
has occurred on the part of any conservation district, district supervisor, or subcontractor in the
performance of the contract. SCC may suspend all, or part, of the contract if we determine a failure to
comply with any material term of the contract, whether stated in a statute, regulation, plan, application,
or elsewhere.

If the project is not initiated within four months after the effective date of the contract, or by any date
mutually agreed upon in writing, SCC may suspend the grant funding-under-the-contractor contract.

e Suspension means the temporary withdrawal of the authority to obligate previously awarded
project funds pending, either corrective action or termination.

¢ Termination means permanent withdrawal — before the expiration date — of the authority to
obligate previously awarded project funds. It also means the voluntary relinquishment of that
authority by the contract holder.
o Termination does not include:
» Withdrawal of funds awarded based on an underestimate of the unobligated
balance in a prior period.
= Withdrawal of the unobligated balance at contract expiration.
= Refusal to extend/renew a contract or award additional funds.

Upon a decision by SCC to suspend or terminate a grant or contract, notification of the suspension or
termination will be made in writing. Suspension or termination for withdrawal of funding will be

effective the date written in the letter. SCC will send written notice of suspension or termination to the

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 166 of 263


https://www.formstack.com/forms/?1918518-Sp84uMmklg

conservation district by email and by certified mail to the authorized signer of the contract at the
address provided in the notifications section of the master agreement. Suspension or termination for
withdrawal of funding will be effective the date listed in the letter. Costs incurred during a suspension
or after termination of a contract are not allowable unless expressly authorized in the notice of
suspension or termination.

SCC may prescribe one or more actions under suspension or termination. These may include, but are
not limited to one or more of these actions:

e Temporarily withhold cash payments pending correction of the deficiency.
¢ Disallow all or part of the cost of the activity or action not in compliance.

o Request repayment of all or part of the funds already disbursed to the conservation district_or
entity.

e Withhold further grant or contract awards.

o Take other legally available remedies.

In some cases, allowable expenses may exist after formal suspension or termination. Costs incurred
during suspension or after termination that may be allowable include:

e Are necessary and not reasonably avoidable are allowable if the costs result from obligations
which were properly incurred by the conservation district before the effective date of
suspension or termination.

e Were not in anticipation of the suspension, and, in the case of a termination, are non-
cancellable.

¢ Would have been allowable if the grant_ or contract had not been suspended or terminated.

Appeals

Under termination and suspension, a request may be made, and an opportunity may be provided for a
hearing, appeal, or other administrative proceedings. SCC will make determinations of cost eligibility,
to disallow costs, and to ensure compliance with contract terms and conditions and program
guidelines. The written decision of SCC will be final unless a written appeal to SCC’s executive director
is received within 30 days of the receipt of the decision.

In connection with appeal of any proceeding, the opportunity to be heard and to offer evidence in
support of this appeal will be provided. The decision of the executive director will be made within 30
days of the receipt of the appeal and reported to SCC members at their next reqularly scheduled

meeting.

Appeals from the executive director's determination will be in accordance with procedures outlined in
the General Terms and Conditions included in the conservation district master contract or other
awarded contract. Prior to a final decision, the work is expected to continue to progress on the project
according to all terms of the contract, meaning that the decision to terminate or suspend doesn't
become effective until all appeals are exhausted.

Administrative costs and other expenses incurred as part of an unsuccessful appeal are not allowable.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 167 of 263


https://scc.wa.gov/commission-meetings/
https://scc.wa.gov/commission-meetings/

Debarment and Suspension
When federal grant funds are used to pay for all or a portion of goods or services, federal regulations
require that the grantee ensure compliance with:
o State laws and entity policies related to procurement. Federal procurement requirements (see
below) apply if there is no corresponding state law covering bid requirements.

e Suspension and Debarment (Federal Excluded Parties) on the System for Award Management
website (this list is different than the one maintained by the State Department of Labor and
Industries).

¢ Davis-Bacon Act (prevailing wage) requirements.

A SAM (System for Award Management) search must be completed prior to entering into any
contractual arrangement. When the search is completed for each contractor or vendor, print the page
from the website and place into the contracting file. Make sure the date and time is printed in the
header or footer of the document.

Not having the dated search documents printed and, in the grant, or contract file has been an
automatic audit finding from the State Auditor in the past.

In accordance with RCW 39.04.350, before award of a public works contract, a bidder must meet the
following responsibility criteria to be considered a responsible bidder and qualified to be awarded a
public works project.

¢ One of the requirements is: Not be disqualified from bidding on any public works contract under
RCW 39.06.010 or RCW 39.12.065(3). Violations of RCW 39.12.065(3) can be found here.

o Note that this is for state debarment, not federal. The entity should-must print_or save
the electronic record of the-the search results to prove the contractor was not debarred
at the time of bidding.

e Please refer to the Municipal Research and Services Center (MRSC) guidelines for bidding,
purchases and contracting. The guidelines can be found on MRSC’s website.

©

It is the sole responsibility of conservation districts to complete and document a SAM search and a
State Labor & Industries search (link above) before awarding public works project contracts or
subcontracting with any funding from SCC.

SCC strongly recommends the district conduct SAM and State Labor & Industries searches for all
contractors or subcontractors for all funding awards for projects, regardless of funding source. All
participants should be searched on the SAM system before any cost share project is approved for
funding, regardless of funding source.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 168 of 263


https://sam.gov/content/home
https://sam.gov/content/home
https://www.sam.gov/SAM/
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=39.04.350
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcW/default.aspx?cite=39.06.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=39.12.065#:%7E:text=(3)%20A%20contractor%20or%20subcontractor,prevailing%20wage%20violation%20found%20on
https://secure.lni.wa.gov/debarandstrike/ContractorDebarList.aspx
https://mrsc.org/Home/Explore-Topics/Public-Works/Purchasing-and-Bidding/Purchasing-and-Bidding-for-Washington-State-Local.aspx

Guidance from the Washington State Auditor’s Office

Compliance Requirements — Suspension and Debarment: Non-federal entities are prohibited from
contracting with or making subawards under covered transactions to parties that are suspended or
debarred. “Covered transactions” include contracts for goods and services awarded under a non-
procurement transaction (e.qg., grant or cooperative agreement) that are expected to equal or exceed
$25,000 or meet certain other criteria as specified in 2 CFR section 180.220. All non-procurement
transactions entered into by a passthrough entity (i.e., subawards to subrecipients), irrespective of
award amount, are considered covered transactions, unless they are exempt as provided in 2 CFR
section 180.215. When a non-federal entity enters into a covered transaction with an entity at a lower
tier, the nonfederal entity must verify that the entity, as defined in 2 CFR section 180.995 and agency
adopting reqgulations, is not suspended or debarred or otherwise excluded from participating in the
transaction.

This verification may be accomplished by

(1) checking the System for Award Management (SAM) Exclusions maintained by the General
Services Administration (GSA) and available at SAM.gov | Home (click on Search Record,
then click on Advanced SearchExclusions) (Note: The OMB guidance at 2 CFR Part 180 and
agency implementing regulations still refer to the SAM Exclusions as the Excluded Parties List
System (EPLS)),

(2) (2) collecting a certification from the entity, or

(3) (3) adding a clause or condition to the covered transaction with that entity

(2 CFR section 180.300). Compliance Supplement 2024 3-1-3 May 2024 Compliance Requirements -
Procurement And Suspension And Debarment Non-federal entities receiving contracts from the
federal government are required to comply with the contract clause at FAR 52.209-6 before entering
into a subcontract that will exceed $30,000, other than a subcontract for a commercially available off-
the-shelf item. Source of Governing Requirements — Suspension and Debarment The requirements
for nonprocurement suspension and debarment are contained in OMB guidance in 2 CFR Part 180,
which implements Executive Orders 12549 and 12689, “Debarment and Suspension;” federal
awarding agency reqgulations in Title 2 of the CFR adopting/implementing the OMB guidance in 2 CFR
Part 180; program legislation; and the terms and conditions of the award. Most federal agencies have
adopted or implemented 2 CFR Part 180, generally by relocating their associated agency rules in Title
2 of the CFR. Appendix Il to the Supplement includes the current CFR citations for all agencies
adoption or implementation of the nonprocurement suspension and debarment guidance.
Government-wide requirements related to suspension and debarment and doing business with
suspended or debarred subcontractors under cost reimbursement contracts under the FAR are
contained in 48 CFR section 9.405-2(b) and the clause at 48 CFR section 52.209-6.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 169 of 263


https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-I/part-180/subpart-B/section-180.215
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-I/part-180/subpart-B/section-180.215
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-I/part-180/subpart-I/section-180.995
https://sam.gov/
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-I/part-180?toc=1
http://epls.arnet.gov/
http://epls.arnet.gov/
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-I/part-180/subpart-C/section-180.300
https://www.whitehouse.gov/wp-content/uploads/2024/05/Part-3-Compliance-Requirements.pdf
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-I/part-180?toc=1
https://www.acquisition.gov/far/9.405-2
https://www.acquisition.gov/far/52.209-6

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 170 of 263



Section 3: Compliance

In this section, you'll learn about:

v Monitoring program compliance

v" Invoicing

~ No activity

v Supplemental activity reports

Final report

Close-out

Recovery of payments

Conservation Accountability and Performance Program (CAPP)

AN N NN

Monitoring Program Compliance

Progress made under the grant or contract is monitored in several ways and may include but is not
limited to paymentreimbursement requests, activity reports, final reports, and site visits.

Vouchering

SCC requires grant vouchering for reimbursement each calendar month when expenditures
have been incurred, unless specified otherwise in the contract. Contracts may bill monthly, quarterly
or upon completion of deliverables as specified in the contract.-

Allreimbursement-vouchers must be-submitted by the 20% day of the-monthfollowing-the-month-when
All monthly reimbursement vouchers, where expenditures have been incurred, must be submitted by
the 20" day of the month. All expenditures must be vouchered for within 60 days of the district paying
the expenses. The date paid must be included on each invoice or receipt to document when the
expense was paid. Documentation may include the district’'s Treasurer's Report, handwritten date
paid on the invoice or receipt or invoice or notated paid stamp. exceptions will be approved on a case-
by-case basis. June vouchers, regardless of funding source, are required by July 10 of each year for
SCC to be able to meet our deadlines established by the Office of Financial Management.

Properly completed reimbursement vouchers include all necessary documentation, accurate and
correct calculations, and appropriate signatures. Reimbursement requests will not be paid until the
district or entity provides satisfactory documentation to support the request.

An exception to this policy may be made for contracts which SCC will allow vouchers to be submitted
once a deliverable is completed rather than monthly. This will be specified in the contract language.

If after 90 days there has been no activity on a grant, a status check by your regional manager,
program manager or fiscal staff may occur.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 171 of 263



Timing of Expenditures

Expenditures will be considered allowable for vouchering when they are paid. Washington State
Auditor’s Office (SAQO) provides guidance as to when expenditures are recognized as “paid” in the
BARS Cash-Basis Manual:

Expenditures 3.1.7.40 Basis of accountingng

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized and reported in
the financial statements.

Revenues are recognized only when cash is received and expenditures are recognized when
chargeable against the report year’s budget appropriations as required by state law. This
generally results in revenues being recognized when delivered to the government or
government’s agent and expenditures being recognized when paid. Warrants and checks
are considered paid when issued.

An exception to expenditure recognition would be during any open period after the close of the
fiscal year when expenditures can be charged against the previous period for claims incurred in
the previous period.

Open periods are required by statute for cities (RCW 35.33.151 and RCW 35A.33.150) and
allowed for counties (RCW 36.40.200). Special purpose districts which use the county or a city as
their treasurer may use the same open-period as their treasurer.

Therefore, an eligible expenditure must be vouchered when a warrant or check is issued and thus
the expenditure is considered paid.

Scenarios

Goods or Services

Vendor or contractor expenditures must be vouchered when the invoice is paid by the district. A
copy of the invoice or receipt must be included with the voucher.

Credit Cards, Electronic Fund Transfers (EFT) and Purchase Accounts

Credit Card, EFT and purchase account expenditures must be vouchered when the vendor
invoice or statement is paid by the district. A copy of the itemized receipt or invoice sheuld-must
be included with the voucher to support the charges. A copy of the account statement will not be
accepted as adequate supporting documentation if it does not include itemized charges.

Travel Vouchers

Travel expenditures should-must be vouchered after travel has commenced-concluded and all
expenditures have been paid. All travel-related expenditures should-must be summarized on an
A20 Travel Expense Voucher form or district form containing all the same required information.
Itemized receipts are required for airfare, transportation service, vehicle rental, parking, and

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 172 of 263


https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9..DmO7_q-ccQ0sBvlNfU4xyFJ45y0aPQ46PnpwCrpBYvo/s/529044153/br/239854173186-l?utm_medium=email&utm_source=govdelivery
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9..qU5B5T7BMvLf2PAqwboOzdhCkqBb69Ut30gReFIfGtU/s/529044153/br/239854173186-l?utm_medium=email&utm_source=govdelivery
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9..0Ed36ro8Fj_Vl6nj9XBVCU_HS5lHXwdt6eBqRgfdlUg/s/529044153/br/239854173186-l?utm_medium=email&utm_source=govdelivery
https://ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/legacy/policy/TravelExpenseVoucher-Employees%28A20-A%29.xlsx

lodging. Note: SCC will limit lodging reimbursement to the applicable lodging per diem rate. SCC
will reimburse district meals at the OFM approved per diem rates and actual mileage at the
current standard mileage-reimbursementrate. No receipts are required for meals or mileage.

Fiscal Year-End

All expenditures must be paid and received by the district by June 30%". This includes, but is not
limited to, any expenditures that occur through credit card purchases, purchase accounts,
vendors, and contractors.

No expenses can be reimbursed from a prior fiscal year. All expenses must be paid for and received
in the fiscal year they were incurred regardless of funding source.

This does not apply to cost share reimbursements.-erdistrict-implemented-projects. These costs may
be vouchered for when BMP(s) are completed in accordance with the grant funding requirements. All

cost share funding and district implemented projects must be vouchered for and completed by the end
of the fiscal year if funded through operating funds or the end of the biennium if funded through capital
funding.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 173 of 263



Supplemental Activity Reports

SCC reserves the right to request activity reports and supplemental activity reports at any time. These
may be based upon legislative, budget, or other reporting requests made to SCC. If an activity report
is not received by the due date, we will withhold payment of any subsequent voucher reimbursement
requests until the information is received.

Final Report

SCC reserves the right to request final reports for any grant program or contract. A final report and
other grant or contract-closing documentation must be submitted within 10 days of the end of the
grant or contract, or other date specified. Final payments and any new grant or contract payments will
not be made until all final documents and requested information is received.

Close Out

“Close out” is the process by which all administrative matters relative to the grant or contract are
reconciled to close the file. SCC will close out the project when all applicable administrative and
programmatic requirements of the grant or contract have been met, or when the project has been
terminated.

o SCC requires that you submit a Grant Close-out Form or Contract Close-out Form with the
final voucher reimbursement request.

¢ Once we receive the close-out paperwork, the grant or contract is closed.

Failure by a conservation district or contracting entity to return the close-out paperwork will result in
withheld payments on current grant or contract vouchers, and delays in executing future grants or
contracts.

Final payments will NOT be made until all required documentation is on file with the appropriate
authorized signatures.

Close Out Does Not Affect:
e SCC's right to disallow costs and recover funds based on a later audit or other review.

e The conservation district's obligation to return any money due because of later refunds,
corrections, or other transactions.

e Records retention and access to records required under the grant_or contract.
e Property management procedures under the grant or contract.

e Audit procedures under the grant or contract.

Close-out Process
Within 10 days of the expiration date, all financial, performance, and other reports required under the
grant or contract are due to SCC. Required final reports may include, but are not limited to:

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 174 of 263


http://www.formstack.com/forms/?1926642-d1JqwTEhri
http://www.formstack.com/forms/?2742396-d1JqwTEhri

e Final paymentreimbursement voucher.

¢ Invention disclosure (if applicable).
e Close-out form.

o If applicable, any programmatic specific supplemental or final reports.

Recovery of PaymentsReimbursements

o All paymentsreimbursements under a grant or contract are subject to final audit by SCC or a
designee of SCC.

e SCC will be reimbursed for any unauthorized or unallowable expenditures charged.

e The right to retain monies paid as reimbursement payments is contingent upon satisfactory
performance under the terms of the grant or contract including satisfactory completion of the
projects described in the Scope of Work.

e For any reason, a failure to perform obligations required of it by the grant or contract, SCC
may, within its sole discretion, require repayment to SCC all grant or contract funds disbursed
for those parts of the project rendered “worthless” in accordance with the conservation district
master contract and the Contract for Cost Share.

Conservation Accountability and Performance Program (for conservation
districts)

The Conservation Accountability and Performance Program (CAPP) is a program for Washington
Conservation Districts pertaining to accountability requirements.

Non compliance by a A-district not meeting all legal-accountabilityrequirements-contained-in-CAPP

Standard One requirements may affect funding eligibility and funding level by action of SCC.

Please refer to SCC’s website for all CAPP related information.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 175 of 263


https://scc.wa.gov/do-resources-guidance/

Section 4: Reimbursable Expenses

In this section, you’ll learn about:

Staff or expenditures shared between two districts
Goods and services

Payroll

Travel and transportation

Equipment or tool use allowance

Donations

Cost eligibility

Overhead

Employee composite rate

AN NN NN AR

Staff or expenditures shared between two conservation districts

In instances where two conservation districts share resources (Staff, office, subscriptions etc) the CDs
must enter into an Interagency agreement and SCC must receive a copy of the Agreement at the start
of each biennium. The Agreement must identify which CD is the primary and receives payment from

the second CD for staff services. Any costs shared between two conservation districts and charged to
SCC grants or contracts, must be documented and billed to the ether—correct conservatlon district _p_

the agreement. A
benmem@essehaﬂge&a;emadedemg—ﬂqe—bienmum—lf the Agreement is amended at any time

during the biennium, a copy of the amendment must be sent to SCC.

For example: If conservation district A has all the employees and pays all the invoices for a project,
but those costs are to be split between conservation district A and conservation district B,
conservation district A needs to send conservation district B an invoice with supporting documentation
that clearly identifies which of the expenditures/cost that conservation district A paid that belong to
conservation district B.

Conservation district A pays expenditures for the following:

e Staff A — 80 hours of time charged to Implementation Grant (comp rate of $50.00) - $4,000
total.

e Staff B — 80 hours of time charged to Implementation Grant (comp rate of $60.00) - $4,800
total.

e Xerox Invoice $100.00 total.

e Office Rent $2,000.00 total.

e But 50% of each of those expenditures belong to conservation district B, conservation district
A would need to invoice conservation district B and provide supporting documentation
including copies of signed and approved timesheets and invoices.

o Staff A — 80 hours of time charged to Implementation Grant (comp rate of $50.00) - $4,000
total - $2,000.00 - 50% charged to conservation district A and $2,000.00 -50% charged to
conservation district B.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 176 of 263



e Staff B — 80 hours of time charged to Implementation Grant (comp rate of $60.00) - $4,800
total - $2,400.00 - 50% charged to conservation district A and $2,400.00 -50% charged to
conservation district B.

e Xerox Invoice $100.00 total - $50.00 — 50% charged to conservation district A and $50.00 —
50% charged to conservation district B.

e Office Rent $2,000.00 total - $1,000.00 — 50% charged to conservation district A and
$1,000.00 — 50% charged to conservation district B.

Supporting documentation includes copies of invoices or timesheet and totaled on a conservation
district and included with the invoice/reimbursement request and SCC requirements listed in this
manual.

Goods and Services

The conservation district or entity must retain the original invoice or receipt in their grant or contract
file for all administrative goods and services purchased. Administrative goods and services are not
reimbursable expenses under some grant programs. Check individual programmatic guidelines for
more information.

To receive reimbursement, invoices must be in accordance with the requirements under SAAM. The
following must be included on invoices in order to meet state requirements: Payee name and address,

invoice number, invoice date, dates when services were provided, total amount and description of
goods or services and date payment was made.

Here is some additional guidance from SAO for Accounts Payable.

Payroll

Employee time directly related to the approved scope is reimbursable. The reportable-reimbursable
amount is the employee's regular rate of pay, including taxes and benefits. Taxes and benefits are
allowable only if you pay them when they are due. Use SCC provided Grant and Billing Composite

Rate Form to determlne the approprlate billable rate of pay Anapda%ed—@ran#and%#ﬁng@empe&te

Tlme and material contracts will b|II hourlv rates at the rates speC|f|ed in the Contract.

At no time is a loaded composite rate eligible for grant or VSP contract reimbursement. A loaded
composite rate is an employee composite rate that adds to, or artificially inflates, actual or reasonably
estimated costs or charges above and beyond the actual costs paid out to, or on behalf of, the
employee’s hours worked. Acceptable components of an employee’s composite rate are salary or
wages, payroll related benefits such as payroll taxes, unemployment insurance, employee benefits
such as medical insurance, earned sick,-ef vacation, or military leave accrual, Social Security &
Medicare withholding, and retirement benefits. Other costs such as gym memberships, equipment,
supplies, training, or inflating the employee’s salary or wages, are not acceptable on a composite rate
for SCC funding sources.

Timesheets

Payroll-related costs charged to SCC grants or VSP contracts must be documented on a timesheet
and included with the reimbursement request, along with these criteria:

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 177 of 263


https://www.scc.wa.gov/cd/grants-contracts-and-finance
chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/legacy/policy/85.32.pdf
https://sao.wa.gov/sites/default/files/2023-05/Accounts-Payable-Guide.pdf
http://www.formstack.com/forms/?1935904-c3g8UytcVr
http://www.formstack.com/forms/?1935904-c3g8UytcVr

o Reflect an after-the-fact determination of the actual activity of each employee.
¢ Account for the total activity for which employees are compensated.

¢ Be signed and dated by the individual employee and by a direct supervisor having firsthand
knowledge of the activities performed by the employee.

e Conservation district manager’s time sheets must be signed by a board member or other
authorized signatory per the Authorized Signature form on file with SCC.

o Be prepared at least monthly and coincide with one or more pay periods.

¢ Not be budget estimates or other distributions based on a percentage before the work was
performed.

¢ Inthe instance where an employee is shared between two districts or is employed by one
district but is charging time to another district, the timesheet must be signed by the district that
employees them, then an invoice must be provided to the district that is being billed that lists
all details to document that district A billed district B and for what services. An interagency
agreement must also be provided to SCC at the start of each biennium.

Travel and Transportation

If travel costs are allowable for your grant or contract, they are limited to the state per diem rates.
Districts must have a travel policy in place with established meal periods. You must maintain a
detailed travel log, which includes the traveler's name with dates, departure and return times,
locations, business purpose, and itemized travel costs. This information may be needed when
requesting reimbursement for personal vehicle use.

For complete information regarding state travel regulations, visit the Office of Financial Management.
All rules and guidelines outlined below are subject to OFM’s regulations. These regulations are
frequently updated and posted to OFM’s website. SCC will communicate all changes to districts as
we are notified. It is the district orfentities’ responsibility to comply with all OFM rules.

Out of country and out of state travel must be approved in advance of the travel taking place. The
district or entity must provide a summary outlining how the out of state travel is an integral part of their
program/or training for the staff person. This request must be sent to the SCC program manager to
review the request. If approved, the request will be sent on to fiscal for final approval so fiscal can
review and also provide guidance on the per diem rates and process. Areas that are exempt from this
"travel to counties and/or cities in the states of Idaho and Oregon that are contiguous to the border
between Washington-ldaho or Washington-Oregon, or b) out-of-state employees traveling within the
same state as their official workstation for travel reimbursement shall not be considered out-of-state."
(per SAAM pg 1048).

If a district incurs a no-show fee, early or late checkout or departure fees, the district must provide a
detailed request explaining why the incurred fee was necessary in the course of their travel. These
fees will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 178 of 263


https://sccwagov.box.com/s/u6egalqn6ko2nd9m888yi1gou8cafsru
https://ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/resources/travel/colormap.pdf
https://www.ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/legacy/policy/10.htm

Meal Per Diem Reimbursement

Reimbursements for meals are limited to the state per diem meal rate in effect for the area of travel.
Meal per diem rates cover basic meal cost, tax, tips and incidentals. Meals — if provided by another
entity, conference, or meeting — are not reimbursable. Per diem reimbursement may only be claimed
for conservation district board members, associate board members, VVSP counties, AmeriCorps
members under contract with the district and district staff. Those eligible for per diem reimbursement
must pay for the costs and then be reimbursed by the district or entity. The district may not pay for the
per diem directly Contractors, volunteers, and district partners are not eligible for per diem
reimbursement on SCC grants. Contracts with other entities may allow this based upon the terms of
the contract. SCC will only reimburse the state per diem rate, not actual cost for all meals eligible for
reimbursement.

For non-overnight travel assignments, the following two criteria must be met to receive a meal per
diem allowance:

1. Eleven-Hour Rule: A traveler may be reimbursed for meal expenses when the traveler has
been in travel status for at least eleven hours.

2. In travel status during the entire meal period: Travelers must be in travel status during the
entire agency-determined meal period(s) to qualify to collect meal payments for meal(s). The
traveler may not stop for a meal just to meet the eleven-hour rule.

For overnight travel assignments, all meals are to be reimbursed at the rate in effect for the area
where the traveler stops for sleep. The meal reimbursement rate for the last day of travel (return day)
would continue to be the rate for the location where the traveler last stopped for sleep.

The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has determined meal allowances and reimbursements to
employees are taxable fringe benefits when overnight travel does not occur. These reimbursements
are to be included in the taxable wages no later than the month following reimbursement.

Lodging and Transportation Per Diem Reimbursement

Reimbursements for lodging are limited to the lower of the actual cost or the state per diem lodging
rate and supported by documentation submitted at the time of the reimbursement request. The
lodging per diem rate covers the basic room cost, resort/amenity fees, cleaning fees and services
fees. Lodging taxes are reimbursable beyond the maximum per diem. If per diem rates are not
available to the traveler, an Exceeding Per Diem Form is required. This form must be approved by the
district manager or board in advance of the stay.

The portion of allowable transportation costs that are directly attributed to the grant or contract can be
reimbursed using one of the following methods:

e Mileage: Allowable costs are limited to the current state mileage rate. The mileage rates
include the variable costs of operating a vehicle, such as the cost of gas, oil, tires,
maintenance and repairs, as well as the fixed costs of operating the vehicle, such as

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 179 of 263


https://ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/resources/travel/colormap.pdf
https://www.irs.gov/publications/p15b
https://ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/resources/travel/colormap.pdf
https://ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/resources/travel/colormap.pdf
https://cdn.prod.website-files.com/5ec2d4f7da309c68cdc0655a/5f3f49a82adb977d02bea920_exceeding-max-per-diem-form.pdf

insurance, registration and depreciation or lease payments. The mileage rates do not include
the cost of parking and tolls.

No other vehicle costs including insurance, fuel, oil changes, repairs, maintenance, or lease
payments will be allowed unless an exception is made by SCC.

o Vehicle Rental: Reimbursement is limited to actual rental and fuel costs.

Parking and bridge tolls, transportation services (taxis, shuttles, Lyft/Uber, ferries, etc.),
checked baggage and mandatory lodging fees for internet access are reimbursable expenses.
For Lyft/Uber, tips are also reimbursable.

Receipts: All receipts for lodging and expenses paid for on an employee’s personal credit
card must be submitted on a A-20 Travel Expense Voucher request form with the rest of the
grant or contract voucher. If the lodging is directly billed to the district or entity using the district
or entity’s credit card, a travel voucher is not required but the lodging receipt is. For all
employee travel, departure and return trip times must be documented on the travel voucher
request form in order to determine per diem eligibility.

Peer to Peer Rental (VRBO, Airbnb)

Lodging must be at the per diem rate for the county the traveler is staying the night in

Lodqging will not be authorized if the peer-to-peer rental is not a commercialized lodging facility

All fees associated with peer-to-peer property rentals are to be added into per diem rate based

on a daily cost. Reimbursement for the nightly rate plus associated fees will not exceed the per
diem rate for the area. Examples of fees are: cleaning fees, service fees, amenity fees, etc.
Fees will be divided by the number of days employee/s are staying at the rental to determine
the cost per day for the fees.

SCC will not reimburse for any cancellation or damage fees

Receipts must show the total itemized amount of fees, taxes and nightly rate as well as

location of rental property
When there are multiple employees staying at the facility, the nightly rate plus fees will be

divided amongst each employee. The district must pay for the cost of the rental with agency

card and one employee cannot incur the total cost of the rental and be reimbursed for the cost
o __OFM guidance can be found here.

Districts are responsible for calculating the daily cost of the rental and ensuring that the daily

cost does not exceed per diem.

The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has determined meal allowances and reimbursements to

employees are taxable fringe benefits when overnight travel does not occur. These reimbursements
are to be included in the taxable wages no later than the month following reimbursement.

Donations

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 180 of 263


https://ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/legacy/policy/10.60.pdf
https://ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/legacy/policy/TravelExpenseVoucher-Employees%28A20-A%29.xlsx
https://tre.wa.gov/wp-content/uploads/OST-Travel-Reimbursement-Form.pdf
https://tre.wa.gov/wp-content/uploads/OST-Travel-Reimbursement-Form.pdf
https://ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/resources/travel/Risks_associated_with_Peer-to-Peer_property_rentals.pdf
https://www.irs.gov/publications/p15b

S ombe ool o none e oo cion b

For conservation districts, donations are not a reimbursable grant or contract expense. As a reminder,
conservation districts may not make donations _of any kind and request reimbursement from SCC.
The Washington State Constitution prohibits the gift of public funds in two sections, Article 8, Sections
5 and 7, and Article 12, Section 9.

Cost Eligibility

SCC offers grant programs funded through both Operating and Capital funding. Each program is
subject to specific proviso language and program guidelines. The eligible expenditures vary based on
the funding type and the guidelines for each grant. For more details, please refer to the table of
common expenditures here.

Ineligible CestsExpenditures
Review this policy and any specific programmatic guidelines for allowable and ineligible
costsexpenditures. Do not include ineligible cests-expenditures in the billing as either expenditure or a
non-reimbursable amount.
Some examples include:

e Bad debts, including any losses arising from uncollectible accounts or claims.

o Ceremonial expenses, such as refreshments or other costs not tied to a business purpose.

e Costs billed to another funding source, except when being used as a non-reimbursable match
amount.

e Contributions to a contingency or reserve.
e Depreciation of facilities or equipment.

e Deposits, all costs must be paid for in full and goods received prior to requesting
reimbursement. Deposits or partially paid invoices are not a reimbursable expense.

¢ Duplication of costs, the work to be performed under the grant or contract does not duplicate
any work charged against any other grant, contract, subcontract, or other source.

e Entertainment, costs of amusements, WACD auction items, social activities, and incidental
costs relating to them (such as meals, beverages, lodgings, rentals, transportation, and
gratuities).

¢ Fines and penalties, including late fees charged by vendors, and any costs resulting from
violations of, or failure to comply with federal, state, and local laws.

o Lobbying, or expenses related to lobbying.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 181 of 263


https://sccwagov.box.com/s/px0c5wu27w4yloturzebrkkhcfzs3qk1

¢ Interest and other financial costs, interest on borrowings (however represented), bond
accounts, cost of financing and refinancing operations, and legal and professional fees paid in
connection to them, are unallowable except when authorized by state legislation.

e Contributions_and; donations;-and-spenserships-.

e Meals with meetings.

e Mortgage payments

Residential rent,

Speaker fees and any travel costs associated with hiring a speaker for an event.

Host stipends for producers holding workshops.

Gift cards

e Payments to an equipment replacement fund.

e Tuition for quarter, semester or academic year education where class credit is given is not
allowable. Trainings and certificate courses required to perform essential job duties may be
allowable with prior approval for certain grant programs.

e Vehicle insurance, fuel for vehicles, tires, maintenance, or lease costs, which are already
included in the state mileage reimbursement rate. Depending on the grant program, specific
lease approvals may be approved.

Y S—

Allowable Reimbursable Expendituresses

Unless otherwise identified in the project award, grant program; or contract or programmatic
guidelines, the expenses listed below are considered allowable for reimbursement if funds are
available. SCC may request at any time during the grant or contract period or for a period in
accordance with the Secretary of State Records Retention Schedule, a copy of any receipt,
verification of purpose, inventory list, bank statement, or other document, as material backup for an
expense. Any expense appearing to be unreasonable for the area or service is subject to further
evaluation and justification. All expenditures must have been fully paid and received prior to
requesting reimbursement from SCC.

With any of the expenses below, check with SCC to ensure it will be covered, particularly if the
expense is not normally seen, presents a unique circumstance, or is unusually high. Classify these
expenses as “Goods and Services” when establishing a budget and submitting reimbursement
requests. These categories will apply whether a particular cost is treated as a direct or overhead cost.
The list below is not inclusive of all allowable or unallowable expenses. Please contact SCC financial
staff for questions about eligibility of expenses not listed below.

If a cost is applicable to more than one grant program or contract, the costs may be divided among
each grant or contract. Charges-Reimbursements are not to exceed the full cost of the item.

Accounting: Includes the cost of establishing and maintaining accounting and other information
systems required for the management of projects.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 182 of 263


https://www.sos.wa.gov/archives/RecordsManagement/Managing-Conservation-District-Records.aspx
https://scc.wa.gov/grants/
https://scc.wa.gov/grants/

Advertising: Newspapers, magazines, radio and television programs, direct mail, trade paper, when
the purpose of the advertisement is:

e To recruit personnel needed.
¢ Notification of elections and appointment procedures.
e To solicit bids for procuring project-related goods and services.
e To dispose of scrap or surplus materials acquired.
e To advise the public about a project activity.
e For other purposes specifically provided for in the contract.
Audit service*, including the costs of audits necessary to administer and manage the grant or

contract; this includes accountability, financial, federal, and performance audits performed by the
Office of State Auditor.

Budgeting, including identifiable costs related to developing, preparing, presenting, and executing the
project budget.

Central stores, including maintaining and operating a central stores organization for supplies,
equipment, and materials used directly or indirectly for the project.

Communications, including incurred for telephone, cell phone calls or service, facsimile service,
messenger service, website, hosting, data archiving, e-mail and similar expenses.

Compensation for subcontracted personnel services, including wages, salaries, and
supplementary compensation and benefits — paid currently or accrued — for services rendered under

-the contract, including compensation for employees of the conservation district. Such compensation
is allowable if:

o ltis preapproved and included in the grant addendum or contract.
o Copy of contract for services is submitted to SCC.

o ltis reasonable for the services rendered, and consistent with compensation paid for similar
work in the conservation district's labor market.

¢ It complies with applicable local, state or federal laws or rules governing procurement or merit
system requirements.

e |tis not compensated by any other governmental entity, conservation district, or subcontractor.

Conference and meeting costs: Examples include meeting room rentals, registration fees, supplies,
contracts with facilitators, when the primary purpose of the meeting is the dissemination of technical
information relating to the scope of work of the grant or contract and the individual costs are in
themselves allowable. Conferences and meetings cannot be reimbursed until after it has taken place.
Once it has occurred, the district may submit the expense on the next monthly voucher and is exempt
from the monthly vouchering requirement.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 183 of 263



Contracted payroll preparation: Costs of preparing payrolls and maintaining necessary related
wage records. Full or part-time staffs, which are paid a wage and benefits, do not fall within this
category.

Credit card processing fees: are the costs businesses pay to accept card payments. They typically
range from 1.5% to 3.5% of the transaction amount, if those are passed on to the CD they are eligible
for reimbursement.

Cultural resources costs: Costs associated with cultural resource reviews and surveys. Cultural
resources are defined as archeological and historical sites and artifacts, and traditional areas or items
of religious, ceremonial, and social uses to affected tribes. View SCC’s cultural resource policies on
the website for full guidance.

Disbursing services: Costs of disbursing project funds by the treasurer or other designated officer.
Disbursing services cover the processing of checks or warrants, from preparation to redemption,
including all records required for accountability and reconciliation.

Dues*: Including, but not limited to, National Association of Conservation Districts (NACD),
Washington Association of Conservation District (WACD), and Area Association dues.

Elections*: Expenses related to the elections and appointment of conservation district board
supervisors, plus training of conservation district elections officer.

Equipment rental: Provided that the total cost during the project does not exceed the fair market
value of the equipment and the costs are consistent with rental rates in the conservation district or
contracting entity’s market. The conservation district or entity must show proof of receipt from the

vendor to seek reimbursement from SCC.

If district owned equipment is to be used on private land, the conservation district or entity must show
proof of reimbursement by the participant to the conservation district before seeking reimbursement
from SCC.

Fuel consumed*: Must generate power, provide heat or operate conservation district equipment on
district property. Fuel is also an allowable expense for district owned equipment used to implement

the awarded scope of work. UTV/ATV fuel use is reimbursable when used on a SCC funded project
as no mileage rate is available through GSA for these types of vehicles.u

Insurance*: This includes fire, casualty, theft, liability, and bonding. Auto insurance is not allowed—
this is covered in the mileage reimbursement rate set by the Office of Financial Management.

Leases*: Leasing or rental costs for facilities or equipment, such as buildings or copy machines that
are shared among all program activities.

Light Refreshments: Coffee and/or any non-alcoholic beverages (e.g., tea, soft drinks, juice or milk)
and between meal snacks (e.g., doughnuts, sweet rolls, nuts, or fruit and cheese) at meetings,

conferences, or project tours. Reimbursements for light refreshments must include a receipt for

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 184 of 263


https://www.scc.wa.gov/cd/cultural-resources

goods, a list of attendees, pre authorization form, and a copy of the meeting/event agenda. Without
this documentation, reimbursement will not be provided. To meet the requirements for light
refreshments, documentation must show how they are an integral part of the meeting. The district
must have a policy in place to allow light refreshments. Pizza, sandwiches, etc., are not considered
light refreshments. For complete information regarding light refreshments please visits the SAAM
Manual.

Light refreshments are not allowable under the following grant programs:
e CREP
e Shellfish
e Natural Resource Investments
e |rrigation Efficiencies
e Task Orders
¢ Riparian Plant Propagation

Maintenance and repair*: Costs incurred for normal preventive maintenance, necessary repair, and
upkeep of property as required, maintaining an efficient operating condition, but not costs for work
which add to the permanent value of the property or appreciably extend its designed life. This is not
the same as normal operating costs, which include all costs for the day-to-day operation of a facility.
Expenses in excess of $1,000 must be preapproved in writing by SCC financial staff or program
manager.

Office and operating supplies: Office stationery/supplies, forms, cleaning supplies also includes
small tools and minor equipment — calculators, fax machines, telephones, etc.

Personnel administration: Includes the cost of recruiting, examining, certifying, classifying, training,
establishing pay standards, and performing other project related activities.

Postage: Includes postage costs for distribution of materials related to operations.

Printing and reproduction: Includes project-related materials such as forms, reports, manuals, and
informational literature.

Procurement service: Soliciting bids, preparing, awarding contracts, and all contract administration
to provide goods, facilities and services for projects.

Reference material: When related to the project and needed by staff.

Rental of office space®*: In privately or publicly owned buildings, provided that the costs do not
exceed the rental costs of similar facilities in the same locality.

Subscriptions: Accounting programs or other software used across all projects and programs.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 185 of 263


https://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/WASCC/WASCC_30/2021/06/30/file_attachments/1867572/Light%20Refreshments%20District%20Template%20Updated__1867572.pdf
https://ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/legacy/policy/70.10.htm
https://ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/legacy/policy/70.10.htm

Taxes™*: Personal, property or sales tax levied by county or state governments are allowable for
reimbursement.

Training and education: The cost of training directly benefitting the project, e.g. WADE training,
technical training, etc. Employee training expenses related to the position includes, registration fees,
mileage, meal per diem, and lodging._Trainings cannot be reimbursed until after they have been
attended and completed. Once it has, the district may submit the expense on the next monthly
voucher and is exempt from the monthly vouchering requirement. Please note that tuition is not an
allowable expense.
e The Implementation grant is most flexible with respect to training and conference
attendance/participation is generally eligible. Pre-approval is not required for implementation
grant expenditures for training or conference attendance.
e All out-of-state or out-of-country travel for training/conference attendance must be pre-
approved.
e For all other programs, trainings must be tied to or related to implementing the specific grant or
program. Where capacity or technical expertise needs to be built up or improved may be
prioritized.
e Conferences
- Speaking or presenting at the conference with information about projects/programs the CD
has implemented or is planning to implement under the SCC grant or program are eligible
if pre-approved by the program manager or included in project budget approved by
program manager.

- __Attending a conference as a training or professional development opportunity may require
additional justification as to the benéefits to implementing the SCC grant or program in

question.

- SCC may consider allowing partial reimbursement of cost if the conference is not entirely
applicable to the program/project. SCC may consider a prorated reimbursement relative to
the portion of conference is directly related plus travel cost.

Transportation: Includes costs for freight, cartage, express, postage and other transportation costs
relating to goods purchased, delivered, or moved from one location to another. These costs must
directly benefit the grant or contract.

Utilities*: Such as Eelectricity, telephone, internet, sewer, water, gas, and propane.

*Allowable expenses for conservation districts only.

Conditionally eligible reimbursable expensesexpenditures

The following costs are allowable under certain conditions. Some costs are allowable only if the
activity is included in the grant or contract scope of work and budget, allowable in accordance with
grant-specific programmatic guidelines, or with specific prior written approval from SCC. In such
cases, submit a written request for approval to SCC. Written approval must be issued prior to
incurring the obligation.

Construction costs not otherwise allowable, outside of a DIP or Cost Share Project, are eligible
only if all the following criteria is met:

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 186 of 263



e The construction is part of a pilot or demonstration project or specified in a budget award or
proviso.

¢ Public benefit outweighs individual gain.

e The construction project was pre-approved and included in the grant application Scope of
Work and Budget.

Construction permits: Prior to commencement of any construction, the conservation district or entity
will secure the necessary approvals and permits required by local, state or federal authorities having
jurisdiction over the project, provide assurance to SCC that all approvals and permits have been
secured (including cultural resources review if applicable), and keep all documentation in the district
grant file_or contract file.

Equipment purchase is a conditionally allowable expense and must be included in the Scope of
Work or have prior written authorization from SCC financial staff or program manager for all
equipment purchases totaling over $2,000, for a single piece of equipment. If the equipment purchase
is specifically approved in the grant application, additional approval is not required. All equipment
purchases must fit into the scope of work of the grant or contract and have a direct correlation to
completing the deliverables of the grant or contract.

Foreign transaction fees are conditionally allowable with documentation.

Sponsorships* Sponsorships are conditionally allowable if they have a specific direct purpose for the
project. If determined by SCC fiscal staff or the program manager to be allowable, the expense must
be included in the approved project budget. Capital funded grants do not allow sponsorships unless
an additional funding source is added to the grant.

Vehicle purchases* are not considered equipment and require prior approval by SCC financial staff
or program manager before incurring costs. If the vehicle purchase is specifically approved in the
grant application, additional approval is not required.

Landowner recognition awards* for exemplary grant-program-specific performance in the form of
certificates, plaques, etc., and of a small monetary value ($25 or less) may be made under certain
grant programs. This requires an adopted appropriate policy regarding landowner recognition awards
that provides sufficient standards to establish that any awards actually made are “earned” by the
landowner.

At a minimum, those standards mustsheuld include all of the following:

o A description of the basis on which the conservation district will make landowner recognition
awards.

o A description of the process by which the conservation district will decide who is to receive
such awards.

¢ A description of the type of award to which a landowner will be entitled.
The award activity is included in the Scope of Work.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 187 of 263



Clothing/apparel is reimbursable for purchase of apparel necessary for employees’ safety, or for
public health and safety while performing job duties under a grant Scope of Work (e.g., hard hats,
protective eyewear, protective gloves, boots, and other conservation district logo clothing to identify
staff while representing the district). The district must have a policy on clothing purchases. District
logo clothing cannot be reimbursed when using for promotion purposes. This is a conditionally
allowable expenditure on operating grants only.

Tabs or registration fees for UTVs or ATVs may be vouchered for under the Implementation grant as
there is no specific mileage reimbursement rate for these types of vehicles.

*Allowable expenses for conservation districts only.

Direct costs
SCC will reimburse for direct and overhead costs that are allowable under the grant or contract.

What are direct costs?

Those that can be assigned to a particular project activity and budget object contained in the grant or
contract, such as:

¢ Compensation of actual hours of employees for the time devoted to the project.
o Listed in Allowable Reimbursable Expenses.

o Cost of materials and equipment used specifically for the project.

o Costs of services furnished for the project by a conservation district or entity.

e Actual hours of administrative personnel who process vouchers, payroll, and other accounting
activities specific to this project.

Overhead
All costs incurred for a common purpose and not readily identifiable with a particular project activity.
This includes costs incurred by others who supply goods, services, or facilities such as:

o Costs of utilities for a facility shared by a project and other conservation district or entity
activities.

e Costs of supervisory personnel who oversee project activities as well as other conservation
district or entity activities.

o Overhead rate allowed for a contract will be specified in the terms of the contract.

Computing Conservation District Overhead Costs

Each biennium, SCC will set the maximum rate that can be taken for overhead costs. The overhead
will be a percentage of each voucher’s direct costs for salaries and benefits. Conservation districts
establish their rate per grant program on the addendum once it has been approved by the board of
supervisors. However, specific programmatic guidelines may limit choices for computing overhead
costs. Once an overhead percentage is selected and vouchered against, it remains in effect for the
period identified on the appropriate addendum and cannot be changed. Supporting documentation for
overhead costs must be available for inspection.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 188 of 263



In nearly all programs, SCC provides conservation districts the ability to bill overhead to cover
implementation costs. The overhead is for the conservation district to use to pay any expenses not
covered through reimbursable expenses.

Employee Hours X Employee Rate $ (Composite Rate) = $Total Pay X Overhead
Rate = allowed overhead for conservation district

Example:

10 hours (Employee Hours) X $25.00 (Composite Rate) = $250.00 (Total Pay)
$250.00 (Total Pay) X 25% (District Established Overhead Rate) = $62.50 (allowed
overhead for conservation district).

Computing Contract Overhead Costs

Overhead rate allowed for the contract will be specified in the terms of the contract. Once an
overhead percentage is selected and vouchered against, it remains in effect for the period identified in
the terms of the contract and cannot be changed during the grant period. Supporting documentation
for overhead costs must be available for inspection.

Employee Hours X Employee Rate $ (Composite Rate) = $Total Pay X Overhead
Rate = allowed overhead for contract

Example:

10 hours (Employee Hours) X $25.00 (Composite Rate) = $250.00 (Total Pay)
$250.00 (Total Pay) X 25% (Contract Established Overhead Rate) = $62.50 (allowed
overhead for contract).

Employee Composite Rate

A composite rate is the accepted method to recoup employee salary, and employer paid benefits.
SCC provides a form to be used by conservation districts and VVSP counties to establish hourly billing
rates and is completed for each employee. Loaded composite rates and/or fees added onto a
composite rate will not be accepted.

A composite rate includes the employer’s share of social security or SEP, Medicare, health insurance
premiums, employment security, labor and industries, retirement, leave-sick, military or vacation
hours, and any other employer-paid benefits.

New Composite Rate Forms are required for each employee when any of the following occur:

e A change in the employee’s salary or hourly wage.
¢ A change in the employee’s benefits paid by employer (retirement, health, other).

¢ A change in leave accrual amounts (annual, sick, holidays).

Handling Reimbursement for Employer-Paid Benefits

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 189 of 263


http://www.formstack.com/forms/?1935904-c3g8UytcVr

When using a composite rate, the employer is reimbursed for the expenses related to taxes, leave,
and benefits. It's the employer’s responsibility to ensure these funds are used for the purposes for
which the reimbursement was made. The type of benefit reimbursed has procedures that dictate the
appropriate action.

e Social Security, Medicare taxes, retirement contributions, and health care premiums, must be
submitted to the appropriate entity within the defined timeline.

o Employment security and labor and industry premiums are generally due every quarter.

e Leave and holiday hours are to be recorded as an employer’s liability on all monthly financial
reports provided to the board.

o The completed composite rate includes a reimbursement of each leave and holiday hours
provided.

o These funds sheuld-beshould be set aside in a separate account. The districts is required to
track accrued leave liabilities and manage reimbursement of funds for employer paid benefits
against those liabilities

e Use the funds in the separate account to cover the costs of the employee’s leave time when
their time cannot be charged to a contract.

e Legal risks for the employer exist if contributions and taxes are not made on behalf of the
employee.

e Legal risks exist for the employers when leave and holiday hours must be reimbursed, and the
cash does not exist to pay the employee for any leave.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 190 of 263



Section 5: Speetal-SCC Grant Programs

In this section, you’ll learn about: Please note: once programmatic guidelines are approved, we will
include the updated links here.

SCC offers grant programs funded through both Operating and Capital funding. Each program is
subject to specific proviso language and program guidelines. The eligible expenditures vary based on
the funding type and the guidelines for each grant. For more details, please refer to the table of
common expenditures here.

v Professional Engineering-Grant ProgramOperating Grant Programs

Disaster Assistance Program
Implementation
Forest Heath and Community Wildlife Resiliency
Professional Engineering
Regional Conservation Partnership Program
Sustainable Farms and Fields

o Task Orders and Work Orders
v Memorandum-of-agreement
v—Meving-the-hest-area

O |Oo [0 [0 |]O |O

v___Capital Grant Programs
¥ CREP
¥ Shelifishlrrigation Efficiencies
v Natural Resource Investments
v Shellfish
¥ Washington Shrubsteppe Restoration and Resiliency Initiative
¥ Livestock
v" Other Grant Programs

Disaster Assistance Program

In 2022, the Washington State Conservation Commission (SCC) established the Disaster Assistance
Program (DAP). The DAP is a short-term disaster recovery financial assistance program for farmers
and ranchers sustaining physical damage or incurring expenses due to a natural disaster. The DAP is
set out in the SCC’s statute in RCW 99.08.645.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 191 of 263


https://sccwagov.box.com/s/px0c5wu27w4yloturzebrkkhcfzs3qk1

The DAP uses SCC operating funds to partially reimburse eligible disaster recovery expenses or fund
the implementation of best management practices that restore and/or increase disaster resiliency.

View complete Disaster Assistance Program quidelines here.

Professional Engineering Grant Program

SCC provides grant funding to support professional engineering services oversight, technical
assistance, and staff training for coordinating groups of conservation districts. These conservation
districts may hire an “area professional engineer” or contract services to accomplish engineering work
prioritized by each respective area. Each area consists of several conservation districts that partner to
pool financial resources to support an engineering program. Each district participating in the region
contribute to an Engineering Committee to provide a prioritized list of projects for each of the
partnering districts. The engineering program workload and priorities are set according to each
region’s inter-district agreement. One district within each area acts as the designated grant
administrator. These areas develop interdistrict agreements designed to govern access to and
prioritize engineering services among the participating districts.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 192 of 263


http://www.scc.wa.gov/files/dap-guidelines-2023

Ful-View the complete Professional Engineering program guidelines ean-be-found-here. en-SCC's

website.

Implementation Grant — Conservation Technical Assistance (CTA)

Under SCC'’s authority in RCW 89.08, Implementation grants are allocations of funding to
conservation districts of Conservation Technical Assistance and general fund operating funds
appropriated to the SCC. These funds are allocated equally between the conservation districts on a
fiscal year basis. The amount of the annual Implementation grant is determined by appropriation
levels and is approved annually by SCC Commissioners in May. Conservation districts apply for these
funds by submitting a grant addendum form each July. All Implementation grant funds must be utilized
within the fiscal year and all expenses must be included on the final June voucher each year.

Implementation grant funds support the basic operating expenses of conservation districts and are
utilized for expenses such as but not limited to: office space rent/lease, utilities, administration,

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 193 of 263


https://assets-global.website-files.com/5faf8a950cdaa224e61edad9/664cdabf9738ea80a6489dcb_Updated%202024%20ProfEngineeringGuidelines.pdf

accounting, IT, equipment and vehicles, staff salaries and benefits, audits, elections, long range and
annual planning, community engagement, informing the public of district activities and opportunities,
grant writing, and training. All of these expenses are necessary to enable the conservation districts to
function within legal parameters to fulfil their statutory mission of natural resource conservation.

For any potentially ground-disturbing activities (such as but not limited to cost-share, district
implemented projects, or public works projects) funded from the Implementation Grant, it is the
conservation district’s responsibility to budget for potential costs of cultural resources compliance as
additional funds are not held aside from this grant for that purpose.

Forest Health & Community Wildfire Resilience Program

The forest health and community wildfire resilience program supports conservation districts’ work in
helping cooperators improve forest and rangeland health on their lands and assisting communities in
preparing for, responding to, and recovering from wildfire. This program is implemented in close
collaboration with state and local forestry and wildfire entities and aligns with current national and
state-level wildfire and forest health strategies.

View complete Forest Health & Community Wildfire Resilience quidelines here.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 194 of 263


https://sccwagov.app.box.com/s/2jr3qu51jlz8845bqgjzhqh11dtmzyvc

Regional Conservation Partnership Program Match

The SCC is the designated agency to pass through state capital legislative appropriations to
conservation districts implementing a Regional Conservation Partnership Program (RCPP) award
from the USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). NRCS administers this Farm Bill
program through a regular annual solicitation cycle. Conservation districts may request state matching
funds for an RCPP from the SCC, but funding availability is dependent on legislative appropriations.
Appropriations received by the SCC are allocated to conservation districts based on identified funding
needs of awarded RCPPs for the current biennium.

RCPP match funds may be utilized for the following eligible expenses: cost share, district
implemented projects, staff time and overhead, travel, training specifically related to or tied to
implementing the RCPP, education and outreach activities, and equipment specifically related to or
required to implement the RCPP. All training and equipment expenses must be pre-approved by the
Program Manager and Finance staff to be eligible for reimbursement.

Sustainable Farms and Fields

The Sustainable Farms and Fields (SFF) grant program was established to increase the
implementation of climate-smart practices to increase carbon sequestration and reduce carbon
dioxide equivalent (greenhouse gases, GHG) emissions on farmland, rangeland, and tidelands in
Washington through voluntary incentives.

View complete Sustainable Farms and Fields guidelines here.

Task Orders and Work Orders

Task Orders are grants to CDs that are made possible by the funding support of USDA Natural
Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) under a contribution agreement with the SCC. Typically,
NRCS provides a portion of the funding, and the SCC provides the remainder. Task Orders are
developed locally between NRCS and CD staff around specific deliverables utilizing a task order
template form to organize the information. Factors considered during the local development process
include but are not limited to, CD expertise, capacity, and timing of deliverables’ completion. Once
developed locally, a Task Order is then channeled through review steps at both NRCS and SCC
before a grant is awarded to a CD to complete the deliverables. Vouchering for Task Orders only
occurs when one or more deliverables has been completed. All work under a Task Order must be

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 195 of 263


https://sccwagov.app.box.com/s/0ca5qurznqz78zrsiazflsgm3w2a9gf4
https://cdn.prod.website-files.com/5faf8a950cdaa224e61edad9/60147b9521ec5fedfb2e4c99_WSCC%20Task_Order_Form.pdf
https://cdn.prod.website-files.com/5faf8a950cdaa224e61edad9/60147b9521ec5fedfb2e4c99_WSCC%20Task_Order_Form.pdf
https://cdn.prod.website-files.com/5faf8a950cdaa224e61edad9/60147b7e21ec5f7f172e3b5d_Task%20Order%20Flow%20Chart%201.2021.pdf

completed within the fiscal year and all completed work vouchered for no later than the June voucher
each year. Each task order has an effective date and end date unique to the individual task order.
Reporting requirements may vary for each task order dependent on the identified deliverables. A
billing report form is required to accompany each voucher submitted.

Work Orders (WQO) are grants to CDs that are made possible by the funding support of the
Washington Department of Natural Resources (DNR) (or another state agency) under an agreement
or contract with the SCC. Each WO identifies specific deliverables and funding levels associated with
those deliverables. Each WO has an effective date and end date unique to the individual work order.
Vouchering may occur on a monthly basis if the WO deliverables align with SCC project types (such
as a District Implemented Project) or once a deliverable is complete for other types of activities (such
as a workshop or hosting a training). Reporting requirements will vary for each WO dependent on the
identified deliverables.

Capital Grant Programs

A capital project is a project to construct either new facilities or make significant, long-term renewal
improvements to existing facilities. A capital project usually has the length of time of an NRCS BMP
practice life and typically requires the involvement of an architect and/or engineer. Grants made by
the state to fund capital projects for other entities are also included in the capital budget.

Capital projects are usually funded by sources specifically set aside for capital purposes, such as
proceeds of bond sales, long-term financing contracts, and other dedicated revenues.! Projects are
typically on-the-ground projects and technical assistance activities limited to those that support
projects or will lead to capital funded projects.

CREP

The funding is provided solely to help cooperators participate in the Conservation Reserve
Enhancement Program (CREP) offered by the USDA’s Farm Services Agency (FSA) in accordance
with the FSA/State agreement for CREP. CREP in Washington is intended to alleviate some of
agriculture-related impacts on water quality and salmon habitat. FSA is the program lead. The
Washington State Conservation Commission (SCC) provides cost share, maintenance, practice
incentive payment loans and technical assistance.

View the complete guidelines that cover cost share, maintenance, and Technical Assistance (TA)
here.

Irrigation Efficiencies

The Irrigation Efficiencies Grants Program is a water savings program. It targets agricultural irrigation
water as its primary source of water savings through investments in more efficient application and
conveyance infrastructure and associated technical assistance.

The program has three types of funding:

1 Office of Financial Management Budget Division 2015-25 Capital Budget Instructions June 2014, OFM
Directive 14B-02.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 196 of 263


https://cdn.prod.website-files.com/5faf8a950cdaa224e61edad9/60147b5d21ec5fbb822e231b_Task%20Order%20Billing%20Report.pdf
https://ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/budget/instructions/capital/2019-29CapBudInst.pdf
https://sccwagov.app.box.com/s/7et4tk6zjkz2ox3b8wltpfr8ahmln9u7
https://sccwagov.box.com/s/7et4tk6zjkz2ox3b8wltpfr8ahmln9u7
https://www.ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/legacy/budget/instructions/capinst/15-25capinstr/15-25capinst.pdf
https://www.ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/legacy/budget/instructions/capinst/15-25capinstr/15-25capinst.pdf

e General Technical Assistance (TA1) is funding for conservation districts to administer their
Irrigation Efficiencies Program. Typically, a CD would apply for these funds at the beginning of
each fiscal year to cover program expenses during that year. However, a CD can apply for this
type of funding as needed at anytime during the biennium.

e Project Specific TA (TA2) is funding for CDs to develop, design the implementation of a
project. These costs could include: cultural resources, engineering, and irrigation water
management planning.

e Financial Assistance (FA) is funding for cost share or DIP reimburse for the installation of the
infrastructure best management practices within an agreement.

View the complete Irrigation Efficiencies quidelines here.

Natural Resource Investments

Natural Resource Investments (NRI) enables districts help local land users or land managers pay for
and construct conservation projects that address the most pressing state and local priorities. NRI
funding is used for the implementation of locally prioritized projects. It is flexible SCC project funding
as it can be used to implement capital projects addressing many different natural resources concerns
on a wide range of land uses and ownership utilizing a wide variety of best management

practices. NRI funding is available statewide and an equal amount of initial funding is made available
to each district. Projects must be completed within the biennium that they are awarded.

View complete Natural Resource Investments quidelines here.

Shellfish

The Shellfish grant program funds projects to conservation districts to implement best management
practices (BMPs) that protect or improve the quality of water draining into shellfish growing areas by
reducing agricultural non-point pollution, such as fecal coliform and nutrient runoff.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 197 of 263


https://assets-global.website-files.com/5faf8a950cdaa224e61edad9/657b34477292efc741b1cc93_Water%20Resource%20Irrigation%20Efficiency%20Guidelines_Sept%202023.pdf
https://cdn.prod.website-files.com/5faf8a950cdaa224e61edad9/64b19d2f73815d90a6396082_NRIGuidelines_Revised_Final%20May%202023.pdf

View complete Natural Resource Investments Programmatic Guidelines.

Livestock
This program provides funding for district staff to provide technical assistance to livestock facilities.

Eligible costs:
e Salaries and benefits
e Travel
e Overhead

Conditional costs:
e (Goods and services
o Postage for soil tests
e Education and outreach

View complete Livestock TA Programmatic Guidelines.

Washington Shrubsteppe Restoration and Resiliency Initiative

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 198 of 263


http://www.scc.wa.gov/files/shel-guidelines
https://cdn.prod.website-files.com/5faf8a950cdaa224e61edad9/64b19d2f73815d90a6396082_NRIGuidelines_Revised_Final%20May%202023.pdf
https://cdn.prod.website-files.com/5faf8a950cdaa224e61edad9/64babd3d8ab3f7998fa60a50_Livestock%20TA%20Guidelines%207-20-23.pdf

The Washington Shrubsteppe Restoration and Resiliency Initiative (WSRRI) is a strong collaboration
between the Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife (WDFW), the Department of Natural
Resources, and SCC. WSSRI emerged from a legislative proviso initially funded in the 21-23
biennium budget. Ongoing operating funds allocated to WDFW support habitat restoration in the
shrubsteppe as well as fire recovery practices. Capital funding is typically designated for wildlife
friendly fencing practices, including virtual fencing. Depending on funding available, there may be
opportunities for habitat restoration projects as well.

o Deferred Grazing
The Deferred Grazing Reimbursement program provides reimbursement for emergency hay
feed and pasture rental to rest burned native shrubsteppe pastures. Deferred Grazing
programs will be implemented dependent on the needs that arise each wildland fire season, as
determined by the WSRRI steering committee.

e Wildlife Friendly Fencing
Wildlife Friendly Fencing is a cost-share program that provides funding to implement new hard
wire fencing that is designed to WSRRI wildlife friendly specifications, such as smooth wire
and lower height. Additionally, WSRRI funds the retrofitting of existing barbed wire fencing to
wildlife friendly standards and full removal of fence from the landscape. Virtual fencing is
eligible for WSRRI funding, a newer technology that utilizes signal receiving collars and base
stations and/or cell coverage to establish virtual fence lines that can be manipulated with
software.

Other Grant Programs

There may be instances where SCC receives funding to implement special grant programs.
These grants will have specific programmatic guidelines and reporting requirements which will be
provided upon funding. More information on special grant programs that may be available can be
found_under Program Guidelines.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 199 of 263


https://www.scc.wa.gov/cd/grants-contracts-and-finance
https://www.scc.wa.gov/cd/grants-contracts-and-finance

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 200 of 263



Section 6: Getting Paid

In this section, you’ll learn about:

v" Reimbursement basics
v/ Standards

v" Authorized signature forms
v .

v' Payment requests

Reimbursement Basics

SCC will only reimburse costs that have already been paid by the district or entity. Districts or entities
may only submit a grant or contract reimbursement request after all payments have been made to
employees, landewnercooperator, subcontractors, participants, and vendors.

SCC requires that all conservation districts and entities to be registered with the statewide vendor unit
and sign up for direct deposit. All payments will be made via electronic funds transfer (EFT).

Standards

Funds must be expended and accounted for in accordance with state laws, the State Auditor’s Office
Budget, Accounting and Reporting System Manual (BARS), the SAAM manual, policies, and
procedures.

Accounting procedures must:

e Provide accurate and complete disclosure of the financial results of projects in accordance
with all financial reporting procedures of the grant or contract.

¢ Identify the source and application of project funds. Records must contain copies of all
contracts, authorizations, obligations, assets, liabilities, expenditures, and income.

¢ Provide effective internal control and accountability for all project cash, real and personal
property, and other assets. All property must be safeguarded and assure that it is used solely
for authorized purposes.

e Conform to the project budget. Actual expenditures must be in accordance with line items in
the grant or contract budget.

¢ Conform to applicable cost principles detailed in all terms of the grant or contract.

e Maintain appropriate supporting source documentation. This includes record of check
numbers, invoices, purchase receipts, payrolls, time and attendance records, contract award
documents, and vouchers sent to SCC.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 201 of 263


https://ofm.wa.gov/it-systems/accounting-systems/statewide-vendorpayee-services/vendorpayee-direct-deposit
https://sao.wa.gov/bars-annual-filing/bars-manuals/
https://sao.wa.gov/bars-annual-filing/bars-manuals/
https://www.ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/legacy/policy/85.htm

Standards for accounting records include the following or their equivalent:

¢ A general ledger: Classifies, records, and summarizes all accounting transactions relevant to
the project.

¢ A cash receipts ledger: Records all funds (cash, checks, money orders) received by the
conservation district or entity.

o A cash disbursements ledger or check register: Records all expenditures made by the
conservation district, including date, warrant or voucher number, payee, and purpose of the
payment.

It is also important to maintain books, records, documents, and other evidence of accounting
procedures and project policies and practices that are sufficient to permit the preparation of reports
required by the state of Washington and to permit the tracking of funds to a level of expenditure
adequate to ensure that the funds have been spent in accordance with federal and state laws,
regulations, policies, procedures, and the grant or contract.

These records will be subject at all reasonable hours to inspection, review or audit by SCC or
designated state officials and the State Auditor.

District Authorized Signatures Form

A current, district and/or county Authorized Signatures Form must be on file at SCC office before
vouchers can be processed or paid. This form requires a wet signature.

A new form is required at the beginning of each biennium and a new form must be submitted after a
district election is certified or any other changes to persons authorized to obligate the district (e.g.,
new staff, new supervisors, changes in officers).

The original fully signed form must be retained at the district office. A copy shall-must be submitted to
SCC at sccgrants@scc.wa.gov before any grant or contract payments will be reimbursed.

To make a temporary change to the Authorized Signature Form, a district may submit a memo
outlining the change in delegation authority. For example, in the event of a signer’s extended
absence.

A district may also attach and additional page to the Authorized Signature form further breaking out
employees approved to sign certain grant forms as opposed to an entire category as shown on the
form.

Composite Rate Forms

Composite Rate Forms are required for each employee who will have time billed to a contract or
grant. View the District Composite Rate Form or the Contract Composite Rate Form.

A new form is necessary under all the following:

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 202 of 263


https://sccwagov.app.box.com/s/icqqcoc082h5fpjdr8n47xoel2hiafw5
mailto:sccgrants@scc.wa.gov
http://www.formstack.com/forms/?1935904-c3g8UytcVr
http://www.formstack.com/forms/?2742171-c3g8UytcVr

——Jopuepreionsh e

The employee’s salary or hourly wage changes.

An Employment Security Department or Labor and Industry rate changes.
Leave accrual amounts for employees change.

Employer paid benefit rate changes including retirement and health insurance.

Sick, annual, and holiday leave is incorporated into the composite rate and will not be charged
separately.

SCC will not accept loaded composite rates and/or service fees added onto an existing
composite rate. A loaded composite rate is an employee composite rate that adds to, or artificially
inflates, actual or reasonably estimated costs or charges above and beyond the actual costs paid out
to, or on behalf of, the employee for hours worked.

Acceptable components of an employee’s composite rate are salary or wages, payroll taxes,
unemployment insurance, employee benefits such as medical insurance, earned sick or vacation
leave accrual, military leave, Social Security & Medicare withholding, and retirement benefits. Other
costs such as equipment, supplies, training, or inflating the employee’s salary or wages, are not
acceptable on a composite rate for SCC funding sources.

Voucher Payment Requests

Voucher payment request are submitted electronically to sccgrants@scc.wa.gov with the required
attachments. Vouchers will only be processed when all required forms and supporting documents
have been received. All SCC grant forms and contracting forms can be found on our website under
the corresponding tab. Please refer to Section 3 for full vouchering requirement.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 203 of 263


mailto:sccgrants@scc.wa.gov
https://www.scc.wa.gov/cd/grants-contracts-and-finance#w-tabs-0-data-w-pane-3
https://www.scc.wa.gov/cd/grants-contracts-and-finance#w-tabs-0-data-w-pane-3

Standards for payment

Unless an Advance Payment Agreement or Basic Allocation Payment is requested, all funds
will be disbursed as reimbursement for costs already paid. Please refer to Section 7 of this
manual for further information on the above-mentioned payments.

Approved allowable costs or obligations incurred must have been paid and received by the
conservation district or entity at the time the conservation district or entity seeks
reimbursement from SCC.

Documents Required with Reimbursement Requests

The following supporting documentation is required for all grant or contract reimbursement
requests:
Voucher Support Summary Page—by Intermediate Outcome.
Voucher Support Detail Page—by Intermediate Outcome.
Contract reimbursement requests require a contract specific A-19.
Employee time sheets, signed and dated by an authorized signatory or direct supervisor as
well as the employee, must be submitted with each voucher.
Travel Expense Vouchers and receipts must be submitted each time and employee travel
reimbursement is requested and signed and dated by authorized signatory.

o Lodging costs and per diem meals must be itemized on a travel voucher for each

employee. Departure and return trip times are required on the travel voucher for the

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 204 of 263


https://www.formstack.com/forms/?1955808-9KoYytqvyd
https://sccwagov.app.box.com/s/ghutzpv1x06m5tfb7rhlc6akwc1b4mvo
https://sccwagov.app.box.com/s/ghutzpv1x06m5tfb7rhlc6akwc1b4mvo

dates of travel to determine if per diem meal costs are eligible for reimbursement per
OFM’s travel policies (e.g., 11-hour rule). Employees must purchase their per diem
meals and claim reimbursement at the per diem rate through the A-20 Travel Expense
Voucher or similar form containing all the required information. Lodging purchased with
the district credit card does not need to be itemized on a A-20.

o _Subcontracts or Interlocal Agreements must be included when vouchering for reimbursement
for the first time. We will keep a copy in our grant file.

o Copies of the signed Contract for Cost Share (for completed projects) or Cost Share Partial
Payment Request form (for partially completed projects) with all receipts and The Cultural
Resources Complied Statement Form must be submitted each time cost share reimbursement
is requested. All cost share or District Implemented pProjects funded by SCC must be entered
in the CPDS. The Contract for Cost Share must be generated from CPDS and is the only
agreement SCC will recognize for cost share, unless specified in the specific grant
programmatic guidelines. No changes in the terms and conditions of the contract will be
allowed.

e The following entries are required in the CPDS when vouchering for cost share:

o Before and after photos.
o Planned and actual implementation measures.
o BMP and project completion dates.

e District Implemented Project Landowner Agreement with-all-receipts-and the Cultural
Resources Complied Statement Form must be submitted with the first each-time
reimbursement isrequestedrequest. After that, monthly invoicing is required for all project
costs if expenditures are incurred. All District Implemented pProjects funded by SCC must be
entered in the CPDS. Once the project is completed, the DIP Closeout Form is required to be
submitted with the final billing and the closeout tab in CPDS must be updated.

o Composite salary rate information must be updated and submitted when there is a change.

o All goods and services charges require a receipt for reimbursement. No payments will be
issued without them.

Forms Required with Reimbursement Requests

The conservation district Voucher Support Forms supplied by SCC are to be submitted with each
grant reimbursement request. The contract Voucher Support Forms supplied by SCC along with the
contract specific A-19 are required to be submitted with each contract reimbursement request.

Submittal of Voucher and Documentation

Vouchers and back up documentation must be emailed in a PDF format to sccgrants@scc.wa.gov.
Please do not send voucher requests to individual financial staff email inboxes. Conservation districts
or entities will maintain the original signed documentation, per the BARS Manual.

For consistency and efficiency, we are requesting the voucher attachments be sent in a pdf format
and named as listed below:

Grants 24-11-IM #10 (Fiscal Year, district number, grant program, voucher #)

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 205 of 263


https://www.formstack.com/forms/?2131843-5zVX95nwFJ
https://www.formstack.com/forms/?2131843-5zVX95nwFJ
https://sccwagov.box.com/s/pqm3iq0jie9xryqedhlt0dq4dbqtbnj3
https://sccwagov.box.com/s/pqm3iq0jie9xryqedhlt0dq4dbqtbnj3
https://www.scc.wa.gov/cd/cpds
http://www.scc.wa.gov/files/fin-dip-close-out-form
https://sccwagov.app.box.com/s/ghutzpv1x06m5tfb7rhlc6akwc1b4mvo
https://uploads-ssl.webflow.com/5ec2d4f7da309c68cdc0655a/5f3f484a6b70ae2014f3798f_Copy-of-Contracts-Summary-and-Detail-Pages-FY20-21.xlsx
mailto:SCCGrants@scc.wa.gov

Contracts K2014 #10 (assigned contract number, voucher #)

By naming the documents consistently this will assist Finance Staff in determining which contracts or
grants are in the email. It is also helpful to mention which programs are attached to the email in the
Reference line (i.e., Implementation, CREP, VSP, etc.).

Voucher Support Form — Detail Page
o The Detail Page breaks down project expenses according to the intermediate outcomes.
o Each expense is itemized on this page according to the relevant intermediate outcome.
e Each expense must be put on as its own line item.
e The detailed composite rate information by employee must be included.
e Totals from this form are transferred to the Voucher Summary Page.
e A composite rate form for each employee must be on file at SCC office.

Voucher Support Form - Summary Page
e The Summary Page collects the totals of the Intermediate Outcomes from the Detail Page.
o The Voucher Support Form is the “authorizing payment” document and must include an
authorized signature and date.

Supporting Documentation of Costs

The conservation district or entity will maintain the following support documentation for each voucher
reimbursement request in a separate grant or contract file. This will be kept in accordance with the
Secretary of State Records Retention Schedule after the expiration date of the grant or contract:

e Composite rate forms for each employee working under that contract.

¢ Signed and dated copies of employee time sheets with the hours worked and the
accompanying math used to reach the salary amount requested.

e State travel vouchers signed and dated by the claimant and approved by an authorized signer.
If applicable, copies of lodging receipts must be attached.

e Copies of vehicle travel logs for mileage reimbursement.

e Copies of proof of expenditures for non-personnel costs incurred such as invoices, bills,
receipts, or canceled checks.

o Copies of the signed the district-implemented project (DIP) Landowner Agreement, Contract
for Cost Share, grant specific cost share contract as outlined in programmatic guidelines. This
also includes the Cost Share Partial Payment Request form (if applicable) and copies of all
receipts, and the Cost Share Detail Receipt Worksheet or other proof of expenditures related
to the cost share project.

If the funding source is federal, all grant or contract files need to be kept in accordance with the
federal established records retention schedule.

Submitting Supporting Documentation of Costs

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 206 of 263


https://sccwagov.app.box.com/s/ghutzpv1x06m5tfb7rhlc6akwc1b4mvo
https://sccwagov.app.box.com/s/ghutzpv1x06m5tfb7rhlc6akwc1b4mvo
https://www.sos.wa.gov/archives/recordsmanagement/managing-conservation-district-records.aspx

¢ When expenditure questions and/or other concerns arise, SCC may request additional
supporting documentation.

e SCC reserves the right to request additional supporting documentation during the grant or
contract.

Employee Time Sheets

¢ Anytime a reimbursement request includes an expense for employee time, signed and dated
time sheets must be submitted.

Employee time must be recorded and broken down by intermediate outcome outlined in the
scope of work for each grant or contract.

Do not include the employee’s Social Security Number or birthday on the time sheet.

The time sheet must be signed and dated by both the employee and an Authorized Signatory
or direct supervisor.

If the manager’s timesheet is submitted, it must be signed and dated by both the manager as
well as an Authorized Signatory.

e Overtime and exchange time is to be billed only when the hours are earned. The district must
provide documentation to show the overtime or exchange time earned. If the week where
overtime or exchange time is incurred is spread between two pay periods, both timesheets are
required so SCC can verify the time earned. Over time is only eligible for reimbursement if
staff qualify to earn over time per the fair labor standards act.
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/overtime

+0 Overtime that appears to be excessive or unreasonable may result in additional
justification or explanation being requested by SCC.

Conservation District Basic Allocation Payment

A conservation district Basic Allocation Payment may be requested at the beginning of each fiscal
year before any grant payments is made. Based upon status of the Conservation Accountability and
Performance Program (CAPP) Evaluation and the receipt of required paperwork, a request up to
$12,500 will be taken out of available Implementation grant funding. If a district requests Basic
Allocation Payment, the last intermediate outcome of the Implementation grant will be the Basic
Allocation Payment.

This will be issued as a single payment. To be allowable to receive this payment, the district must
meet the CAPP threshold.

A request for this payment must be made by identifying the request on the Implementation grant
addendum.

Maintaining eligibility requires continued submittal of complete, accurate, and timely expenditure and
activity reports for the fiscal year. SCC may with notice require repayment of the allocation against
actual expenditures if these requirements are not met.

Fiscal year end and final request for payment

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 207 of 263


https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/overtime
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/overtime

¢ Final requests for payment, grant or contract close out form, supporting materials,
supplemental reports, and signatures, must be submitted within ten (10) days after the end of
the fiscal year.

¢ |If requests for additional documents necessary to pay the final voucher have not been
received after 30 days of the end of the fiscal year, the voucher will be considered late and
may not be authorized for payment.

o Only expenses incurred prior to the expiration date of the contract will be allowable for
reimbursement.

The last payment will be processed only after all required reports, final payment request, and closing
documents have been received by SCC.

Voucher or Contract Review

Before submitting a reimbursement request, double check all charges are accurate and are being
coded to the correct outcomes as detailed on the addendum or contract A-19. Once the district or
entity receives the budget spreadsheet from SCC, please review it to ensure all charges were
correctly coded to the correct outcomes. It is the district or entity’s responsibility to identify and notify
SCC of any discrepancies within 30 days of receiving payment notification.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 208 of 263


https://www.formstack.com/forms/?1926642-d1JqwTEhri
https://www.formstack.com/forms/?2742396-d1JqwTEhri

Section 7: Conservation District Advance
Payment

In this section, you’ll learn about:

v" Advance payment

Advance Payment

SCC recognizes conservation districts may not have the cash flow needed to reimburse participants
for expenditures related to the implementation of approved projects. We have a funds advance policy
that allows for short-term cash advances.

For all conservation districts requesting an advance under this policy, the following shall
apply:

¢ Advances may not exceed 50 percent of the cost share or district implemented project
allocation of SCC share of the awarded funds in the grant agreement and may be restricted to
less than that amount, determined by SCC financial staff.

¢ Advances are only allowed on awarded project funding, not technical assistance funds.

o SCC financial staff will evaluate the financial management activity and financial standing of the
conservation district in determining the maximum amount allowable.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 209 of 263



Advances are not automatically granted. SCC may decline any request to ensure the integrity
of the program.

SCC reserves the right to inspect the conservation district records on any advance, at any
time.

If the district or county has a compelling reason(s) to request an exception to this policy, you
may submit a written request for a policy exception to your Regional Manager and SCC'’s
Fiscal Manager.

To apply for funds

The conservation district must send SCC a request by submitting SCC Advance Payment
Agreement.

The request for an advance-shall must be signed by the district manager or chair.

Requests for the advance must be for allowable expenses and be fully and properly expended
by the end of each fiscal year or biennium depending on the grant funding source.

Reconciling the Advance

Advances are considered satisfied after review and approval by SCC financial staff of the
voucher and appropriate documents. The voucher must reflect the full amount of the
expenditures required to receive the advance. All necessary and required documentation must
be provided.

A complete voucher must be reconciled within 10 days of the end of each fiscal year or
biennium. If the advance is not fully reconciled by the end of the fiscal year or biennium, the
district is required to repay SCC for the unreconciled outstanding balance remaining within 30
days of the end of the biennium or fiscal year in which the grant was awarded.

A conservation district may only have one active advance request per grant at any one time. If
requesting multiple advances in a grant, each advance must be fully reconciled before another
advance request will be approved.

All voucher requests that reconcile against the advance are on a reimbursement basis only.
The district must reimburse participants for the cost share costs prior to submitting the voucher
to SCC for reimbursement. For District Implemented Projects (DIP), the district must have
reimbursed all invoices prior to requesting reimbursement.

If SCC staff has follow-up questions or further inquiries about the advance documentation submitted
by a conservation district, the conservation district shall have five business days from the date of
contact by SCC to fully respond to the request for additional or clarifying information. An incomplete
response to SCC request may result in a finding of noncompliance.

Noncompliance with Advance Policy
Failure to comply with the SCC advance payment policy and requirements shatt-willresult in the
following:

A first noncompliance offense shall-will result in suspension of all advances for three months
for the conservation district.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 210 of 263


https://www.formstack.com/forms/?1955808-9KoYytqvyd
https://www.formstack.com/forms/?1955808-9KoYytqvyd

¢ A second noncompliance offense shal-will result in suspension of all advances for six months
for the conservation district.

¢ A third noncompliance offense shall-will result in suspension of all advances for one year or
more for the conservation district.

For any noncompliance, and at the discretion of SCC Executive Director or Conservation
Commissioners, future grant awards may be impacted through delay or reduction.

SCC may make a referral to the Attorney General or State Auditor if expenditures cannot be properly

accounted for. SCC Executive Director or Conservation Commissioners may authorize changes to
this policy or exemptions for individual projects or situations.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 211 of 263



Section 8: Cost Share

In this section, you’ll learn about:

Rate of reimbursement

Approved practice types

Cultural resources

Contract for Cost Share

Cost share forms

Conservation Practice Data System (CPDS)
Partial payments

Other cost share topics

Frequently asked questions

AN N NN N YN N

Compliance with All Laws

Compliance with the project agreement, grant and contract program-peliciesmatic guidelines, SCC
policies, and all applicable federal, state, and local laws, orders, regulations, and permits, is required.
Please contact SCC staff with any questions.

Cost Share Assistance Rate of Reimbursement

Cost share assistance projects on private property using SCC funding are authorized to be
reimbursed at up to a maximum of 100 percent of the total project costs. In no case shall-will the
reimbursement exceed 100 percent of the total project costs, including any other source of funding for
the project. Cost share on publicly owned land is limited to 50 percent reimbursement.

SCC authorizes local conservation districts, Voluntary Stewardship Program (VSP) Watershed Work
Groups, and other entities to establish by resolution, cost-share rates up to 100 percent in association
with-alt SCC grant cost share funding. Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program (CREP),
lrrigation-Efficiencies; and other programmatically prescribed cost share limitations are the
exceptions.

The Cost Share Resolution and Labor Rate Form must be submitted.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 212 of 263


https://www.formstack.com/forms/?2031783-l9NgNOuyBZ

oy bl it b o fromm 4 o
ot : 4 : | inant.

To remain in compliance, you must do the following with the form above:

o The form must be submitted at the start of each biennium. It's effective for the entire two-year
period.

e The form establishes the cost share reimbursement rate and the participant reimbursement
labor rate. The labor rate is limited to SCC’s maximum.

e If changes need to be made during the biennium, a new form must be updated and submitted
before the cost share contract is signed by the participant and district.

¢ If no form is submitted to SCC, the default rate of reimbursement will be 50 percent and $25
per hour.

Participant Labor Rate

e The participant labor rate shall-will be set at a maximum of $25 per hour for all individuals 18
years or older. The labor of minors aged 17 or younger shaltwill be valued at the current
Washington state minimum wage.

e This rate is set when submitting the Cost Share Resolution and Labor Rate Form mentioned
above. It's valid for the entire grant period.

Approved Practice Types
Cost-share assistance is for practices identified as one of the following:

¢ Allowable Natural Resources Conservation Service’s (NRCS) Best Management Practices
(BMPs).

¢ Alternative practices approved by a professional engineer licensed by the State of
Washington.

o SCC-approved program specific practices. These practices must be approved by SCC
program managers prior to entering into an agreement with a participant.

If NRCS or engineer standards and specifications are not followed, the district or entity is responsible
to get the contractor and/or participant to remedy to the standard. No payment will be issued by SCC
until the BMP(s) meets the appropriate standards and specifications.

Programs Not Covered In This Policy

No board of supervisor’s resolution stating the rate of reimbursement for SCC funds shall apply to

CREP and-rrigation-Efficiencies-funding.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 213 of 263


https://www.formstack.com/forms/?2031783-l9NgNOuyBZ
https://sccwagov.box.com/s/4qxsz5ptw75zsggxpaoobnim1nwo6gkr

If additional directives are issued by another entity for funds (legislature, agency) that’s explicit in
programmatic limitations, these directives shall supersede the board resolution_and will be written into
the programmatic guidelines.

Publicly-Owned Property Eligibility

Publicly-owned property eligibility is defined as a title to the property that’s held by federal, tribal;
state, local government, or special purpose districts, including public utilities.

Cost share assistance projects on publicly-owned property must be pre-approved by SCC staff. If
approved by the Conservation Commission, the rate of reimbursement shall not exceed 50
percentpercent. To request an exception to this policy, you may submit a written request for a policy
exception to your Regional Manager and SCC’s CFO.

Districts must make sure that the public entity representative signing the Contract for Cost Share
Funds or grant specific contract is in accordance with the programmatic guidelines, is authorized to
commit the entity to maintain the practice(s) installed for the entire specified design life of the BMP.

Reimbursements Not To Exceed 100 Percent

If cost sharing with other partners on the same project, the conservation district or entity must identify
all funds used on the project and the costs being reimbursed by all funding sources. This ensures the
participant will not be overpaid beyond the total project costs.

Cost Sharing Budget

Unless identified in the Scope of Work for a particular program, there’s no limit to the amount of funds
from an individual grant budget that may be earmarked for cost sharing. However, there is a limit on
the amount of cost share funds each participant may receive per fiscal year.

Cost Share Limits

SCC'’s established cost share limits are:
e $100,000 award per landowner or cooperator, per fiscal year, across all SCC programs unless
specifically stated otherwise in the programmatic guidelines of the grant program.

o Please note: a single landowner or cooperator is limited to_ a $100,000 award per fiscal
year across all properties or businesses owned including leased property. A landowner
or participant-cooperator cannot receive a $100,000 cost share award on one property
under their personal name and apply for a $100,000 award in the same fiscal year for
cost share under an LLC owned by them.

o Ifthe dlstrlct or county has a compelllng reason(s) to request an exceptlon to this pollcy you

Fiscal-Manager-are encouraged to reach out to the program manger and your regional manger
for guidance.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 214 of 263



Existing-Additional Cost Share Policy

Allotheridentified-policies;procedures—and-forms-for-SCC funds used for cost share assistance shall
remain-in-effectinclude:

o Receipts outlining costs and participant labor will continue to be required.

o All cost share projects are required to be uploaded into the CPDS along with “before” and
“after” pictures, acres-addressed, natural resource benefit, planned and actual implementation
measures etc.

e SCC Contract for Cost Share Funds must be printed from the Conservation Practice Data
System (CPDS). No other form will be accepted unless directly outlined in specific
programmatic guidelines. In this case, a separate cost share form will be supplied for district
use by SCC. No changes may be made to the terms and conditions contained in the Contract
for Cost Share. If changes are made, the contract is null and void and will not be reimbursed.

Debarment and Suspension

When federal grant funds are used to pay for all or a portion of goods or services, federal regulations
require that the grantee ensure compliance with:

e State laws and entity policies related to procurement. Federal procurement requirements (see
below) apply if there is no corresponding state law covering bid requirements.

e Suspension and Debarment (Federal Excluded Parties) on the System for Award Management
website (this list is different than the one maintained by the State Department of Labor and
Industries).

o Davis-Bacon Act (prevailing wage) requirements_and all other federal grant laws must be
followed.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 215 of 263


https://sam.gov/content/home

A SAM (System for Award Management) search must be completed prior to entering any contractual
arrangement. When the search is completed for each contractor or vendor, print the page from the
website and place into the grant or contracting file. Make sure the date and time is printed in the
header or footer of the document.

Not having the dated search documents printed and in the grant or contract file has been an
automatic audit finding from the State Auditor in the past.

In accordance with RCW 39.04.350, before award of a public works contract, a bidder must meet the
following responsibility criteria to be considered a responsible bidder and qualified to be awarded a
public works project.

o One-ofthereguirementsis-Not be disqualified from bidding on any public works contract
under RCW 39.06.010 or RCW 39.12.065(3). Violations of RCW 39.12.065(3) can be found

here.
o Note that this is for state debarment, not federal. The entity should-must print or
electronically save the search results to prove the contractor was not debarred at the
time of bidding.

It is the sole responsibility of conservation districts to complete and document a SAM search and a
State Labor & Industries search (link above) before awarding public works project contracts or
subcontracting with any funding from SCC.

SCC strongly recommends the district conduct SAM and State Labor & Industries searches for all
contractors or subcontractors for all funding awards for projects, regardless of funding source. All

participants should be searched on the SAM system before any cost share project is approved for
funding, regardless of funding source.

Guidance from the Washington State Auditor’s Office

Compliance Requirements — Suspension and Debarment: Non-federal entities are prohibited from
contracting with or making subawards under covered transactions to parties that are suspended or
debarred. “Covered transactions” include contracts for goods and services awarded under a non-
procurement transaction (e.q., grant or cooperative agreement) that are expected to equal or exceed
$25,000 or meet certain other criteria as specified in 2 CFR section 180.220. All non-procurement
transactions entered into by a passthrough entity (i.e., subawards to subrecipients), irrespective of
award amount, are considered covered transactions, unless they are exempt as provided in 2 CFR
section 180.215. When a non-federal entity enters into a covered transaction with an entity at a lower
tier, the nonfederal entity must verify that the entity, as defined in 2 CFR section 180.995 and agency
adopting reqgulations, is not suspended or debarred or otherwise excluded from participating in the
transaction.

This verification may be accomplished by

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 216 of 263


https://www.sam.gov/SAM/
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=39.04.350
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcW/default.aspx?cite=39.06.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=39.12.065#:%7E:text=(3)%20A%20contractor%20or%20subcontractor,prevailing%20wage%20violation%20found%20on
https://lni.wa.gov/licensing-permits/public-works-projects/strike-and-debar/contractors-not-allowed-to-bid
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-I/part-180/subpart-B/section-180.215
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-I/part-180/subpart-B/section-180.215
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-I/part-180/subpart-I/section-180.995

(1) checking the System for Award Management (SAM) Exclusions maintained by the General
Services Administration (GSA) and available at SAM.gov | Home (click on Search Record,
then click on Advanced SearchExclusions) (Note: The OMB guidance at 2 CFR Part 180 and
agency implementing regulations still refer to the SAM Exclusions as the Excluded Parties List
System (EPLS)),

(2) (2) collecting a certification from the entity, or

(3) (3) adding a clause or condition to the covered transaction with that entity

(2 CFR section 180.300). Compliance Supplement 2024 3-I-3 May 2024 Compliance Requirements -
Procurement And Suspension And Debarment Non-federal entities receiving contracts from the
federal government are required to comply with the contract clause at FAR 52.209-6 before entering
into a subcontract that will exceed $30,000, other than a subcontract for a commercially available off-
the-shelf item. Source of Governing Requirements — Suspension and Debarment The requirements
for nonprocurement suspension and debarment are contained in OMB guidance in 2 CFR Part 180,
which implements Executive Orders 12549 and 12689, “Debarment and Suspension;” federal
awarding agency regulations in Title 2 of the CFR adopting/implementing the OMB guidance in 2 CFR
Part 180; program legislation; and the terms and conditions of the award. Most federal agencies have
adopted or implemented 2 CFR Part 180, generally by relocating their associated agency rules in Title
2 of the CFR. Appendix Il to the Supplement includes the current CFR citations for all agencies
adoption or implementation of the nonprocurement suspension and debarment guidance.
Government-wide requirements related to suspension and debarment and doing business with
suspended or debarred subcontractors under cost reimbursement contracts under the FAR are
contained in 48 CFR section 9.405-2(b) and the clause at 48 CFR section 52.209-6.

Cultural Resources

Projects funded by SCC must follow current policy and procedures regarding the protection of cultural
resources. In addition, we encourage each district to develop good working relationships with local
tribes that can help inform and support their conservation activities and protect cultural resources.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 217 of 263


https://sam.gov/
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-I/part-180?toc=1
http://epls.arnet.gov/
http://epls.arnet.gov/
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-I/part-180/subpart-C/section-180.300
https://www.whitehouse.gov/wp-content/uploads/2024/05/Part-3-Compliance-Requirements.pdf
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-I/part-180?toc=1
https://www.acquisition.gov/far/9.405-2
https://www.acquisition.gov/far/52.209-6

Cultural resources work must be done before project implementation begins or when the scope of the
project changes.

Procedural guidance to implement SCC Cultural Resources Policy and the Cultural Resources
Complied Statement Form can be found in the Cultural Resources page of our website.

The Cultural Resources Complied Statement Form is required for every cost share or district
implemented project using SCC funding. It must be included when requesting reimbursement
for cost share.

Visit the Cultural Resources page on our website for instructions on how to be reimbursed for these
expenses.

Please contact SCC’s Cultural Resource Coordinator with any questions.

Program Cost Share Awards

The district or entity will be notified of cost share award by SCC financial staff. Work on the project
cannot begin until the award notification is received by the district or entity and the Contract for Cost
Share has been signed.
e All cost share awards are allocated by BMP. Each BMP has an individual award amount that
cannot be exceeded. If there are circumstances that require a modification to the BMP award
amount, prior approval by SCC financial staff is required.

Contract for Cost Share Funds

Before cost share expenditures can be reimbursed, we need a completed copy of the Contract for
Cost Share Funds for each participant. The Contract for Cost Share Funds must be printed from the
Conservation Practice Data System (CPDS). No other form will be accepted unless directly outlined in
specific programmatic guidelines. In this case, depending on grant program, SCC will supply the
district or entity with a separate cost share form, or they can utilize their own if permitted. No changes
may be made to the terms and conditions contained in the Contract for Cost Share. If changes are
made, the Contract for Cost Share is null and void and will not be reimbursed.

The Contract for Cost Share Funds or grant specific contract, must be submitted with each of the
following completed:

o Table 1: Planned Practices and Calculation of Funding Assistance (completed for each BMP
that will be installed).

e Terms of Contract: Both the participant and an authorized signer must initial these sections
of the contract before the BMPs are installed on the participant’s property.

o Before and After Photos: We require before and after photographs of each BMP installed on
a participant’s property. These photos must be uploaded into the CPDS before payment will be
made.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 218 of 263


https://sccwagov.app.box.com/s/1c7gytw2o15l1fubahhyx4cgcjvajtbs
https://sccwagov.app.box.com/s/pqm3iq0jie9xryqedhlt0dq4dbqtbnj3
https://sccwagov.app.box.com/s/pqm3iq0jie9xryqedhlt0dq4dbqtbnj3
https://www.scc.wa.gov/cd/cultural-resources
https://www.scc.wa.gov/cd/cultural-resources
mailto:jfike@scc.wa.gov
https://www.wscc-wdpp.com/live/app/gateway/login.aspx

After BMPs are completely installed, the conservation district or entity may request a reimbursement
of cost share by submitting a voucher that includes a copy of the Contract for Cost Share Funds or
grant specific contract per the programmatic guidelines along with the backup receipts supporting the
expenditures.

o Appendix A: Cost Share Application BMP Worksheet is not required when requesting
reimbursement, but helpful when determining the cost of the BMP.

e Appendix B: Cost Share Detail Receipt Worksheet must be submitted for each separate BMP
when requesting reimbursement.

e The Cultural Resources Complied Statement Form must be submitted for each project.

If multiple BMPs are awarded per the Contract for Cost Share Funds or grant specific contract per the
programmatic guidelines, the conservation district or entity may request a partial payment of cost
share on a completed BMP by submitting a voucher that includes the Request for Partial Payment
Form along with the backup receipts supporting the expenditures. A partial payment cannot be
requested for a BMP that has not been completed.

¢ In the case of cost sharing with a lessee, the entity owning the land, whether public or private,
must also be a signatory to the Contract for Cost Share Funds or grant specific contract.

e Certain SCC grant programs require and/or allow the use of program-specific cost share
forms. If you have a question about which cost share form to use or which procedures to
apply, consult SCC Financial staff.

If a district has cash flow concerns pertaining to reimbursing the cooperator, please consult with the
program manager or their regional manager prior to signing the Contract for Cost Share.

Conservation Practice Data System (CPDS)

All projects receiving cost share funding must be entered into the CPDS.

Once the project is submitted, the Contract for Cost Share Funds must be printed from the system.
This is the only cost share contract SCC will accept. The exception being special programs, in which
case we'll provide or allow the grant-specific cost share agreement to all recipients. No changes may
be made to the terms and conditions set forth in SCC’s Contract for Cost Share Funds.

The following must be uploaded in the CPDS before payment can be made for cost share:
o “Before” and “after” pictures for each BMP.

¢ Planned and actual implementation measures for each BMP,
e Completion date for each BMP and/or project.

View more information about CPDS and the CPDS Manual.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 219 of 263


https://uploads-ssl.webflow.com/5ec2d4f7da309c68cdc0655a/5f3f4a7d72c44ca1af289e57_APPENDIX-A-Cost_Sharing_Application_Worksheet-1.docx
https://uploads-ssl.webflow.com/5ec2d4f7da309c68cdc0655a/5f3f4aa7406287791c8e0c91_APPENDIX-B-Cost-Share-Detail-Receipt-Worksheet-1.xls
https://sccwagov.app.box.com/s/pqm3iq0jie9xryqedhlt0dq4dbqtbnj3
https://www.formstack.com/forms/?2131843-5zVX95nwFJ
https://www.formstack.com/forms/?2131843-5zVX95nwFJ
https://scc.wa.gov/grants/
https://www.wscc-wdpp.com/live/app/gateway/login.aspx
https://www.scc.wa.gov/cd/cpds
https://www.scc.wa.gov/cd/cpds

Individual Contributed Services Form

This form is used by individuals who contribute multiple hours to one or more tasks related to
installing the BMPs funded for the project. This form captures hours worked by all persons and their
district’s or entity’s established rate.

The participant labor rate for all individuals the age of 18 or over shall-will be set at a maximum of $25
per hour. The participant’s use of minor labor, 17 years of age or younger, shall-will_be consistent
with Washington’s established minimum wage.

One form is required for each month the cooperator performed work on the project. By completing,
signing, and dating this form, a dollar amount can be determined for the services this individual
contributed to the project. View the Individual Contributed Services Form._|If a district has a form that
captures the required information, they may use that in lieu of the Individual Contributed Services
Form.

Sourcing materials, Ffuel costs and mileage won’t be paid to participants with the Contract for Cost
Share Funds. Fuelcosts-and-mileage-areThese items considered a cost of doing business and will
not be reimbursed to the participant.

Cost Share Application BMP Worksheet — Appendix A (Optional)

The Cost Share Application BMP Worksheet is used to help accurately predict how much each BMP
will cost to implement.

e Each BMP will be listed on a separate form.

e If using multiple sources of funding (e.g., SCC and Ecology on the same contract), use Section
5 to breakdown the costs.

¢ Funding from all sources cannot exceed 100 percent of the total project cost.

e This form isn’t required to be submitted when requesting reimbursement from SCC.

Cost Share Detail Receipt Form — Appendix B (Required)

The Cost Share Detail Receipt Form is used to summarize all of the costs associated with the cost
share.

e Labor is summarized in the top portion and is used for participant labor only. This must be
accompanied by the Individual Contributed Services Form.

e Material is summarized in the bottom portion. All receipts from the cost share must be listed
and included for backup when submitting reimbursement.

e The district’s or entity’s cost share percentage will go in the “% Charged” gray section. It will
auto-sum the total amount to be reimbursed.

¢ One form is required to be filled out for each BMP that reimbursement is being requested for.
This is required to ensure each BMP is not exceeding the awarded amount per BMP.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 220 of 263


https://uploads-ssl.webflow.com/5ec2d4f7da309c68cdc0655a/5f3f4ae9ff908914ef9e5392_Individual-Contributed-Services-Form-no-mileage-1.xlsx
https://uploads-ssl.webflow.com/5ec2d4f7da309c68cdc0655a/5f3f4a7d72c44ca1af289e57_APPENDIX-A-Cost_Sharing_Application_Worksheet-1.docx
https://uploads-ssl.webflow.com/5ec2d4f7da309c68cdc0655a/5f3f4aa7406287791c8e0c91_APPENDIX-B-Cost-Share-Detail-Receipt-Worksheet-1.xls
https://uploads-ssl.webflow.com/5ec2d4f7da309c68cdc0655a/5f3f4ae9ff908914ef9e5392_Individual-Contributed-Services-Form-no-mileage-1.xlsx

Cost Share for Conservation District Associate Supervisors and District
Staff

Please contact the financial staff or your regional manager before approving the Contract for Cost
Share Funds. Cost share for Associate Supervisors and conservation district staff may not be
reimbursed more than the state ethics laws covering municipal officers.

e Associate supervisors and conservation district employees, as municipal officers, are limited to
receiving $1,5003,000 in cost share assistance per calendar month per RCW 42.23.030 (6).

e Supervisors are exempt from this restriction per RCW 89.08.220 (4).
e Please see the CostShare—Supervisors-AssociatesEmployees DO Brief 2-2008Cost Share

and Financial Assistance Participation by Supervisors, Associates, Employees District
Operations Brief and Code of Ethics for Municipal Officers for more information.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 221 of 263


https://www.scc.wa.gov/cd/grants-contracts-and-finance
https://scc.wa.gov/regional-managers/
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.23.030
https://cdn.prod.website-files.com/5faf8a950cdaa224e61edad9/66574deb8d6ba6df3b4f6d5e_DO%20Brief%20-%20Municipal%20Ethics%20Act%20and%20FA.pdf
https://cdn.prod.website-files.com/5faf8a950cdaa224e61edad9/66574deb8d6ba6df3b4f6d5e_DO%20Brief%20-%20Municipal%20Ethics%20Act%20and%20FA.pdf
https://cdn.prod.website-files.com/5faf8a950cdaa224e61edad9/66574deb8d6ba6df3b4f6d5e_DO%20Brief%20-%20Municipal%20Ethics%20Act%20and%20FA.pdf
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.23

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 222 of 263



Methods of Payment

All receipts are required to be submitted with the voucher requesting reimbursement, including partial
payment requests.

o Two-party checks are prohibited.

« A conservation district or entity must make cost share payments directly to a participant on a
reimbursement basis only, unless the Assignment of Payment form is used.-

e If a conservation district chooses to follow RCW 89.08.220 (6)3, the conservation district must
include with their voucher request for reimbursement the following:

o Conservation district’s receipt for materials purchased on behalf of the participant from
the vendor.

o Conservation district’s invoice to the participant requesting reimbursement for the
materials purchased on behalf of the participant.

o A copy of the check from the participant to the conservation district proving that
reimbursement to the conservation district from the participant has been made for the
materials purchased.

¢ All materials must be purchased after the award date of BMP funding on the award notification
provided by SCC and the Contract for Cost Share.

o We reserve the right to ask for additional documentation and information on a case-by-case
basis.

Partial Payment of Cost Share Award

A conservation district or entity may request reimbursement for a partial payment of cost share from
SCC for BMPs included in the Contract for Cost Share Funds or programmatic specific contract that
are implemented in phases. A partial payment request can only be submitted when one or more
BMPs on the Contract for Cost Share Funds are fully completed and there are other BMPs in the
contract still being worked on. Only the fully completed BMP(s) will be reimbursed. Partially completed
BMPs aren't eligible for reimbursement until they have been completed per NRCS specifications.

Partial cost share reimbursement requests to SCC must include a copy of the Cost Share Partial
Payment Request Form, the Contract for Cost Share Funds or grant specific contract, appropriate
receipts, Cost Share Detail Receipt Worksheet, and be included on a voucher for payment.

3 If the conservation district chooses the option provided under RCW 89.08.220 (6), no exceptions will be made to the
documentation required. SCC will only issue reimbursement if all the defined documentation is present for each cost incurred
or reimbursement.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 223 of 263


https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=89.08.220
https://www.formstack.com/forms/?2131843-5zVX95nwFJ
https://www.formstack.com/forms/?2131843-5zVX95nwFJ
https://uploads-ssl.webflow.com/5ec2d4f7da309c68cdc0655a/5f3f4aa7406287791c8e0c91_APPENDIX-B-Cost-Share-Detail-Receipt-Worksheet-1.xls
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=89.08.220

Once the final payment on the Contract for Cost Share is requested, a copy of the Cost Share Partial
Payment Request Form needs to be submitted with the final payment information filled out along with
the fully signed Contract for Cost Share.

Assignment of Payment

The Assignment of Payment Form is used to help alleviate cash flow issues for SCC funded projects.
This form allows the participant to assign their cost share payment from the district or entity directly
over to the contractor doing the work on the project.

The participant, district or entity, and contractor all sign the Assignment of Payment Form. A copy is
given to each party. Once the project is finished and the district or entity has reimbursed the
contractor in accordance with the form, a request for reimbursement may be made to SCC. A copy of
the Assignment of Payment Form must be included with the Contract for Cost Share Funds or
programmatic specific contract and all other cost share documentation when requesting
reimbursement.

1099 - G Issuance to Landowners Receiving Cost Share

SCC worked in conjunction with the Municipal Research and Services Center (MRSC) and the IRS to
provide additional information regarding the issuance of the form 1099-G Certain Government
Payments to landowners receiving cost-share assistance.

A District Operations Brief was published January 2017.

Retroactive Payments Prohibited
No retroactive cost-share payments shall be made under SCC'’s cost sharing program.

For purposes of this policy, the effective date of a Contract for Cost Share Funds is the date the
conservation district chair or authorized signatory signs the contract as approved for funding, not the
date the participant signs it. There may be specific grant programmatic exceptions to this rule.

The term “retroactive” refers to any time prior to the date of the chair or authorized signatory’s
signature.

SCC will not reimburse the conservation district, entity, participant, or landewner-cooperator
for any receipts/charges that occurred before the effective date of the Contract for Cost Share Funds.
All technical assistance costs must be vouchered for in the fiscal year they are incurred in.

The exemption to this policy would be cost share reimbursements. These costs may be vouchered for
when BMP(s) are completed_and the cooperator is reimbursed in accordance with the grant funding
requirements. All cost share funding must be vouchered for and completed by the end of the fiscal
year if funded through operating funds or the end of the biennium if funded through capital funding.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 224 of 263


https://uploads-ssl.webflow.com/5ec2d4f7da309c68cdc0655a/5f3f493564ea1357533e8e26_Form-11-Assignment-of-Payment-FINAL.pdf
https://uploads-ssl.webflow.com/5ec2d4f7da309c68cdc0655a/5f5824fcdc51eb7925b76dc6_DO_01-2017.docx

Maintenance or Operation of Existing BMPs

Maintenance or operation of existing BMPs is not allowable for funding unless specifically approved in
the grant programmatic guidelines. However, cost sharing may be used to repair existing BMPs
damaged or destroyed by acts of nature. An “act of nature” is defined as an occurrence, especially a
disaster, that’s due entirely to the forces of nature and that could not reasonably have been
prevented.

Conservation districts or entities considering the use of cost share dollars for repair of existing BMPs
destroyed by an act of nature sheuld-must consider the cost-effectiveness of the repair, whether the
design criteria is adequate, and if the public benefit outweighs private gain.

Equipment Usage

If a participant owns equipment needed to install BMPs in accordance tewith the Contract for Cost
Share this is considered an eligible expense and can be considered for cost share reimbursement.

If the participant owns the equipment, the local Farm Service Agency (FSA) rate will be used to
establish the hourly rate cost. If the local FSA rate is not available or representative of area rates, the
district can use and average of two local bids from an equipment rental cempanycompany, the NRCS
rate, or the district can adopt their own equipment usage rates based on local rates and board
resolution- The charge will go under labor for the project.

e Example: If a participant owns a large tractor and the local FSA rate is $80/hour, then the
participant will be reimbursed $80/hour for his/her time spent on the tractor performing work on
the approved BMPs. This is the max per hour the participant can be reimbursed and includes
the $25/hour typical participant hourly charge.

If the participant rents equipment from a company, an invoice will be obtained and charged as
materials for the project.

Work Crews
The use of contracted work crews, such as Ecology’s Washington Conservation Corps (WCC) are
allowable under most grant programs. A district or entity may contract with a work crew to perform
work.
The following needs to be adhered to when subcontracting with work crews:

e The charges for the work crew will be coded to the outcome the work applied to.

e The contract between the district and work crew must be on file with SCC.

e When billing, the invoice from the work crew entity or supplemental backup from the district
must be clearly broken down by project with the corresponding backup included.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 225 of 263



The district may choose to use their awarded technical assistance or cost share funding to pay
for the work crew.

Conservation District Staff Installing/Constructing Cost Share Projects

Conservation districts may employ their own work crew or have staff conduct installation/construction
work on the project but are prohibited from charging the same hours worked to multiple grants. These
staff hours to implement a BMP may be charged to the cost share portion of the grant award upon
completion of a BMP or project.

o The staff timesheets must break out the time worked directly on BMP implementation
separately from technical assistance work.

¢ All conservation district staff must have a current Composite Rate Form on file with SCC.

e Conservation districts must ensure that any staff conducting work in the field and
installing/constructing projects have the correct industrial insurance codes and rates paid for
those hours worked.

Unique Situations

If a conservation district or entity believes cost sharing a BMP in a unique situation will have a
demonstrable, positive natural resources impact, a request for cost sharing approval from SCC will be
reviewed on a case-by-case basis.

“A unique situation” is one that’s outside the policy established and contained in this manual and/or in
the General Terms and Conditions attached to Conservation District Master Contract. This may also
apply to any contract established with SCC. The approval process for unique situations is the same as
for cost share appeals shown below.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 226 of 263



Location of BMPs

e Cost sharing may be used in urban areas and on rural farms and ranches located within
conservation district boundaries. Projects funded in urban areas must meet the same
requirements as those funded on agricultural land.

¢ In the case of cost sharing with a lessee, the entity owning the land, whether public or private,
must also be a signatory to the Contract for Cost Share Funds.

Cost of BMPs

Projecting costs of BMPs shall-will be based on local cost data, FSA data, or established NRCS
contract cost lists. Operators shall-will_be allowed to obtain their own bids for installation of BMPs.
The cost data and bids sheuld-must be kept as backup in the district grant or cost share contract file.

BMP Installation Using Materials Already Owned by Participant

These material costs are reimbursable under SCC’s grant programs. However, to determine the
appropriate reimbursement rate, materials must be priced using an average of three local bids.

e The participant must provide a listing of materials on hand and sign/date the bottom. This
backup needs to be included with the contract for reimbursement.

e Costs must be itemized on the Appendix B: Cost Share Receipt Detail Form.

¢ Please note the use of materials on-hand is a rare occurrence. Pre-purchasing materials
before the Contract for Cost Share Funds or program specific contract has been approved by
the board or materials purchased for a project that couldn’t be finished by the end of the grant
or contract and calling them materials on hand is not allowed. These costs aren’t eligible for
reimbursement.

Participant as Contractor

If a participant is going use his/her own contracting business to perform the work on their own project
awarded with SCC funding, the following rules apply:

¢ The contractor and or subcontractors must be licensed and bonded to do business in the State
of Washington and to do the work in the appropriate discipline that is directly related to the
practice(s). The participant if acting as the contractor must be licensed and bonded.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 227 of 263


https://uploads-ssl.webflow.com/5ec2d4f7da309c68cdc0655a/5f3f4aa7406287791c8e0c91_APPENDIX-B-Cost-Share-Detail-Receipt-Worksheet-1.xls

e The participant is required to get at least two additional bids for the project. Copies of the bids
must be submitted to the conservation district when requesting reimbursement. These copies
must also be submitted to SCC. If a participant cannot secure more than one additional bid,
document the reason why for the district file.

e The participant is required to submit all receipts for the project along with the itemized invoice
to the conservation district when requesting reimbursement.

If a participant is not a licensed contractor but doing the work, they’re subject to the participant labor
reimbursement rate established by the conservation district not to exceed $25 per hour.

Maintenance of BMPs

Operators or participants shall agree to maintain BMPs cost shared under this program for the design
life of the BMPs, as determined by FSA and/or NRCS standards, or as determined by a licensed
professional engineer.

If the practice isn’t maintained for the entire design life, the participant will be in violation of the
Contract for Cost Share-Funds. The participant will be liable to repay the state for practices installed.
The only exception to this is practices destroyed by an “act of nature”.

Annual Proof of Performance will be established in the Contract for Cost Share Funds-between the
district or entity and the participant. This will outline the annual check in on the BMP(s) status for the
entire design life of the project in accordance with the Contract for Cost Share.

Implementation Monitoring

e SCC aims to monitor 25 percent of the completed cost share projects put on the ground to
validate compliance with the agency policy, programmatic guidelines and consistent with the
terms specified in the Contract for Cost Share.

e Conservation districts or entities will be notified when their project is selected for monitoring
and a date to review the project will be scheduled with the regional manager and other SCC
staff, as appropriate.

e All efforts to group together monitoring visits will be made.

Other Grant Programs and Cost Sharing

Other special purpose grant programs may include their own unique cost sharing policies. An
example of this is the krigation-Efficiencies-GrantsConservation Reserve Enhancement -Program.
These policies are spelled out in that program’s programmatic guidelines, the grant-contract, and
often on SCC website. Contact SCC financial staff or the grant program manager for additional
information on special grant programs.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 228 of 263


https://scc.wa.gov/grants/

Cost-Share Appeals

If your district has a compelling reason(s) to request a variance to an aspect of SCC cost share policy
or programmatic guidelines, you may submit a written request for a policy exception to your Regional
Manager. The request must state the nature of the hardship or special circumstances, the policy or
policies you are seeking a variance to and specifically what the variance or variations would be.

The following is the process for appeals:

e All appeals must be made in writing, signed, or originating from (an email is acceptable) by the
conservation district chair or designee, and sent to SCC Regional Manager.

e An SCC Regional Manager will review your appeal with other SCC staff, including finance
staff, in a timely manner and present your appeal to the Executive Director.

e The SCC Executive Director may choose to decide on the appeal or bring the appeal to the
next reqular Commission meeting, at the Executive Director’s discretion.

Decisions made by the Executive Director may be appealed to the Chair and Vice Chair of the
Commission to be heard at the next reqularly scheduled Commission meeting.

Cost-Sharing Questions and Answers

If one of our participants requested cost share on a practice that cost $150,000 to implement,
how much could the district reimburse him/her?

No more than $100,000 per landowner or cooperator, per fiscal year. The individual practice
reimbursement may vary by program and by practice. Cost share reimbursement limits are
established by SCC and reviewed annually.

How can a participant make up their share of a cost shared practice?
The participant’s share is typically made up of out-of-pocket cash and/or in-kind labor billed at a max
of $25/hour for time.

How is a participant’s in-kind contribution figured?

The amount of SCC’s cost sharing is based on the total cost of the BMP. If a participant furnishes
labor, materials, or equipment as in-kind, they become a part of the total cost, and must be factored in
up-front before the conservation district decides how much cost sharing the participant is eligible to
receive. Also, participants providing in-kind contributions must furnish the conservation district or
entity with invoices detailing allowable costs.

Can a patrticipant receive a partial payment of cost share?

A participant can receive reimbursement on a fully completed practice when there are other BMPs to
implement in the Contract for Cost Share Funds by submitting Cost Share Partial Payment Form and
supplying the receipts for the purchases and expenses. However, SCC may not allow partial
payments of cost share over fiscal year or biennium periods depending on funding source.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 229 of 263


https://www.scc.wa.gov/commission-meetings

Who determines the cost of BMP implementation?

You may obtain information on the cost of specific BMPs in its area from the NRCS cost list or from
data in the NRCS Field Office Computing System (FOCS) or from recent historical data in the local
FSA or conservation district office. Where this data is not available, you may determine costs for
BMPs based on at least three quotes or bids of responsible local vendors and/or conservation
districts. SCC staff can assist with determining an allowable cost.

When can my conservation district or entity appeal the cost share policy?

ay ate-a allow ~You must
show that the existing policy will not allow sufficient funding to accomplish a significant public benefit,
or that a unique situation exists that precludes sufficient participant match or cost sharing from
another source. You may request approval to cost share in a unique situation where a practice isn’t a
recognized BMP but will provide a demonstrable water quality or public benefit.

Can my conservation district or entity cost share with another public entity?

Yes, after approval by SCC. If approved, the Contract for Cost Share Funds is required. A
conservation district or entity can cost share with municipalities or counties, or other public entities
{exceptiederal)-if the practice meets the same requirements as those on private lands. The
maximum authorized cost share is 50 percent. The district or entity must ensure the individual signing
the Contract for Cost Share Funds is authorized to commit the entity to uphold the practices for the
entire design life as specified in the contract.

Can my conservation district or entity cost share more than once with the same participant in
the same biennium?

Yes, ¥your conservation district or entity may cost share more than once with the same participant
(up to the cost-share dollar limit.) when that participant is implementing a complete conservation plan
involving several cost shareable practices. Our cost share limit is $100,000 per participant, per fiscal
year across all programs. Please note: A landowner or participant-cooperator cannot receive
$100,000 cost-share award on one property under their personal name and apply for $100,000 in the
same fiscal year for cost share under an LLC owned by them.

Will there be an audit on cost share funding activities?
The State Auditor will audit your conservation district or entity, and SCC may audit any grant or
contract at any time.

What is the procedure for participants who default on the Contract for Cost Share Funds?
If a participant does default on the terms of the Contract for Cost Share Funds, you must attempt to
recover the amount of the cost share (depreciated based on design life).

How do | determine when BMPs were installed retroactively (and are therefore ineligible for
cost sharing)?

The term “retroactive” applies to any expenses related to BMPs that were incurred before the date
your conservation district chair or authorized signatory signed the Contract for Cost Share Funds or
award notification from SCC. The participant’s signature on the Contract for Cost Share Funds does
not represent an approval to incur costs. Your conservation district chair or authorized signatory’s
signature represents board approval and is also the effective date of the contract.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 230 of 263



Can | provide cost share for a demonstration project?

Yes, if your district wishes to demonstrate new or innovative conservation practices, it may pay
up to 100% for such practices on private or public land on a one-time basis. The BMPs
demonstrated must show local landusers how new technology or innovative methods can reduce
water pollution and conserve natural resources. Again, demonstration sites must incorporate
practices that are truly new or innovative, and your district may pay for them completely, but only
once.

Can a Contract for Cost Share Funds be revised after it has been signed by the participant
and district?

Yes, on a case-by-case basis. The district or entity must work with SCC financial staff or your regional
manager to request a change to the Contract for Cost Share Funds after the contract has been signed
by both the participant and the district. An example of this would be the project came in under budget
and the participant would like to add a BMP using the existing funding award. SCC financial staff will
guide you on how to make the changes. An updated Contract for Cost Share Funds may be required
to be resigned, re-initialed and/or reapproved by the board. There can be no changes to the Contract
for Cost Share Funds after the BMPs and project have been completed.

Who can answer other questions on the cost sharing program?
Feel free to call SCC financial staff or your regional manager.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 231 of 263


https://scc.wa.gov/grants/
https://scc.wa.gov/regional-managers/

Section 9: District-Implemented Project

In this section, you’ll learn about:

Rate of reimbursement

Eligible practices

Cultural resources

Landowner Agreements

Conservation Practice Data System (CPDS)
Partial payments

Frequently Asked Questions

AN NI N NI N SN

District-Implemented Project (DIP)

A district-implemented project (DIP) is a project where the district is the lead planner and implementer
of the work. A DIP is different from a cost-share project where the landowner is in the lead. In this
project type, the district is taking full responsibility for installation/construction of the project which may
include but is not limited to acquiring permits, bidding and purchasing processes, and prevailing wage
requirements, and any other public works project compliance requirements. A DIP must not include
cost-sharing or cash reimbursement to a landowner(s) or land manager(s) with SCC funds. The
district is assuming all responsibility for project planning and construction directly. The DIP project
structure option is only available to conservation districts. Please see the District Implemented Project
Decision Tree in Attachment A for assistance with determining if a cost share or DIP approach is best
for your project or contact your regional manager.

An example of a DIP could be implementing an identified practice with multiple landowners at the
same time — reducing vegetative fuels throughout a neighborhood or installing riparian buffers on
several consecutive properties along a creek. Another example of a district implemented project could
be performing one aspect of a much larger project such as acquiring large woody debris for a stream
restoration project or constructing or installing one component or practice of a multi-practice project.

If a conservation district does not complete a DIP as planned, without a compelling reason, the
district’s eligibility to utilize the DIP structure may be suspended.

Eligible Practice Types
A DIP project may be implemented using one of the following practice types:
¢ Allowable NRCS Best Management Practices (BMPs).

e Alternative practices approved by a professional engineer licensed by the State of
Washington.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 232 of 263


https://uploads-ssl.webflow.com/5faf8a950cdaa224e61edad9/60a811b241a124da5c2845ec_Decision%20Tree-Process%20Flow%20Charts.pdf
https://uploads-ssl.webflow.com/5faf8a950cdaa224e61edad9/60a811b241a124da5c2845ec_Decision%20Tree-Process%20Flow%20Charts.pdf

e SCC-approved program specific practices. These practices must be approved by SCC
program managers prior to entering into an agreement with a participant.

If NRCS or engineer standards and specifications are not followed, the district is responsible to get
the contractor and/or participant to remedy to the standard.

Cultural Resources

Projects funded by SCC must follow current policy and procedures regarding the protection of cultural
resources. In addition, we encourage each district to develop good working relationships with local
tribes that can help inform and support their conservation activities and protect cultural resources.
Cultural resources work must be done before project implementation begins or when the scope of the
project changes.

Procedural guidance to implement the SCC Cultural Resources Policy and the Cultural Resources
Complied Statement Form can be found in the Cultural Resources page of our website.

The Cultural Resources Complied Statement Form is required for every district implemented project
using SCC funding. It must be included when requesting reimbursement.

Visit the Cultural Resources page on our website for instructions on how to be reimbursed for these

expenses.

Please contact SCC’s Cultural Resource Coordinator with any questions.

Conservation District Staff Installing/Constructing Projects

Conservation district staff may conduct DIP installation/construction work on the project but are
prohibited from charging the same hours worked to multiple grants. The only staff hours that may be
charged to a DIP project are for actual implementation of the BMP. These staff hours to censtruct
implement a BHP-BMP can be charged to the installation/construction portion of an SCC grant and
must be vouchered for on a monthly basis.menthly. Administrative hours, project oversight, and
general staff time must be charged to the TA portion of the award, not to the DIP allocation.

¢ The staff timesheets must break out the time worked directly on DIP installation/construction
separately from technical assistance work.

¢ All CD staff must have a current Composite Rate Form on file with SCC.

e Conservation districts must ensure that any staff conducting work in the field and
installing/constructing projects have the correct industrial insurance codes and rates paid for
those hours worked.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 233 of 263


https://sccwagov.box.com/s/4qxsz5ptw75zsggxpaoobnim1nwo6gkr
https://sccwagov.app.box.com/s/1c7gytw2o15l1fubahhyx4cgcjvajtbs
https://sccwagov.app.box.com/s/pqm3iq0jie9xryqedhlt0dq4dbqtbnj3
https://sccwagov.app.box.com/s/pqm3iq0jie9xryqedhlt0dq4dbqtbnj3
https://www.scc.wa.gov/cd/cultural-resources
https://www.scc.wa.gov/cd/cultural-resources
mailto:jfike@scc.wa.gov

o All hours mustbe-charged-to-the-grant-menthlyworked on installation of the DIP project must

be vouchered for on a monthly basis. Administrative, technical assistance and project
implementation are eligible to charge up to 25% overhead.

District Landowner Agreement

The district must provide a copy of the district's Landowner Agreement and Cultural Resource
Complied Statement form when requesting the first reimbursement from SCC. SCC provides a
Landowner Agreement template for district use, if desired. Additional guidance is outlined in the
programmatic guidelines for each grant program.
A district may also use their own version of a Landowner Agreement which must:

e Be signed and dated by a district authorized signatory.

¢ Be signed and dated by the landowner.

¢ Include the BMP(s) or description of work being installed.

Districts will submit reimbursement requests for all DIP costs on a monthly basis, when

expenditures have been paid. Once a DIP project has been completed, the following must be
submitted when requesting final reimbursement from SCC on the project:

e The DIP Closeout Form. This form summarizes the landowners, CPDS Participant ID
numbers and BMPs completed.

. The “Closeout” tab in CPDS must be filled out for each BMP the district has completed

under the District Landowner Agreement.

Conservation Practice Data System (CPDS)

All projects receiving SCC project funding must be entered into the CPDS.
The following must be uploaded in the CPDS upon completion of the DIP:

o Before” and “after” pictures for each BMP.
o Planned and actual implementation measures for each BMP.
o Completion date for each BMP and/or project.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 234 of 263


https://uploads-ssl.webflow.com/5faf8a950cdaa224e61edad9/60a811a1a790efe3d2b575ea_SCC%20Landowner%20Agreement%20Template_Final.docx
http://www.scc.wa.gov/files/fin-dip-close-out-form
https://www.wscc-wdpp.com/live/app/gateway/login.aspx

View more information about CPDS and the CPDS Manual.

Work Crews

The use of work crews, such as Ecology’s Washington Conservation Corps (WCC), are allowable
under most grant programs. A district may contract with a work crew directly to perform work.

The following needs to be adhered to when subcontracting with work crews:
e The contract between the district and work crew must be on file with SCC.

e When billing, the invoice from the work crew entity or supplemental backup from the district
must be clearly broken down by project with the corresponding backup included.

If a district employs its own work crew, copies of the individual’s timesheets must be included when
vouchering SCC broken out by funded project. Please refer to the Conservation District Staff
Installing/Constructing Projects section outlined in this chapter for full guidance.

Maintenance of BMPs

The maintenance responsibility of the BMPs will be included in the District Landowner Agreement.
The BMPs must be maintained for the design life of the BMPs, as determined by FSA and/or NRCS
standards, or as determined by a licensed professional engineer.

If the practice isn’t maintained for the entire design life, the responsible party as outlined in the District
Landowner Agreement will be liable to repay the state for practices installed. The only exception to
this is practices destroyed by an “act of nature.”

Implementation Monitoring

e SCC aims to monitor 25 percent of the completed projects put on the ground to validate
compliance with the agency policy and, programmatic guidelines.

o Districts will be notified when their project is selected for monitoring and a date to review the
project will be scheduled with the regional manager and other SCC staff, as appropriate.

* All efforts to group together monitoring visits will be made.

Other Grant Programs and DIPS

Other special purpose grant programs may include their own unigue DIP policies. An example of this
is the CREP Program. These policies are spelled out in that program’s programmatic quidelines, the
contract, and often on SCC website. Contact SCC financial staff or the grant program manager for
additional information on special grant programs.

*

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 235 of 263


https://www.scc.wa.gov/cd/cpds
https://www.scc.wa.gov/cd/cpds
https://scc.wa.gov/grants/

Frequently Asked Questions

Do SCC cost-share policies apply to a district-implemented project?
A district-implemented project (DIP) is not a cost-share project so SCC policies that apply to cost
share specifically do not apply to a district-implemented project.

Does SCC have a landowner agreement template?
SCC provides a Landowner Agreement template for district use, if desired. A district may also use
their own version of a landowner agreement.

Why do we need to enter into CPDS all of our completed practices regardless of whether or
not it was a cost share or district implemented project?

SCC utilizes CPDS to compile metrics on accomplishments for our grant programs. We must be able
to efficiently report out to the legislature and others what the public investment of funds is buying.
CPDS is our current method of collecting this information from conservation districts.

We are using our district staff and work crew to implement the project. How do we voucher
for reimbursement for the hours?

If a district is using district staff to implement the project, the project time will be billed to the DIP
grant allocation outcome monthly as costs are incurred.

Who can answer other questions on a district implemented project?
Feel free to call SCC financial staff or your regional Manager.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 236 of 263


https://uploads-ssl.webflow.com/5faf8a950cdaa224e61edad9/60a811a1a790efe3d2b575ea_SCC%20Landowner%20Agreement%20Template_Final.docx
https://scc.wa.gov/grants/
https://scc.wa.gov/regional-managers/

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 237 of 263



Section 10: Other Requirements

In this section, you’ll learn about:

Compliance with all laws
Federal audit requirements
State audit requirements
SCC sponsor monitoring
Record retention

Property and equipment
Disposition of property
Bidding and contracting

AN NI N NI NN

Compliance with All Laws

You must comply fully with the contract terms, grant programmatic guidelines, SCC policies, and all
applicable federal, state, and local laws, orders, regulations, and permits. Please contact your regional
manager with any questions.

All work performed under the grant or contract and any equipment purchased will be made available
to SCC and to any authorized state, federal, or local representative for inspection at any time during
the grant or contract timeframe and for at least three years following grant or contract termination or
dispute resolution.

Federal Audit Requirements

The Office of Management and Business (OMB) issued the Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) to clarify and
streamline the federal guidance. The Uniform Guidance supersedes the following OMB Circulars: A-
21, A-50, A-87, A-89, A-102, A-110, A-122, and A-133.

The majer-OMB audit policy changes target audit requirements on the risk of waste, fraud and abuse,
and raise the dollar threshold for requirement of a single audit to $750,0001,000,000 or more in
expenditures in an entity’s fiscal year.

Failure to complete the audit or receive an extension by the due date will result in suspension of all
agreements and reimbursements. Extensions only can be granted by the federal agency responsible

for implementing the requirements of the Single Audit Act for your organization.

If there’s an audit finding, the district or entity may be asked to submit a corrective action plan to SCC
and work with their regional manager to address the resolutions of the findings.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 238 of 263


https://scc.wa.gov/regional-managers/
https://scc.wa.gov/regional-managers/
https://www.grants.gov/learn-grants/grant-policies/omb-uniform-guidance-2014.html
https://www.grants.gov/learn-grants/grant-policies/omb-uniform-guidance-2014.html

State Auditor Requirements
All funds paid to conservation districts or entities are subject to an audit per the requirements of RCW

43.09. State and local governments will be audited by the Washington State Auditor’s Office.

Expenses for an audit are grant reimbursement-allowable expenses _under the district’s
Implementation grant.

Audit Findings or Management Letter

Conservation districts or entities are required to notify their reqional managerscc if they receive a

ﬁndmg&aed—adjust—theeeeumemaweqw#eme% Audlt ﬂndlnqs or manaqement Ietters may also

be subject to CAPP requirements.

SCC Grant and Contract Compliance Oversight

SCC reviews all grant or contract costs for each voucher processed and may conduct additional

compliance oversight, which could include reguestsfor backup-documentation-and-visits to the district

or entity’s office. This monitoring is a more detailed review of the district or entity’s source financial

documents and reports. Aﬁheugh—ﬂ%d@#@teeenﬂ%eqe%ed%eﬂqaﬂmeepe&ef—a“

Records Retention

The Office of the Secretary of State Washington State Archives works with the Local Records
Committee in accordance with RCW 40.14.070 to determine and update the records retention
schedules for all state agencies and local governments each entity is required to follow.

The records retention schedule authorizes the destruction/transfer of the public records of all local
government agencies relating to the common functions of the management of the agency,
management of the agency’s assets, finances, human resources, and information resources. It is to
be used in conjunction with the other approved schedules that relate to the functions of the agency.

Current approved records retention schedules for Local Government, also referred to as Common
Records Retention Schedule (CORE) can be accessed online.

e The overall managing of conservation district records can be found here.
e Records pertaining to landowner agreements retention can be found here.

Keep the following original documents on file in accordance with the Secretary of State Records
Retention Schedule after project close-out may include but is not limited to:

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 239 of 263


https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=43.09
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=43.09
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=40.14.070
http://www.sos.wa.gov/archives/recordsretentionschedules.aspx
http://www.sos.wa.gov/archives/recordsretentionschedules.aspx
https://www.sos.wa.gov/archives/recordsmanagement/managing-conservation-district-records.aspx
https://www.sos.wa.gov/_assets/archives/recordsmanagement/conservation-districts-1.0.pdf
https://www.sos.wa.gov/archives/recordsretentionschedules.aspx
https://www.sos.wa.gov/archives/recordsretentionschedules.aspx

e Invoices and receipts.

e Vouchers.

e Timesheets.

e Copies of payments (checks, warrants, bank statements, etc.).

e Copies of internal transactions.

e Travel and mileage logs.

e Records pertaining to a use allowance for sponsor-owned equipment.

e Competitive bidding documentation.

e Donation logs and statements.

e All books, records, documents, data, and other materials relevant to the grant agreement.
The records must support all project-related costs reported and be made available upon request. If

any litigation, claim, or audit is started before the end of the retention period, you must keep the
records until all litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved.

The conservation district or entity will maintain complete program, contract, and financial records for
each grant or contract to provide an audit trail for all expenditures.

If the funding source is federal, all grant or contract files need to be kept in accordance with the
federal-established records retention schedule.

Construction Records

Engineering documentation and field inspection reports of all construction work accomplished under
the grant or contract will be maintained. Such records will clearly indicate total receipts and
expenditures by fund source and budget object classification.

Length of Retention

Comply with the records retention schedule for conservation districts or entities as outlined in the
Secretary of State’s Records Management Guidelines and Records Retention Schedule.

Retain all statistical, property, materials inventory, and supply records and supporting documentation
for a period in accordance with Secretary of State Records Retention Schedule from the termination
of the grant or contract.

Retain records for non-expendable property for a period in accordance with Secretary of State
Records Retention Schedule after the final disposition of the property.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 240 of 263


https://www.sos.wa.gov/archives/recordsretentionschedules.aspx

If any litigation or audit is begun, or a claim is instituted involving the grant, contract or subcontract
covered by the records, retain the related records for three years after the litigation, audit, or claim has
been finally resolved.

All grant or contract records will be open for audit or inspection by SCC or by any duly authorized
audit representative of the state of Washington for a period of at least six years after the final grant or
contract payment or any dispute resolutions.

If any such audits identify discrepancies in the financial records, the conservation district or entity will
make clarification and/or adjustments accordingly.

Cost share retention begins after the design life of the BMP(s) listed in the Contract for Cost Share
Funds or District Implemented Project Landowner Agreement has been fully completed.

Property and Equipment Management — General Principles

Equipment

Equipment is considered tangible personal property which is used in operations and has a useful life
of more than one year. Some examples are furnishings, tools, and computer hardware and software.
Equipment may be attached to a structure for purposes of securing the item, but unless it is
permanently attached to, or an integral part of, the building or structure, it is classified as equipment
and not real property.

Intangible Personal Property

Copyrights: This is a form of protection grounded in the U.S. Constitution and granted by law for
original works of authorship fixed in a tangible medium of expression. Copyright covers both published
and unpublished works.

SCC reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, or
otherwise use and authorize others to use the copyright in any work developed wholly or in part under
the grant or contract for SCC or other state purposes. This license also applies to any copyright that a
conservation district or entity purchases with state funds.

Please see the Washington State’s Office of the Attorney General for more guidance on copyright law.

Publications: Appropriate credit will be given to SCC when the entity, conservation district, or
persons employed by the entity or conservation district: uses or publishes information of SCC; present
papers, lectures, or seminars involving information supplied by SCC; uses logos, reports, maps or
other data, printed reports, signs, brochures, pamphlets, images, etc.

Personal property

Personal property is property of any kind except real property. It may be tangible (having physical
existence) such as equipment and supplies; or intangible (having no physical existence) such as
patents, inventions, and copyrights.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 241 of 263


https://www.atg.wa.gov/copyright-laws

Copyright: Again, this is a form of protection grounded in the U.S. Constitution and granted by law for
original works of authorship fixed in a tangible medium of expression. Copyright covers both published
and unpublished works.

Patent defined: A patent grants the patent holder the exclusive right to exclude others from making,

using, importing and selling the patented innovation for a limited period of time. The U.S. Patent Act,
35 U.S.C. §§ 1 et seq., was enacted by Congress under its Constitutional grant of authority to secure
for limited times to inventors the exclusive right to their discoveries. See Article |, Section 8, Clause 8.

Real property

Real property refers to land, including land improvements, structures and items added or attached to
them, excluding movable machinery and equipment. SCC contract or grant projects do not include the
purchase of real property.

Supplies

All tangible personal property other than equipment.

Tangible personal property

Title: The conservation district or entity retains title to tangible personal property acquired under the

grant or contract.

Use: The conservation district or entity will use the equipment, tools, and/or supplies for the purposes
authorized in the grant or contract for as long as needed, whether or not the project continues to be
supported by SCC funds.

When no longer needed for the original project, the equipment, tools, and/or supplies may be used in
other activities currently or previously supported by SCC.

These tools, equipment, and/or supplies are available for use in other projects if such use does not
interfere with the work on the originally authorized project.
Preference for other uses will be given in the following order:

¢ Program areas funded by SCC.

¢ In grant or contract related work funded by another state or federal agency, or by the
conservation district itself.

¢ Projects administered by other state and federal agencies.

e Other projects.
Disposition of property
Conservation district officials and municipal officers are prohibited by state law from benefiting from
the disposal of public assets owned by the conservation district or entity. The board or other

governing body may elect to delegate the task of declaring items surplus to an officer or agent who is
not a member of the conservation district board of supervisors or other governing body. If such a

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 242 of 263


https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/35
https://www.law.cornell.edu/constitution/constitution.articlei.html#science%20and%20useful%20arts

delegation is made, the prohibition of benefiting from the disposal of public assets is extended to the
officer or agent.

If the asset proposed as surplus is evidence released by the court, seized assets or unclaimed
property, the Board of Supervisors or other governing body must seek qualified legal counsel prior to
declaring it surplus.

Disposition of tangible personal property

When replacing tangible personal property, the conservation district or entity may dispose of the
property being replaced by using it as a trade-in or by selling it and using the proceeds to offset the
cost of the replacement.

When the grant or contract expires, or when the property is no longer needed for the originally
authorized purpose (whichever comes first), consider any property purchased with grant or contract
funds according to the following scenarios:

o If the property is necessary for the continued operation of the project, or other similar activities
administered through SCC or by the conservation district or entity. SCC staff may instruct the
conservation district or entity to retain the property with no further compensation to SCC.

¢ Conditions for the continued use of the property may be attached at the discretion of SCC.

o If the project has no further significant use for the property and the property had an acquisition
cost of $1,000 or less per unit (i.e., tools). It may be retained, sold, or otherwise disposed of,
and have no further obligation to SCC.

¢ If the project has no further significant use for the property and the property had an acquisition
cost of over $1,000 per unit, SCC will instruct disposal of the property and either:

o Pay SCC an amount equal to SCC'’s share of the current market value or other price
agreed upon by SCC.

o Sell the property and retain the proceeds from the sale for use in other activities
administered through SCC,

e If the property has no further value, the district may utilize a recycling or surplus option such as
the Department of Ecology’s E-Cycle program or DES Surplus Disposal, or

e Transfer title to SCC, or to a third party named by SCC that is allowable under existing
statutes.

e The following disposal procedures will apply:
o The board of supervisors or other governing body will assign a value to the asset.
o The board of supervisors or other governing body will declare the asset as surplus.

At the direction of SCC, the board or other governing body will authorize one of the methods of
disposal described in the following subsections.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 243 of 263



Disposal of Assets to the General Public

Primary methods of disposal to the general public are recognized as direct sale, sealed bid, trade-in
or auction. Other methods of disposal to the general public must be clearly detailed in writing and
must have the consent of the conservation district board of supervisors or other governing body.

When disposal is made to the general public through direct sale, sealed bid or auction, final
determination of value will be the highest responsible bid or offer.

Disposal of Assets to Other Government Entities

The conservation district or entity may sell, transfer, exchange, lease or otherwise dispose of any
assets to any municipality or any political subdivision (this includes other conservation districts), or the
federal government, on such terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed upon.

This requires a written request to entity acquiring the asset and a determination that doing so is in the
public interest. The written request from the recipient public agency will specify the asset and the
compensation to be received by the conservation district or entity. Compensation may be less than
the fair market value, and may take the form of monetary payment, services, materials, or other
assets provided in exchange for the asset.

If the value of the asset is estimated to be more than $50,000, provisions of Section 39.33.020 RCW
will apply. This includes several requirements, including a public hearing and certain notice provisions.

For more information see the following resources:
e Conservation District Master Contract
¢ MRSC Asset Management Policies
¢ MRSC on Sales of Property

If you have any questions, please contact your regional manager.

Prevailing Wage Requirements

If you use subcontractors on your project, specific wage rules may apply. For some federally funded
projects, the Davis Bacon law applies when determining appropriate wages. For many state-funded
projects, state prevailing wages apply. Please see the links below for more information:

e SCC District Operations Brief on Prevailing Wage.

e Davis Bacon information

e State prevailing wage information

Competitive Bidding

Grant and contract recipients shall establish and follow written procurement procedures or follow
current state procurement procedures. All procurement transactions shall be conducted in a manner to
provide, to the maximum extent practical, open and free competition. Be aware of organizational
conflicts of interest. Conservation districts or entities that develop or draft specifications, requirements,

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 244 of 263


https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=39.33.020
https://mrsc.org/Home/Explore-Topics/Finance/Finance-Policies/Asset-Management-Policies.aspx
https://mrsc.org/Home/Explore-Topics/Legal/Property/Surplus-City-Property.aspx
https://www.scc.wa.gov/cd/regional-managers
https://sccwagov.box.com/s/8nnfpzc4hgtdbxvyspcqbf0axpd3c7lm
https://sccwagov.box.com/s/8nnfpzc4hgtdbxvyspcqbf0axpd3c7lm
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/government-contracts/construction
https://lni.wa.gov/licensing-permits/public-works-projects/prevailing-wage-rates/
https://lni.wa.gov/licensing-permits/public-works-projects/prevailing-wage-rates/

statements of work, invitations for bids, or requests for proposals shall be excluded from competition
for such procurements.

Conservation districts, contact your regional manager for more information regarding competitive
bidding requirements or the MRSC’s Suggested Guidelines for Purchasing, Bidding and Contracting
for Washington State Conservation Districts. Or, see the MRSC website to find more information.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 245 of 263


https://scc.wa.gov/regional-managers/
https://mrsc.org/Home/Explore-Topics/Public-Works/Purchasing-and-Bidding/Purchasing-and-Bidding-for-Washington-State-Local/Purchasing-and-Bidding-Public-Works-Contracts.aspx
https://mrsc.org/Home/Explore-Topics/Public-Works/Purchasing-and-Bidding/Purchasing-and-Bidding-for-Washington-State-Local/Purchasing-and-Bidding-Public-Works-Contracts.aspx
https://mrsc.org/

Section 11: Glossary

Allowable Costs are those that meet all eligibility requirements established in the terms of the grant
master contract, grant programmatic guidelines or the Grant and Contract Procedure Manual.

Addendum a written document detailing the scope of work to be accomplished with the grant award.
Adds new information or clauses to a signed master contract without altering the original terms.

Advance Payment is a payment of up to 50% of the cost share or district implemented project award
of the grant taken in a lump sum for the district to reimburse the participant for a project. An advance
payment is intended to relieve "cash flow stress." Please see the Advance Payment section for a
more detailed explanation of the criteria.

Amendment written document detailing the changes or revisions to the original terms of the grant,
contract or addendum.

Authorized Signatory the person designated by the district or entity on the Authorized Signatory
Form on file in the Commission. It is preferred the chair may sign the conservation district master
contract. The chair may delegate other signature authority to another elected or appointed supervisor
or to an employee of the district via the Authorized Signature Form.

Authorized Signatory of the Commission is the Executive Director or other staff as authorized on
the Authorized Signature notification.

Budgeting, Accounting and Reporting System (BARS) Manual prescribes accounting and
reporting for local governments in accordance with RCW 43.09.200. Its purpose is to provide (1)
uniform accounting and financial reporting to allow for meaningful use and comparison of financial
data; (2) accounting and reporting instructions as a resource for local government managers; and (3)
a consistent framework for financial reporting to intended users, including managers, governing
bodies, granting and regulatory agencies, the state Legislature, and the general public.

The manual is maintained by the State Auditor’s Office with input from the Local Government Advisory
Committee.

Best management practice (BMP) is a technique designed to protect the air, water, soil, animals,
plants, and humans. BMPs must meet NRCS standards, or alternative practice designs approved by a
licensed professional engineer. NRCS Practice Standards and Specifications are contained in the
USDA NRCS Field Office Technical Guide (FOTG). SCC also maintains a list of approved practices
eligible for cost share.

Close Out means all administrative matters relative to a grant or contract are reconciled in order to
close the file.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 246 of 263


http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=43.09.200
https://sao.wa.gov/bars-annual-filing/local-government-advisory-committee/
https://sao.wa.gov/bars-annual-filing/local-government-advisory-committee/

Commission (SCC) means the Washington State Conservation Commission, any division, section,
office, unit, or other entity of the Commission, or any of the officers or other officials lawfully
representing the Commission.

Competitive Solicitation means a process by which an entity solicits bids or proposals from a
sufficient number of bidders to assure adequate, fair, and open competition.

Composite Rate is the accepted method to recoup employee salary, and employer paid benefits. A
composite rate includes the employer’s share of social security or SEP, Medicare, health insurance
premiums, employment security, labor and industries, retirement, leave hours, and any other
employer-paid benefits. SCC provides a form to be used by conservation districts to establish hourly
billing rates and is completed for each employee. Loaded composite rates and/or fees added onto a
composite rate will not be accepted.

Conservation District Master Contract is the formal written contractual arrangement, signed by the
district chair and the Commission, and includes the general terms and conditions.

Conservation Practice Data System (CPDS) is designed as a landowner management system with
the purpose to track resource concerns, Best Management Practices (BMP) needing funding and
BMPs that have been completed using SCC funding. A landowner may have multiple properties with
many BMPs being implemented on any of them. The BMP’s implemented are based on the resource
concerns identified on the property then funded by the appropriate funding source.

Cooperator is an eligible participant that works with the SCC or conservation district to conserve
natural resources. Cooperators can include farmers, ranchers, landowners, land managers, lessees,
land trusts, and other partners.”

Costs include all charges made to the project.

Cost Share is funding used to reimburse participants for a percentage of the costs associated with
the implementation of Best Management Practice(s) BMP(s). Examples of costs include, but are not
limited to labor, materials, and permits. Grant programmatic guidelines or contract terms may apply to
cost share.

Demonstration Project is a project that utilizes practices that are not commonly used in a specific
region or type of operation/site and showcases the applicability of a technique/technology for
natural resources conservation. The BMPs demonstrated must show local land-users how new
technology or innovative methods can conserve natural resources. New and innovative practices
include entirely new technologies that have not been utilized on a widespread basis, and those
that have yet to be adopted in a regional or operational context. A demonstration project may pay
up to 100% for such practices on private or public land, regardless of the district approved cost
share rate, on a one-time basis. A demonstration project must be pre-approved by SCC and may
only be allowable under certain grant programs.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 247 of 263


https://www.wscc-wdpp.com/live/app/gateway/login.aspx

Disbursement - Payment by cash, warrant, check, journal voucher, ACH, or any other
technological payment method approved by OFM.

District is the conservation district named on the grant-master contract and any individual or official
lawfully representing the district in carrying out the terms and conditions of the grant or contract.

District-Implemented Project (DIP) is a project where the district is the lead planner and
implementer. In this project type, the district is taking full responsibility for installation/construction of
the project which may include, but is not limited to acquiring permits, bidding and purchasing
processes, and prevailing wage requirements. A district implemented project must not include cost-
sharing, cash reimbursement, to a landowner(s) with NRI or other SCC funds. The district is assuming
all responsibility for project planning and construction directly. Grant programmatic guidelines or
contract terms may apply to district implemented projects.

Effective Date represents the earliest date allowable costs may be incurred. The Effective Date is
indicated in the grant or contract.

Eligible Cost is a cost that meets all eligibility criteria established in the terms of the grant or contract.
This includes any criteria related to the nature and the amount of the costs.

Envirothon Costs incurred by the district for coordinating or participating in regional Envirothon
contests are a conditionally allowable grant expense.

Event Sponsorship is a partnership between two entities, in which the sponsor supports the event
host in organizing the event or adding value to the event, either financially or via an exchange of
products or services. Businesses provide financial support, resources, or services to help make your
event a success, and in return, they receive promotional benefits and exposure to your event's
audience. The value that sponsors receive could come in many forms, such as increased brand
exposure, access to attendee data, speaking opportunities, or discounted event tickets.

Exception

Expenditures - Decreases in net current financial resources. Expenditures include disbursements
and accruals of the current period. Expenditures do not include encumbrances.

Expenses - Decreases in net total assets. Expenses represent the cost of operation incurred during
the current period regardless of the timing of the related disbursements.

Expiration Date is the last date costs may be incurred (accrued) and considered allowable. Any costs
incurred after the expiration date are not allowable. The expiration date is indicated in the grant or
contract.

Fiscal Year in Washington State, a 12-month period extending from July 1 of one calendar vear to
June 30 of the next calendar year.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) are uniform minimum standards for financial
accounting and reporting. They govern the form and content of the financial statements of an entity.
GAAP encompass the conventions, rules, and procedures necessary to define accepted accounting

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 248 of 263


https://sao.wa.gov/bars-annual-filing/bars-gaap-manual/reporting/reporting-principles-and-requirements/gaap-reporting-requirements

practice at a particular time. They include not only broad guidelines of general application but also
detailed practices and procedures.

General Terms and Conditions are those grant or contract provisions that apply to all activities
carried out under all grant programs administered by SCC.

Goods are products, materials, supplies, or equipment provided by a contractor or vendor.

Governmental funds are used to account for most typical governmental functions focusing on the
acquisition, use, and balances of a state's expendable financial resources and the related current
liabilities. The accounting for governmental funds has a budget orientation using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. There are five types of
governmental funds: General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, Capital Projects, and Permanent
Funds. Refer to general funds, special revenue funds, debt service funds, capital project funds, and
permanent funds.

Grant is ana wards of financial assistance, including cooperative agreements, in the form of money,
or property in lieu of money, to an eligible grantee. The term does not include technical assistance
which provides services instead of money, or other forms of assistance such as revenue sharing,
loans, loan guarantees, interest subsidies, insurance or direct appropriations. Also, the term does not
include assistance, such as fellowship or other lump sum awards, which the grantee is not required to
account for. Refer to capital grants and operating grants.

Grant or Contract Number is the official number assigned to the grant or contract by the
Commission. The grant or contract number sheuld-must be included on all project-related
correspondence, payment requests, supporting documents and reports.

Interagency agreement is a written contract between one or more government agencies as defined
in RCW 39.34, or between the district and one or more non-profit organizations, or any combination
thereof, to perform all or part of the services under the grant or contract. An agreement commonly
called a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA), Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), or an Interlocal
Agreement shall be considered an interagency agreement. All interagency agreements between
government agencies must comply with RCW 39.34 Interlocal Cooperation Act.

Integral part of the meeting - An activity within a meeting that is essential to the completeness of the
meeting.

Invention disclosure is a confidential document written by a scientist or engineer for use by a
company's patent department, or by an external patent attorney, to determine whether patent
protection should be sought for the described invention.

Invoice is a legal document that a seller issues to a buyer to request payment for goods or

services. It's a detailed record of a transaction, including the products or services provided, the price,
and the terms of payment. Invoices can also serve as legal records. Invoices must be in accordance
with the requirements under SAAM. The following must be included on invoices in order to meet state
requirements: Payee name and address, invoice number, invoice date, dates when services were
provided, total amount of goods or services, and date payment made.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 249 of 263


https://ofm.wa.gov/accounting/fund-reference-manual/definitions-fund-types-and-roll-funds#:%7E:text=Special%20revenue%20funds,-Special%20Revenue%20Funds&text=This%20fund%20accounts%20for%20activities,nonhighway%20operations%20and%20capital%20improvements.
https://ofm.wa.gov/accounting/fund-reference-manual/definitions-fund-types-and-roll-funds#:%7E:text=Special%20revenue%20funds,-Special%20Revenue%20Funds&text=This%20fund%20accounts%20for%20activities,nonhighway%20operations%20and%20capital%20improvements.
https://ofm.wa.gov/accounting/workday-resources/statewide-accounting-glossary?page=8
chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/legacy/policy/85.32.pdf

Landowner is the legal owner of the property that the conservation district or entity engages to plan
and implement best management practices. The landowner may be referred to as the cooperator.

Light Refreshments include coffee and/or any non-alcoholic beverages (e.g., tea, soft drinks, juice or
milk) and between meal snacks (e.g. doughnuts, sweet rolls, nuts, or fruit and cheese) at meetings,
conferences, or project tours. Reimbursements for light refreshments must include a receipt for
goods, a list of attendees, pre-authorization form, and a copy of the meeting/event agenda. Without
this documentation, reimbursement will not be provided. To meet the requirements for light
refreshments, documentation must show how they are an integral part of the meeting. The district
must have a policy in place to allow light refreshments. Pizza, sandwiches, etc., are not considered
light refreshments. For complete information regarding light refreshments please visits the SAAM
Manual.

Loaded Composite Rate is an employee composite rate that adds to, or artificially inflates, actual or
reasonably estimated costs or charges above and beyond the actual costs paid out to, or on behalf of,
the employee for hours worked. Acceptable components of an employee’s composite rate are: salary
or wages, payroll taxes, unemployment insurance, employee benefits such as medical insurance,
earned sick or vacation leave accrual, Social Security & Medicare withholding, and retirement
benefits. Other costs such as equipment, supplies, training, or inflating the employee’s salary or
wages, are not acceptable on a composite rate for SCC funding sources.

Minor is any person 17 years of age or younger.

Open Contract is a legally binding agreement that can be used in many types of contracts, including
employment, property, and financial agreements. Open contracts are characterized by the lack of a
specific end date or terms, which allows for flexibility and ongoing work arrangement.

Overhead represents those costs that benefit more than one activity of the district and that cannot be
directly assigned to a task of the project. Overhead Costs are not to exceed SCC established rate of
25% of salaries/benefits or direct costs incurred by the district plus other acceptable goods and
services outlined in the Overhead section of this manual. Once an overhead rate is established, the
percentage will be used throughout the entire life of the grant or contract.

Packing Slip is a document that lists the contents of a package being shipped. It's used to ensure
that the correct items are delivered to the customer. This may not be used and an invoice or receipt
for reimbursement on a grant or contract.

Participant is an individual or entity that is, by signing the Contract for Cost Share Funds, accepting
the cost-share funding and committing to install the BMPs in the contract. A participant may be the
owner of the land, a lessee or operator, or a cooperator of the district.

Per Diem Expenses are daily travel costs covering both lodging expenses and subsistence expenses
while in travel status.

Personal Property is property of any kind. It may be tangible (having physical existence) or intangible
(such as patents, inventions and copyrights.) Personal property does not include real property. See
Real Property definition.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 250 of 263


https://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/WASCC/WASCC_30/2021/06/30/file_attachments/1867572/Light%20Refreshments%20District%20Template%20Updated__1867572.pdf
https://ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/legacy/policy/70.10.htm
https://ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/legacy/policy/70.10.htm

Personal Services are professional or technical services provided by a consultant. Generally,
personal services are used to address a short-term need, resolve an unusual problem, expedite a
special project, and/or bring specialized skills for which the district is not permanently staffed.

Prevailing Wage is defined as the hourly wage, usual benefits and overtime, paid in the largest city in
each county, to the majority of workers, laborers, and mechanics. Prevailing wages are established by
the Department of Labor and Industries for each trade and occupation employed in the performance
of public work. They are established separately for each county, and are reflective of local wage
conditions.

Prior Authorization is documentation from SCC authorizing the district to incur project costs, or take
particular actions. This permission is subject to certain conditions stipulated in the Prior Authorization
Letter. Prior authorization is made before the execution of the grant or contract.

Privately Owned Vehicle (POV) is owned, leased, or borrowed by a state driver for which the driver
receives or is entitled to receive monetary reimbursement or per diem when the vehicle is used to
conduct official state business. The state driver is responsible to maintain vehicle insurance on the
POV in compliance with Washington mandatory liability insurance requirements as defined in RCW
46.29 and RCW 46.30.

Project Status Update: Projects are required to be started within 120 days or provide a reason(s) or
justification for any delays. Program and/or Reginal Managers will reach out for status checks of all
projects throughout the grant cycle.

Purchase is the acquisition of goods or services, including the leasing or renting of facilities or goods.

Purchase Card is a charge card issued to a card custodian for the purpose of making authorized
purchases on behalf of the agency.

Purchased Services are services that support the day-to-day operations of a district or entity.
Purchased services usually involve completion of an assigned task rather than an entire project, and
do not require independent decision-making and analysis.

Real Property is land, including crops and mineral rights, land improvements, structures, and
accessories to them, excluding movable machinery and equipment.

Receipt is a written acknowledgment of having received, or taken into one's possession, a specified
amount of money, goods, etc. All receipts must have an itemized list of what is included in the
purchase as well as a date the transaction occurred. All receipts must be legible.

Reduction in Funds is when funding or authorization for the grant or contract is made unavailable
and the grant or contract is subject to amendment or termination.

Request for Proposal (RFP) is a written solicitation document which identifies the agency’s need or
problem, and consultants are invited to submit proposals which outline their solution to the need or
problem, their qualifications and experience to provide the services, and their costs or fees.

Request for Applications (RFA) is a type of solicitation notice in which an organization announces
that grant funding is available. An RFA informs researchers and other organizations that they may
present bids on how the funding could be used.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 251 of 263


https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=46.29
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=46.29
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=46.30
https://www.dictionary.com/browse/receive
https://www.investopedia.com/terms/g/government-grant.asp

Sales Receipt is a document that records a completed sale between a buyer and a seller. It serves
as proof of payment and verifies that the buyer received the goods or services they paid for. A sales
receipt must list the date of the transaction.

Scope of Work includes a detailed description of the project, including intermediate outcomes,
budget, and completion dates used to determine successful completion.

Services are labor, work, analysis, or similar activities provided by a contractor or vendor to
accomplish a specific scope of work.

Speaker is a person who presents information, ideas, or stories to an audience at an event. These
can be any event, such as conferences, seminars, workshops, or webinars. Speakers are often
experts in their fields and may include professionals, academics, or motivational leaders. Moreover,
their primary goal is to educate, inspire, or entertain the audience, making the content relatable and
accessible.

State Administrative & Accounting Manual (SAAM) provides control and accountability over
financial and administrative affairs of the state of Washington and assists agencies in gathering and
maintaining information needed for the preparation of financial statements.

SCC Financial Staff is SCC designated staff that has primary responsibility for overseeing the
performance of the master contract by the district and represents the Commission in matters
concerning any grant or contract awarded by SCC.

Subcontractor is an entity or organization, whose employees are not in the employment of the
district, which is performing all or part of the services under the grant or contract under a subcontract
with the district or entity.

Subscriptions include subscriptions to newspapers, periodicals and databases, and/or services
providing informational reports, for periods not in excess of three years.

Supplies are all tangible (having physical substance and intrinsic monetary value) personal property
other than tools or equipment.

Supplemental Funding is additional funding that comes available for use in the project.

Termination is permanent withdrawal, before the expiration date, of the authority to obligate
previously awarded project funds. It also means the voluntary relinquishment of that authority by the
district.

Terms of the Contract defines all requirements of the contract, whether in the contract, statute,
regulations, or in the Grant and Contract Procedure Manual.

Total Project Cost equals the sum of allowable direct and overhead costs of the project.

Voucher is a reimbursement payment request that is submitted monthly to SCC for each grant or
contract a district or entity is awarded. The voucher must include all backup documents as outlined in
this manual to document the monthly costs incurred against the grant or contract.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 252 of 263



Volunteer is a person, other than an emergency services worker as described by Chapter 38.52
RCW, who, of his/her own free choice, performs any assigned or authorized duties for the state or any
agency thereof. A volunteer receives no wages, and is registered and accepted as a volunteer by the
state or any agency thereof, for the purpose of engaging in authorized volunteer service.

NOTES:

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 253 of 263



Pr——e————
—

= Washington State
=A== CONnservation Commission
June 18, 2025
TO: Conservation Commission Members
James Thompson, Executive Director
FROM:
SUBJECT:

Shana Joy, Deputy Director of Operations and Programs

Professional Engineering Grants FY26 Funding Allocations

Action ltem

Summary:

Informational Item

For several biennia, the SCC has offered professional engineering grants to groups of cooperating
conservation districts (areas) to help support access to professional engineering services for

conservation district projects, either through hire of professional engineers or contracting for

engineering services. Professional Engineering Grants Program (PEGP) Guidelines were adopted
in July 2023 following collaborative discussions with a group of conservation district staff. At the

time, the PEGP was funded at a level that made it possible to also support additional professional
engineering staff that were not employed or housed by cooperating engineering area host districts.
The appropriation level for the next two fiscal years, at least, does not allow for the SCC to fund the
cooperating engineering areas at the level indicated by the program guidelines — a level of

$250,000 per engineering area. While there is now a conflict between language in the program
guidelines and the appropriation that the SCC received for the 25-27 biennium, conservation

a proposed funding allocation method for FY26.

districts need to know what the funding allocation will be for FY26 before July 15t so that they have
undertaken to update the PEGP guidelines. SCC staff are recommending Commissioners approve

clarity on how the SCC will support their professional engineering staff while a process is

Requested Action (if action item):

and update the Professional Engineering Program Guidelines.

Commissioners approve funding allocations of $237,333 for each of the 9 cooperating engineering
areas and direct staff to bring to Commissioners at the July meeting a proposed process to re-open
Staff Contact:

Shana Joy, sjoy@scc.wa.gov, 360-480-2078

Special Commission Meeting

June 18, 2025

254 of 263


mailto:sjoy@scc.wa.gov

Background and Discussion:

For more than twenty years the Conservation Commission has provided professional engineering
grants to conservation districts to help them access professional engineering services and meet
requirements set out in the Engineers and Land Surveyors Act (RCW 18.43). With the increased
investment in conservation district engineering work by the legislature in the 2022 legislation
session, program guidelines were built with conservation districts participating. Those guidelines
were approved by Commissioners in July 2023 and are attached as reference.

Here is the pertinent language from the program guidelines pertaining to allocation of funds:
Funds will be allocated as follows:

Allocate a set, equal amount per fiscal year to each cooperating engineering area, of no less than
$250,000 per fiscal year. Any cooperating engineering area may opt to request less funding if the
full amount cannot be utilized.

Additional engineering funds may be requested either for a cooperating engineering area program
or by individual conservation districts. It is SCC’s intent to evaluate this funding allocation
methodology on an annual basis. SCC may elect to fully allocate all available program funds only to
cooperating engineering areas in future fiscal years if it is determined that district needs may be
met with that approach.

Professional Engineering Appropriation Information

For the 23-25 biennium, professional engineering grants were funded at $5,400,000 for the
biennium. The ongoing funding level is reduced to $4,271,000 this biennium ($2,136,000 for FY26
and $2,135,000 for FY27) from the general fund. Funding is further reduced in the 2027-2029
biennium to $4,100,000 ($2,050,000 per fiscal year).

It is clear that the SCC is not able to meet district needs at the current appropriation levels.
Regional managers reached out to conservation districts to share information about our current
budget situation, explore options, and assess potential impacts. A meeting was held by Zoom on
May 8t with districts. In that discussion, two primary perspectives were shared by districts. These
are not new conservation district perspectives. In summary, those two perspectives are:

1) The SCC should allocate the available funds equally among the 9 cooperating engineering
areas to align with the historical structure and intent of the PEGP over the years which is to
support cooperating groups of districts to build professional engineering teams to provide
services.

2) The SCC should allocate the available funds equally among the 9 cooperating engineering
areas at a reduced level to allow for funds to be made available to other districts for
additional professional engineering staff.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 255 of 263



The majority of comments were shared in favor of the first perspective above and it was also noted
that there is just not enough funding to fully support a cooperating engineering area team at the
previous $250,000 funding level. The historical intent of SCC providing grant funds dedicated to
professional engineering services was always to support groups of districts working together as
cooperating engineering areas with the understanding that the funding support from the SCC may
never fully meet the need but would serve as seed money that could be leveraged to help secure
additional funds from other sources. This is important information to keep in mind. While districts
may of course choose to hire any type of employee that they may need, access to the professional
engineering grant funds should occur by working with the appropriate cooperating engineering area
host district and governing committee. If all conservation districts hired professional engineering
staff and the SCC attempted to support all of those professional engineering employees, the
professional engineering grant funds would be too diluted to be meaningful seed funding.

SCC staff recommend that the Commissioners abide by the PEGP guidelines to the greatest extent
possible and allocate the available appropriated funds of $2,136,000 for FY26 equally among the
current 9 cooperating engineering areas at a level of $237,333 per area. Staff also recommend that
the Commissioners direct staff to craft a process and timeline for updating the Professional
Engineering Program Guidelines to address the funding allocation language that conflicts with
current appropriation levels.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 256 of 263



—m—— Washington State
Conservation Commission

Professional Engineering Grants Programmatic Guidelines
May 2024

Program Background

Professional Engineering Grant (PE) funds are operating funds. RCW 89.08.220(12) provides
authority for conservation districts to share the services of professional engineering staff. PEs
provide funding support to groups of cooperating conservation districts to hire or retain the
services of professional engineers or engineering technicians under the supervision of a licensed
professional engineer. The SCC provides PE funding to support professional engineering services
and oversight, technical assistance, and staff training for conservation districts. Professional
engineering programs are utilized to pool resources to access engineering services that:

e Are experienced with conservation projects’ engineering requirements,
e Are familiar with local conservation districts operation and programs,and

e Arereadily available to assist conservation district staff with all phases of conservation
projects from initial project scoping, budgeting/grant development, permitting,
construction, and final inspection and reporting.

In the 2022 legislative session, general operating funds were “provided solely for the commission to
make available to local conservation districts for project engineering services to enable permit and
design work for conservation projects.”

Program Rules

Eligibility to Receive Funds
Conservation districts must meet all of the Accountability requirements under the Conservation
Accountability and Performance Program (CAPP) in order to be eligible to receive PE funds.

Timeline & Application for Funding

Professional Engineering Grant funds are allocated to conservation districts at the beginning of
each fiscal year, no later than the month of July. Nearby districts are encouraged to work together
cooperatively to hire or retain and share the services of licensed professional engineers.

Funds will be allocated to conservation districts based on complete applications submitted utilizing
the grant addendum form. Applications will be reviewed by Regional Managers and SCC financial
staff for complete information and adherence to program guidelines before funds will be awarded.
Funds will be allocated as follows:

e Allocate a set, equal amount per fiscal year to each cooperating engineering area, of no
less than $250,000 per fiscal year. Any cooperating engineering area may opt to

Speciel CommilSgMIFRLA5S funding if the full amouny cpnot be utilized. 257 of 263


https://www.scc.wa.gov/cd/governance-operations-training-development
https://www.scc.wa.gov/cd/governance-operations-training-development
https://www.formstack.com/forms/?1969063-styzhL5se3

e Additional engineering funds may be requested either for a cooperating engineering
area program or by individual conservation districts.

It is SCC’s intent to evaluate this funding allocation methodology on an annual basis. SCC may
elect to fully allocate all available program funds only to cooperating engineering areas in future
fiscal years if it is determined that district needs may be met with that approach. If one or more
additional cooperating engineering areas are formed, the amount of funds available to be allocated
to each cooperating engineering area may be reduced.

Specific Program Requirements

Professional Engineers

Districts may hire one or more licensed professional engineers to manage an engineering program.
Program funding may be used to support the work of professional engineers and other staff working
under the direction of a professional engineer to support program delivery. A professional engineer
is defined by RCW 18.43.020(10)". Professional engineers and engineers in training (EIT) shall be
licensed in the State of Washington. Districts are encouraged to build engineering capacity that
includes EITs, surveyors, engineering techs and utilize other staff to support professional
engineering staff in delivering engineering services. Districts may also contract out for professional
engineering services to meet engineering needs as determined by participating districts.

Inter-Local Agreements (ILA)

Each cooperating engineering area of conservation districts must enter into an inter-local agreement
governing: formation, membership, meeting frequency, and procedures of an area engineering
committee (AEC), hire/fire and performance evaluation procedures for professional engineering
staff, project/work prioritization methodology, general terms governing termination or amendment
of the agreement, dispute resolution, liability, and insurance. A current, fully signed Inter-Local
Agreement for each cooperating engineering area must be on file at the SCC. If an Inter-Local
Agreement is in force until such time as terminated the document does not have to be re-signed by
each cooperating conservation district each biennium. An email must be submitted to the
sccgrants(@scc.wa.gov at the start of each biennium indicating that review of the ILA has occurred,
with the current ILA attached, and verifying the ILA is still current. Each district should review the
agreement on an annual basis and ensure they are familiar with the terms and procedures contained
n it.

Liability for Professional Engineers

In general, a conservation district as an employer is liable for their employees, including
professional engineers if the employee is acting on behalf of the conservation district. In the event of
a workplace injury, worker’s compensation insurance through WA Labor & Industries applies.
Additionally, the professional license that is held by professional engineers provides a measure of
protection for liability if the engineer is working within the scope of that license. If the conservation
district employing the professional engineer wishes to transfer liability to another district in which
the engineer is performing work this should be addressed in the Inter-Local Agreement that governs
sharing that engineer’s services.

1

https //apps leg.wa. gov/rcw/default aspx?cite=18.43.0204:~:text=(10)%20%22Professional%20engineer%22,enginee
bi adfdafin pd%HYin%20this June 18, 2025 258 of 263



mailto:sccgrants@scc.wa.gov
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=18.43.020&%3A%7E%3Atext=(10)%20%22Professional%20engineer%22%2Cengineering%20as%20defined%20in%20this
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=18.43.020&%3A%7E%3Atext=(10)%20%22Professional%20engineer%22%2Cengineering%20as%20defined%20in%20this

Changing the Host District

In the event a cooperating engineering area changes the designated host district, all equipment
purchased with Commission funds (including purchases with overhead funds) must be transferred to
the new host district. An inventory of such equipment shall be maintained and shared with the AEC
annually or as prescribed by the ILA. All unexpended PE funds must be transferred to the new host
district to continue to support the program. If the employment of professional engineering staff is
transferred to a new host district, accrued sick/vacation leave and restricted host district funds
accrued to cover the liability of this leave shall be transferred to the new host district. Host districts
may only change at the start of a fiscal year and the SCC must be notified and approve of the change
before processing any PE vouchers for the cooperating engineering area.

Forming a Cooperating Engineering Area

A group of conservation districts may choose to form a new cooperating engineering area.
Cooperating districts must complete a new Inter-local Agreement, request in writing that the new
engineering area be recognized by the SCC for PE grant purposes, and formally withdraw from any
prior cooperating engineering areas included within. The SCC does not guarantee that new
cooperating engineeringareas will be recognized or provided with PE grant funding.

PE Services are to be made available to new and current engineering areas through a full time
equivalent PE or equivalent contracted engineering services.

Each CD can only be a part of one established engineering area. A minimum of 4-conservation
districts is required for new engineering area. Current engineering areas with less than 4 districts
would continue. For all other engineering areas, if the engineering area falls below 4 districts, the
engineering area has a one year grace period to get back to 4 cooperating districts. If after one year
this has not occurred, the Commission reserves the right to halt grant funds.

Section 1 - New Cooperating Engineering Area Development Timeline:
1. The board of supervisors of each district involved approves initiating a new engineering area
via a motion.
2. At least 6-months before the end of a biennium, interested CDs agree and notify in writing
SCC local regional manager the intent of starting a new engineering area.
a. Include board approval motions
b. Include PE name if known or applicable
c. Include new engineering area name
3. Local regional manager briefs regional manager team and SCC Leadership Team.
a. Ifnecessary, Regional manager conducts follow up questions with new engineering
area
4. New engineering area notifies the respective existing engineering committee or Board of
Directors. Current host district PE provides written support.
5. By April 15 in odd years, submit to regional manager a workload analysis (see details in next
section)
6. Regional Manager submits request and workload analysis to SCC Leadership Team to
discuss at a Leadership Team Meeting.
a. Questions will be directed to the Regional Manager who will share those with the
petitioning CDs for response. Responses due back within 10-business days
b. Follow ups will be directed to Leadership Team for final decision
c. See evaluation criteria in Section 3
7. If approved, new engineering area develops an inter-local agreement and host district

develops and submits to SCC a PE Services Aj%reement.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 20 259 of 263



Section 2 - Workload analysis:
A workload analysis is required for new engineering areas by April 15 in odd years. This is
to include, but is not limited to providing the following information:

1.

NN I e

7.

Name of new engineering area Professional Engineer if applicable
Name of new engineering area host district
Names of CDs involved in new engineering area
Board Approval dates for initiating new engineering area process
If follow up questions requested from SCC — please include responses
Summary of previous 12-months PE accomplished to include in table format of CDs in the
new engineering area:
a. Name of project
b. Indicate whether the following apply:
i. Preliminary Design
ii. Permit Design
iii.  Fully implemented — completed or expected implementation timeline
c. For each project, indicate what CD the work was suppor.ng
d. Indicate for each project whether SCC PE funding supported
e. If SCC PE funding was not used on a project, what was the source of funding.
i. LE. SCC project funding or non-SCC funding
12-month look ahead of expected and planned PE work of the new engineering area.
a. Provide a summary of expected work associated timeline for each
b. Indicate for each project whether SCC PE funding is expected to be used
c. Ifnot SCC PE funding, indicate the likely source of funding

Section 3 - Evaluation Criteria used by SCC Leadership Team

1.
2.
3.

4.

10.

11

12.

Support from the new engineering area district board of supervisors

Review and recognition of PE engineer workload

Are the new engineering area districts actively pursuing grant funding that requires
engineering

Do the districts have a track record of success in implemen.ng engineered projects

If applicable, does the poten.al new engineering area engineer work well with exis.ng
engineering area engineer.

Is there support from existing engineering area CDs not joining the new engineering area
Do the new engineering area districts share a common district boundary

Does the new engineering area host/PE have agreements with CDs outside of the existing
engineering area boundary

Is the potential host district a district in good standing (CAPP)

Available PE funding at SCC?

. Is there still a need for an engineer in the new engineering area or just use contracting

process with other engineers.
If denied, communicate back to CDs the reasons or reason for denial and provide appeal
process outlined in Grants Manual — Section 2: Appeals

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 260 of 263



Expenditures
Eligible expenditures for PE funding include:

o Salary and benefits
o Overhead
o Goods and services
o Such as contracted professional engineering, surveying, or geotechnical services
o Software, hardware (computers etc..), and other equipment essential to performing
engineering work

o Travel
o Training
o Vehicles (conditionally eligible on a case-by-case basis)

Ineligible expenditures for reimbursement from PE funding:
o General administrative goods and services (office rent, copy machines, electricity etc....)
o Education and outreach
o BMP implementation/construction/installation

Equipment
Equipment purchases anticipated to cost more than $2,500 including but not limited to software,

hardware (e.g. computer/laptop/tablet), essential tools (e.g. survey equipment) or vehicles should
be included in the grant application as a separate outcome at the beginning of the grant cycle,
where possible. Vehicles may only be requested on a limited basis utilizing the WSCC Vehicle
Purchase Request Form. Once a grant is awarded, those software, hardware or equipment
purchases included in the grant application are considered pre-approved and may move forward
anytime during the fiscal year. All such purchases must be received in hand prior to June 30" of
each year. Also, each applicable AEC must be informed of and approve of all such purchases over
$2,500 and this information must be included in the grant addendum form. If an equipment
purchase over $2,500 becomes necessary and was not included in the original grant addendum and
award, pre-approval must be secured from SCC prior to making the purchase.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 261 of 263



Reporting

Each conservation district receiving professional engineering program funds (either an individual
district or a cooperating engineering area of districts) will submit a report of work
accomplishments for the engineering program at the end of each fiscal year in a format to be
provided by the SCC.

General Requirements (see also Grants and Contracts Policy and Procedures Manual)
¢ An overhead percentage only is allowed to be billed based on actual district staff hours

worked. The maximum overhead percentage allowed is 25%.

e Any district that does not utilize their awarded PE allocation in a timely manner
or returns funding late in the fiscal year (April 1% or later each fiscal year)
without a compelling explanation, may receive a reduced allocation or be
deemed ineligible to receive future PE funding allocations.

e Please submit a Operating Grants Returned Funds form as soon as it becomes clear
that funds will not be utilized.

Vouchering

Monthly grant vouchers are required. Refer to the Grants and Contracts Policy and
Procedures Manual for further, detailed vouchering requirements and forms.

Definitions

e “Engineered” practice or engineering required practice: NRCS or SCC practices
designated as requiring engineering oversight.

e (Cooperating engineering area: a designated geographic area with several conservation
districts that partner to pool financial resources to support an engineering program.

e Host district: one district within each cooperating engineering area acts as the designated
PE administrator or “host”. Typically, this district is also the employer of professional
engineering staff.

Special Commission Meeting June 18, 2025 262 of 263


https://scc.wa.gov/grant-and-contract-procedure-manual/
https://www.formstack.com/forms/?2337134-hSaMn19Pik
https://scc.wa.gov/grant-and-contract-procedure-manual/
https://scc.wa.gov/grant-and-contract-procedure-manual/

Pr——e————
—

= Washington State
=S CONnservation Commission
June 18, 2025
TO: Conservation Commission Members
FROM: James Thompson, Executive Director
SUBJECT: Request for Board Approval: Attendance at NACD Summer Conservation
Forum — July 25-29, 2025
Action Item X
Informational ltem
Summary:

The National Association of Conservation Districts (NACD) has scheduled its 2025 Summer
Conservation Forum from July 25-29 in Milwaukee, Wisconsin. This event offers a comprehensive
agenda, including sessions on sustainable land management, conservation policy, and networking
opportunities with conservation leaders nationwide.

effective conservation practices within our state.

facilitate collaboration with peers across the country, and enhance the SCC's capacity to implement

Participation in this forum will provide valuable insights into emerging conservation strategies,
Additional Information:

The event agenda is accessible here: NACD Summer Conservation Forum Agenda
Requested Action:

Approval for the State Conservation Commission (SCC) Executive Director and designated
member(s) to attend the NACD Summer Conservation Forum, July 25-29, 2025.

Staff Contact: James Thompson, Executive Director jthompson@scc.wa.qov

Lori Gonzalez, Executive Assistant, Igonzalez@scc.wa.qov

Special Commission Meeting

June 18, 2025

263 of 263


https://nacdsummer25.sched.com/
mailto:jthompson@scc.wa.gov
mailto:lgonzalez@scc.wa.gov

	June 18, 2025 Meeting Packet Cover
	June 18, 2025 Preliminary Agenda
	a) 2025-2027 Riparian Grant Program (RGP) guidelines and overview of edits
	Riparian Grant Program Public Comments and SCC Response Report
	Northwest Indian Fisheries Commission_comment letter
	ATTACH 1: NWIFC_comment letter 1-17-24

	Confederated Tribes of the Colville Reservation_comment letter
	Department of Ecology_comment letter
	Pacific Conservation District_comment letter
	Dept. of Fish and Wildlife_comment letter
	DRAFT Riparian Grant Program Guidlines_redlined w/edits

	b) Grant and Contract Policy and Procedure Guidelines memo
	Comments received data from Formstack software
	Improving usability of the State Conservation Commission Grant Contract and Procedure Manual_Facilitation Report-out from Feb. 20 2025
	2025 SCC Grant Contract Procedure Manual_Redlined

	c) Professional Engineering Funding Allocation Memo
	Current Professional Engineering Guidelines

	d) Out of State Travel Request Memo_NACD_July 2025



